
1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education 

"Building a Bright Future for All Learners" 
 

Regular Meeting 
January 17, 2024 
6:00 p.m. Closed Session 
7:00 p.m. Open Session 

Galt City Hall Chamber 
380 Civic Drive, Galt, CA 95632 

 
To join the webinar remotely: 

https://galt-k12-ca.zoom.us/j/87107581580 
Or One tap mobile : 

    +16694449171,,87107581580# US 
    +16699006833,,87107581580# US (San Jose) 

Or Telephone:     
408-638-0968 

 

AGENDA 
Anyone may comment publicly on any item within the Board's subject matter jurisdiction to the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Board 
of Education. However, the Board may not take action on any item not on this Board meeting agenda except as authorized by Government Code 
section 54954.2. 
− Complete a public comment form indicating the item you want to address and give it to the board meeting assistant. 
− Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda or non-agenda item.  
− Public comments emailed to superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 24 hours before the board meeting will be posted on the GJUESD website with 

the agenda. Email public comment is limited to 450 words. 
− The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. With Board consent, the president may increase or decrease 

the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard.  
 
Board of Education Meetings are recorded. 

 
A. 6:00 p.m. – Closed Session Location: Galt City Hall Conference Room 
   
B. Announce items to be discussed in Closed Session, Adjourn to Closed Session  
    
 1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION, Government Code §54957 

 Superintendent 
 

    
 2. STUDENT EXPULSION, Education Code §48912 

 Case Number: 22/23-04 
 

    
 3. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Non-Represented Employees 

    
C. Adjourn Closed Session, Call Meeting to Order, Flag Salute, Announce Action Taken in Closed 

Session 
   

mailto:superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us


2 
 

D. Presentations/Recognitions 
 1. Lake Canyon Elementary Students 
 2. Cal-Waste Recognition for Food Waste Recycling 
   
E. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval. 
  
F. Board Meeting Protocol 
   
G. Reports  
 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
  
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning environments. 
 1. Math Curriculum Pilot and Adoption Update 
 2. Gifted And Talented Education (GATE) Program Update 
   
 LCAP GOAL 2 

Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 1. Food and Nutrition Services  
 2. Galt Horse-Assisted Learning and Enrichment Program (GALEP)  
 3. Marengo Ranch Elementary Running Track  
    
 OTHER REPORTS  
 1. Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP) Quarter 2 Report  
 2. 2024-25 School Registration  
 3. School Calendars  
    
H. Routine Matters/New Business  
 232.457 Consent Calendar  
  a. Approval of the Agenda 

At a regular meeting, the Board may act upon an item of business not appearing on the posted agenda 
if, first, the Board publicly identifies the item, and second, one or more of the following occurs: 
1) The Board, by a majority vote of the entire Board, decides that an emergency (as defined in 

Government Code section 54956.5) exists or 
2) Upon a decision by a two-thirds vote of the Board, or if less than two-thirds of the Board 

members are present, a unanimous vote of those present, the Board decides that there is a need 
to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the District after 
the agenda was posted; or  

3) The item was posted on the agenda of a prior meeting of the Board occurring not more than five 
calendar days before the date of this meeting, and at the preceding meeting, the item was 
continued to this meeting. 

MOTION 

     
  b. Minutes  
    December 20, 2023  
     
  c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: 24455941-24456012; 24456826-24456868; 
24457864-24457900 

 Payroll Warrants: 01/02/24, 01/10/24 

 

     
     



3 
 

  d. Personnel  
    Resignations/Retirements 

 Leave of Absence Requests 
 New Hires/Reclassifications 

 

     
  e. Donations  
     
 232.458 Consent Calendar (Continued) – Items Removed for Later Consideration MOTION 
    
 232.459 Board Action Regarding Student Expulsion Case No. 22/23-04 MOTION 
    
 232.460 Board Consideration of Approval of GJUESD 2022-2023 District Audit Report by 

Christy White Associates 
MOTION 

    
 232.461 Board Consideration of Approval of 2023-24 School Accountability Report Card 

(SARC) for Fairsite Elementary, Lake Canyon Elementary, Marengo Ranch 
Elementary, River Oaks Elementary, Valley Oaks Elementary, Vernon E. Greer 
Elementary and McCaffrey Middle School 

MOTION 

    
 232.462 Board Consideration of Approval of 19six Architects’ Proposal for Professional 

Architectural and Engineering Services for Vernon E. Greer Elementary New 
Relocatable Classroom Buildings 

MOTION 

    
 232.463 Board Consideration of Approval of 2024-25 E-rate Service Providers MOTION 
    
 232.464 First Reading of the following Board Policies (BP), Administrative Regulations 

(AR) and Bylaw (BB) 
1. BP 0460 Local Control Accountability Plan 
2. AR 0460 Local Control Accountability Plan 
3. BP 0500 – Accountability 
4. BP 0520 – Intervention in Underperforming Schools 
5. AR 1220 – Citizen Advisory Committees 
6. BP 1431 - Waivers 
7. BP 3400 – Management of District Assets/Accounts 
8. AR 3400 – Management of District Assets/Accounts 
9. BP 5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers 
10. BP 5131.2 – Bullying 
11. AR 5131.2 – Bullying 
12. AR 5141.21 – Administering Medication and Monitoring Health 

Conditions 
13. BP 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
14. AR 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
15. BP 6170.1 – Transitional Kindergarten 
16. BP 6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education 
17. AR 6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education 
18. BP 9321 Closed Session 
19. E(1) 9321 Closed Session 
20. E(2) 9321 Closed Session 
21. BP 1325 Advertising And Promotion 

FIRST 
READING 



4 
 

    
I. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval.  
   
J. Pending Agenda Items  
 1. Acceleration Blocks  
 2. School Resource Officer (SRO) Report  
    
K. Adjournment  
    
    

The next regular meeting of the GJUESD Board of Education: February 21, 2024 
  

 
 

Board agenda materials are available for review at the address below. Individuals who require disability-related 
accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, to participate in the Board meeting should 

contact the Superintendent or designee in writing. 
 

 Lois Yount, District Superintendent 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 
superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 

 

 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      January 17, 2024 Agenda Item:  Closed Session 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 
  

 

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION, Government Code §54957 
 Superintendent 

 

   
2. STUDENT EXPULSION, Education Code §48912 

 Case Number: 22/23-04 
 

   
3. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Non-Represented Employees 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: Presentations/Recognitions 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 

 
 

1. Lake Canyon Elementary Students 
  
2. Cal Waste Recognition for Food Waste Recycling 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GATE: Gifted & Talented 
Education

Lake Canyon Elementary



GATE Educational Services Guide

A differentiated curriculum is responsive to the readiness, interests, 
and abilities of advanced and gifted students beyond grade level 
expectations. 

● Provides for the development of critical, creative, and 
problem-solving skills

● Learning that reinforces the readiness, interests, and abilities of 
gifted students that includes abstract thinking

● Uses a variety of teaching and learning patterns 



Lake Canyon Gate 23-24

● 3 fourth graders
● 2 fifth graders



What does GATE look like at Lake Canyon?

Trimester 1
Getting to Know 

One Another

Interest Survey

Learning Styles

Goal Setting

College Pennant 

Trimester 2

STEM Challenges

Notecard Towers

Water Bottle Flip 

Paper Airplane 

Deserted Island 

Snowball Launcher

Trimester 3

Humanities 
and Culture 
based off of 

student 
interest



Resources

STEM
● Partnership w/ SMUD

○ Solar Radiation
● Video Lab
● 3D Printer
● Robotics kits
● Makerspace

Humanities/Culture
● Cosumnes Preserve
● Digital museums 
● Project-based learning
● Guest Speakers

Partnership with McCaffrey AVID 
program to take a college tour field trip 
to Merced College and UC Merced in 
February 2024. 



Student Perspective 

Ava

Miles

Avery



Revised December 21, 2023 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

BOARD MEETING PROTOCOL 
 
 
 
 
SESSION INTRODUCTION 

1. The meeting is being recorded. 
2. The meeting is open to the public. 
3. The meeting is being broadcast live through Zoom teleconference. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Public comments are three minutes per agenda item. 
2. The Board shall limit the total time for public comment for each agenda item to 20 

minutes. 
3. With Board consent, the Board President may increase or decrease the time allowed for 

public comment. 
4. To make a public comment in person, complete a public comment form indicating the 

item you would like to address and give it to the board meeting assistant. 
 

EMAIL PUBLIC COMMENT 
1. Public comments emailed to superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us 24 hours before the board 

meeting will be posted to the GJUESD website with the agenda. 
2. Email public comment is limited to 450 words. 

 
BOARD VOTE AND CONNECTIVITY 

1. Each motion will be followed by a roll call vote for action items. 
2. Should a board member attend the meeting remotely and lose connectivity by 

teleconference or phone, the meeting will be delayed five minutes. 
 
 
REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS SHALL BE ADJOURNED BY 10:30 P.M. 

mailto:superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us


Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
  

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: Reports 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item:  
 Information Item: XX 

 
 

Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
 
LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning 
environments. 
1. Math Curriculum Pilot and Adoption Update 
2. Gifted And Talented Education (GATE) Program Update 
  
LCAP GOAL 2 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and 
supportive environments. 
1. Food and Nutrition Services 
2. Galt Horse-Assisted Learning and Enrichment Program (GALEP) 
3. Marengo Ranch Elementary Running Track 
  
OTHER REPORTS 
1. Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP) Quarter 2 Report 
2. 2024-25 School Registration 
3. School Calendars 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: January 17,2024 
 

 
LCAP 

 

 
 
 
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
 
Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP. 
The superintendent of the school district shall present a report on the annual update to the LCAP 
and the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) budget overview for parents on or before February 28 
of each year at a regularly scheduled meeting of the school district's governing board. The report 
shall include both of the following: (i) All available midyear outcome data related to metrics 
identified in the current year’s local control and accountability plan. (ii) All available midyear 
expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the current year’s local control and 
accountability plan. 
 
 
 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 1 of 30 

 
 

Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 
2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

 
This template is intended for internal monitoring purposes only. The 2023-24 LCAP template and instructions should be consulted when completing required 
documents.  
 
(6) (A) The superintendent of the school district shall present a report on the annual update to the local control and accountability plan and the local control 
funding formula budget overview for parents on or before February 28 of each year at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school 
district. (B) The report shall include both of the following: (i) All available midyear outcome data related to metrics identified in the current year’s local control 
and accountability plan. (ii) All available midyear expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the current year’s local control and 
accountability plan. 
 
Internal Notes 

Internal Notes 
 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District     Lois Yount    

Superintendent 
superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us    
(209) 744-4555 

 
Goal 1 
Goal Description 
Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in a variety of learning environments.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 2 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

English learner 
enrollment in 
PreKindergarten will 
increase 5% each 
year.        

2020-21 SIS Data 
Total enrollment = 200 
Total EL enrollment = 
85 (43%) 
 

2021-22 SIS Data 
Total enrollment = 171 
Total EL enrollment = 
80 (47%) 
 

2022-23 SIS Data 
Preschool (ages 0-5): 
Total enrollment = 248 
Total EL enrollment = 
104  (42%) 
 
Transitional kinder: 
Total enrollment = 96 
Total EL enrollment = 
32  (33%) 
 

2023-2024: 
Preschool (ages 0-5): 
Total enrollment = 247 
Total EL enrollment = 
97 (39%) 
 
Transitional kinder: 
Total enrollment = 118 
Total EL enrollment = 
29 (24%) 
 
 

2023-24 SIS Data 
Total EL enrollment = 
58% 
 

PreK Dual language 
learners meeting 
Kindergarten 
Readiness 
benchmarks will 
increase 10% or 
greater each year.        

Spring 2021 Kinder 
Readiness 
Assessments: 
1. 49% of all PreK 
students met all 
Kinder Readiness 
Benchmarks 
 
2. 25% of PreK Dual 
language learners met 
all Kinder Readiness 
Benchmark 
 

New Baseline Spring 
2022 
(PreK Benchmarks 
have been realigned 
with kinder readiness 
skills) 
 
School Readiness 
Assessments: 
1. 55% of all 
Preschool students 
met 80-100% of 
Kinder Readiness 
Benchmarks 
 
2. 51% of dual 
language learners met 
80-100% of Kinder 
Readiness 
Benchmarks 
 

School Readiness 
Assessments: 
1a. % of all Preschool 
& TK students 
meeting Kinder 
Readiness 
Benchmarks: 
Letter Names PS 
Upper 57%; TK 75% 
Letter Names PS 
Lower: 37%; TK 67% 
Number Identification: 
PS 52%; TK 83% 
Rote counting: PS 
69%; TK 75% 
1:1 Correspondence: 
PS 89%; TK 92% 
Name Writing: PS 
100%; TK 88% 
 
1b. % of Preschool & 
TK dual language 
learners meeting 
Kinder Readiness 
Benchmarks: 

TBD 2023-24 
1. 79% of all 
Preschool students 
met all Kindergarten 
Readiness 
Benchmarks 
 
2. 55% of Preschool 
ELs will meet the 
Kindergarten 
Readiness 
Benchmarks 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 3 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

Letter Names Upper: 
PS 39%; TK 77% 
Letter Names Lower: 
PS 39%; TK 68% 
Number Identification: 
PS 50%; TK 77% 
Rote counting: PS 
61%; TK 53% 
1:1 Correspondence: 
PS 88%; TK 85% 
Name Writing: PS 
100%; TK 95% 
 

School Readiness 
direct services to 
families will increase 
by at least 100 
families each year.        

2020-21 First 5 Data: 
195 unduplicated 
families were served 
 

2021-22 First 5 Data: 
227 unduplicated 
families were served 
 

2022-23 First 5 Data: 
256 unduplicated 
families were served 
 

TBD 2023-24 
495 families served by 
School Readiness 
 

The number of all K-
3rd grade students 
meeting/exceeding all 
benchmarks on the 
District Reading 
Assessment (DRA) 
will increase by 10% 
each year.        

Baseline Spring 2021 
DRA: 
TK/K = 63% 
1st = 51% 
2nd = 51% 
3rd =  Did not collect 
 
All Students = 44% 
Did not disaggregate 
DRA data by student 
group. 
 

Winter 2022 DRA: 
TK/K =  52% 
1st =  49% 
2nd =  47% 
3rd =  59% 
 
All Students =  51% 
White =  50% 
Hispanic =  48% 
Low SES = 45% 
Students with 
Disabilities = 36% 
English Learners = 
44% 
 

Winter 2023 DRA: 
K= 73% 
1st =  66% 
2nd = 53% 
3rd =  67% 
 
All Students = 65% 
White =  71% 
Hispanic =  62% 
Low SES = 60% 
Students with 
Disabilities = 51% 
English Learners = 
55% 
Reclassified ELs = 
92% 
 

Winter 2024 DRA 
DATA TBD 

Winter 2024 DRA: 
K= 93% 
1st= 81% 
2nd= 81% 
3rd= 79% 
 
All K-3 Students= 
81% 
White = 70% 
Hispanic = 68% 
Low SES = 65% 
Students with 
Disabilities = 56% 
English Learners = 
64% 
Reclassified ELs = 
97% 
 
 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 4 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

The number of 1st-8th 
grade students in 
each student group 
meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile for 
Math on winter MAP 
will increase at least 
5% each year.        

MAP- MATH Spring 
2021: 
Total 1st-6th grade 
student groups 
meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile 
 
All students= 27% 
White = 52% 
Hispanic = 18% 
Low SES = 17% 
Students with 
Disabilities = 13% 
Current English 
Learners =10% 
Reclassified ELs = 
24% 
 
All students by grade 
level: 
1st = 33% 
2nd = 30% 
3rd = 27% 
4th = 26% 
5th = 25% 
6th = 24% 
7th = 24% 
8th = 25% 
 

MAP- MATH Winter 
2022: 
Total 1st-6th grade 
student groups 
meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile (7-
8th grade = 70th 
percentile): 
 
All Students= 31% 
White= 43% 
Hispanic= 27% 
Low SES= 22% 
Students with 
Disabilities= 22% 
Current English 
Learners= 9% 
Reclassified ELs= 
42% 
 
All students by grade 
level: 
1st = 25% 
2nd = 40% 
3rd = 42% 
4th = 31% 
5th = 32% 
6th = 29% 
7th = 23% 
8th = 27% 
 

MAP- MATH Winter 
2023: 
Total 1st-8th grade 
student groups 
meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile: 
 
All Students= 35% 
White= 47% 
Hispanic= 28% 
Low SES= 28% 
Students with 
Disabilities= 24% 
Current English 
Learners= 12% 
Reclassified ELs= 
46% 
 
All students by grade 
level: 
1st = 26% 
2nd = 40% 
3rd = 47% 
4th = 36% 
5th = 27% 
6th = 32% 
7th = 34% 
8th = 43% 
 

MAP Winter 2024 
TBD 

MAP- MATH Winter 
2024 
Student groups 4th-
8th. 
Total: 4th-8th grade 
student groups 
meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile: 
 
All Students= 42% 
White = 67% 
Hispanic = 33% 
Low SES = 32% 
Students with 
Disabilities = 28% 
Current English 
Learners = 25% 
Reclassified English 
Learners = 39% 
 
Student cohort groups 
by grade level 
meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile: 
 
1st = 48% 
2nd = 45% 
3rd = 42% 
4th = 41% 
5th = 40% 
6th = 39% 
7th = 39% 
8th = 40% 
 

The number of 1st-8th 
grade students in 
each student group 
meeting/exceeding 

MAP- READING 
Spring 2021: 
Total 1st-6th grade 
student groups 

MAP- READING 
Winter 2022: 
Total 1st-6th grade 
student groups 

MAP- READING 
Winter 2023: 
Total 1st-8th grade 
student groups 

MAP- READING 
Winter 2024 TBD 

MAP- READING 
Winter 2024 
Student groups 4th-
8th. 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 5 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

the 60th percentile for 
Reading on spring 
MAP will increase at 
least 5% each year.        

meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile: 
 
All students = 34% 
White = 46% 
Hispanic = 26% 
Low SES = 26% 
Students with 
Disabilities = 16% 
Current English 
Learners =15% 
Reclassified ELs = 
37% 
 
All students by grade 
level: 
1st = 31% 
2nd = 28% 
3rd = 35% 
4th = 44% 
5th = 38% 
6th = 36% 
7th = 28% 
8th = 29% 
 

meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile (7-
8th grade = 70th 
percentile): 
 
All Students= 37% 
White= 49% 
Hispanic= 30% 
Low SES= 29% 
Students with 
Disabilities= 25% 
Current English 
learners= 10% 
Reclassified ELs= 
56% 
 
All students by grade 
level: 
1st = 34% 
2nd = 42% 
3rd = 46% 
4th = 34% 
5th = 46% 
6th = 41% 
7th = 25% 
8th = 31% 
 

meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile: 
 
All Students= 40% 
White= 53% 
Hispanic= 33% 
Low SES= 33% 
Students with 
Disabilities= 28% 
Current English 
learners= 13% 
Reclassified ELs= 
55% 
 
All students by grade 
level: 
1st = 30% 
2nd = 34% 
3rd = 53% 
4th = 37% 
5th = 39% 
6th = 45% 
7th = 42% 
8th = 41% 
 

Total: 4th-8th grade 
student groups 
meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile: 
 
All Students = 49% 
White = 61% 
Hispanic = 41% 
Low SES = 41% 
Students with 
Disabilities = 31% 
Current English 
Learners = 30% 
Reclassified English 
Learners = 52% 
 
Student cohort groups 
by grade level 
meeting/exceeding 
the 60th percentile: 
1st = 46% 
2nd = 43% 
3rd = 50% 
4th = 59% 
5th = 53% 
6th = 51% 
7th = 43% 
8th = 44% 
 

On the CA School 
Dashboard, all student 
groups will 
demonstrate at least a 
10 point increase in 
meeting distance from 
standard in 
Mathematics.        

Fall 2019 CA 
Dashboard 
MATHEMATICS 
 
All students: YELLOW 
25.8 points below 
standard 
Increased 6.6 Points 
 

N/A for 2021-22 Fall 2022 CA 
Dashboard 
MATHEMATICS 
 
All students: 
39.9 points below 
standard 
 
White: 

Fall 2023 CA 
Dashboard 
MATHEMATICS 
 
 
All students: YELLOW 
32.6 points below 
standard 
 

Fall 2024 CA 
Dashboard 
 
All students: GREEN 
4.2 points above 
standard 
 
White: BLUE 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 6 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

White: GREEN 
6.4 points above 
standard 
Increased 12 points 
 
Hispanic:YELLOW 
44.5 points below 
standard 
Increased 4.2 Points 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
YELLOW 
46.6 points below 
standard 
Increased 6.1 Points 
 
Students w/ 
Disabilities: ORANGE 
95.5 points below 
standard 
Increased 24.2 
 
English Learners: 
YELLOW 
63.9 points below 
standard 
Increased 7.2 points 
 
**EL Comparisons** 
Current English 
Learners: 
84.2 points below 
standard 
Increased 10.9 Points 
 
Reclassified English 
Learners: 

12.6 points below 
standard 
 
Hispanic: 
57.2 points below 
standard 
 
Homeless: 97.8 points 
below standard 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
59.7 points below 
standard 
 
Students w/ 
Disabilities: 
100.7 points below 
standard 
 
English Learners: 
78.1 points below 
standard 
 
**EL Comparisons** 
Current English 
Learners: 
107.6 points below 
standard 
 
Reclassified English 
Learners: 
33.2 points below 
standard 
 
English Only: 
28.4 points below 
standard 

White: YELLOW 
9.7 points below 
standard 
 
Hispanic: YELLOW 
49 points below 
standard 
 
Homeless: YELLOW 
73.9 points below 
standard 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
YELLOW 
50.6 points below 
standard 
 
Students w/ 
Disabilities: ORANGE 
95.4 points below 
standard 
 
All English Learners: 
YELLOW 
70.5 points below 
standard 
 
**EL Comparisons** 
Current English 
Learners: 
98.8 points below 
standard 
 
Reclassified English 
Learners: 
36.3 points below 
standard 

23.6 points above 
standard 
 
Hispanic: GREEN 
14.5 points below 
standard 
 
Homeless: 
87.8 points below 
standard 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
GREEN 
16.6 points below 
standard 
 
Students w/ 
Disabilities: YELLOW 
65.5 points below 
standard 
 
All English Learners: 
GREEN 
33.9 points below 
standard 
 
**EL Comparisons** 
Current English 
Learners: 
54.2 points below 
standard 
 
Reclassified English 
Learners: 
9.1 points below 
standard 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 7 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

39.1 points below 
standard 
Increased 9.8 Points 
 
English Only: 
9.6 points below 
standard 
Increased 7.1  points 
 

 
 
 

 
English Only: 
21.9 points above 
standard 
 
 

English Only: 
21 points above 
standard 
 

On the CA School 
Dashboard, all student 
groups will 
demonstrate at least a 
10 point increase in 
meeting distance from 
standard in English 
Language Arts.        

Fall 2019 CA 
Dashboard ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
 
All students: YELLOW 
3.9 points below 
standard 
Maintained 2.8 Points 
 
White: GREEN 
22.5 points above 
standard 
Increased 4.5 points 
 
Hispanic:ORANGE 
20.3 points below 
standard 
Maintained 1.9 points 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 
ORANGE 
24.5 points below 
standard 
Maintained 2.9 points 
 
Students with 
Disabilities: ORANGE 
77.3 points below 
standard 

N/A for 2021-22 Fall 2022 CA 
Dashboard ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
 
All students: 
10.2 points below 
standard 
 
White: 
11.8 points above 
standard 
 
Hispanic: 
25.2 points below 
standard 
 
Homeless: 
77.1 points below 
standard 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
30.4 points below 
standard 
 
Students with 
Disabilities: 
81.6 points below 
standard 

Fall 2023 CA 
Dashboard Language 
Arts 
 
All students: 
ORANGE 
9.8  points below 
standard 
 
Hispanic: ORANGE 
24.7 points below 
standard 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
ORANGE 
28.3 points below 
standard 
 
Students with 
Disabilities: ORANGE 
76.9 points below 
standard 
 
All English Learners: 
ORANGE 
46.1 points below 
standard 
 

Fall 2024 CA 
Dashboard 
 
All students: GREEN 
26.1 points above 
standard 
 
White: BLUE 
52.5 points above 
standard 
 
Hispanic: GREEN 
10 points above 
standard 
 
Homeless: 
67.1 points below 
standard 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
GREEN 
5.5 points above 
standard 
 
Students with 
Disabilities: YELLOW 
47.3 points below 
standard 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 8 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

Increased 12.6 points 
 
All English Learners: 
YELLOW 
41.6 points below 
standard 
Increased 5 points 
 
**EL Comparisons** 
Current English 
Learners: 
72.7 points below 
standard 
Increased 11.5 points 
 
Reclassified English 
Learners: 
3.5 points below 
standard 
Increased 8.1 points 
 
English Only: 
10.9 points above 
standard 
Maintained 2.6 Points 
 

 
All English Learners: 
48.7 points below 
standard 
 
**EL Comparisons** 
Current English 
Learners: 
82.8 points below 
standard 
 
Reclassified English 
Learners: 
3.2 above standard 
 
English Only: 
.4 points above 
standard 
 
 

Homeless: YELLOW 
64.3 points below 
standard 
 
White:  GREEN 
10.2 points above 
standard 
 
**EL Comparisons** 
Current English 
Learners: 
84.1 points below 
standard 
 
Reclassified English 
Learners: 
0.4 points below 
standard 
 
English Only: 
.5 points above 
standard 
 
 

 
All English Learners: 
GREEN 
1.6 points below 
standard 
 
**EL Comparisons** 
Current English 
Learners: 
42.7 points below 
standard 
 
Reclassified English 
Learners: 
26.5 points above 
standard 
 
English Only: 
40.9 points above 
standard 
 

The participation rate 
of 3rd-8th grade 
students on IEPs 
taking the the Math & 
ELA CAASPP will  
meet or exceed 95%.        

Fall 2019 CA 
Dashboard SPED 
PARTICIPATION 
RATE 
 
ELA Participation 
Rate= 94% 
Math Participation 
Rate= 94% 
 

N/A for 2021-22 Fall 2022 CA 
Dashboard SPED 
PARTICIPATION 
RATE 
 
ELA Participation 
Rate= 94% 
Math Participation 
Rate= 94% 
 

Fall 2023 CA 
Dashboard SPED 
PARTICIPATION 
RATE 
 
ELA Participation 
Rate= 97% 
Math Participation 
Rate= 96% 
 

Fall 2024 CA 
Dashboard 
 
ELA & Math = 95% or 
greater 
 

English learners 
making Annual 
Progress in learning 

Fall 2019 CA 
Dashboard ELPAC 
 

N/A for 2021-22 Fall 2022 CA 
Dashboard ELPAC 
 

Fall 2023 CA 
Dashboard ELPAC 
 

Fall 2024 CA 
Dashboard 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 9 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

English as measured 
by ELPAC will 
increase at least 7% 
on the CA State 
Dashboard each year.        

English Learner 
Progress = 48.1% 
(Medium) 
 

English Learner 
Progress = 51.1% 
(Medium) 
 

English Learner 
Progress = 54.1% 
GREEN 
 

English Learner 
Progress = 69.1% or 
greater 
 

District English learner 
reclassification rate 
will increase at least 
3% each year.        

2019-20 CALPADS 
Data 
R-FEP rate = 7% 
 

2020-21 CALPADS 
Data 
R-FEP rate = 3.8% 
 

2021-22 CALPADS 
Data 
R-FEP rate= 18.3% 
 

2022-2023 CALPADS 
Data 
R-FEP rate 
 

2023-24 District Data 
 
District R-FEP rate = 
16% or greater 
 

Students taught with 
CCSS aligned ELA, 
Math, ELD & NGSS 
curriculum and 
supplemental bridge 
resources will be 
maintained at 100%.        

2020-21 District Data 
CCSS aligned 
curriculum= 100% 
 

2021-22 District Data 
CCSS aligned 
curriculum= 100% 
 

2022-23 District Data 
CCSS aligned 
curriculum= 100% 
 

2023-24 District Data 
Maintained 100% 
 

2023-24 District Data 
Maintained 100% 
 

District-wide, at least 
65% of the students 
served in  summer 
school programs will 
be students from our 
unduplicated student 
groups (Low SES, EL, 
foster).        

2021 Summer School 
Program Unduplicated 
Percentages: 
 
District = 61.5% 
GES- 30% 
VO- 91% 
RO- 67.6% 
LC- 40.4% 
MRE- 49% 
MMS- 91% 
 

2022 Summer School 
Program Unduplicated 
Percentages: 
 
District = 243/285  
85% 
LC     30 /40 = 75% 
MRE  26 /36 = 72% 
RO     45 /57  = 79% 
VO     75 /81  = 93% 
GES  33 /40  = 83% 
MMS- N/A 
 
 
 

2023 Summer 
Program Unduplicated 
Percentages: 
 
TBD 
 

2023 Summer 
Program Unduplicated 
Percentages: 
District: 395/558=71% 
 

2023-24 Summer 
Program Unduplicated 
Percentages: 
 
District= 65% or 
higher 
GES- 50% 
VO- 91% 
RO- 67.6% 
LC- 50.4% 
MRE- 49% 
MMS- 91% 
 

Misassignments of 
teachers will remain at 
0.        

2020-21 CALPADS 
Misassignments=  0 
 

2021-22 CALPADS 
Misassignments=  2 
 

2022-23 CALPADS 
Misassignments=  
TBD 
 

2023-2024 CALPADS 
Misassignments TBD 
 

2023-24 CALPADS 
Misassignments 0 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 10 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

All teachers will have 
access to professional 
development that 
focuses on literacy, 
well-being and 
equitable practices  
will be maintained at 
100%.        

2020-21 District Data 
Access to professional 
development= 100% 
 

2021-22 District Data 
Access to professional 
development= 100% 
 

2022-23 District Data 
Access to professional 
development= 100% 
 

2023-24 District Data 
Access to professional 
development= 100% 
 

2023-24 District Data 
 
Maintained at 100% 
 

Parents of 
unduplicated students 
will be represented at 
all stakeholder 
meetings (DAC, 
ELAC, DELAC, 
listening circles, 
surveys, and 
teacher/parent talks) 
to promote parent 
participation in 
programs for 
unduplicated students.        

2020-21 District Data 
Representation all 
education partner 
meetings= MET 
 

2021-22 District Data 
Representation all 
education partner 
meetings= MET 
 

2022-23 District Data 
Representation all 
education partner 
meetings= MET 
 

2023-24 Mid Year 
District Data 
Representation all 
education MET 
partner meetings= 
MET 
 

2023-24 District Data 
 
MET 
 

At least five 
opportunities for 
stakeholder 
participation and 
involvement in the 
district's LCAP 
process to provide 
feedback will be 
provided by the district 
in both English and 
Spanish (DAC, 
DELAC, SpEd PAC).        

2020-21 District Data 
education partner 
participation= MET 
 

2021-22 District Data 
education partner 
participation= MET 
 

2022-23 District Data 
education partner 
participation= MET 
 

2023-24 District Data: 
TBD 

2023-24 District Data 
 
MET 
 

Parent CalSCHLS 
survey will be 
completed by a 
minimum of 750 

2021 CalSCHLS 
Parent Survey 
Responses= 862 
 

2022 CalSCHLS 
Parent Survey 
Responses= 402 
 

2023 CalSCHLS 
Parent Survey 
Responses= 485 
 

Not administered yet: 
TBD 

2023-24 CalSCHLS 
Parent Survey 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 11 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

families with an 
increase of 5% each 
year.        

Responses = 991 or 
greater 
 

Parent use of SIS 
Parent Portal will 
increase 5% annually.        

2020-21 SIS Data 
(new SIS system fall 
2021) 
 

2021-22 Parent Vue 
Data in Synergy 
Baseline= 67% 
 

2022-23 Parent Vue 
Data in Synergy 
64% of parents are 
using Parent Vue 
 

2023-2024 December 
Parent Vue Data in 
Synergy:  64% of 
parents have 
activated an account. 

2023-24 SIS Data 
 
Parent use of SIS 
Parent Portal= 77% 
 

 
Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

1.1 Pre-Kindergarten Program 
Prioritize the enrollment of English 
learners, low socio-economic, 
foster, homeless and students with 
disabilities in the 3-4 year old 
preschool and transitional 
kindergarten program.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully Implemented 2023-2024: 
Preschool (ages 0-5): 
Total enrollment = 247 
Total EL enrollment = 97 
(39%) 
 
Transitional kinder: 
Total enrollment = 118 
Total EL enrollment = 29 
(24%) 
 

 $1,866,368.77 $1,033,519.20 

1.2 School Readiness Services 
Fairsite provides direct services to 
high needs families through a 
comprehensive School Readiness 
(health screenings, parent 
education, literacy) and a home 
visitation program.       
 
 
 
 

 
 

X 

Yes     Fully Implemented Home Visiting Program: 
Serving 40 families. 
Vision Screening: 182 
students 
Dental Screening: 
Hearing Screening: 142 
students 
 
Playgroup Families: 57 
families participating 
 
Literacy (Book Bag):  83 
students 
 
El Cielo: 35 district 
parents enrolled. 
 

 $319,475.13 $83,038.68 

1.3 High Quality Certificated TK-8 
Staffing 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Partially 
Implemented 

All TK-8 regular and 
special education 

 $15,393,272.3
3 

$7,025,593.75 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 12 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Attract and retain TK-8 certificated 
staffing for regular and special 
education classrooms.       
 
 
 
 

teacher positions are 
filled with fully 
credentialed staff with 
the exception of the 
following: 
 
Special 
Education/Moderate 
Severe-Unfilled 
 
Math Teacher 
 
TK: Emergency: 
Specialist Teaching 
Permit in Early Childhood 
Education 
 
 

1.4 Specialized Certificated Support 
Provide specialized support with an 
emphasis on building more 
inclusive environments by providing 
each school with a Resource 
Specialist teacher.  All intern 
teachers and teachers in the 
Induction Program will be provided 
with a mentor to support 
professional growth.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully Implemented Each elementary school 
has one Resource 
Specialist.  McCaffrey 
Middle School has two 
Resource Specialists. 
 
All interns and teachers 
in the Induction Program  
have mentors to support 
growth. 
 

 $276,025.75 $153,481.95 

1.5 Administrative Staffing for 
Instructional Quality 
School administration staffing to 
prioritize high quality instructional 
programs at the site and district 
level.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented Each elementary school 
has a part time Assistant 
Principal; the middle 
school has one full time 
Assistant Principal and 
one part time Assistant 
Principal; all schools 
have administrative staff: 
Secretary Is, and 
Secretary IIs 

 $2,029,199.05 $1,064,973.26 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 13 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

1.6 Class Size Reduction 
Further reduce TK-3 class size to 
20:1 to more effectively implement 
services for high needs learners 
through increased time for 
personalized instruction and 
support for individual growth 
accomplishment in reading, 
mathematics and English Language 
Development.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Partially 
Implemented 

We continue to focus on  
implementing TK-3 class 
size of 20:1. 
 
Tk classes are at 
2:20 ratio (one teacher, 
one Instructional 
Assistant); 
 
K-3, classes range from 
16-23 students 
 
 

 $1,386,476.83 $762,172.55 

1.7 AVID Program at Middle School 
Further support the implementation 
of an AVID program at the middle 
school targeting high needs 
students with a focus on college 
pathways and explore expanding 
AVID into the elementary schools 
for 6th graders.       
 
 
 
 

 
 

X 

Yes     Fully Implemented 90 students currently 
enrolled in the AVID 
Program at the 
McCaffrey Middle 
School. 
 
Expansion at the 
elementary School: Site 
Wide Implementation of 
AVID is occuring at one 
elementary site for 4th-
6th grade. 
 

 $78,562.24 $77,906.62 

1.8 After school acceleration blocks 
and a summer school program 
Prioritize academic support after 
school and summer acceleration 
opportunities for high need 
students; including learners with 
disabilities at elementary and 
middle school.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 

Hom
eles

s 
 
 

No      Partially 
Implemented 

Fall 2023 Acceleration 
Blocks: Trimester 1, 
currently serving 276 
students (Preschool-8th) 

 $635,952.00 $239,072.76 

1.9 Instructional Assistant (IA) 
Intervention & Support 
Provide IA support for high needs 
students in early reading and with 
additional personalized bilingual IA 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully Implemented All Instructional 
Assistants and Bilingual 
Instructional Assistants 
positions have been filled 

 $892,915.52 $348,766.46 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 14 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

support for English learners in 
grades TK-3 and newcomers in 
grades 4th-8th.       
 
 
 
 

for intervention and 
support. 

1.10 Mainstreaming and Inclusive 
Practices for Students with 
Disabilities 
Increase access and inclusion for 
learners with special education 
services through instructional 
assistant support during 
mainstreaming; increasing early 
intervention efforts at the 
prekindergarten level through a 
home visitation program and the 
expansion of a full inclusion model.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 
 
 

No      Partially 
Implemented 

District continues to 
support inclusive 
practices for students 
with disabilities with 
increased instructional 
assistant support.  While 
majority of the positions 
are filled; some 
vacancies still remain.  
Positions may be created 
throughout the year, per 
student needs. 

 $2,052,596.72 $1,240,809.84 

1.11 Dual Language Immersion (DLI) 
Program and newcomer supports 
Continue to develop the PreK-8 DLI 
program and provide professional 
development to BCLAD teachers 
and IAs with the support of new EL 
Coordinator.       
 
 
 
 

 
 

X 

Yes     Fully Implemented Professional 
Development to support 
DLI implementation has 
been scheduled for the 
school year: 
10/12 (completed) 
11/16 (completed) 
1/30 
3/21 
4/23 
 
EL Coordinator has been 
hired to support EL 
Programmatic needs 
district wide. 
 
 

 $1,118,888.32 $535,130.73 

1.12 Academic Conferences 
Continue to hold academic 
conferences with grade level teams 
to analyze and review student data, 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented Academic Conferences 
are scheduled at least 3 
three times per year for 
each grade level. TOSAs 

 $185,828.76 $49,990.70 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 15 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

deliver coordinated professional 
learning with content connections 
for MTSS, and plan for 
strategic/intensive supports. 
Academic/Data TOSA will support 
data analysis and planning for 
equitable student supports.       
 
 
 
 

provide data analysis 
and interventions to 
identified students. 

1.13 Literacy Instruction and 
Intervention 
Support the acceleration of literacy 
with small group instruction for 
students identified through the 
MTSS process and co-
teaching/modeling in classrooms 
using intervention TOSAs at each 
K-6 elementary school.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented TOSAs are providing 
targeted small group 
intervention to students 
identified through the 
MTSS process 

 $631,320.87 $236,723.19 

1.14 Professional Learning 
Certificated and classified staff 
participate in professional learning 
important to improving student 
achievement and increasing 
capacity building related to 
curriculum, instruction, assessment, 
acceleration and data analysis. 
Continued support will be provided 
with the implementation of support 
for social emotional learning. 
Various opportunities for 
collaboration will be in place to 
share strategies which produce the 
most profound impact on students 
who are not yet meeting district 
targets and meeting grade level 
standards. 
 
       

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Partially 
Implemented 

Certificated Staff 
provided professional 
development: 
10/12; 10/13 
Math (Building Thinking 
Classrooms) 
 
Positive School Culture 
 
ELA-Benchmark 
 
Step Up to Writing 
 
Dual Language 
Immersion Program- 
 
Take Away Tuesday 
Sessions: 10/3; 1/23; 
3/19 
 

 $250,000.00 $123,161.53 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 16 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 
 

March 4th-Certificated 
Professional 
Development 
 

1.15 Home Learning Academy 
Bright Future Home Learning 
Academy provides in-person and 
online learning for students, 
enrichment opportunities and a 
learning hub for academic support.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented Current enrollment is at 
23 students 2nd-8th 
grade. 
The Bright Future Home 
Learning Academy is 
supported by 1.0FTE 
Teacher and 1.0FTE 
Instructional Assistant 
 

 $146,609.13 $75,949.67 

1.16 Core Curriculum Sufficiency 
Continue to ensure that all students 
have access to materials aligned to 
California content standards and 
that all general education and 
special education teachers have the 
needed instructional resources. 
Implement a math pilot to prepare 
for the 2024 math adoption.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented The Galt Joint Union 
Elementary School 
District has provided 
each student with 
sufficient standards-
aligned textbooks or 
instructional materials 
consistent with the 
curriculum frameworks' 
cycles and content. 
 
We have a group of 
teachers on a math pilot 
committee . They are 
learning about the new 
math framework and 
reviewing standards. 
This group of teachers 
will be choosing pilot 
material and supporting a 
new math adoption. 
 

 $270,000.00 $117,543.00 

1.17 Supplemental Curriculum and 
Online Resources for High Needs 
Learners 
Increase equity and access to 
resources for English learners, low 
income, homeless and foster youth. 
Continue to support individual 

X 
 
 

Yes      The following curriculum 
and online resources are 
available: Lexia, IXL, AR, 
Newsela, Zearn, Happy 
Numbers. 

 $615,108.00 $284,735.65 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 17 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

learning pathways through online 
learning courseware.       
 
 
 
 

1.18 Access to Technology 
Provide 1-to-1 student mobile 
devices and classroom technology 
to strengthen youth voice and 
choice in blended learning 
environments and innovation 
opportunities and ensure availability 
of wifi for students with little or no 
internet access at home.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented 1:1 Chromebooks are 
available for all students 
67 Hotspots have been 
provided to families in 
need of internet. 
 

 $482,072.39 $447,156.36 

1.19 Parent Engagement and 
Leadership Development 
Increase parent engagement and 
participation in their children's 
education, improve home-school 
communication and provide parent 
education for College and Career 
Readiness.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully Implemented Parents have multiple 
opportunities to 
participate in their child's 
education at all sites:  
Opportunities include: 
 
English Language 
Advisory Committee 
 
School Site Council 
 
Parent Advisory 
Committees 
 
Parent-Teacher 
Organizations 
 
Back To School NIght 
 
Parent-Teacher 
Conferences 
 
Parent Education 
Classes: 
Nutrition 

 $355,875.77 $176,299.98 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 18 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Nurturing Parenting 
El Cielo 
 
 
Bilingual Office 
Assistants are assigned 
to all school offices to 
support Spanish 
speaking families. 
 
BCOA coordinates 
translation and 
interpreting needs across 
the district and supports 
parent participation in the 
District English 
Language Advisory 
Committee. 
 
 

1.20 Additional Transportation 
Services 
Provide transportation support 
services to increase student access 
for additional middle school route, 
after school programs and summer 
learning opportunities.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully Implemented We have expanded our 
transportation services to 
accommodate the 
growing number of 
students, introducing 
additional routes. 
Moreover, we've 
incorporated extra stops 
to pick up students 
involved in 
extracurricular activities 
and extended 
transportation services 
throughout the summer. 
This strategic expansion 
not only facilitates 
increased student 
participation but also 
fosters greater 
engagement, ultimately 
enabling us to offer 
additional educational 
events with more routes, 
stops, and trips. 
Transportation services 

 $84,747.42 $77,718.48 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 19 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

to accommodate the 
growing number of 
students, introducing 
additional routes. 
Moreover, we've 
incorporated extra stops 
to pick up students 
involved in 
extracurricular activities 
and extended 
transportation services 
throughout the summer. 
This strategic expansion 
not only facilitates 
increased student 
participation but also 
fosters greater 
engagement, ultimately 
enabling us to offer 
additional educational 
events with more routes, 
stops, and trips. 

 
Goal 2 
Goal Description 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive environments.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 

2023-24 
Overall daily District 
attendance will be 
maintained at 96% or 
greater.        

2019-20 Average 
Daily Attendance 
(ADA)= 95.2% 

2020-21 Average 
Daily Attendance 
(ADA)= No Data 
 
2021-22 Average 
Daily Attendance 
(ADA)= 87.3% as of 
May 2022 
 

2022-23 Average 
Daily Attendance 
(ADA)= 93% as of 
May 2023 

2023-2024 Average 
Daily Attendance 
(ADA): as of 
December 2023 
93.1% 

2024 Average Daily 
Attendance (ADA) 
 
District ADA= 96% or 
greater 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 20 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

Chronic absenteeism 
will decrease by 1% or 
greater for every 
student subgroup.        

2019 CA Dashboard: 
% Chronically Absent 
 
All students: 11.6% 
Student Groups: 
English Learners: 
11.5% 
Students w/ 
Disabilities: 17.7% 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
14.2% 
Hispanic: 12.4% 
White: 10.3% 
 

CA Dashboard- No 
data for 2020 or 2021 
% Chronically Absent 
 
2021-22 Local Data in 
Synergy 
District- 28% 
GES- 34% 
VO- 30% 
RO- 23% 
LC- 29% 
MRE- 21% 
MMS- 29% 
 

2022 CA Dashboard 
% Chronically Absent 
 
All Students: 46.2% - 
Very High 
Student Groups: 
English Learners: 
46.1% 
Students with 
Disabilities: 53.8% 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
50.5% 
Homeless:  61.3% 
Hispanic: 48.6% 
White: 44.8% 
 

2023 CA Dashboard 
% Chronically Absent 
 
All Students: 28.7% 
YELLOW 
 
Student Groups: 
 
English Learners: 
28.2% YELLOW 
 
Students with 
Disabilities: 36.5% 
YELLOW 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 
32.3% YELLOW 
 
Hispanic: 31.2% 
YELLOW 
 
White: 26% YELLOW 
 
Homeless:  36.4% 
ORANGE 
 
 

2024 CA Dashboard: 
% Chronically Absent 
 
All students: 8.6% 
English Learners:  
8.5% 
Students w/ 
Disabilities: 14.7% 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged:  
11.2% 
Homeless: 11.2% 
Hispanic:  9.4% 
White:  7.3% 
 

The suspension rate 
will decrease by 0.1% 
or greater for every 
student subgroup.        

2019 CA Dashboard: 
Percent Suspended at 
Least 1 Day 
 
All students: 3% 
English Learners: 
1.8% 
Students w/ 
Disabilities: 4.7% 

CA Dashboard- No 
data for 2020 & 2021 
Percent Suspended at 
Least 1 Day 
 
2021-22 District Data: 
District- 2% 
GES- .4% 
VO- 2% 
RO- .5% 

2022 CA Dashboard 
Percent Suspended at 
Least 1 Day 
 
All Students: 1.7% 
English Learners: 
1.4% 
Students with 
Disabilities:  3% 

2023 CA Dashboard 
Percent Suspended at 
Least 1 Day 
 
All Students: 3.5% 
ORANGE 
 
Student  Groups: 
 

2024 CA Dashboard: 
Percent Suspended at 
Least 1 Day 
 
All students: 1.5% 
English Learners: 5% 
Students w/ 
Disabilities: 1.7% 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged:  1.5% 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 21 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 3.7% 
Hispanic: 3.4% 
White:  2.4% 
 

LC- .4% 
MRE- 1% 
MMS- 5% 
 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 1.8% 
Homeless: 0% 
Hispanic:  1.9% 
White:  1.6% 
 

English Learners: 
3.8% RED 
 
Hispanic: 4%: RED 
 
Homeless: 8.1% RED 
 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 4.7% 
RED 
 
Students with 
Disabilities:  4.1% 
ORANGE 
 
White:  3.4% 
ORANGE 
 

Homeless: 1.5% 
Hispanic:  1.5% 
White:  2% 
 

The expulsion rate will 
decrease by 0.1% or 
greater for every 
subgroup.        

2020-21 CDE 
DataQuest 
 
All students: 0 
White: 0 
Hispanic: 0 
Low SES: 0 
Homeless: 0 
Students w/ 
Disabilities:0 
English Learners: 0 
 

2021-2022 CDE 
DataQuest 
 
All Students:  5; rate: 
0.1% 
White: 0;  rate: 0% 
Hispanic: 5; rate: 
0.2% 
Low SES: 3; rate: 
0.1% 
Homeless:  0; rate: 
0% 
Students with 
Disabilities: 1;  rate: 
0.2% 
English Learners: 1; 
rate: 0.1% 
 
 

2022-23 District Data: 
 
All Students: 5 
White: 0 
Hispanic: 5 
Low SES: 5 
Homeless:  0 
Students with 
Disabilities: 0 
English Learners: 1 
 

2023-2024 District 
Data TBD 

2023-24 CDE 
DataQuest 
 
All students: 0 
White: 0 
Hispanic: 0 
Low SES: 0 
Homeless: 0 
Students w/ 
Disabilities:0 
English Learners: 0 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 22 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

The middle school 
dropout rate will be 
maintained at 0% for 
all student subgroups.        

2020-21 District Data 
 
All Students: 0 
White: 0 
Hispanic: 0 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 0 
Homeless:0 
Students with 
Disabilities:0 
English Learners:0 
 

2021-22 District Data 
 
All Students: 0 
White: 0 
Hispanic: 0 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 0 
Homeless:0 
Students with 
Disabilities:0 
English Learners:0 
 

2022-23 District Data 
 
All Students: 0 
White: 0 
Hispanic: 0 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 0 
Homeless:0 
Students with 
Disabilities:0 
English Learners:0 
 

2024 CalSCHLS Data: 
TBD 

2023-24 District Data 
 
All Students: 0 
White: 0 
Hispanic: 0 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 0 
Homeless:0 
Students with 
Disabilities:0 
English Learners:0 
 

Safety and School 
Connectedness: 
Percentage of parents 
responding Strongly 
Agree on the annual 
CalSCHLS survey will 
increase at least 5% 
in areas that are 
below 50%.        

2021 CalSCHLS 
Parent Survey Data: 
Percentage 
responding 
"STRONGLY AGREE" 
 
This school... 
 
Encourages me to be 
an active partner. 
Elementary: 37% 
Middle: 22% 
 
Makes me feel 
welcome to 
participate. 
Elementary: 35% 
Middle: 19% 
 
Supports student 
learning environment: 
Elementary: 34% 
Middle: 21% 
 
Is a safe place for my 
child. 
Elementary: 46% 

2022 CalSCHLS 
Parent Survey Data: 
Percentage 
responding 
"STRONGLY AGREE" 
 
Elementary parent 
responses: 327 
Middle School parent 
responses: 75 
 
This school... 
 
Encourages me to be 
an active partner. 
Elementary: 33% 
Middle: 27% 
 
Makes me feel 
welcome to 
participate. 
Elementary: 31% 
Middle: 16% 
 
Supports student 
learning environment: 

2023 CalSCHLS 
Parent Survey Data: 
Percentage 
responding 
"STRONGLY AGREE" 
 
Elementary parent 
responses: 389 
Middle School parent 
responses: 96 
 
This school... 
 
Encourages me to be 
an active partner. 
Elementary: 43% 
Middle: 10% 
 
Makes me feel 
welcome to 
participate. 
Elementary: 46% 
Middle: 5% 
 
Supports student 
learning environment: 

2024 CalSCHLS Data: 
TBD 

2024 CalSCHLS 
Parent Survey Data: 
 
Percentage of parents 
responding Strongly 
Agree on all 
responses on the 
annual CalSCHLS 
Survey is at 50% or 
higher. 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 23 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

Middle: 30% 
 
Has adults who really 
care about students. 
Elementary: 41% 
Middle: 24% 
 
Communicates with 
parents about school. 
Elementary: 46% 
Middle: 22% 
 
Treats all students 
with respect. 
Elementary: 45% 
Middle: 34% 
 
Has clean and well-
maintained facilities. 
Elementary: 44% 
Middle: 28% 
 

Elementary: 31% 
Middle: 23% 
 
Is a safe place for my 
child. 
Elementary: 40% 
Middle: 23% 
 
Has adults who really 
care about students. 
Elementary: 40% 
Middle: 21% 
 
Communicates with 
parents about school. 
Elementary: 48% 
Middle: 27% 
 
Treats all students 
with respect. 
Elementary: 40% 
Middle: 28% 
 
Has clean and well-
maintained facilities. 
Elementary: 35% 
Middle: 24% 
 

Elementary: 43% 
Middle: 13% 
 
Is a safe place for my 
child. 
Elementary: 45% 
Middle: 6% 
 
Has adults who really 
care about students. 
Elementary: 49% 
Middle: 11% 
 
Communicates with 
parents about school. 
Elementary: 53% 
Middle: 22% 
 
Treats all students 
with respect. 
Elementary: 50% 
Middle: 19% 
 
Has clean and well-
maintained facilities. 
Elementary: 46% 
Middle: 14% 
 

Safety and School 
Connectedness: 
Percentage of 
students in grades 5-8 
responding, “Yes, 
most or all of the time" 
on the annual 
CalSCHLS survey will 
increase at least 5% 

2021 CalSCHLS Data: 
 
Percentage of 
students that 
participated in the 
survey: 
Grade 5 = 26%, 
Grade 6 = 24%, 
Grade 7 = 77%, 
Grade 8 = 74% 

2022 CalSCHLS Data: 
 
Percentage of 
students that 
participated in the 
survey: 
Grade 5 = 54%, 
Grade 6 = 50%, 
Grade 7 = 61%, 
Grade 8 = 69% 

2023 CalSCHLS Data: 
 
Percentage of 
students that 
participated in the 
survey: 
Grade 5 = 59%, 
Grade 6 = 69%, 
Grade 7 = 63%, 
Grade 8 = 70% 

2024 CalSCHLS Data: 
TBD 

2024 CalSCHLS Data: 
 
Percentage of 
students in grades 5-8 
responding “Yes, most 
or all of the time" for 
all responses on the 
annual CalSCHLS 
survey will have 
increased by 15% 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 24 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

each year in areas 
that are below 80%.        

 
Percentage 
responding “YES, 
MOST OR ALL OF 
THE TIME" 
 
Students feel 
connected to school: 
Grade 5 = 74%, 
Grade 6 = 77%, 
Grade 7 = 63%, 
Grade 8 = 60% 
 
Students are 
academically 
motivated: Grade 5 = 
77%, Grade 6 = 77%, 
Grade 7 = 63%, 
Grade 8 = 60% 
 
Students have a 
caring adult in school: 
Grade 5 = 78%, 
Grade 6 = 77%, 
Grade 7 = 67%, 
Grade 8 = 59% 
 
Students have social 
and emotional 
learning supports: 
Grade 5 = 79%, 
Grade 6 = 83%, 
Grade 7 = 64%, 
Grade 8 = 58% 
 
My school has an anti-
bullying climate: 
Grade 5 = 78%, 
Grade 6 = 75%, 

 
Percentage 
responding “YES, 
MOST OR ALL OF 
THE TIME" 
 
Students feel 
connected to school: 
Grade 5 = 70%, 
Grade 6 = 67%, 
Grade 7 = 63%, 
Grade 8 = 55% 
 
Students are 
academically 
motivated: Grade 5 = 
81%, Grade 6 = 76%, 
Grade 7 = 67%, 
Grade 8 = 63% 
 
Students have a 
caring adult in school: 
Grade 5 = 70%, 
Grade 6 = 65%, 
Grade 7 = 58%, 
Grade 8 = 54% 
 
Students have social 
and emotional 
learning supports: 
Grade 5 = 74%, 
Grade 6 = 71%, 
Grade 7 = 67%, 
Grade 8 = 64% 
 
My school has an anti-
bullying climate: 
Grade 5 = 75%, 

 
Percentage 
responding “YES, 
MOST OR ALL OF 
THE TIME" 
 
Students feel 
connected to school: 
Grade 5 = 73%, 
Grade 6 = 67%, 
Grade 7 = 51%, 
Grade 8 = 52% 
 
Students are 
academically 
motivated: Grade 5 = 
86%, Grade 6 = 80%, 
Grade 7 = 61%, 
Grade 8 = 62% 
 
Students have a 
caring adult in school: 
Grade 5 = 69%, 
Grade 6 = 68%, 
Grade 7 = 53%, 
Grade 8 = 59% 
 
Students have social 
and emotional 
learning supports: 
Grade 5 = 73%, 
Grade 6 = 73%, 
Grade 7 = 49%, 
Grade 8 = 49% 
 
My school has an anti-
bullying climate: 
Grade 5 = 74%, 

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 25 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

Grade 7 = 48%, 
Grade 8 = 37% 
 
I feel safe at school: 
Grade 5 = 84%, 
Grade 6 = 83%, 
Grade 7 = 69%, 
Grade 8 = 64% 
 
Cyberbullying is a 
problem: 
Grade 5 = 10%, 
Grade 6 = 14%, 
Grade 7 = 19%, 
Grade 8 = 23% 
 
 
 

Grade 6 = 70%, 
Grade 7 = 43%, 
Grade 8 = 38% 
 
I feel safe at school: 
Grade 5 = 72%, 
Grade 6 = 73%, 
Grade 7 = 60%, 
Grade 8 = 61% 
 
Cyberbullying is a 
problem: 
Grade 5 = 27%, 
Grade 6 = 21%, 
Grade 7 = 31%, 
Grade 8 = 36% 
 
 
 

Grade 6 = 73%, 
Grade 7 = 34%, 
Grade 8 = 36% 
 
I feel safe at school: 
Grade 5 = 81%, 
Grade 6 = 68%, 
Grade 7 = 44%, 
Grade 8 = 66% 
 
Cyberbullying is a 
problem: 
Grade 5 = 16%, 
Grade 6 = 24%, 
Grade 7 = 32%, 
Grade 8 = 30% 
 
 
 

Percentage of staff 
responding "Strongly 
Agree" on the annual 
CalSCHLS survey will 
increase at least 5% 
each year in areas 
that are below 50%. 
Staff participation in 
the survey will 
increase by 50%.        

2021 CalSCHLS Data: 
 
59% of staff 
participated in the 
survey. 
 
Percentage of staff 
responding "Strongly 
Agree" 
 
Caring adult 
relationships: 
Elementary = 57%, 
Middle = 45% 
 
Promotion of parental 
involvement: 
Elementary = 45%, 
Middle = 27% 
 

2022 CalSCHLS Data: 
 
27% of staff 
participated in the 
survey. 
 
Percentage of staff 
responding "Strongly 
Agree" 
 
Caring adult 
relationships: 
Elementary = 52%, 
Middle = 32% 
 
Promotion of parental 
involvement: 
Elementary = 42%, 
Middle = 20% 

2023 CalSCHLS Data: 
 
51% of staff 
participated in the 
survey. 
 
Percentage of staff 
responding "Strongly 
Agree" 
 
Caring adult 
relationships: 
Elementary = 51%, 
Middle = 34% 
 
Promotion of parental 
involvement: 
Elementary = 44%, 
Middle = 27% 

2024 CalSCHLS Data: 
TBD 

2024 CalSCHLS Data: 
 
At least 75% of staff 
will participate in the 
survey. Staff 
responding "Strongly 
Agree" for all 
responses on the 
annual CalSCHLS 
survey will increase by 
15% 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 26 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

Positive student 
learning environment: 
Elementary = 55%, 
Middle = 40% 
 
Support for social 
emotional learning: 
Elementary = 47%, 
Middle = 20% 
 
Anti Bullying climate: 
Elementary = 42%, 
Middle = 30% 
 
Positive staff working 
environment: 
Elementary = 42%, 
Middle = 35% 
 
Is school safe for 
students: 
Elementary = 51%, 
Middle = 45% 
 
Respect for diversity: 
Elementary = 45%, 
Middle = 31% 
 

 
Positive student 
learning environment: 
Elementary = 51%, 
Middle = 41% 
 
Support for social 
emotional learning: 
Elementary = 43%, 
Middle = 22% 
 
Anti Bullying climate: 
Elementary = 36%, 
Middle = 19% 
 
Positive staff working 
environment: 
Elementary = 38%, 
Middle = 29% 
 
Is school safe for 
students: 
Elementary = 53%, 
Middle = 22% 
 
Respect for diversity: 
Elementary = 40%, 
Middle = 22% 
 

 
Positive student 
learning environment: 
Elementary = 52%, 
Middle = 30% 
 
Support for social 
emotional learning: 
Elementary = 45%, 
Middle = 27% 
 
Anti Bullying climate: 
Elementary = 44%, 
Middle = 24% 
 
Positive staff working 
environment: 
Elementary = 42%, 
Middle = 20% 
 
Is school safe for 
students: 
Elementary = 49%, 
Middle = 22% 
 
Respect for diversity: 
Elementary = 43%, 
Middle = 28% 
 

Facilities Inspection 
Tool (FIT) ratings will 
be increased and 
maintained at 
"GOOD" for all sites        

2020-21 FIT Reports 
 
Greer- FAIR 
Valley Oaks- FAIR 
River Oaks- FAIR 
Lake Canyon- GOOD 
Marengo Ranch- 
GOOD 
McCaffrey- FAIR 

2021-22 FIT Reports 
 
Greer- GOOD 
Valley Oaks- FAIR 
River Oaks- GOOD 
Lake Canyon- GOOD 
Marengo Ranch- 
GOOD 
McCaffrey- FAIR 

2022-23 FIT Reports 
 
Greer- FAIR 
Valley Oaks- FAIR 
River Oaks- GOOD 
Lake Canyon- FAIR 
Marengo Ranch- FAIR 
McCaffrey- FAIR 
Fairsite- FAIR 

 2023-24 FIT Reports 
 
All district Facilities 
will be maintained at 
"GOOD" 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 27 of 30 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome Data Desired Outcome for 
2023-24 

 
 

Fairsite- FAIR 
 
 

 

Williams Facilities 
Complaints will be 
maintained at ZERO 
(0).        

2020-21 State Data 
 
Complaints= 0 
 

2021-22 State Data 
 
Complaints= 0 
 

2022-23 State Data 
 
Complaints= 0 
 

 2020-21 State Data 
 
Maintained at zero (0) 
complaints 
 

 
Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

2.1 Support for High Needs 
Students, Individual Growth and 
Safe Schools 
Sustain additional site-based 
administration to identify and 
provide support for unduplicated 
students for individual growth 
through ongoing monitoring of 
individual growth targets, 
assessments and service 
coordination as they transition from 
elementary, middle school and high 
school.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully Implemented Each elementary site has 
one assistant principal; 
the middle school has 
one full time assistant 
principal and one part 
time assistant principal to 
provide support 

 $665,977.87 $332,470.40 

2.2 Student Services: Counseling, 
Mental Health, Social Emotional 
and Safety Supports 
Sustain a Social Worker or School 
Counselor in every school to 
provide mental health services, 
social emotional, behavior and 
academic supports within the MTSS 
framework for high-risk students to 
help ensure whole learner growth. 
Student safety and well-being will 
be supported by School Resource 
Officers (SRO) with a focus on 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully Implemented Each elementary campus 
has one counselor or 
social worker; McCaffrey 
Middle has two 
counselors. 
 
Thrive Program 
(Alternative class) at 
McCaffrey Middle School 
supports students 
requiring a self contained 
classroom.  Social 
Emotional Support is 

 $902,655.97 $469,223.67 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 28 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

prevention. A wellness center and 
an alternative education classroom 
at the middle school will support 
students who have individual SEL 
needs.       
 
 
 
 

being provided through 
the Wellness Center at 
the middle school. 
 
School Resource Officer 
is available across the 
district. 
 

2.3 Expanded Learning and 
Enrichment 
Expanded Learning and 
Enrichment Programs will support 
learners at all school sites and offer 
a variety of expanded learning and 
culturally relevant enrichment 
opportunities (sports, music, art, 
STEAM, environmental education, 
etc.) during and after the school 
day.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented Enrichment programs are 
available at all sites 
before and after school: 
 
Intramural Sports 
Makerspace 
STEAM Activities 
Art 
Cal-Waste 
The bells choir 
Character Counts 
Student Leadership 
Runnin' For Rhett 
Robotics 
Readers Challenge 
Exploratory Classes-art, 
music, gardening. 
Cosumnes River 
Preserve; NGSS 
 
ELOP: GEL available on 
all 7 campuses. Site 
Coordinators support 
programs on their 
campus-district 
Expanded Learning 
Coordinator supports 
program across the 
district. 
 
GEL enrichment 
includes: 
 
Garden 

 $2,608,266.16 $1,884,429.87 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 29 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Cultural holidays; 3D 
Printer; arts/crafts; 
sports. 
 
 
 

2.4 Multi-Tiered Systems of Support 
(MTSS) and Positive Behavior 
Support 
Each site coordinates a prevention-
based MTSS model which 
implements tiered systems of 
academic, behavioral and social 
emotional learning supports for all 
students. MTSS team meetings, 
professional development, Behavior 
Analysts, Registered Behavior 
Technicians (RBTs) and school 
community collaboration are key 
elements.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented Each site has a MTSS 
model to support student 
social/emotional, 
behavioral and academic 
needs. 
 
Sites are implementing 
positive behavioral 
supports and are being 
supporting by Registered 
Behavior Technicians for 
students that are 
requiring more intensive 
behavioral intervention. 
 

 $2,464,371.04 $1,072,599.60 

2.5 Facility Maintenance 
Ensure all facilities are safe, well-
maintained and clean.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented All sites made growth 
towards "GOOD" status. 
 
Fairsite-FAIR 
86.94% 
 
Lake Canyon-GOOD 
92.10% 
 
Marengo Ranch-GOOD 
91.84% 
 
River Oaks-GOOD 
91.41% 
 
Valley Oaks-GOOD 
93.63% 
 
Vernon E Greer- GOOD 
92.45% 

 $1,466,074.00 $936,377.11 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2023-24 LCAP for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District Page 30 of 30 

Goal # 
Action # 

Action Title and 
Description Contributing Implementation 

Level Mid-year Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
McCaffrey Middle 
School- FAIR 
88.82% 
 

2.6 Social Emotional Learning (SEL) 
All schools will implement the 
Second Step SEL curriculum with 
students in PreK-8 and participate 
in identifying/building on students' 
talents and strengths.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully Implemented Second Step is being 
implemented in PreK-8th 
classrooms. 
 
All 4th grade students 
complete the GALLUP 
Strengths Assessments. 
 

 $55,000.00 $16,006.04 

 
 



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: January 17,2024 
 

 
LCAP GOAL 1 

 

 
 
 
LCAP GOAL 1 
Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in a variety of learning 
environments. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. Math Curriculum Pilot and Adoption Update 
Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director 

  
In partnership with the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE), the District has begun the 
process of adopting new mathematics materials. Mr. David Chun, SCOE’s Director of K-12 
Mathematics, is providing support and guidance during the adoption process.  

  
  
2. Gifted And Talented Education (GATE) Program Update 

Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director and Laura Papineau, Assistant Principal 
  
 The District continues to expand the GATE program strategically. Various activities and support 

are taking place at all schools. 
  



Board Meeting
January 20244

Report:

MathPilot Update

In partnership with the Sacramento County Of�ice of Education, our district has begun the
process of adopting newmathematicsmaterials. A group of 16 educators - representing all
schools- make up ourMath Adoption Committee. This is a 2-year commitment which
includes professional learning,materials review, the piloting ofmath programs and
concludes with a recommendation of onemath program to the Board. Mr. David Chun,
SCOE’s Director of K-12Mathematics, has been providing support andwill continue to
provide guidance during the adoption process.

The committee hasmet these pastmonths to review themath framework,math standards
andmath progressions. Thismonth, the committee will start the process of looking at
variousmath programs /materials available to us. The goal will be to narrow the focus to the
top 4 programs in the comingmonths. After the initial materials review, the focus will move
to the top 2math programs to pilot in the fall, 2024.

Below is the tentative timeline for the rest of the work:

2023-2024
October 2023 professional learning: math framework
November 2023 professional learning: math standards
December 2023 professional learning: math progressions
January 2024 professional learning: math framework,

program exploration & partner input
February 2024 programs review
March 2024 identi�ication of 4most complete programs
April 2024 identi�ication of 2 programs to pilot

2024-2025
Sept-Dec 2024 pilot 2math programs & partner input
January 2025 recommendation to board
February 2025 purchasematerials
March 2025 initial PD
Summer 2025 tentative additional PD

2025-2026
August 2025 implementation of newmaterials
Sept - April 2026 support and guidance

We look forward to our continued partnership with SCOE and to bringing the Board
amathematicsmaterials recommendation in the near future.



Galt Elementary School Board
Math Adoption Update

January 17, 2024



Agenda

● Review the Math Adoption Process
● Math Adoption Committee: Current work
● Next Steps
● Call to Action

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdocs.google.com%2Fdocument%2Fd%2F16JGCwW-1vD5GWdxdXyEpnPKQUiNqUugj1rCUDd_kJQI%2Fedit%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=05%7C02%7Cdchun%40scoe.net%7C7e4b5761dea84cad558d08dc0e36e70d%7C25763ba5b7dd459881d511fd6169dd50%7C1%7C0%7C638400876216141462%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=s8XUJNyID%2BFughJ96MEsUyHp0f3bGvLOv2MYm%2F1HcMg%3D&reserved=0


Adoption Process
Overview/Professional Learning

● Process
● Standards
● Needs
● Tools/Resources

Materials Review

Filter to 4 programs
(Filtering based on the mathematics)

Materials Review

Filter to 2 programs
(Filtering based on district needs and 

program components)

Pilot Consensus Building

Recommendation to School 
Board



Math Adoption Committee: Current Work
Professional Learning

● Focus on the Math Standards 
○ Content standards
○ Practice standards

● Resources
○ 2013 Mathematics Framework
○ Math Progression Documents
○ 2023 Mathematics Framework 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ma/cf/mathfwchapters.asp
https://achievethecore.org/page/254/progressions-documents-for-the-common-core-state-standards-for-mathematics
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ma/cf/


Next Steps

● Generate a list of programs for review (January 2024)
● Review materials (February - April 2024)
● Pilot (Fall 2024)
● Recommendation (Spring 2025)



Call to Action

Do you have any math programs to recommend for review? 



Report:

GiftedAndTalented Education (GATE) ProgramUpdate

We continue to strategically expand our GATE program. It is the goal of the district to design
a GATE program thatmeets the unique needs of students who demonstrate exceptional
abilities and talents. Various activities and support are taking place at all schools. Below is
our GATE update:

Already in place:
● Studentsmeet with TOSAs on aweekly basis
● Student Interest Survey has been administered at all sites
● Sites have various areas of focus including 1) Art and Poetry Projects,

2) Autobiography andGoal Setting, 3 )Personal Learning Styles and
4) STEMProjects

In Progress:
● SMUD visit with focus on Solar Radiation- in February/earlyMarch
● Stronger focus on STEMduring the second trimester
● Still in development- focus of the third trimester with a tentative �ield learning

experience at the Cosumnes River Preserve and/or amuseum
● Thismonth’s Take-Away-Tuesday includes a session on supporting GATE

students in the classroom
● General testing scheduled in late February with all third grade students

GOALS
2023-2024

○ Continue to develop the GATE program through voice-and-choice
○ Include newly identi�ied students in events during the 3rd trimester
○ Increase family awareness by ensuring communication related to services
○ Explore the possibility of community/citymentorships

2024-2025
○ Further expand the number of students being supported
○ Start support services at the beginning of the school year
○ Ensure teacher leader collaboration of best practices and district-wide events
○ Continue to support teachers with items related to di�erentiation,

acceleration, flexible grouping, increasing an understanding of gifted
education and best practices

○ Developmultiple criteria for identi�ication beyond current testing
○ Work on local partnerships with businesses and colleges

GATE leaders will continue to work together to create challenging and exciting
opportunities for GATE students to grow academically, socially and emotionally.



GATE 
Program Update

G A LT  J O I N T  U N I O N  E L E M E N TA RY  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T
BOARD OF EDUCATION PRESENTATION 

JANUARY 17,  2024



GATE Program Update

We continue to expand our GATE program strategically. The district’s goal is to design a GATE 
program that meets the unique needs of students who demonstrate exceptional abilities and 
talents. Various activities and support are taking place at all schools. 



Already in place

● All TOSAs are currently meeting with students weekly (30 to 40 minutes)
● All sites have completed student Interest Surveys
● Based on survey results:

○ One site focused on an art project and poetry
○ One site focused on an autobiography and goal-setting
○ One site had a focus on learning about their personal learning styles
○ Two sites completed a STEM project



Testing updates

● NNAT 3 testing for current 3rd graders

Potential dates:
○ February 20 - 23 or  February 26 - March 1
○ TOSAs and Laura Papineau will coordinate with third-grade teachers at each site to schedule 

and support the testing sessions



In Progress…

● SMUD visit with focus on Solar Radiation presentation in February or early March. Bus 
service will be provided to Lake Canyon Elementary 

● During the second trimester, each site will be doing STEM activities/projects
● Third trimester activities are in development with a field learning experience and a possible 

field trip to CRP or a museum
● January Take-Away-Tuesday includes a session on supporting GATE students in the 

classroom, presented by Heather Wetzel, TOSA



GOALS 2023-2024

● Continue developing the program through the use of the TOSAs, enriching GATE student engagement 
and providing SEL support. This includes the students having a key role in determining the activities 
and projects they participate in – Voice and Choice

● Invite current 3rd grade students who qualify for GATE to join current groups in the 3rd trimester
● Notify parents of 3rd grade students who qualify via USPS, including the report and a brief description 

of what GATE services may look like for their students



GOALS 2024-2025

● Further expand the number of students being supported by TOSAs by having 4th-6th grade GATE 
students regularly participate in GATE activities

● Offer support/enrichment at the start of the school year
● Laura Papineau will coordinate with TOSAs though (at least) 1 time per trimester meetings to share 

ideas and best practices
● TOSAs continue to collaborate with each other by collaborating on units/activities/support of each 

other
● Continue to support teachers with items related to differentiation, acceleration, flexible grouping, 

increasing an understanding of gifted education best practices
● Develop multiple criteria for identification beyond current testing
● Work on local partnerships with businesses and colleges



GATE leaders will continue to work together to create challenging and exciting 
opportunities for GATE students to grow academically, socially and emotionally.
GATE leaders will continue to work together to create challenging and exciting opportunities for GATE students to grow academically, socially and emotionally.



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: January 17, 2024 
 

 
LCAP GOAL 2 

 

 
LCAP GOAL 2 
Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 
1.  Food and Nutrition Services 

Nicholas Svoboda, Food Services Supervisor 

 
2.  Galt Horse-Assisted Learning and Enrichment Program (GALEP) 

Lois Yount, Superintendent 
 

The GALEP program came to a halt during the pandemic. Due to some new and veteran 
volunteers, partnerships, and funding, GJUESD is planning to restart this program by summer 
2024.  

 
Steps GJUESD has taken to restart the program:  
• Renewed insurance and PATH membership  
• Secured a certified trainer  
• In the process of securing volunteers and horses  
• Updating equipment 
• Completing repairs needed at the arena  
• Planning for spring training for volunteers 
• Ready for student riders by summer  

 
Attachment: Informational Flyer 

 

3.  Marengo Ranch Elementary Running Track 
Lois Yount, Superintendent 
 

Due to a long-standing partnership between GJUESD and S+B James Construction, they will be 
installing a running track in the field at Marengo Ranch at no cost to the District. S+B James is 
donating time, services and equipment to complete this project for the students and 
community of Galt. The estimated cost for this project is $250,000. 

 
 



FOOD & NUTRITION SERVICES 
2023-2024 

Galt Joint Union Elementary 
School District

by: Nick Svoboda, Supervisor

Join us and  fuel up 
for the school day! 



MEAL PROGRAMS
August–December

NSBP-23-24=59,708/22-23=51,198

NSLP-23-24=202,278/22-23=199,812

CACFP-23-24=41,628/22-23=34,947

SSO BK-23=4,770/22=11,519

SSO L-22=18,001/22=25,435

Reimbursement rates per meal for 23-24:

Breakfast-$3.6986

Lunch-$5.2386

CACFP-$4.545

▪ NSBP-National School Breakfast Program

▪ NSLP-National School Lunch Program

▪ CACFP-Child and Adult Care Food Provision

▪ SSO-Seamless Summer Option

▪ Universal Meals Provision for California

▪ CEP-Community Eligibility Provision=Six Sites

▪ PII-Provision II=Marengo Ranch



INNOVATIONS AT OUR SITES FOR 
23-24
▪ Increased staffing at four sites:
▪ Vernon Greer-Fairsite, River Oaks, Marengo Ranch, & Lake 

Canyon-increased scratch items, salad bars, less use of one time 
use trays, decreased menu changes due to staff shortages.

▪ All sites are increasing scratch items and salad bar days or fresh 
prepared salads.

▪Menu options more specific to each sites’ likes and dislikes.
▪ Elementary sites have four entrée choices for each day of the 

week.  The site Lead is able to offer the items more often that 
the students prefer.

▪Offering a cheese stick with all breakfast muffins.



PROMOTED SPECIAL OCCASION 
MEALS 
National School Lunch Week Leveled Up Meal and Heritage Recipe “Wacky Cake”



SWEET BABY RAY’S BBQ GRILLED BACON CHICKEN CHEESE 
BAGEL & 
WHOLE GRAIN RICH MEAL COMPLIANT THANKSGIVING 
COOKIE



OLD STANDARDS AND NEW FAVORITES
Ogre Meal Vote for your National Sandwich Day Sandwich



INTERESTING 
DEVELOPMENTS

The Great Half Pint Milk 
Carton Shortage of 2023-
2024. 
● We applied for waivers with CDE to 

allow us to serve only one variety of 
milk.

● Each site carries shelf stable milk to 
cover shortages.

● Sites were impacted less than ten 
times. 



Water Bottle 
Washing 
Wednesday
 Posted as a public service announcement 

from the Food & Nutrition Department.

 Each kitchen intermittently posts on 
Wednesday and posted in the District 
office.

 We remind our own families to wash their 
bottles, so we thought it wouldn’t hurt to 
remind our students and staff to wash 
theirs.

 Staff have received quit a few comments 
on how “gross & slimy” bottles have been! 



PANTRY PARTNER
▪ Sacramento Food Bank provides 200 

boxes monthly to the GJUESD.  They 
are packed with a variety of shelf 
stable items.

• We hand them out after school. 

• No sign up required.

• First Come First Served.

• Only info collected is number of 
households picking up and total 
family members. 

• Rotate distribution at Vernon Greer, 
Valley Oaks, & River Oaks. 



Boxes Feb-April



NEW FORD TRANSIT VAN

▪The van is used three times a day to 
transport meals from Vernon Greer 
to Fairsite.

▪ It is used to pick up and drop off our 
towels and aprons at each site.

▪ It is reliable and full of safety 
features such as internal shelving, 
stand up clearance, and running 
boards for ease of access in and out.  



TRAININGS
California School Nutrition 
Association 
Conference: Palm Springs-7 Staff

Upcoming Tentative Trainings:

▪National School Nutrition 
Association- July 2024 in 
Boston
▪Chef Anne Project
▪Culinary Institute of 
America-training partnership 
with the Galt High District



WHAT’S NEW & LOOKING FORWARD

▪ LINQ Nutrition will be replacing MealsPlus
▪MealsPlus is no longer a supported program

▪ LINQ speaks with Synergy to update student meal programs as processed

▪Digital online Menu items with nutritionals

▪ LINQ real time account updates

▪The anticipated full implementation is April

▪ Summer Meals
▪ Staff at each site serving breakfast, lunch, and supper meals.



VISION FOR THE PROGRAM

All Elementary Sites

▪ To have scheduled regular taste tests and 
menu input by students at each site.

▪ To expand scratch and fresh options fruit 
and vegetable access.

▪ To increase the knowledge of FNS team 
members and provide frontline trainings to 
promote and implement nutritious and 
tasty meals.

▪ To increase our Nutrition Education 
program.

McCaffrey Middle School

▪ To REINVISION & ENLIVEN the program 
from bottom to top.

▪By providing trainings to give team 
members the foundation to stand on 
with on going mentorships for the 
implementation phase.

▪ To create a partnership and pride in the 
program for both staff and students.  



ANY QUESTIONS?



GALEP

Galt  Joint Union
Elementary School

Distr ict  

2024

About
Us

Galt  Horse Assisted

Learning and 

Enrichment  Program

www.galt .k12.ca.us

GALEP is  a  therapeutic

r iding program offered

in the Galt  Joint  Union

Elementary  School

Distr ict .  S ince March of

2009,  GALEP has been

serving the chi ldren of

Galt  with act iv i t ies

designed to  encourage

chi ldren to  expand their

abi l i t ies  and discover

the power of

achievement  through a

wonderful  creature,  the

horse.

S U C C E S S  C A N  B E  M E A S U R E D

I N  M A N Y  W A Y S ,  B U T  T H E

M O S T  I M P O R T A N T  M E A S U R E

O F  S U C C E S S  F O R  G A L E P  I S

T H E  W A Y  I N  W H I C H  W E  A R E

T O U C H I N G  T H E  L I V E S  O F

T H E  C H I L D R E N  O F  G A L T .

W O N ’ T  Y O U  B E  A  P A R T  O F

T H I S  N E W  P R O G R A M  T H A T  I S

D E S I G N E D  T O  E N R I C H  T H E

L I V E S  O F  O T H E R S  B Y

M A K I N G  A  D O N A T I O N  O R

B E C O M I N G  A  V O L U N T E E R ?



GALEP is a collaboration between the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District
and dedicated volunteers.

Considerable funding was needed for GALEP’s initial start-up and progress has been slow but
steady. Thanks to grants, volunteers and donations, GALEP has made great strides.
Volunteers and donations are essential to the ongoing growth and success of the GALEP
program. GALEP is proud to have instructors who are certified by PATH, Professional
Association of Therapeutic Horsemanship International. GALEP program horses are furnished
by volunteers and are evaluated for their suitability prior to being allowed in the program. In
all horse related activities, safety is a major focus. Students are required to wear helmets and
volunteers participate in training to be prepared to assist with mounting and side-walking.

GALEP offers both therapeutic riding instruction and horsemastership activities. Therapeutic
riding uses the movement of the horse as a treatment tool to benefit muscle health, flexibility
and strength. The rhythm of a horse’s movement stimulates the muscles as well as the brain.
GALEP equine assisted learning activities include after school and/or summer riding with
learning and enrichment opportunities. 

GALEP has been on hold since 2020. GJUESD is ready to restart the program due to new
funding sources and volunteers. Planning is underway with the goal of student participation
by summer 2024. 

:
Assist students as they
prepare for lessons or as a    
s idewalker
Volunteer your horses or
help with volunteer horses
during lessons
Groom and tack horses
Facil ity maintenance
Administrative assistance
Fund raise and community
outreach

No Horsemanship knowledge
required…

All you need is a desire to help.

VOLUNTEERS AREVOLUNTEERS AREVOLUNTEERS ARE
NEEDED TO:NEEDED TO:NEEDED TO:

Contact Us
1018 C Street, Suite 210 Galt, CA 95632 

Phone: 209-744-4545 ext. 332
www.galt.k12.ca.us 



Derivi

Castellanos

Architects

Derivi

Castellanos

Architects

Project Name

Owner

����������	�
������������ ������
������ ������������������������ �������

484'-0"

199'-6" 82'-0"

15
4'

-8
"

20
3'

-3
 3

/4
"

3

31
'-0

"
2

LONG JUMP AREA

4

Marengo Ranch Elementary School "Runnin’ for Rhett Non-Profit"

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

200m TRACK

77'-4"

5'-0"

5'-0"

4

1

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

MATCH EXISTING GRADE/ELEVATION.

DECOMPOSED GRANITE. REFER TO DTL. 1

PLACE RECYCLED PLASTIC BENDER BOARD EDGING PER DETAILS. 

EXISTING TURF TO REMAIN.  REFER TO THE DEMOLITION NOTES. 

SAND PIT. 12" DEEP MINIMUM. PURE QUARTZ OR WASTED RIVER.

CONFORM GRADES SUCH THAT SURFACE WATER DOES NOT DRAIN
ONTO TRACK.

2
1

3

GRADING NOTES

77'-4"

1% MAX

1% MAX

1% 
MAX

1% 
MAX

5

29'-6 1/4"

9'
-1

/4
"

4'
-0

"

131'- 3"

2% MAX

6

6



THANK YOU
To our generous donors of the Marengo Ranch Track



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board of Education Meeting: January 17, 2024 
 

 
OTHER REPORTS 

 

 
 
 
OTHER REPORTS 
 

1. Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP) Quarter 2 Report 
Lois Yount, Superintendent 

  
  
2. 2024-25 School Registration 

Lois Yount, Superintendent 
  
 Registration for the 2024-2025 school year begins on Tuesday, January 22, 2024. 

Parents/Guardians can register online or pick up packets at any school site.  

Enrollment in Kindergarten requires that a child be five years of age on or before 
September 1, 2024. 

• Enrollment in Transitional Kindergarten requires that a child be five years of age 
between September 2, 2024 and June 2, 2025. 

• Transitional Kindergarten for all students will be at Fairsite Elementary and Early 
Learning Center at 902 Caroline Street, Galt. 

  
3. School Calendars 

School Principals/Assistant Principals 
 



Quarterly District Report: Williams Uniform Complaint Process (UCP)
Properly submitting this form to SCOE serves as your district’s Williams UCP Quarterly Complaint Report per Education 
Code § 35186(d). All fields are required.

SUBMITTER INFORMATION

     
Name  Job Title  Phone Number
Person submitting form    Include area code

 
E-mail Address

DISTRICT INFORMATION

     
School District  Year Covered by This Report  Quarter Covered by This Report
 

COMPLAINTS
Sufficiency of Textbooks

Total Number of Textbook Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Textbook Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Textbook Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

Emergency School Facilities Issues

Total Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

 

Vacancy or Misassignment of Teachers

Total Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Resolved
Enter 0 if none.

Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Unresolved
Enter 0 if none.

Page 1 of 2



RESOLUTION OF COMPLAINTS

Briefly summarize the nature of complaints and how they were resolved.
Enter “N/A” if no complaints were received. If you need more space, enter “sent by e-mail” and send your summary to Shannon Hansen with your report.

REPORT INCLUDES ALL COMPLAINTS FOR THIS QUARTER
The number of UCP complaints (textbooks, facilities, and teachers categories) filed for the quarter being reported MUST 
be entered in this report. Please check the box below confirming this:

Includes All UCP Complaints
All UCP complaints for the indicated quarter are being reported—from my district office and all school sites in my district.

By submitting this form, you certify that the information is complete and accurate, and that you have verified the accuracy 
of the report information by contacting each school in your district. The report includes ALL UCP complaints in the above 
categories received at school sites in the district, plus the district office.

RETURN INSTRUCTIONS
After completing the form in its entirety, save the file and e-mail it to Erika Franzon at the Sacramento County 
Office of Education (SCOE): efranzon@scoe.net.

Page 2 of 2



MISSION STATEMENT 
The school district’s mission is to promote growth and achievement through innovative educational programs that integrate personal strengths 

and social-emotional and academic learning for all children. 
 

Superintendent: Lois Yount | Chief Business Official: Alejandra Garibay  
Curriculum Director: Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano | Educational Services Director: Kuljeet Nijjar 

 
Board of Trustees: Traci Skinner, Casey Raboy, Katherine Harper, Annette Kunze, Wesley Cagle 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Enrollment and Eligibility 

 
Registration for the 2024-2025 school year begins on Tuesday, January 22, 2024.  Parents/Guardians can 
register online or pick up packets at any school site or the district office. 

 
 Enrollment in Kindergarten requires that a child be 5 years of age on or before September 1, 2024. 
 Enrollment in Transitional Kindergarten requires that a child be 5 years of age between September 2, 

2024  
and June 2, 2025. 

 Transitional Kindergarten for all students will be at Fairsite Elementary and Early Learning Center at  
902 Caroline Street, Galt. 

 
Registration Priority and Placement – PLEASE NOTE 
GJUESD cannot guarantee placement for every child at their home school if excessive enrollment exists. 
There is a possibility that your child may be reassigned to another GJUESD school. Priority will be given to 
completed registrations based on the order returned after Registration begins. 

 
Records Needed for Enrollment 
1. Proof of Residency 

Under Education Code section 48204.1, the following documents establish proof of residency in an attendance zone:   
 Property tax payment receipts; 
 Rental property contract, lease, or payment receipts; 
 Utility service contract, statement, or payment receipts; 
 Pay stubs; 
 Voter registration; 
 Correspondence from a government agency; or 
 Declaration of residency executed by the parent or legal guardian of the pupil. 

 
2. Proof of Age 

Under Education Code section 48002, the following documents establish age:                                                        
 Certified copy of a birth record; 
 Statement by the local registrar or a county recorder certifying the date of birth; 
 Baptism Certificate; 
 Passport; or 
 Affidavit of the parent, guardian, or custodian of the minor 

 
3. Immunization Record  

 
4. Kindergarten and First-Grade Dental Screenings  

 
5. Kindergarten and First-Grade Physical Exam 

State law requires that for each child enrolling in the first grade, the parent or guardian must present a 
certificate signed by a physician, verifying that the child has received a physical examination within the 
last 18 months. 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt CA 95632 | 209-744-4545 
 

School Registration 2024-2025 



S U N M O N T U E W E D T H U F R I S A T

7

1

F A M I L Y   
N I G H T # 2

2

2 N D  C U P  O F
C O F F E E

F I R E  D R I L L

3

4 5

P L A Y G R O U P S

6

P L A Y G R O U P S

7

S T A F F
M E E T I N G

8

C L A S S R O O M   
O B S E R V A T I O N S

P S  P D

9

F I E L D  T R I P

P S  P D

1 0

1 1 1 2

N O  S C H O O L

1 3

P L A Y G R O U P S

1 4 1 5 1 6 1 7

1 8 1 9

N O  S C H O O L

2 0

P L A Y G R O U P S

2 1 2 2

D L I  I N F O
S E S S I O N

2 3 24

25 2 6

P L A Y G R O U P S

2 7

P L A Y G R O U P S

2 8 2 9

F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y

2 0 2 4

F A I R S I T E
E L E M E N T A R Y  A N D
E A R L Y  L E A R N I N G

C E N T E R

9 0 2  C A R O L I N E   S T .
G A L T ,  C A  9 5 6 3 2  
( 2 0 9 )  7 4 5 - 2 5 0 6

L A U R A  M A R Q U E Z
P R I N C I P A L





Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

    1 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

2  

 

3 

4 5 

 

6 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

 

 

7 8 

Academic Conferences  
Kinder/1st  

 
House Rally 

1:55  

9 

 

 

10 

11 12 

 

No School  

Lincoln’s Birthday 

Observance  

13 

 

Academic Conferences  
4th/5th 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

14 

 

 

Academic Conferences  
6th/SDC  

15 16 

 

Girls Basketball Game 

LC vs. Valley Oaks  

3:00 at Valley Oaks  

 

17 

18 19 

 

No School  

President’s Day  

20 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

 

 

21 

 

GJUESD Board  

Meeting 7:00 PM  

22 

District Admin  

Walk Thru 8:15  

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

23 

 

All-School Assembly  

1:45 

24 

25 26 27 

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

28 29 

MTSS  

 

Acceleration Blocks 

2:45 

  

Lake Canyon Board Calendar  
February 2024 

Kinder Dismissal 1:00 

Kinder Dismissal 1:00 

Fire Drill  1:55 
 

 Girls Basketball Game 

3:00 LC vs. Greer @ Greer  
 

Family Dance 6:00 pm  

MAP Testing Grades 1 - 6  

MMS Choir &Band  

Performance 1:15 
 

Staff Meeting  

2:45 - BFLC 

MAP Testing Grades 1 - 6  

Girls Basketball Game 

LC vs. Marengo Ranch  

3:00 at Lake Canyon  



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

    1 2 3 

4 5 

 

6 7 

 

8 9 

 

10 

11 12 

 

13 14 

 

15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 

 

22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29   

February 2024 
McCaffrey Middle School 

Club Live - Library 
During Lunches 

Club Live - Library 
During Lunches 

No School  

No School  Board Meeting @ 7pm 

Environmental Club 
3:15pm 

 
MTSS Conference 

AVID Fresno  
Field Trip 

Course Selection 8th 

Grade Parent Help HS 

Course Selection 8th 

Grade Students for HS 

Course Selection 8th 

Grade Students for HS 

Course Selection 8th 

Grade—Make ups 

 

Winter Concert @ 6pm 

Fire Drill #3 

Winter MAP Testing Window - Jan 22 - Feb 9 
ELPAC Summative Assessment (SA) Window - Feb 5 - April 12 

CA Physical Fitness Testing - Feb 5 - May 17th 
CalSCHLS Survey 7th & 8th - Feb 13 - 28th 

Sports: 7th Grade Basketball - Jan 8 - Feb 15 
             Girls Indoor Soccer - Jan 8 - Feb 25 
     Softball Tryouts - Feb. 20 & 21 (tentative)  
             

Home Basketball 
Games 

Home Basketball 
Games 

Band Tour of elementary schools  

Away B-Ball Games 

Away B-Ball Games 

Environmental Club 
12 - 1pm 



SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1  2  
 
 
 
 

K I N D E R  1 P M  
D I S M I S S A L  

3  

4  5  
 

6  
M a t h  P i l o t  

Y a r d  M e e t i n g  
R S P  m e e t i n g  

 
M M S  a t  M R E  

7  
 
 

S t u d e n t /
T e a c h e r  s w a p  

d a y  

8  
 

9  
 
 

1 0  

1 1  1 2  
 
 
 
 

1 3  
S t a f f  L e a r n i n g  

e v e n t  2 : 5 0  
 

E m e r g e n c y  
D r i l l  

1 4  
 
 
 
 
 
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

1 5  
 

M T S S  
 

L o c k d o w n  D r i l l  
 

1 6  
 
 
 
 
 

K I N D E R  1 P M  
D I S M I S S A L  

1 7  

1 8  1 9  2 0  
 

M a t h  P i l o t  
 

S D C   
M e e t i n g  2 : 5 0  

2 1  
 
 
 
 
 
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

2 2  
 

A c a d e m i c  C o n f  
4 - 6  g r a d e  

 
P T C K  m e e t i n g  

2 3  
 
 
 
 

M o r n i n g  S i n g  
D i s c o v e r e r  

2 4  

2 5  2 6  2 7  
 

2 8  
 
 
 
 
 

C O L L E G E  D A Y  

2 9    
 

 

February 2024 
Board Calendar– What’s happening this month at Marengo Ranch? 

 

Important 
Reminders 

 
02/05 ELPAC 
window opens 

 
02/09 MAP window 

closes 
 

02/13 Negotiations 
 

02/16 Admin 
Meeting 

 
02/21 Board Meeting 

 
02/23 DRA window 

closes 
 
 

Facilities Used  
by basketball  

Monday-Thursday 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
    

 
 

1 
 

5th Grade to Stockton  
Symphony 

2 
 
Girls Basketball Game  

VO @ RO 3:00pm 

3 

4 5      
 

Valentines Gram Sales 
 

6 
MMS Band/Choir 
Performance 9:00 

 
 

7 
 

 

8 9 
 
Girls Basketball Game 
RO @ Greer 3:00pm 

10 

11 12 
 

NO SCHOOL 
Lincoln’s Birthday 

13     
 

CalSCHLS  
Survey Opens 

14     
 

Red And Pink Day 
 

Valentine’s Day 

15 
 
 

 
 
 
 

16 
 
 

17 

18 19 
 

NO SCHOOL 
President’s Day 

20     
 

6th Grade to Consumes  
Preserve Fieldtrip/Pierre 

 

21 
 
 
 
Board Meeting 7:00 

22 
 

6th Grade to Consumes  
Preserve Fieldtrip/Pierce 

23  6th Grade to Consumes  
Preserve Fieldtrip/Abitz 
Girls Basketball Game  
RO @ MRE  3:00pm 

Father/Daughter Dance 
Doors Open 5:15 pm 
Dance 6:00-8:00 pm 

24 

25 26 
 

27 
 
 
 

PTA Meeting 3pm 

28 
 

29 
 

Spring Picture Day 

  

 R  O k  E nt  
      F u  2024 

Valentine’s Gram Sales 2/5—2/9 



Valley Oaks Elementary February2024

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday

1

PTO Mtg @ 2:45pm

2

Kinder Dismissal @ 1:00pm
2:30pm Girls Intramural
Basketball VO

5

Staff Meeting @ 2:45
2:30pm Girls Intramural
Basketball VO

6

MMS Band/Choir
Performance at VO
@ 1:00pm

7 8

12
No School

Abraham Lincoln’s
Birthday

13

ELAC 2:45pm

14

Happy
Valentine’s Day

15 16

Kinder Dismissal @ 1:00pm
2:30pm Girls Intramural
Basketball VO

19

No School
Presidents Day

20 21

7pm Board Meeting

22

Family Bingo/Loteria
Night @ 6:00-7:00pm

23

26 27 28 29



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date:  January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.457 
Board Consideration of Approval of Consent 
Calendar 
 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
  Information Item: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

a. Approval of the Agenda 
  
b. Minutes 
  December 20, 2023 
  
c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants: 24455941-24456012; 24456826-24456868; 24457864-24457900 
 Payroll Warrants: 01/02/24, 01/10/24 

  
d. Personnel 
  Resignations/Retirements 

 Leave of Absence Requests 
 New Hires/Reclassifications 

  
e. Donations 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



1 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District  
Board of Education Minutes 

 
Regular/Annual Organizational Meeting 
December 20, 2023 
 

Galt City Hall Chamber 
380 Civic Drive, Galt, CA 95632 

 
Zoom Webinar ID 

82135658878 
  
Board Member Administrators 
Wesley Cagle  Lois Yount 
Traci Skinner  Alejandra Garibay 
Casey Raboy  Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano 
Annette Kunze  Kuljeet Nijjar 
Katherine Harper   

 
A. 6:00 p.m. – Closed Session Location: Galt City Hall Conference Room 
   
B. Wesley Cagle called the Closed Session to order at 6:02 p.m. to discuss the following items: 
    
 1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR, Government Code §54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Lois Yount, Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Kuljeet Nijjar, Alejandra Garibay 
 Employee Agency: (GEFA) Galt Elementary Faculty Association 
 Employee Agency: (CSEA) California School Employee Association 
 Non-Represented Employees 

    
 2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS, Pursuant to Government Code, 

§54956.8 
Property: 320 W Elm Avenue [APN 148-0140-057-0000] 
Agency Negotiator(s): P. Addison Covert, Parker & Covert LLP Attorney At Law 
Negotiating Parties: Galt Joint Union Elementary School District and the City of Galt 
Under Negotiation: Purchase, sale, exchange, or lease of real property 

 

    
C. Closed Session adjourned at 7:02 p.m. Wesley Cagle announced no action was taken in closed 

session, followed by the flag salute. Open Session began at 7:05 p.m. 
   
D. 232.442 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the Annual Organization of the 

Board/Election of Officers, seconded by Katherine Harper and unanimously 
carried, as follows: 

Annual Org 

  1. President: Traci Skinner  

  2. Vice President: Casey Raboy  

  3. Clerk: Katherine Harper  

  4. Secretary to the Board: Lois Yount, Superintendent  

   

 232.443 Casey Raboy made a motion to approve the Schedule of Regular Meetings and 
Board Governance Calendar, seconded by Wesley Cagle and unanimously 
carried. 

Schedule of 
Reg Mtgs  



2 
 

    

 232.444 Casey Raboy made a motion to Designate 2024 Board Representatives to 
Serve on Committees as follows, seconded by Annette Kunze and unanimously 
carried. 
 
CAST 

1. Traci Skinner 
2. Casey Raboy 
3. Alternate: Katherine Harper 

TRANSPORTATION 
1. Traci Skinner 
2. Annette Kunze 
3. Alternate: Casey Raboy 

SACRAMENTO COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD ASSOCIATION 
1. Katherine Harper 
2. Traci Skinner 
3. Alternate: Wesley Cagle and Casey Raboy 

BOARD POLICY 
1. Annette Kunze 
2. Wesley Cagle 

Committee 
Members 

    
 232.445 The Board Considered Resources That Define and Clarify the Board's 

Governance and Leadership Roles and Responsibilities Including, But Not 
Limited To Governance Standards, Meeting Protocols, Board Rules and 
Bylaws, and Other Board Development Materials. 

Governance 
Resources 

    
E. Lois Yount shared the Board Meeting Protocol. 
  
F. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda.  

There were no public comments. 
  
G. Reports  
 LCAP GOAL 1 

Engaging learners in PreK-8 through a focus on equity, access, and academic rigor with inclusive practices in various learning environments. 
 1. District Reading Assessments (DRA): Fall 2023 

Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director, reported. She indicated the GJUESD administers 
a DRA three times per year using Scarborough's Reading Rope to guide our literacy work. The DRA 
measures students' ability to blend and manipulate sounds and knowledge of spelling patterns 
and sight words; it also assesses reading fluency and accuracy. 
 
Ms. Del Toro-Anguiano said part of LCAP Goal 1 includes an increase of the DRA results by 10% 
each year. GJUESD measures this growth from spring to spring. She reported on the percentage of 
students who have met all of the DRA benchmarks or targets for the end of the first trimester by 
school and grade level. She indicated teachers are doing a phenomenal job of addressing 
students' needs. 

   
   
 2. California School Dashboard: Fall 2023 

Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director, reported. She indicated the CA School Dashboard 
provides families and educators with meaningful information on school and district progress so 



3 
 

they can participate in decisions to improve student learning. The state uses five performance 
levels, with red being the lowest performance level and blue being the highest. Ms. Del Toro-
Anguiano shared GJUESD performance levels: 

• District Academic Performance: English Language Arts = Orange; Mathematics = Yellow; 
English Learner Progress = Green 

• District Academic Engagement: Chronic Absenteeism = Yellow 
• District Conditions & Climate: Suspension Rate = Orange 

 
Lois Yount acknowledged the excellent work of teachers, support staff, administrators, and 
classified staff. 

   
 LCAP GOAL 2 

Promoting PreK-8 whole learner development through social and emotional learning opportunities in a variety of safe and supportive 
environments. 

 1. Valley Oaks Elementary New Classroom Building 
Lois Yount reported the new Valley Oaks Elementary Building is complete, and 
teachers are in the process of moving in. Students will be completely moved in when 
they return from winter break. 

 

    
 OTHER REPORTS  
 1. California School Boards Association (CSBA) Annual Education Conference (AEC) 

Lois Yount reported that she, Wesley Cagle, Alejandra Garibay, and Katherine Harper 
attended the CSBA AEC. They shared information from the workshops they attended 
and key takeaways from listening to general speaker Sal Khan of Khan Academy. 
Some items they highlighted included guardrails for Chat GPT, Safety measures that 
other districts are implementing, and declining enrollment throughout the state. 
 
Ms. Yount said GJUESD will consider an emergency management system in the new 
year. A report will be brought to the Board in January or February. 

 

    
 2. School Calendars 

 
Lois Yount shared the school calendars on behalf of school administrators. 

 

    
H. Board Discussion  
 1. Hybrid In-Person and Zoom Board of Education Meetings 

Lois Yount reported the GJUESD has been holding Hybrid In-Person and Zoom Board 
meetings since the COVID-19 pandemic began. She said some school boards are 
continuing with the hybrid model, some have eliminated the Zoom Hybrid option, 
and some are continuing the hybrid model with public comments being accepted in 
person via Zoom and via email (24 hours before the meeting). 
 
Traci Skinner, Board President, asked how many people join the meeting through 
Zoom on average. Ms. Yount said approximately five.  
 
Ms. Skinner asked if there is an additional cost to holding hybrid meetings. Ms. Yount 
said yes due to the technology support. An optgion is to hold the meetings via Zoom 
for the public to view, but remove the public comment option via Zoom. It would 
reduce the support needed for each meeting. The public would still have the 

 



4 
 

opportunity to make public comments in person or email public comments (24 hours 
before the meeting), and we would post them to our website as we do now. 
 
Ms. Skinner said she is in favor of keeping the Zoom link for easy public access in 
viewing the meeting and disabling the Zoom public comment feature while 
continuing public comment in person and via email. The Board concurred.  
 
Public Comment: Amy Mangili addressed the Board regarding Zoom meetings. She 
supports the board's recommendation to keep the Zoom meeting link for easy public 
viewing. 
 
Lois Yount said this new procedure will begin on January 17, 2024. 

    
I. Routine Matters/New Business  
 232.446 Lois Yount recognized the retirement of Sabrena Fry and Yvette Odell. 

 
Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar, seconded by 
Casey Raboy. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

  a. Approval of the Agenda Consent 
Calendar 

     
  b. Minutes  
    November 15, 2023  
     
  c. Payment of Warrants 

 Vendor Warrants:  24449858-24449951; 24450925-24450940; 
24452839-24452917, 24454458-24454539 

 Payroll Warrants: 11/09/23, 11/13/23, 11/30/23, 12/08/23 

 

     
  d. Personnel  
    

Resignations/Retirees 
 

Name Position Effective 
Date 

Site 

Baroni, Tammara Bus Driver 12/21/23 Transportation 

Beckworth, Diana Instructional Assistant, Special 
Education 

11/17/23 River Oaks 

Begley, Lynette Bus Driver 12/21/23 Transportation 

Fry, Sabrena (Retirement 
22 Years) 

Health Assistant II 1/31/24 McCaffrey 
Middle 

Garcia, Sandy Bilingual Office Assistant, Special 
Programs 

 
11/30/23 

 
Fairsite 

Odell, Yvette (Retirement 
27 years) 

Secretary II 12/21/23 Fairsite 

Sulamo, Jessalyn Instructional Assistant, Special 
Education 

12/21/23 Fairsite 

Taylor, Cheryl Yard Supervisor 12/1/23 McCaffrey 
Middle 

Torres, Jodi Yard Supervisor 12/21/23 Transportation 

 

 



5 
 

Leave of Absence Requests 
 

Name Position Effective 
Date 

Site 

Blake, Lauren Instructional Assistant, Special 
Education 

11/27/23 Valley Oaks 

Delgado, Helen Yard Supervisor 11/15/23 McCaffrey 
Middle 

Diaz, Maria Bilingual Instructional Assistant 1/8/24 Valley Oaks 

Rose-Dorward, Holly Teacher 1/8/24 Vernon E. Greer 

Scherrer, Tianna Instructional Assistant 12/4/23 Marengo Ranch 

 
New Hires/Reclassifications/Status Changes 

 

Name Position Site 

Amer, Sabiha Yard Supervisor Vernon E. Greer 

Arriola, Francesca Classified Substitute N/A 

Baysinger, Deborah Bus Trainee - Temporary Transportation 

Cook, Janet Certificated Substitute N/A 

Dareing, Audra Classified Substitute N/A 

Evans, Heidi Certificated Substirtute N/A 

Jimenez Duran, Griselda Classified Substitute N/A 

Kattenhorn, Jeremy Classified Substitute N/A 

Rocha, Andraya Preschool Instructional Assistant Fairsite 

Tone, Maria Certificated Substitute N/A 

Torres, Zabrina Certificated Substitute N/A 
 

     
  e. Donations  
     
 232.447 Consent Calendar (Continued) – Items Removed for Later Consideration 

No items were removed from the Consent Calendar. 
CC Items 

Removed 

    
 232.448 Katherine Harper made a motion to approve the 2024-2025 School Calendar, 

seconded by Annette Kunze. The motion carried unanimously. 
School 

Calendar 

    
 232.449 Casey Raboy made a motion to approve Variable Term Waiver for Newly Hired 

Educator, seconded by Katherine Harper. The motion carried unanimously. 
Var Term 

Waiver 

    
 232.450 Alejandra Garibay, Chief Business Official, reported. She indicated the First 

Interim Report for the 2023-24 school year includes changes in revenue and 
expenditures since the Board adopted the budget in June.  
 
First Interim Summary 2023-24 

• The Cost of Living Adjusted (COLA) is 8.22% in 2023-24 
• PERS increase of 1.31% in 2023-24 
• Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) revenue is based on Funded ADA 

of 3,224.04 

First Int 
Report 



6 
 

• $100,000 James B. McClatchy DLI Program at Fairsite funding ends at 
the end of the fiscal year, June 30, 2024. 

• Proposition 28: The Arts & Music in School (AMS) for GJUESD allocation 
is $545,791. 

• The Bureau of Land Management Grant was awarded to Cosumnes 
River Preserve for $308,000 over four years. 

• Unduplicated Pupil Percentage increased to 61.14% in 2023-24. 
 
Economic Outlook 

• LAO reports a $26 billion decrease in tax receipts for 2022 compared to 
the 2023 Budget Act estimate. 

• Big Question – Will the state take action to align its spending obligation 
to K-12 schools with the lower state revenues? 

• Depending on how the state handles the shortfall, GJUESD may be 
impacted. 

• Proposition 98 for 2023-24 already carries a deficit associated with the 
8.22% COLA, for which the state used nearly $2 billion in one-time 
funds. 

• COLA is projected to be as low as 1% in 2024-25 
• COLA is a rate of change from one year to the next, irrespective of how 

high (or low) prices are. 
 
Final Synopsis of First Interim 2023-24 

• GJUESD has met all of its financial obligations with the support of one-
time federal funds, state funds, and the increase of COLA for 2023-24. 

• GJUESD continues to monitor enrollment and ADA. 
• Negotiations for 2023-24 remain unsettled. 
• Ensuring safe and secure learning environments continues to be a 

priority for schools. 
 
Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the 2023-24 First Interim Report, 
seconded by Traci Skinner. The motion carried unanimously. 

    
 232.451 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve Resolution No. 10, Providing Workers' 

Compensation Coverage for Volunteers, seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

Res 10 
Workers 
Com Cov 

Vol 
    
 232.452 Katherine Harper made a motion to approve Resolution 11, Annual and Five-

Year Findings Reports for Reportable Developer Fees for Fiscal Year 2022-23, 
seconded by Wesley Cagle. The motion carried unanimously. 

Res 11 
5-yr Finding 

Dev Fees 

    
 232.453 Traci Skinner made a motion to approve the Agreement Among the City of 

Galt, Galt Joint Union High School District And Galt Joint Union Elementary 
School District Regarding The School Resource Program, seconded by Annette 
Kunze. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Annette Kunze requested that the School Resource Officer provide a report to 
the Board to share their goals, experiences and philosophies. 

SRO 
Program 

    



7 
 

 232.454 Wesley Cagle made a motion to approve the Memorandum Of Understanding 
(MOU) Between the California School Employees Association And its Galt 
Chapter #362 (CSEA) And the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
Pertaining to a Salary Increase for the Accounts Payable Clerk Position, 
seconded by Casey Raboy. The motion carried unanimously. 

CSEA MOU 
Acct 

Payable 

    
 232.455 Annette Kunze made a motion to approve the Memorandum Of Understanding 

(MOU) Between the California School Employees Association And its Galt 
Chapter #362 (CSEA) And the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
Pertaining to the Creation of the Fiscal Analyst Position, seconded by Katherine 
Harper. The motion carried unanimously. 

CSEA MOU 
Fiscal 

Analyst  

    
 232.456 Casey Raboy made a motion to approve the following Board Policies (BP) and 

Administrative Regulations (AR), seconded by Traci Skinner. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

1. BP 0410 – Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities 
2. BP 1160 – Political Process 
3. BP/AR 1312.2 – Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials 
4. BP/AR 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures 
5. AR 1312.4 – Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 
6. BP/AR 1330 Use of School Facilities 
7. BP/AR 3311 – Bids 
8. BP 3312 – Contracts 
9. BP 3460 – Financial Reports and Accountability 
10. AR 3541 Transportation Routes and Services 
11. BP/AR 3551 – Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
12. BP 4151/4251/4351 – Employee Compensation 
13. AR 4217.3 – Layoff/Rehire 
14. BP 5131.9 – Academic Honesty 
15. BP 5145.3 – Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
16. BP/AR 6143 – Courses of Study 
17. BP 6154 – Homework/Makeup Work 
18. AR 6154 – Homework/Makeup Work – Rescind  
19. BP/AR 6161.1 – Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 
20. BP 6161.11 – Supplementary Instructional Materials 
21. BP 6162.5 – Student Assessment 
22. BP 6163.1 – Library Media Centers 
23. BB 9124 – Attorney 

Policies 

    
J. Public Comments for topics not on the agenda 

Public comment is limited to three minutes or less, pending Board President's approval.  
   
   
K. Pending Agenda Items  
 1. Acceleration Blocks  
 2. School Resource Officer  
    



8 
 

Wesley Cagle stated that there is a program he learned about at the CSBA AEC. The State of California 
launched the California Kids Investment and Development Savings Program (CalKIDS). The program jump-
starts saving for college or career training for eligible kids in California. 
    
L. Adjournment 8:39 p.m.  
    

 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Katherine Harper, Clerk 

 
 
 

________________________ 
Date 



Recommend approval of the following:

Resignations/Retirees

Name Position Effective Date Site

Hopper, Joyce Bus Driver 1/26/24 Transportation

Miranda, Amanda Instructional Assistant, Expanded
Learning

1/24/24 River Oaks

Leave of Absence Requests

Name Position Effective Date Site
Duenas, Erika Teacher 12/5/23 McCaffrey Middle

Escobedo, Alexandra Bus Driver 8/15/23 Transportation

Sheldon, Fred Teacher 3/19/24 Lake Canyon

New Hires/Reclassifications/Status Changes

Name Position Site

Dominguez, Elizabeth Certificated Substitute N/A

Fritts, Jerry Groundskeeper Maintenance and Transportation

Gamez, Araceli (Status Change) Secretary II Valley Oaks

Hubert, Breanne Yard Supervisor Marengo Ranch

Hunt, Aimee Certificated Substitute N/A

Sadiq, Seema Certificated Substitute N/A

Schenone, Saret Classified Substitute N/A

Soria, Dalila Yard Supervisor River Oaks

Stoddart, Lisa School Nurse District Office

Thomlinson, Sara Instructional Assistant, Special Education Fairsite Preschool

Velez, Cristina Bilingual Office Assistant, Special Programs Fairsite Preschool

Worden, Shandi (Status Change) Instructional Assistant Valley Oaks

GJUESD Board Meeting January 17, 2024



 
                                                                         

 

GJUESD Board Meeting: January 17, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

Donations 
 

  
 
 
Marengo Ranch Elementary 

• S+B James Construction, DeriviCastellanos Architects, CenterPoint Engineering, Inc., 
McGuire Hester, Reliable Onsite Services and Urata & Sons Concrete, LLC are donating time, 
services and equipment for the installation of a running track valued at an estimated cost of 
$250,000.00.  

 
 

 
 

 



Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 

 

Meeting Date:      January 17, 2024 Agenda Item:  232.458 
Consent Calendar (continued)- Items 
Removed For Later Consideration 
 

Presenter:            Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
 Information Item:  

 
 
The Board will have the opportunity to address any items that are moved from the consent 
calendar. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date:  January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.459 
Board Action Regarding Student Expulsion 
Case No. 22/23-04 
 

Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar Action Item: XX 
  Information Item: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date:  January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.460 
Board Consideration of Approval of GJUESD 
2022-2023 District Audit Report by Christy 
White Associates 
 

Presenter: Alejandra Garibay Action Item: XX 
  Information Item: 
 
 

 
Education Code 41020 requires an independent annual financial and compliance audit of a school’s 
financial and internal controls. The 2022-23 Fiscal Year District Audit has been completed by 
Christy White Associates and will be presented by Kyle Montgomery, CPA, Partner, Christy White 
Inc. The District is pleased that no findings or recommendations were determined as a result of 
this audit. 
 
Board approval is recommended. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 





































































































































































 













 

























 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date:  January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.461 
Board Consideration of Approval of 2023-24 
School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 
for Fairsite Elementary, Lake Canyon 
Elementary, Marengo Ranch Elementary, 
River Oaks Elementary, Valley Oaks 
Elementary, Vernon E. Greer Elementary 
and McCaffrey Middle School 

Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar Action Item: XX 
  Information Item: 
 

Education Code 35256 establishes that each school's SARC is updated annually. 
The SARC contains information about the condition and performance of each California public 
school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), all local educational agencies (LEAs) are 
required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to 
meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address state and local 
priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP must be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
SARCs must be posted to CDE by February 1 of each year. 
 
While we are in the 2023-24 school year, the information in the SARCs reflects the required 
accountability reporting for 2020-2021, 2021-22 and 2022-23. 
 

1. The 2022–23 school year data for Tables 6 and 7-Teacher Preparation and Placement, Table 
8-Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments, Table 9- Credentialed Teachers 
Assigned Out-of-Field and Table 10-Class Assignments are not available at this time. CDE 
anticipates that the 2022–23 school year data for those tables will be available after the 
February 1, 2024, is the posting due date and will not be editable. 

2. Important Note: The CDE data populated in the "Elementary Average Class Size and Class 
Size Distribution" Field for the 2019-20 & 2020-21 school year is inaccurate. This inaccuracy has 
been corrected for the 2021-22 school year. 

3. Fairsite opened as TK in the current 2022-23 school year and, therefore, does not have State 
data to populate any of the CDE Tables. 

4. The Facility Inspection Tool (FIT) report ratings for each site are included in the SARCs. 
These inspections are completed annually. Maintenance, custodians, and site 
administrators receive copies of the reports and work through the year to repair any 
deficiencies noted. 

 
Board Policy 0510 states, "The Board shall publicize the issuance of school accountability report 
cards and notify parents/guardians that a paper copy will be provided upon request." The school 
accountability report cards are accessible on the district's website, and the information is 
updated annually. The Spanish translation is posted alongside the English. 

 
 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

Fairsite Elementary school 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 
------- 

2023 School Accountability Report Card 

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

SARC Overview 
 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Fairsite Elementary school         

Street 902 Caroline Avenue         

City, State, Zip Galt, CA 95632         

Phone Number 209-745-1546         

Principal Laura Marquez         

Email Address lmarquez@galt.k12.ca.us         

School Website https://fs-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 34 67348 0141325         
 

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Galt Joint Union ESD         

Phone Number 209.744.4545         

Superintendent  Lois Yount         

Email Address lyount@galt.k12.ca.us         

District Website http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 
 

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

Fairsite Elementary School and Early Learning Center prepares students and families to be Kindergarten ready. Kinder ready 
students are confident learners, are comfortable in a classroom setting, and have developed and demonstrated the following 
developmentally appropriate competencies: 
Academic: literacy, math, social studies and science skills 
Language: expressive and receptive oral language skills, including communicating needs; asking and answering questions; 
vocabulary knowledge, including academic language, and listening comprehension 
Social: ability to focus on and respond to instruction, communicate clearly, engage and get along with peers, demonstrate age-
appropriate problem-solving skills, and be prepared to learn 
Emotional: ability to identify and express feelings, act independently, and demonstrate appropriate behavior 
Physical: display age appropriate gross and fine motor skills 
 
Our dedicated staff is committed to providing our youngest learners with a comprehensive "whole child' learning environment 
that maximizes educational opportunities throughout the instructional day.  With ongoing professional development and goal 
setting, our staff is committed to providing our learners with high-quality programs for our three- and four-year-old preschool 
students and our transitional Kindergarten students. By prioritizing communication and developing relationships with our 
families, we strive to provide our learning community with a variety of meaningful parent engagement activities that will help 
each learner reach their potential.   Our School Readiness Center provides families with supports and resources based on their 
needs and interests, with developmental screenings, parenting classes, adult literacy classes, migrant education services, and 
translation assistance. 
 
 
-------- 

 

 

https://fs-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/
http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Kindergarten 96        

Total Enrollment 96        
 

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 

Female 40.6%        

Male 58.3%        

Asian  3.1%        

Black or African American  1%        

Hispanic or Latino 55.2%        

Two or More Races  5.2%        

White  34.4%        

English Learners 32.3%        

Homeless 1%        

Migrant 8.3%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 52.1%        

Students with Disabilities 13.5%        
 

 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 

A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

  157.00 91.08 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

  3.00 1.74 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

  1.00 0.58 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

  2.40 1.44 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown           8.80 5.15 18854.30 6.86 

Total Teaching Positions           172.40 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

  155.00 93.12 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

  2.70 1.63 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

  1.00 0.65 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

  0.10 0.11 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown           7.40 4.49 15831.90 5.67 

Total Teaching Positions           166.50 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers            

Misassignments             

Vacant Positions            

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments   

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver   

Local Assignment Options   

Total Out-of-Field Teachers   

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 

Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

  

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

  

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

Galt Joint Union Elementary held a Public Hearing in September 20 2023 and determined that each school within the district 
has sufficient and good quality textbooks, instructional materials, or science lab equipment pursuant to the settlement of 
Williams vs. the State of California. All learners, including English learners, are given their own individual standards-aligned 
textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in core subjects for use in the classroom and to take home. 
 
Textbooks and supplementary materials are adopted according to a cycle developed by the California Department of 
Education, making the textbooks used in the school the most current available. Materials approved for use by the state are 
reviewed by all teachers and a recommendation is made to the School Board by a selection committee composed of teachers 
and administrators. All recommended materials are available for parent examination at the district office prior to adoption. The 
table displays information about the quality, currency, and availability of the standards-aligned textbooks and other instructional 
materials used at the school. 
        

 

Year and month in which the data were collected  

 

Subject 
Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 

Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 

Reading/Language Arts TK-6 Benchmark Advance, adopted in 2017-2018        Yes 0 

Mathematics TK-6 Eureka Math, adopted as bridge program in 2016        Yes 0 

Science K-5 Pearson Scott Foresman- California Science, adopted in 
2007        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science K-5 MacMillian/McGraw Hill- California Vistas, adopted in 
2006        

Yes 0 

 

 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

Fairsite School  was built in 1955 and closed in 2009 as an elementary school. Until the 2021-22 school year, Fairsite 
continued to offer State Preschool and a First 5 School Readiness program.  In August of 2022, Fairsite reopened as an 
elementary school and now serves both Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten and School Readiness.  Fairsite Elementary is 
comprised of 11 permanent classrooms, 14 portable classrooms, one multipurpose room, one Maker Space/STEAM room, two 
staff workrooms, two playgrounds and one extended day classroom.   School pride shows through the care of our facilities by 
staff, students and parents. 
 
Cleaning Process 
The principal works daily with one full-time and two part-time custodial staff members to ensure that the cleaning of the school 
is maintained to provide for a clean and safe school. The district governing board has adopted cleaning standards for all 
schools in the district. A summary of these standards is available at the district office for review. 
 
Maintenance and Repair 
District maintenance staff ensures that the repairs necessary to keep the school in good repair and work orders are completed 
in a timely manner. A work order process is used to ensure efficient service and highest priority are given to emergency repairs. 
While reviewing this report, please note that even minor discrepancies are reported in the inspection process. The items noted 
in the table have been corrected or are in the process of remediation. 
 
During the 2021-22 school year, renovations commenced to address much needed repair to exterior issues, indoor lighting and 
carpeting, landscaping and H-VAC.  Renovations and repairs continue during the summer months. 
        

 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 12/4/2023 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

System Inspected 
Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor 

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X   VENT COVERS ARE MISSING. WALL TRIM IS 
MISSING. CARPET IS TORN. CEILING TILE HAS A 
WATER STAIN. 
VENT COVER IS BROKEN. 
 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

  X WATER DAMAGE TO EAVES BEAM. SINK CABINET 
HANDLE IS MISSING.  WALL PAPER IS TORN. 
CARPET IS LIFTING.  DOOR CLOSER IS 
BROKEN.CEILING TILE HAS A HOLE. CEILING TILE 
IS LOOSE. WOOD TRIM IS LOOSE ON WALL. FIRE 
SENSOR IS LOOSE FROM THE CEILING.  DRY 
ROT ON RAMP. SKID PAINT IS PEELING ON RAMP. 
FLOOR TILES ARE BROKEN. TOILET 
RUNS.DAMAGE TO WEST WALL AND FLOORING 
UNSECURED ITEMS STORED TOO HIGH. 
LIGHT COVER IS MISSING IN . DOOR DOES NOT 
CLOSE INDEPENDENTLY.  TRIP HAZARD ON 
WALKWAY.FORMICA TRIM IS CHIPPING ON 
COUNTERTOP. EXTERIOR LIGHT COVERS ARE 
MISSING.    PAINT IS PEELING ON INTERIOR WALL 
. WALLPAPER IS PEELING ON WALL. RUBBER 
MOLDING IS BROKEN.OLD HEATING VENT IS 
LOOSE. 
 
 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X    
DRY ROT ON SIDING AND RAMP. RIP HAZARD ON 
WALKWAY. 
EXTERIOR LIGHT COVER IS MISSING.   FLOORS 
ARE UNKEPT. MULTIPLE TOILETS ARE LOOSE AT 
THE BASE. 
 

Electrical  X  EXTERIOR LIGHT COVERS ARE MISSING. LIGHT 
COVER IS MISSING IN . DOOR DOES NOT CLOSE 
INDEPENDENTLY. 
OLD HEATING VENT IS LOOSE. LIGHT PANELS 
ARE OUT. MULTIPLE LIGHT BULBS ARE OUT  
BRICK WORK IS BROKEN NEAR SCHOOL SIGN. 
ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT. SWITCH BY  ACCESS 
TO ELECTRICAL BOXES IS BLOCKED. 
 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

 X  FLOOR TILES ARE BROKEN.  PLASTER IS 
CHIPPED POOR LIGHTING IS HALLWAY. FAUCET 
LEAKS OFFICE WALL IS DAMAGED. PAINT IS 
PEELING ON INTERIOR WALL. PAINT IS PEELING 
ON DOORS. 
 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X   PAPER IS TORN. WOOD TRIM IS LOOSE ON WALL.  
DRY ROT ON RAMP. SKID PAINT IS PEELING ON 
RAMP. DRY ROT ON SIDING AND RAMP.  WINDOW 
SCREEN IS MISSING. PAINT IS PEELING ON 
CABINET. PLASTER IS CHIPPED EXPOSING 
METAL IN ELECTRICAL ROOM.  POOR LIGHTING 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X   WATER DAMAGE TO EAVES BEAM. FLOOR TILES 
ARE BROKEN.  DRY ROT ON SIDING AND RAMP.   
DRY ROT ON EXTERIOR STORAGE BUILDING 

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

 X  CEILING TILE IS TORN.   DOOR CLOSER IS 
BROKEN. WOOD TRIM IS LOOSE ON WALL FIRE   
DRY ROT ON RAMP. SKID PAINT IS PEELING ON 
RAMP.RAMP IS RUSTED WINDOW SCREEN IS 
TORN. LIGHT COVER IS MISSING IN RR.  DOOR 
DOES NOT CLOSE INDEPENDENTLY.  RUBBER 
MOLDING IS BROKEN.OLD HEATING VENT IS 
LOOSE. LIGHT PANELS ARE OUT. MULTIPLE 
LIGHT BULBS ARE OUT. BRICK WORK IS BROKEN 
NEAR SCHOOL SIGN. 

 

 
Overall Facility Rate 

Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

            X            
 

 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

    47 46 

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

    33 34 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

  28.85 29.31 29.47 30.29 

 

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students              

Female              

Male              

American Indian or Alaska Native              

Asian              

Black or African American               

Filipino              

Hispanic or Latino              

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander              

Two or More Races              

White              

English Learners              

Foster Youth              

Homeless              

Military              

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged              

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services              

Students with Disabilities               
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level 
Component 1: 

Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

Fairsite Elementary and Early Learning Center serves families with children ages 0-5 years old.  The School Readiness Center 
offers a wide variety of experiences so that families will begin their GJUESD experience with a stronger learning foundation and 
help ensure that our youngest learners advance from PreKindergarten to elementary school with stronger opportunities for 
social, emotional and academic success. This experience encompasses home-based, center-based, extended learning 
opportunities. 
 
Bilingual Community Outreach staff coordinate efforts to increase home-school communication and engagement of dual 
language learner families. 
 
Dual Capacity Building: Academic Parent Teacher Teams (APTT) is a research-based family engagement and leadership 
opportunity for parents/caregivers that that teachers offer 3 times per year.  The goal is to strengthen family involvement as 
parents become partners in their children's education and support their learning at home. 
 
Fairsite supports the parents’ role in their child’s learning at home through an evidence-based home visitation program and a 
parent early learning texting app. The ECE Home Visitor provides in-home developmental and educational experiences for dual 
language learner families who may live in rural areas or without transportation. 
 
Parent & Child Playgroups:  Provide structured developmental playgroups for children ages 0-3 and their caregivers, prioritizing 
enrollment for children of low-income families who are not otherwise enrolled in public infant/toddler programs and services. 
The playgroups involve families/caregivers as active participants with their children and educate them about the importance of 
play in child development, and the critical role they play in supporting school success. 
 
Parents As Volunteers:  Parent volunteers support the classroom by assisting with classroom projects, planning activities, and 
helping with the overall success of the classroom. 
 
Parent Advisory Committee (PAC): The Fairsite PAC meets monthly.  PAC develops parent leadership capacity and gathers 
stakeholder input for continuous improvement process. Parent representatives from each classroom support family 
engagement by assisting with the planning school activities. 
 
English Classes for Parents: EL CIELO English Literacy Class meets twice a week in 2-hour sessions focused on building 
vocabulary as well as communication skills between home and school. 
 
Family Events: the whole family is invited to attend monthly family events such as Math Night, Picnic on the Green, Fall 
Festival, Movie Night, etc. These events are designed to promote family (adult caregivers) literacy and bring families together 
to network with each other. 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

 
Kindergarten Information Nights: TK/K teachers come to Fairsite preschool to share kindergarten expectations with parents and 
to provide ideas for helping children prepare for Kindergarten. 
 
Partnering in Education opportunities include Back-to-School Night, Parent-Teacher Conferences in the fall and spring ,and 
Open House.  Teachers also communicate regularly with families via the Class Dojo parent app. 
 
2nd Cup of Coffee is a parent/caregiver wellness class that provides information on local resources, topics of parent interest, 
and a fun family craft. 
 
University of Davis Cooperative Extension will provide two Nutrition Series that focus on selecting and preparing healthy snack 
and meals, nutrition and healthy lifestyles. 
 
Parent Listening Circles:  Gives parents a meaningful opportunity to contribute to school decision-making 
-------- 

 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: Pupil Engagement) 

C. Engagement State Priority: Pupil Engagement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil 
Engagement (Priority 5): 
 

• High school dropout rates;  

• High school graduation rates; and 

• Chronic Absenteeism 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 
2022-23 Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

2022-23 Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

This table displays the 2022-23 graduation rate by student group.  For information on the Four-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation 
Rate (ACGR), visit the CDE Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate web page at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp. 

Student Group 
Number of 

Students in Cohort 
Number of  

Cohort Graduates 
Cohort 

Graduation Rate 

All Students         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Female         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Male         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Non-Binary            

American Indian or Alaska Native         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Asian         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Black or African American          0.0 0.0 0.0 

Filipino         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Hispanic or Latino         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Two or More Races         0.0 0.0 0.0 

White         0.0 0.0 0.0 

English Learners         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Foster Youth         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Homeless         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0.0 0.0 0.0 

Students with Disabilities          0.0 0.0 0.0 
 

 

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group 
Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 

All Students         100 98 20 20.4 

Female         40 40 6 15.0 

Male         59 57 13 22.8 

Non-Binary 1 1 1 100.0 

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0 0.0 

Asian         3 3 1 33.3 

Black or African American          1 1 1 100.0 

Filipino         0 0 0 0.0 

Hispanic or Latino         56 54 15 27.8 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0.0 

Two or More Races         5 5 1 20.0 

White         35 35 2 5.7 

English Learners         34 34 9 26.5 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0.0 

Homeless         1 1 0 0.0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         53 52 17 32.7 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         8 8 1 12.5 

Students with Disabilities          22 22 6 27.3 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 

• Pupil expulsion rates; and 

• Other local measures on the sense of safety 
 

 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate 
School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions   0.00 0.00 1.67 3.52 0.20 3.17 3.60 

Expulsions   0.00 0.00 0.14 0.09 0.00 0.07 0.08 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students         0 0 

Female         0 0 

Male         0 0 

Non-Binary           

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 

Asian         0 0 

Black or African American          0 0 

Filipino         0 0 

Hispanic or Latino         0 0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races         0 0 

White         0 0 

English Learners         0 0 

Foster Youth         0 0 

Homeless         0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         0 0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 

Students with Disabilities          0 0 
 

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 

2023-24 School Safety Plan 

The district has developed a comprehensive emergency plan in conjunction with the Galt Police and Fire Departments, which 
describes specific procedures for all types of emergencies. The plan is updated every fall and spring. An “Emergency 
Handbook” kept in the office outlines the plan of action for emergencies such as earthquakes, fires, floods and chemical spills. 
School sites have an evacuation plan, shelter in place plan.  Emergency drills are conducted regularly.  Periodic, random 
school safety inspections are conducted by the Schools Insurance Authority of Sacramento county. 
 
Student safety is a priority at Fairsite Elementary and Early Learning Center.  All gates remain locked throughout the school 
day; opened 10 minutes prior to class dismissal.  Since the school office is located in the center of the school, visitors are 
required to enter the campus through Gate 4 which is located in the hallway between the School Readiness Center and the 
Health Office.  All visitors are required to check in at the office and wear a visitor badge while on campus. Since parents are 
required to walk their children to class, they are on campus before school to monitor student safety traveling to and from 
campus and while they wait for the teachers to open the classroom doors. School employees are required to wear picture 
identification badges 
 
Fairsite Elementary and Early Learning Center's last Comprehensive School Safety Plan was adopted by the school board on 
February 15, 2023. 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 
 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 
2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 
 

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average 

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 
 

 
2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 
 

 
2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor 0 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist 0.4 

Social Worker  

Nurse        

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist  

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  

Other       0.1 
 

 
 
2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site N/A N/A N/A N/A 

District N/A N/A N/A $80,657 

Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A N/A N/A 

State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 

Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A N/A N/A 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Supplemental programs and services at Fairste Elementary School that support and assist our learners and their families 
include: 
 
School Readiness (SR) Center: This center located at Fairsite provides a variety of parenting resources and services to 
families that include developmental screenings, parenting classes, English classes, and migrant education services. 
Staffed in the SR Center are the Bilingual Community Outreach Assistants and Coordinator who recruit families, coordinate 
community outreach and support the leadership development of dual language families. 
 
The Expanded Learning Opportunities Program: Galt Expanded Learning provides afterschool childcare and enrichment 
Monday through Friday from 11:30 pm - 6:00 pm.  The program includes nutritious meals, physical exercise, literacy and math 
enrichment and STEAM opportunities in the Maker Space room. 
 
JumpStart Summer Program:  Provides a 4-week summer program designed to support a smooth transition from Preschool 
and TK into kindergarten. 
 
All classrooms are staffed with 1-2 instructional assistants (IAs) to provide a lower adult to student ratio and support early 
literacy and math instruction, as well as provide additional social emotional learning support. 
 
Fairsite offers a Pre-K/TK Dual Language Immersion (DLI) program. The Spanish/English DLI program matriculates to Valley 
Oaks for Kinder-6th grade. 
 
Health services are under the supervision of a qualified school nurse. Dental and vision screening, hearing tests, first aid and 
health counseling are among the services provided. Our district nurse, along with our school health assistant, are available to 
address health problems that interfere with the learning process. 
-------- 

 

 
2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category 
District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary $46,569 $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $74,558 $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $98,732 $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $130,095 $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $134,516 $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $0 $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $189,500 $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 36.64% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.75% 5.62% 
 

 

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 21 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

2022-23 Advanced Placement (AP) Courses 

2022-23 Advanced Placement (AP) Courses 

This table displays the percent of student in AP courses at this school. 

Percent of Students in AP Courses 0 

 
This table displays the number of AP courses offered at this school where there are student course enrollments of at least one 
student. 

Subject Number of AP Courses Offered 

Computer Science         0 

English         0 

Fine and Performing Arts         0 

Foreign Language          0 

Mathematics         0 

Science         0 

Social Science         0 

Total AP Courses Offered 
Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student.          

0 

 

 
  



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

Lake Canyon Elementary School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 

---- --- 
2023 School Accountability Report Card 

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

SARC Overview 
 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Lake Canyon Elementary School         

Street 800 Lake Canyon Avenue         

City, State, Zip Galt, CA 95632         

Phone Number 209.744.5200         

Principal Judith P Hayes         

Email Address jhayes@galt.k12.ca.us         

School Website https://lc-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 34673480107946         
 

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Galt Joint Union Elementary School District         

Phone Number 209.744.4545         

Superintendent  Lois Yount         

Email Address lyount@galt.k12.ca.us         

District Website http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 
 

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

Lake Canyon Elementary School's mission is to personalize the learning of each and every one of our students through the 
provision of a quality and meaningful educational experience. 
As educators we know at the heart of creating sustainable academic achievement and ensuring the college and career 
readiness of our students, is the provision of a school culture where engagement is valued and maximized. 
Lake Canyon Elementary School’s administration, staff, and parents have joined together to make increased student 
engagement a reality. We provide varied opportunities, both indoors and outdoors, for our students to discover and explore 
their areas of interest and talent. 
 
Our vision is that through the ongoing implementation of this mission the students of Lake Canyon will be 100% prepared for 
next steps in their educational pursuits and will achieve civic, college, and career readiness. 
-------- 

 

 

https://lc-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/
http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Kindergarten 66        

Grade 1 58        

Grade 2 66        

Grade 3 90        

Grade 4 70        

Grade 5 74        

Grade 6 87        

Total Enrollment 511        
 

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 

Female 48.9%        

Male 51.1%        

Asian  4.5%        

Black or African American  1.4%        

Filipino  1%        

Hispanic or Latino 53.8%        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.2%        

Two or More Races  5.9%        

White  32.3%        

English Learners 15.3%        

Foster Youth 0.2%        

Homeless 3.7%        

Migrant 6.3%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 49.7%        

Students with Disabilities 16.4%        
 

 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 

A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

22.80 90.12 157.00 91.08 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

1.00 3.95 3.00 1.74 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.58 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.50 1.98 2.40 1.44 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         1.00 3.95 8.80 5.15 18854.30 6.86 

Total Teaching Positions         25.30 100.00 172.40 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

25.30 92.70 155.00 93.12 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

0.00 0.00 2.70 1.63 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.65 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.00 0.00 0.10 0.11 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         2.00 7.30 7.40 4.49 15831.90 5.67 

Total Teaching Positions         27.30 100.00 166.50 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 

Misassignments           0.00 0.00 

Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.50 0.00 

Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 

Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.50 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 

Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

2.1 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

Galt Joint Union Elementary held a Public Hearing September 20, 2023, and determined that each school within the district has 
sufficient and good quality textbooks, instructional materials, or science lab equipment pursuant to the settlement of Williams 
vs. the State of California. All students, including English learners, are given their own individual standards-aligned textbooks or 
instructional materials, or both, in core subjects for use in the classroom and to take home. 
 
Textbooks and supplementary materials are adopted according to a cycle developed by the California Department of 
Education, making the textbooks used in the school the most current available. Materials approved for use by the state are 
reviewed by all teachers and a recommendation is made to the School Board by a selection committee composed of teachers 
and administrators. All recommended materials are available for parent examination at the district office prior to adoption. The 
table displays information about the quality, currency, and availability of the standards-aligned textbooks and other instructional 
materials used at the school. 
        

 

Year and month in which the data were collected September 20, 2023 

 

Subject 
Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 

Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 

Reading/Language Arts Grades TK-6: Benchmark Advance/Adelante, adopted in 
2017        

Yes 0 

Mathematics K-6 Eureka Math, adopted as bridge program in 2016        Yes 0 

Science K-5 Pearson Scott Foresman- California Science, adopted in 
2007 
 
6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Science Focus, adopted in 2007 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science K-5 MacMillian/McGraw Hill- California Vistas, adopted in 
2006 
 
6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Discovering our Past, adopted in 
2006 
        

Yes 0 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

School Facilities 
Lake Canyon Elementary was originally constructed in 2005 and is comprised of 27 classrooms, one multipurpose room, one 
library, one staff lounge, and a playground. The table shows the results of the most recent school facilities inspection. While 
reviewing this report, please note that even minor discrepancies are reported in the inspection process. The items noted in the 
table have been corrected or are in the process of remediation. 
 
Cleaning Process 
The principal works daily with one full-time and two part-time custodians to ensure that the cleaning of the school is maintained 
to provide for a clean and safe school. The district governing board has adopted cleaning standards for all schools in the 
district. A summary of these standards is available at the district office for review. 
 
Maintenance and Repair 
District maintenance staff ensures that the repairs necessary to keep the school in good repair and work orders are completed 
in a timely manner. A work order process is used to ensure efficient service and highest priority are given to emergency repairs. 
 
        

 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 12/4/2023 
 

System Inspected 
Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor 

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X   EXHAUST FAN IS NOT WORKING. 
LIGHT DIFFUSER IS BROKEN. 
DIRTY VENT IN RR. 
 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

 X  FORMICA IS CHIPPING ON COUNTERTOP. 
UNSECURED ITEMS ARE STORED TOO HIGH. 
PENCIL SHARPENER COVER IS MISSING. 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN FLOWS ONTO 
COUNTERTOP. EVACUATION MAP IS NOT 
POSTED. TWO FAUCETS HAVE A DRIP. FAUCETS 
LEAK AT FITTINGS. FIRE EXTINGUISHER CASE IS 
BROKEN. 
ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT.OUT.  ONE STAIRWELL 
IS BEING USED AS STORAGE. DOOR CLOSER 
COVER IS MISSING. 
ROOM IS CLUTTERED. 
 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

 X  FIRE EXTINGUISHER IS NOT MOUNTED. 
ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT. FAUCET HAS A LOW 
FLOW. 
CEILING TILE IS BROKEN. ROOM IS CLUTTERED. 
 

Electrical  X  ELECTRICAL APPLIANCES ARE IN CLOSE 
PROXIMITY TO A WATER SOURCE. 
ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT. FAUCET HAS A LOW 
FLOW. 
EXHAUST FAN IS NOT WORKING. LIGHT 
DIFFUSER IS BROKEN. 
TWO HAND DRYERS HAVE NO POWER.  FAUCETS 
HAVE HIGH PRESSURE. MAKERSPACE: THREE 
CAN LIGHTS ARE OUT TWO LIGHT PANELS ARE 
OUT. 
LIGHT PANEL IS OUT.OUT. ONE STAIRWELL IS 
BEING USED AS STORAGE. DOOR CLOSER 
COVER IS MISSING. 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

 X  DRINKING FOUNTAIN FLOWS ONTO 
COUNTERTOP. 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN HAS A LOW FLOW. 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN FLOWS INTO 
MOUTHGUARD. 
ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT. FAUCET HAS A LOW 
FLOW. 
TOILET LEAKS AT WALL. FAUCETS HAVE HIGH 
PRESSURE. ONE FAUCET HAS NO FLOW WITH 
BROKEN KNOB. 
TWO HAND DRYERS HAVE NO POWER.  FAUCETS 
HAVE HIGH PRESSURE. 
FAUCET HAS A LOW FLOW. 
FAUCET HAS HIGH PRESSURE. 
LINOLEUM IS TORN. TWO FAUCETS HAVE A DRIP. 
FAUCETS LEAK AT FITTINGS. 
TOILET IS LOOSE AT BASE. FAUCET HAS A LOW 
FLOW 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X   EXTINGUISHER IS BLOCKED. 
. 
CEILING TILE HAS A WATER STAIN. 
NE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT.OUT. ONE STAIRWELL IS 
BEING USED AS STORAGE.  DOOR CLOSER 
COVER IS MISSING. 
TECHNOLOGY:  PAINT IS PEELING ON INTERIOR 
WALL. 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X   EXTERIOR WALL TILE IS BROKEN AT ENTRY. 

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X   THRESHOLD IS LOOSE DOOR CLOSER COVER IS 
MISSING. 
ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT.OUT. ONE STAIRWELL 
IS BEING USED AS STORAGE. DOOR CLOSER 
COVER IS MISSING. 
 

 

 
Overall Facility Rate 

Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  
 

 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

49 48 47 47 47 46 

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

39 47 35 38 33 34 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         322 317 98.45 1.55 47.63 

Female         169 167 98.82 1.18 49.70 

Male         153 150 98.04 1.96 45.33 

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0 0 0 

Asian         14 13 92.86 7.14 69.23 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         167 165 98.80 1.20 34.55 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         22 22 100.00 0.00 68.18 

White         107 105 98.13 1.87 60.00 

English Learners         39 38 97.44 2.56 7.89 

Foster Youth         -- -- -- -- -- 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         101 99 98.02 1.98 32.32 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         20 20 100.00 0.00 45.00 

Students with Disabilities          50 50 100.00 0.00 12.00 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         322 318 98.76 1.24 47.17 

Female         169 168 99.41 0.59 41.07 

Male         153 150 98.04 1.96 54.00 

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0 0 0 

Asian         14 13 92.86 7.14 53.85 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         167 166 99.40 0.60 34.94 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         22 22 100.00 0.00 59.09 

White         107 105 98.13 1.87 60.00 

English Learners         39 39 100.00 0.00 10.26 

Foster Youth         -- -- -- -- -- 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         101 99 98.02 1.98 33.33 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         20 20 100.00 0.00 45.00 

Students with Disabilities          50 50 100.00 0.00 14.00 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

30.12 28.38 28.85 29.31 29.47 30.29 

 

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         75 75 100.00 0.00 28.00 

Female         42 42 100.00 0.00 19.05 

Male         33 33 100.00 0.00 39.39 

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0 0 0 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          0 0 0 0 0 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         46 46 100.00 0.00 10.87 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         21 21 100.00 0.00 52.38 

English Learners         14 14 100.00 0.00 0.00 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         24 24 100.00 0.00 12.50 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         -- -- -- -- -- 

Students with Disabilities          13 13 100.00 0.00 0.00 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level 
Component 1: 

Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

Parents are encouraged to participate in their child’s education by monitoring homework through student planners and teacher 
communication through newsletters, email and phone calls. Intermediate-grade parents are encouraged to check assignments 
for the day on the Synergy Parent Portal. The parent portal allows parents to monitor their students’ attendance, growth 
towards personalized goals, and grades online. 
 
The school also seeks parental participation by encouraging parents to volunteer, and participate in our  ELAC (English 
Language Advisory Committee), and School Site Council meetings. Parents are enthusiastic about doing their part to create a 
great school. 
 
The school also has local community partnerships with South County Services, Cosumnes Preserve Learning Program, Lions 
Club, Rotary, Visions Counseling, the Youth Development Network, First 5 Preschool, Kiwanis and many other national, 
regional, and local partners. 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group 
Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 

All Students         536 528 187 35.4 

Female         262 260 95 36.5 

Male         274 268 92 34.3 

Non-Binary 0 0 0 0.0 

American Indian or Alaska Native         1 0 0 0.0 

Asian         23 23 4 17.4 

Black or African American          8 8 2 25.0 

Filipino         7 6 1 16.7 

Hispanic or Latino         289 286 124 43.4 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         1 1 0 0.0 

Two or More Races         30 30 6 20.0 

White         171 168 50 29.8 

English Learners         83 83 39 47.0 

Foster Youth         3 3 1 33.3 

Homeless         25 23 11 47.8 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         275 271 116 42.8 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         33 33 14 42.4 

Students with Disabilities          108 108 47 43.5 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 

• Pupil expulsion rates; and 

• Other local measures on the sense of safety 
 

 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate 
School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 0.50 0.93 0.00 1.67 3.52 0.20 3.17 3.60 

Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.14 0.09 0.00 0.07 0.08 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students         0.93 0 

Female         0.76 0 

Male         1.09 0 

Non-Binary           

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 

Asian         0 0 

Black or African American          0 0 

Filipino         0 0 

Hispanic or Latino         1.73 0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races         0 0 

White         0 0 

English Learners         1.2 0 

Foster Youth         0 0 

Homeless         4 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         1.45 0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         9.09 0 

Students with Disabilities          0 0 
 

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 

2023-24 School Safety Plan 

The district has developed a comprehensive emergency plan in conjunction with the Galt Police and Fire Departments which 
describes specific procedures for all types of emergencies. The plan is updated every fall and spring. An “Emergency 
Handbook”, kept in the office, outlines the plan of action for emergencies such as earthquakes, fires, floods and chemical spills. 
School sites have an evacuation plan and emergency drills are conducted regularly. Periodic, random school safety inspections 
are conducted by the Schools Insurance Authority of Sacramento County. All gates remain locked though out the school day 
with admittance to the campus only though the main office. Visitors to the campus are required to check in and out at the office 
to receive a badge. Parents are encouraged to volunteer on campus. School-wide digital and web-based surveillance cameras 
are in use school-wide to monitor outdoor areas and campus boundaries. 
 
The current Lake Canyon School-wide Safety Plan was reviewed and approved by the Lake Canyon School Site Council and 
the GJUESD School Board in February, 15 2023.  This extensive plan was highlighted at a spring 2023 Lake Canyon staff 
meeting to ensure all staff are fully aware and trained in all stated safety procedures. 
-------- 

 

 

D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 
 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        10 7   

1        43 1 3 2 

2        43  2 2 

3        45 1 2 2 

4        43 2 2 2 

5        40 1 2 1 

6        60   3 

Other        12 6 2  
 

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average 

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        13 4 1  

1        19 3   

2        19 4   

3        19 3   

4        31  2  

5        24 1 2  

6        20 2 2  

Other        17 4 1  
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        21 1 2 0 

1        18 2 1 0 

2        16 3 1 0 

3        17 1 4 0 

4        22 1 2 0 

5        17 2 2 0 

6        21 2 2 0 

Other        14 2 0 0 
 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor 0 
 

 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist 0.5 

Social Worker 1.0 

Nurse        

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1.9 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching) 0.1 

Other       1.1 
 

 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 11,972 4,497 7,475 80,041 

District N/A N/A 7,596 $80,657 

Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -1.6 0.0 

State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 

Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A 12.5 -5.6 
 

 
2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Personalized learning pathways developed collaboratively by administration, teachers, parents, and the student will inform the 
instructional plan developed for each student to meet their academic growth needs. These personalized learning and 
strengths-based growth plans for every student will articulate and transition to high school learning pathways experience while 
closing the achievement gap.  
Programs and services at Lake Canyon which support and assist our learners include:  
 

• Through our many local, regional, and national partnerships, our students have access to opportunities in visual and 
performing arts, technology and engineering, and civic and service learning facilitated by experts in those fields. 

 

• Through the implementation of Lake Canyon’s House System there is constant encouragement for students to do 

their best. This system supports positive attitudes of students toward one another and toward the school. The House 
System connects every student with a team of caring staff and peers which supports a sense of belonging and 
opportunities for student leadership. 

 

• The Lake Canyon behavior support system is built upon restorative justice ideals and positive behavior intervention 
supports. 

 

• Our school currently has a team of instructional assistants who provide additional reading and math skills practice in 
small groups. We focus these supports and interventions primarily in our TK-3rd grades. However, depending upon 
the need, our instructional assistants provide intervention in the upper grades, as well. Instructional assistants are 
provided training throughout the year based on the needs of our learners. This training is completed by our district 
curriculum coaches and site administration. 

 

• Extended day academic services are offered two days a week after school. Teachers and instructional assistants 
support students with reading, science, and math. 

 

• Wellness is prioritized through the implementation of a nationally recognized school-wide wellness plan which 
includes school-wide access to at least 100 minutes per week of physical education, fitness and sports-based 
interest clubs both during the school day and after school, and robust health and nutrition education. 

 

• Free after school meals are offered to all students who attend small group cohorts in-person on campus. 
 

• More than one hundred fifty families have been chosen to check out a Chromebook with Wi-Fi services for home 
use. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

• The Bright Future Learning Center (BFLC) is utilized as an enrichment hub which offers and supports blended 
learning opportunities beyond the classroom. The BFLC normally facilitates our large after school club offerings 
based on access to student interests. Many of these opportunities utilize technology and innovations in education 
such as computer programming, coding, engineering and robotics. The BFLC is normally open Monday - Friday 
from 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. In addition, Lake Canyon offers an extended learning program serving around 100 
students after school in an environment where students have access to a healthy snack, homework help, and 
enrichment activities. 

 

• Our school social worker program helps to keep children supported through their school years. Though school 
dropouts are rare in the elementary grades, enough knowledge exists to be able to identify the children who are at-
risk of dropping out of school at a later age. Our social worker is responsible for various programs aimed at reducing 
or eliminating the high risk factors that interfere with student learning. Our social worker provides support to our 
students and staff, support to our families, works with attendance intervention, and provides on-going workshops for 
parents and staff. 

 

• Health services are under the supervision of a qualified school nurse. Vision screening, hearing tests, first aid and 
health counseling are among the services. Our district nurse, along with our school health clerk, is available to 
address health problems that interfere with the learning process. 

 

• 100% of all students are taught with current adopted ELA materials adapted for and supplemented with bridge 
materials through units jointly developed by grade level Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) and aligned with 
the CCSS. 100% of all students are taught with CCSS aligned bridge math program-Eureka Math. 100% of students 
are exposed to units developed through the NGSS lens. 

 

• 100% of all students utilize technological resources as needed in order to support academic growth. All students will 
have access to extended day opportunities utilizing technology and innovations in education such as computer 
programming, coding, engineering and robotics. 

 

• 100% of students engage in service learning. Service learning will be highlighted and included in instructional 
minutes during the school day and as an intentional aspect of the extended day programming. 

 

• English learners will receive targeted instruction through designated and integrated models embedded within the 
school instructional minutes. English learners will be placed into appropriate flexible groups targeted in meeting their 
language needs by their assessed level. 

 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 20 Lake Canyon Elementary School 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category 
District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary $46,569 $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $74,558 $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $98,732 $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $130,095 $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $134,516 $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $0 $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $189,500 $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 36.64% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.75% 5.62% 
 

 
Professional Development 

Professional Development 

Processes and measures for continuous improvement and accountability are applied throughout Lake Canyon, including 
personalized evaluation processes. School site will use data, meaningful evaluation and self-reflection to continuously improve 
classroom instruction. Professional growth opportunities for all staff will be provided and valued as part of the school mission.  
Educators set annual professional growth goals in collaboration with school administrators.  Staff development is an important 
part of the planned school program at Galt Joint Union Elementary School District. The school’s teachers and support staff are 
committed to keeping up to date on the latest educational developments. 
 
New teachers and teachers seeking additional assistance are supported by Teacher Induction providers. They meet regularly 
with an experienced mentor to discuss their successes and challenges and new ideas for their classrooms. 
 
------- 

 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 3 3 
 

 

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 22 of 22 Fairsite Elementary school 

Professional Development 

Professional Development 

Professional learning is an important part of the school program at Fairsite Elementary School and the Galt Joint Union 
Elementary School District. Our teachers and support staff are committed to using research-based instructional strategies. 
The district provided three professional learning days for certificated staff in 2022-23 school year and three in the current year.  
Additionally, the district sets aside a portion of the professional learning days which allows teachers to plan and reflect on their 
new learning. 
 
Professional development has supported the successful implementation of the California Common Core Standards with a focus 
on personalization. Teachers and support staff are encouraged to attend learning events that cater to their personal learning 
needs. 
Staff learning events, strategic release days, and collaborative Wednesdays have been used for professional development 
opportunities. 
 
California Teacher Induction Program: 
New teachers and teachers seeking additional assistance are supported by Induction teacher mentors. They meet regularly 
with their experienced mentor to discuss their successes and challenges and new ideas for their classrooms. 
 
California Early Math Initiative: 
Four of the staff are participating in the California Early Math Initiative in partnership with the Fresno County Superintendent of 
Schools, WestEd and California State Board of Education.  The intent is to improve math and science outcomes for children 
ages 0-8 across the state. 
 
Teaching Pyramid: 
Three of our teaching staff and the Expanded Learning Coordinator are participating in The Teaching Pyramid training, which 
provides a systematic framework that promotes social and emotional development, provides support for children's appropriate 
behavior, prevents challenging behavior, and addresses problematic behavior. 
 
Social Emotional Learning (SEL): 
Staff and administration have participated in the Second Step SEL Curriculum Training 
 
BeGLAD Training: 
All preK teachers are participating in BeGLAD professional development that focuses on the areas of academic language 
acquisition and literacy. The strategies specifically target and promote language skills, academic achievement, and cross-
cultural skills. 
 
------- 

 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 3 3 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

Marengo Ranch Elementary School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 
------- 

2023 School Accountability Report Card 

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

SARC Overview 
 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Marengo Ranch Elementary School         

Street 1000 Elk Hills Drive         

City, State, Zip Galt, CA 95632         

Phone Number (209) 745-547         

Principal Jennifer Porter         

Email Address jporter@galt.k12.ca.us         

School Website https://mg-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 34 67348 6114185         
 

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Galt Joint Union ESD         

Phone Number 209.744.4545         

Superintendent  Lois Yount         

Email Address lyount@galt.k12.ca.us         

District Website http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 
 

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

At Marengo Ranch, we embrace a personal approach to learning. 
 
We believe that every student has unique needs, strengths, talents, and interests. 
 
It is our mission to ensure that all learners have opportunities to meet their personal goals, and to have the skills, tools, and 
confidence needed to achieve their dreams and aspirations for college, career, and beyond. 
 
At Marengo Ranch, we are making it personal. 
 
Principal’s Message 
Marengo Ranch Elementary School offers a safe, supportive environment for all students. We believe in personalized, focused 
learning for each and every student, and it is our goal to provide instruction and support that fits the needs, interests, strengths, 
and talents of all learners.  Technology tools in the classroom are embedded in our instructional delivery system and allow our 
teachers to personalize the learning for their students. Online services and programs also provide rich opportunities for our 
students and families to learn beyond the walls of our classrooms.  Web-based assessments provide immediate feedback on 
student growth so that staff members may make informed decisions about providing intervention or enrichment as needed. 
Marengo Ranch continues to be a school that believes in providing a positive, nurturing environment for our students. The 
emotional well-being of our students goes hand in hand with our academic focus. Character and strength development as well 
as student leadership are critical components to teach our “Monarchs” to be true leaders. Student leaders support activities for 
school spirit, volunteerism, service learning, and fundraising campaigns. 
 
The staff at Marengo Ranch work together in professional learning communities and are continually seeking new, innovative 
ways to support academic success. 
 
-------- 

 

 

https://mg-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/
http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Kindergarten 44        

Grade 1 60        

Grade 2 52        

Grade 3 70        

Grade 4 73        

Grade 5 85        

Grade 6 65        

Total Enrollment 449        
 

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 

Female 49.4%        

Male 50.6%        

American Indian or Alaska Native  0.4%        

Asian  1.8%        

Black or African American  0.2%        

Filipino  1.1%        

Hispanic or Latino 56.6%        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.2%        

Two or More Races  4.5%        

White  35.2%        

English Learners 10.7%        

Homeless 0.2%        

Migrant 3.3%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 44.8%        

Students with Disabilities 20.5%        
 

 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 

A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

26.20 96.33 157.00 91.08 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

0.00 0.00 3.00 1.74 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.58 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.00 0.00 2.40 1.44 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         1.00 3.67 8.80 5.15 18854.30 6.86 

Total Teaching Positions         27.20 100.00 172.40 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

22.10 95.69 155.00 93.12 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

0.00 0.00 2.70 1.63 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.65 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.00 0.00 0.10 0.11 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         1.00 4.31 7.40 4.49 15831.90 5.67 

Total Teaching Positions         23.10 100.00 166.50 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 

Misassignments           0.00 0.00 

Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.00 0.00 

Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 

Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 

Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

0 3.8 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 
2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

Galt Joint Union Elementary held a Public Hearing on Sept. 20, 2023, and determined that each school within the district has 
sufficient and good quality textbooks, instructional materials, or science lab equipment pursuant to the settlement of Williams 
vs. the State of California. All students, including English learners, are given their own individual standards-aligned textbooks or 
instructional materials, or both, in core subjects for use in the classroom and to take home. Textbooks and supplementary 
materials are adopted according to a cycle developed by the California Department of Education, making the textbooks used in 
the school the most current available. Materials approved for use by the state are reviewed by all teachers and a 
recommendation is made to the School Board by a selection committee composed of teachers and administrators. All 
recommended materials are available for parent examination at the district office prior to adoption. The table displays 
information about the quality, currency, and availability of the standards-aligned textbooks and other instructional materials 
used at the school.        

 

Year and month in which the data were collected September, 2021 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

 

Subject 
Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 

Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 

Reading/Language Arts Benchmark, adopted in 2017        Yes 0 

Mathematics K-6 Eureka Math, adopted as bridge program in 2016        Yes 0 

Science K-5 Pearson Scott Foresman- California Science, adopted in 
2007 
 
6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Science Focus, adopted in 2007 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science K-5 MacMillian/McGraw Hill- California Vistas, adopted in 
2006 
 
6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Discovering our Past 
        

Yes 0 

 

 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

Built in 1997, Marengo Ranch Elementary is comprised of 18 permanent classrooms, 21 portable classrooms, one 
multipurpose room, one BFLC, one staff workroom, and three playgrounds.   School pride shows through the care of our 
facilities by staff, students and parents. The facility is used by several community organizations on a year-round basis. 
 
Cleaning Process 
The principal works daily with two full-time and two part-time custodial staff members to ensure that the cleaning of the school 
is maintained to provide for a clean and safe school. The district governing board has adopted cleaning standards for all 
schools in the district. A summary of these standards is available at the district office for review. 
 
Maintenance and Repair 
District maintenance staff ensures that the repairs necessary to keep the school in good repair and work orders are completed 
in a timely manner. A work order process is used to ensure efficient service and highest priority are given to emergency repairs. 
 
School Bond and Renovation 
During the 2019 school year, construction commenced to address much needed renovation to the school's brick exterior 
issues.  The construction project was completed in the winter of 2020. 
 
        

 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 12/5/2023 
 

System Inspected 
Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor 

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

 X  CEILING TILES HAVE WATER STAINS. WALL 
PAPER IS TORN/LOOSE AT ENTRY  CARPET IS 
TORN AND LIFTING. TRIM IS MISSING ON CUBBY 
HOLES.   FAUCET HAS A LOW FLOW. EXTENSION 
CORD IS BEING PERMANENTLY USED. OUTLET 
COVER IS BROKEN.  DOOR HANDLE IS LOOSE. 
DOOR IS VERY HARD TO UNLOCK. DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN HANDLE IS BROKEN. PAINT IS 
PEELING ON EXTERIOR TRIM. 
ELECTRICAL APPLIANCES ARE IN CLOSE 
PROXIMITY TO A WATER SOURCE. FORMICA 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

MISSING ON CABINET.  DRINKING FOUNTAIN 
FLOWS INTO MOUTHGUARD. WALL PLASTER IS 
MARRED.  EVACUATION MAP IS NOT POSTED 
(SITE MAP).  DRAWER IS BROKEN. ELECTRICAL 
COVER IS MISSING.   WALL HAS HOLES. 
 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X   UNSECURED ITEMS ARE STORED TOO HIGH.  
SWITCH PLATE IS BROKEN. FAUCET HAS A LOW 
FLOW. 
 

Electrical  X  LIGHT SWITCH COVER IS BROKEN. CAN LIGHT IS 
OUT. MULTIPLE LIGHT BULBS ARE OUT. HOLES. 
DRAWER IS BROKEN. ELECTRICAL COVER IS 
MISSING. ONE LIGHT DIFFUSER IS MISSING. 
(ELECTRICAL). 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

 X  URINAL IS SPRAYING OUT OF BASIN CREATIMG A 
SLIP HAZARD. 
EXTERIOR DRINKING FOUNTAIN HAS A LEAK. 
FAUCETS HAVE HIGH PRESSURE. ONE FAUCET 
HAS HIGH PRESSURE. EXTERIOR DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN HAS A DRIP/LEAK.  DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN FLOWS INTO MOUTH GUARD FAUCET 
LEAKS AT HANDLE. DRINKING FOUNTAIN 
HANDLE IS BROKEN. MULTIPLE LIGHT BULBS 
ARE OUT.  MOUTH GUARD IS STAINED.DRAWER 
IS BROKEN. ELECTRICAL COVER IS MISSING.   
FAUCET AND SINK HAVE NO FLOW. 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X   URINAL IS SPRAYING OUT OF BASIN CREATIMG A 
SLIP HAZARD. PAINT IS BUBBLING ON CEILING. 
ACCESS TO FIRE EXTINGUISHER IS BLOCKED. 
DOOR DOES NOT CLOSE PROPERLY. 
DRAWER HANDLE IS MISSING. CABINET DOORS 
ARE MISSING.  DOOR THRESHOLD SCREWS ARE 
MISSING. 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X    

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X   EXTENSION CORD IS BEING PERMANENTLY 
USED. OUTLET COVER IS BROKEN.  DOOR 
HANDLE IS LOOSE. TRIP HAZARD ON WALKWAY 
AT ASPHALT/CEMENT SEAM.  DOOR THRESHOLD 
SCREWS ARE MISSING. 
WINDOW SCREEN MISSING.DRY ROT ON RAMP. 
 

 

 
Overall Facility Rate 

Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  
 

 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

54 53 47 47 47 46 

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

43 49 35 38 33 34 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         293 292 99.66 0.34 53.08 

Female         143 142 99.30 0.70 54.93 

Male         150 150 100.00 0.00 51.33 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         169 168 99.41 0.59 48.21 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         101 101 100.00 0.00 57.43 

English Learners         31 30 96.77 3.23 30.00 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         95 94 98.95 1.05 31.91 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         -- -- -- -- -- 

Students with Disabilities          59 59 100.00 0.00 28.81 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         293 293 100.00 0.00 49.15 

Female         143 143 100.00 0.00 42.66 

Male         150 150 100.00 0.00 55.33 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         169 169 100.00 0.00 46.15 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         101 101 100.00 0.00 51.49 

English Learners         31 31 100.00 0.00 22.58 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         95 95 100.00 0.00 33.68 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         -- -- -- -- -- 

Students with Disabilities          59 59 100.00 0.00 42.37 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

29.69 39.02 28.85 29.31 29.47 30.29 

 

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         82 82 100.00 0.00 39.02 

Female         37 37 100.00 0.00 35.14 

Male         45 45 100.00 0.00 42.22 

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0 0 0 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          0 0 0 0 0 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         48 48 100.00 0.00 33.33 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         29 29 100.00 0.00 44.83 

English Learners         -- -- -- -- -- 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         0 0 0 0 0 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         28 28 100.00 0.00 17.86 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         -- -- -- -- -- 

Students with Disabilities          15 15 100.00 0.00 26.67 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level 
Component 1: 

Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

Parents are encouraged to participate in their child’s education by monitoring schoolwork and homework each day.  
Communication through our Parent Vue System, Facebook, Blackboard Connect, and classroom connection systems such as 
Class Dojo and Bloomz provide many ways to keep families involved.  The school also seeks parental participation in PTKC 
(Parent Teacher Kids Club), ELAC (English Learner Advisory Committee), and School Site Council. Events such as Family 
Bingo Night, Pancake Breakfast, and Family Dance Night are opportunities for parent involvement. Parents are enthusiastic 
about doing their part to create a positive school community and often volunteer in our classrooms.-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group 
Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 

All Students         459 458 107 23.4 

Female         226 226 57 25.2 

Male         233 232 50 21.6 

Non-Binary 0 0 0 0.0 

American Indian or Alaska Native         2 2 0 0.0 

Asian         9 9 2 22.2 

Black or African American          1 1 0 0.0 

Filipino         5 5 1 20.0 

Hispanic or Latino         261 261 69 26.4 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         1 1 0 0.0 

Two or More Races         20 20 3 15.0 

White         160 159 32 20.1 

English Learners         56 56 20 35.7 

Foster Youth         1 1 0 0.0 

Homeless         10 10 4 40.0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         209 209 61 29.2 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         16 16 5 31.3 

Students with Disabilities          111 110 27 24.5 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 

• Pupil expulsion rates; and 

• Other local measures on the sense of safety 
 

 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate 
School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 1.69 0.87 0.00 1.67 3.52 0.20 3.17 3.60 

Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.14 0.09 0.00 0.07 0.08 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students         0.87 0 

Female         0 0 

Male         1.72 0 

Non-Binary           

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 

Asian         0 0 

Black or African American          0 0 

Filipino         0 0 

Hispanic or Latino         0.77 0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races         0 0 

White         1.25 0 

English Learners         0 0 

Foster Youth         0 0 

Homeless         0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         0.96 0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 

Students with Disabilities          0 0 
 

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 

2023-24 School Safety Plan 

The district has developed a comprehensive emergency plan in conjunction with the Galt Police and Fire Departments.  This 
plan describes specific procedures for all types of emergencies. The plan is updated every fall and spring. An “Emergency 
Handbook”, kept in the office, outlines the plan of action for emergencies such as earthquakes, fires, floods and chemical spills. 
School sites have an evacuation plan and emergency drills are conducted regularly. Periodic, random school safety inspections 
are conducted by the Schools Insurance Authority of Sacramento County. All gates remain locked throughout the school day 
with admittance to the campus only though the main office. Visitors to the campus are required to check in and out at the office 
to receive a badge. Yard supervisors monitor the campus and playground area before, during and after school. 
 
The Marengo Ranch Comprehensive School Safety Plan was approved by the board, February 15, 2023 
-------- 

 

 

D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 
 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        16 8  2 

1        35 3  2 

2        36 2 2 2 

3        38 2 2 2 

4        45  2 2 

5        42  3 1 

6        42  2 1 

Other        13 7 1  
 

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average 

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        16 2 2  

1        17 3   

2        22  3  

3        23  3  

4        26  3  

5        31  2  

6        27  3  

Other        8 3   
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        22 0 2 0 

1        20 3 0 0 

2        17 3 0 0 

3        22 0 3 0 

4        23 1 2 0 

5        27 1 2 0 

6        31 0 2 0 

Other        15 1 0 0 
 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor 0 
 

 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist 0.5 

Social Worker 1 

Nurse        

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1.5 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching) 0.7 

Other       1.1 
 

 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 12,880 5,360 7,520 80,925 

District N/A N/A 7,596 $80,657 

Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -1.0 1.1 

State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 

Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A 13.1 -4.5 
 

 
2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Instructional assistants are employed to assist with foundational reading skill instruction and English Learner support in 
designated ELD blocks. 
 
After school, extended day opportunities are regularly provided by classified and certificated staff to meet the needs of 
students. 
 
Our Galt Expanded Learning Program provides after school enrichment and childcare for families. 
 
A full-time school social worker supports student mental and social emotional health and provides individual and small groups 
counseling for at-risk students 
-------- 

 

 
2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category 
District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary $46,569 $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $74,558 $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $98,732 $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $130,095 $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $134,516 $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $0 $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $189,500 $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 36.64% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.75% 5.62% 
 

 

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 18 Marengo Ranch Elementary School 

Professional Development 

Professional Development 

Professional development is a critical component of support provided by the Galt Joint Union Elementary School District. The 
district traditionally offers three staff development days throughout the school year, plus three pre-service days at the beginning 
of the school year. 
 
The school’s teachers and support staff are committed to keeping up to date on the latest educational trends and information. 
Many teachers also participate in voluntary professional development sessions after school, on the weekends, and during 
vacation breaks. 
 
New teachers and teachers seeking additional assistance are supported by the Induction Program providers. They meet 
regularly with an experienced mentor to discuss their successes and challenges and new ideas for their classrooms. 
------- 

 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 3 3 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

River Oaks Elementary School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 
------- 

2023 School Accountability Report Card 

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

SARC Overview 
 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name River Oaks Elementary School         

Street 905 Vintage Oak Avenue         

City, State, Zip Galt, CA 95632         

Phone Number (209) 745-4614         

Principal Tina Homdus         

Email Address thomdus@galt.k12.ca.us         

School Website https://ro-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 34 67348 6110654         
 

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Galt Joint Union ESD         

Phone Number 209.744.4545         

Superintendent  Lois Yount         

Email Address lyount@galt.k12.ca.us         

District Website http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 
 

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

Vision:   We envision… 
*A school where students will develop foundational skills, individual talents, and skills needed to be college and career ready. 
*A school where everyone is physically and emotionally safe. 
*A school where everyone takes responsibility for their own actions. 
*A school where parents, community, and staff encourage and support students to do their best. 
*A school where 100% of all students will meet or exceed their individual growth goals based on the California Common Core 
Standards. 
*A school where students have learning opportunities to develop 21st Century Skills. 
*A school where students are technologically literate and globally minded. 
*A school where students and staff communicate effectively and work cooperatively. 
*A school where students will develop critical thinking and problem solving skills. 
*A school where students and staff model the Eight Great Character Traits. 
*A school where students give to others and the greater community. 
 
Mission: 
Core Values (belief statements that guide us) 
*Children come first. 
*All children can learn. 
*We focus on results. (meeting/exceeding growth targets) 
*Our expectations and standards are high. 
*Evaluation drives improvement. 
*Collaboration and teamwork improves student achievement. 
*We honor diversity. 
*We act ethically and with integrity, and treat everyone with courtesy and respect. 
 
A Message from the Principal: 
 
The River Oaks staff takes great pride in creating a culturally sensitive school environment that is safe, nurturing, caring, and 
intellectually challenging.  High standards have been set for behavior and academic personal growth.  Students are recognized 

https://ro-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/
http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

and rewarded daily, weekly, and monthly for demonstrating the Eight Great Character Traits in their school work and personal 
interactions with adults and peers.  We believe it is important for students and parents to have a voice and to feel a sense of 
ownership and pride in their school.  Students have many opportunities to participate in extracurricular activities such as: Band, 
Choir, After School Expanded Learning Opportunities, and Running Clubs.  Parents are encouraged to support their learners at 
home by listening to them read, providing quiet study areas, and assisting with homework when appropriate.  Our families 
support teachers and contribute to our positive school community in many ways.  We are thankful for a very active and 
supportive PTA, English Language Advisory Committee, and School Site Council.  All students are challenged to meet 
individual growth goals and to perform to the best of their abilities.  Individual strengths and talents are recognized in all 
learners.  There are many opportunities for students to use their strengths and talents at school.  The teachers and support 
staff at River Oaks are dedicated to student achievement towards meeting Common Core State Standards.  Teachers, 
specialists, and administration collaborate on a regular basis to provide a personalized, standards-based education for all 
learners.  Careful and precise data analysis of state and local assessments drive instruction and the needs for enrichment and 
remedial interventions.  We are proud to report that River Oaks has been recognized as a California Distinguished School in 
1995, 2002, 2008, 2018, and 2020. 
 
-------- 

 

 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Kindergarten 66        

Grade 1 79        

Grade 2 71        

Grade 3 81        

Grade 4 73        

Grade 5 94        

Grade 6 70        

Total Enrollment 534        
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 

Female 48.1%        

Male 51.9%        

American Indian or Alaska Native  0.6%        

Asian  7.5%        

Black or African American  1.1%        

Filipino  1.3%        

Hispanic or Latino 53%        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.4%        

Two or More Races  3%        

White  33.1%        

English Learners 17.4%        

Foster Youth 0.4%        

Homeless 3.6%        

Migrant 2.4%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 54.1%        

Students with Disabilities 17.4%        
 

 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 

A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

24.00 88.89 157.00 91.08 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

0.00 0.00 3.00 1.74 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.58 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

1.00 3.70 2.40 1.44 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         2.00 7.41 8.80 5.15 18854.30 6.86 

Total Teaching Positions         27.00 100.00 172.40 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

26.10 96.31 155.00 93.12 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

0.00 0.00 2.70 1.63 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.65 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.00 0.00 0.10 0.11 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         1.00 3.69 7.40 4.49 15831.90 5.67 

Total Teaching Positions         27.10 100.00 166.50 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 

Misassignments           0.00 0.00 

Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 1.00 0.00 

Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 

Total Out-of-Field Teachers 1.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 

Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

2.7 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 
2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

Galt Joint Union Elementary held a Public Hearing on September 20, 2023, and determined that each school within the district 
has sufficient and good quality textbooks, instructional materials, or science lab equipment pursuant to the settlement of 
Williams vs. the State of California. All students, including English learners, are given their own individual standards-aligned 
textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in core subjects for use in the classroom and to take home. Textbooks and 
supplementary materials are adopted according to a cycle developed by the California Department of Education, making the 
textbooks used in the school the most current available. Materials approved for use by the state are reviewed by all teachers 
and a recommendation is made to the School Board by a selection committee composed of teachers and administrators. All 
recommended materials are available for parent examination at the district office prior to adoption. The table displays 
information about the quality, currency, and availability of the standards-aligned textbooks and other instructional materials 
used at the school.        

 

Year and month in which the data were collected September, 2023 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

 

Subject 
Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 

Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 

Reading/Language Arts K-6 Benchmark Advance, adopted in 2017-18 
 
        

Yes 0 

Mathematics K-6 Eureka Math, adopted as bridge program in 2016        Yes 0 

Science K-5 Pearson Scott Foresman- California Science, adopted in 
2007 
 
6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Science Focus, adopted in 2007 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science K-5 MacMillian/McGraw Hill- California Vistas, adopted in 
2006 
 
6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Discovering our Past, adopted in 
2006 
        

Yes 0 

 

 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

River Oaks Elementary opened in 1992 and is comprised of 18 permanent classrooms, 16 portable classrooms, one 
multipurpose room, one library, a staff lounge, and two playgrounds.  The table shows the results of the most recent school 
facilities inspection. While reviewing this report, please note that even minor discrepancies are reported in the inspection 
process. The items noted in the table have been corrected or are in the process of remediation. 
 
Cleaning Process 
The principal works daily with the custodial staff of four to ensure that the cleaning of the school is maintained to provide for a 
clean and safe school. The district governing board has adopted cleaning standards for all schools in the district. A summary of 
these standards is available at the district office for review. 
 
Maintenance and Repair 
District maintenance staff ensures that the repairs necessary to keep the school in good repair and work orders are completed 
in a timely manner. A work order process is used to ensure efficient service, and highest priority are given to emergency 
repairs. 
 
        

 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 12/5/2023 
 

System Inspected 
Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor 

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

 X  PLASTER IS CHIPPING ON WALL NEAR RR. WALL 
PAPER IS TORN.  SKID PAINT IS MISSING ON 
RAMP. CARPET IS TORN. DRINKING FOUNTAIN 
HAS HIGH FLOW. CEILING TILE HAS WATER 
STAINS. WALLPAPER IS TORN. FORMICA 
COUNTER IS BROKEN. FAUCET HAS A DRIP. 
WEATHER STRIPING IS LOOSE. DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN HAS HIGH FLOW.  DOOR CLOSER 
DOES NOT FUNCTION. FLOOR TILES ARE 
BROKEN. 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

CEILING HATCH IS LOOSE (TAPED).   LIGHT 
DIFFUSER IS LOOSE. 
WALLPAPER IS TORN.RAMP HAS DRY ROT.TRIP 
HAZARD AT CEMENT/ASPHALT SEAM.  WALL HAS 
A HOLE.  FAUCET HAS HIGH PRESSURE. 
PLASTER IS CHIPPING ON WALL EXPOSING 
METAL. 
WALL TILES ARE BROKEN. FLOOR IS DINGY. 
FLUID LEAKING FROM DOOR CLOSER.LINOLEUM 
FLOORING IS CRACKING/HAS HOLES. 
 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X   UNSECURED ITEMS ARE STORED TOO 
HIGH.WALL TILES ARE BROKEN.  FLUID LEAKING 
FROM DOOR CLOSER. . FLOORS ARE DINGY 
FROM PREVIOUS TOILET LEAK. FAUCET LEAKS 
AT HANDLE. 

Electrical X   ELECTRICAL APPLIANCE IS WITHIN CLOSE 
PROXIMITY TO A WATER 
ACCESS TO ELECTRICAL PANEL IS BLOCKED. 
EXTERIOR LIGHT COVER IS MISSING. 
 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

 X  FAUCET HAS A LEAK AT HANDLE. DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN HAS HIGH FLOW. FORMICA COUNTER 
IS BROKEN.  DRINKING FOUNTAIN FLOWS INTO 
MOUTHGUARD. CABINET DOOR RUBBER STRIP 
IS LOOSE.. WEATHER STRIPING IS LOOSE. 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN HAS LOW FLOW. 
FORMICA TRIM IS MISSING ON COUNTERTOP. 
DRINKING  DOOR CLOSER DOES NOT FUNCTION. 
DOOR DOES NOT CLOSE. FAUCET LEAKS AT 
FITTING, BASE, AND HANDLE. 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X   PAINT IS CHIPPING ON WALL. 
PAINT IS CHIPPING ON DOOR EXTERIOR DOOR 
TRIM. CABINET DOOR DOESN’T SHUT 
PROPERLY. WALL HAS A HOLE.  NON SKID PAINT 
IS CHIPPING ON RAMP. 
 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X   RAMP HAS DRY ROT.  TRIP HAZARD AT 
CEMENT/ASPHALT SEAM. 

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X   FAUCET HAS A LEAK AT HANDLE.  WEATHER 
STRIPPING IS LOOSE. 
ELECTRICAL APPLIANCE IS WITHIN CLOSE 
PROXIMITY TO A WATER SOURCE.  DOOR 
HANDLE IS LOOSE. 
WALLPAPER IS TORN. RAMP HAS DRY ROT. 
WALL TILES ARE BROKEN. 
 

 

 
Overall Facility Rate 

Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

48 46 47 47 47 46 

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

41 41 35 38 33 34 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         318 315 99.06 0.94 46.35 

Female         157 157 100.00 0.00 52.87 

Male         160 157 98.13 1.87 40.13 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         21 21 100.00 0.00 76.19 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         165 162 98.18 1.82 34.57 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         114 114 100.00 0.00 58.77 

English Learners         43 42 97.67 2.33 11.90 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         -- -- -- -- -- 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         129 129 100.00 0.00 31.01 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         -- -- -- -- -- 

Students with Disabilities          60 57 95.00 5.00 21.05 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         318 315 99.06 0.94 41.27 

Female         157 157 100.00 0.00 40.76 

Male         160 157 98.13 1.87 42.04 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         21 21 100.00 0.00 80.95 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         165 162 98.18 1.82 29.63 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         114 114 100.00 0.00 50.88 

English Learners         43 42 97.67 2.33 11.90 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         -- -- -- -- -- 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         129 129 100.00 0.00 29.46 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         -- -- -- -- -- 

Students with Disabilities          60 57 95.00 5.00 15.79 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

38.24 33.70 28.85 29.31 29.47 30.29 

 

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         92 92 100.00 0.00 33.70 

Female         46 46 100.00 0.00 36.96 

Male         46 46 100.00 0.00 30.43 

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0 0 0 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         45 45 100.00 0.00 20.00 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         0 0 0 0 0 

White         36 36 100.00 0.00 47.22 

English Learners         11 11 100.00 0.00 0.00 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         35 35 100.00 0.00 28.57 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         -- -- -- -- -- 

Students with Disabilities          15 15 100.00 0.00 26.67 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level 
Component 1: 

Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 98% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

Parents have many different opportunities to become involved in the school.  We have a very active and supportive PTA and 
English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) group that meet regularly to make decisions on how to best support the students 
and school.  Annually, PTA organizes fundraising efforts, Harvest Festival, Family Movie Nights, Jog-a-Thon, Family Dances, 
and Holiday Store.  Our ELAC organize and participate in the running of the holiday store each December.   Parents serving on 
our School Site Council Committee play an active role in site decision making through the Single School Plan.  We encourage 
our parents to support the school and classrooms. 
 
Key stakeholders work collaboratively to provide the following resources for families: 
 
~Breakfast, lunch, after school and summer meals provided free to all students 
~Scholarships and fundraising for field trips 
~Support with health services 
~Counseling/Social Worker 
~Parenting Classes 
~Free Family Events 
~Support with technology and internet services 
~Spanish communication 
 
 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group 
Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 

All Students         552 547 133 24.3 

Female         263 261 61 23.4 

Male         288 285 71 24.9 

Non-Binary 1 1 1 100.0 

American Indian or Alaska Native         3 3 2 66.7 

Asian         41 40 3 7.5 

Black or African American          6 6 1 16.7 

Filipino         9 9 1 11.1 

Hispanic or Latino         290 289 81 28.0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         2 2 1 50.0 

Two or More Races         16 16 5 31.3 

White         185 182 39 21.4 

English Learners         107 105 21 20.0 

Foster Youth         3 3 1 33.3 

Homeless         19 18 5 27.8 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         303 300 84 28.0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         16 16 1 6.3 

Students with Disabilities          128 128 48 37.5 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 

• Pupil expulsion rates; and 

• Other local measures on the sense of safety 
 

 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate 
School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 0.69 1.09 0.00 1.67 3.52 0.20 3.17 3.60 

Expulsions 0.00 0.17 0.00 0.00 0.14 0.09 0.00 0.07 0.08 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students         1.09 0 

Female         0 0 

Male         2.08 0 

Non-Binary           

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 

Asian         0 0 

Black or African American          0 0 

Filipino         0 0 

Hispanic or Latino         1.03 0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races         0 0 

White         1.62 0 

English Learners         2.8 0 

Foster Youth         0 0 

Homeless         10.53 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         1.98 0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 

Students with Disabilities          2.34 0 
 

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 

2023-24 School Safety Plan 

The district has developed a comprehensive emergency plan in conjunction with the Galt Police and Fire Departments, which 
describes specific procedures for all types of emergencies. The plan is updated every fall and spring. 
 
Our school Emergency Handbook outlines the plan of action for emergencies such as earthquakes, fires, floods, lockdowns, 
and chemical spills.  Our school site has an evacuation plan and emergency drills are conducted monthly.  We have a site 
crisis team that meets in August and September to review emergency procedures and protocols.  We have an emergency 
phone tree system to call classrooms and staff.  Staff are trained on emergency procedures in August and September each 
year.  Periodic, random school safety inspections are conducted by the Schools Insurance Authority of Sacramento County.  
Visitors to the campus are required to check in and out at the office and wear a visitor badge while on campus. 
The River Oaks Elementary School's Comprehensive School Safety Plan was last board approved-February 15, 2023 
 
 
-------- 

 

 

D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 
 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        15 3 1  

1        36 4  2 

2        37 2 1 2 

3        42 1 3 2 

4        48  2 2 

5        38  3 1 

6        42  2 1 

Other        10 5   
 

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average 

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        16 4 1  

1        21 1 2  

2        18 4   

3        21 1 2  

4        30  3  

5        32  1  

6        27  3  

Other        10 3   
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        20 1 2 0 

1        18 4 0 0 

2        22 0 3 0 

3        19 3 0 0 

4        32 0 1 0 

5        30 0 3 0 

6        33 0 0 0 

Other        12 4 1 0 
 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor 0 
 

 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist 0.8 

Social Worker 1 

Nurse        

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 2 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  

Other       1.1 
 

 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 12,808 5,428 7,380 78,435 

District N/A N/A 7,596 $80,657 

Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -2.9 -2.0 

State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 

Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A 11.2 -7.6 
 

 
2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Supplemental programs and services at River Oaks that support and assist our learners include: 
• Our school currently has a team of eight instructional assistants that provide additional reading and math skills 

practice in small groups. We focus these supports and interventions primarily in our TK-3rd grades. However, 
depending upon the need, our instructional assistants provide intervention in grades 4th-6th, as well. Instructional 
assistants are provided training throughout the year based on the needs of our learners. This training is completed 
by our district curriculum coaches and site administration. 

• Extended day services are offered two days a week after school. Teachers and instructional assistants support 
students with reading, science, and math. 

• Free breakfasts lunches, and after school meals are offered to all students. 
• Students are able to check out a Chromebook with Wi-Fi services for home use. 
• The Bright Future Learning Center (BFLC) is utilized as an enrichment hub which offers and supports blended 

learning opportunities beyond the classroom. 
• Our school social worker program helps to keep children supported through their school years. Though school 

dropouts are rare in the elementary grades, enough knowledge exists to be able to identify the children who are at-
risk of dropping out of school at a later age. Our social worker is responsible for various programs aimed at reducing 
or eliminating the high risk factors that interfere with student learning. Our social worker provides support to our 
students and staff, support to our families, works with attendance intervention, and provides on-going workshops for 
parents and staff. 

• Health services are under the supervision of a qualified school nurse. Vision screening, hearing tests, first aid and 
health counseling are among the services. Our district nurse, along with our school health clerk, is available to 
address health problems that interfere with the learning process. 

 
 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 19 River Oaks Elementary School 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category 
District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary $46,569 $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $74,558 $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $98,732 $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $130,095 $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $134,516 $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $0 $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $189,500 $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 36.64% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.75% 5.62% 
 

 
Professional Development 

Professional Development 

Teachers have multiple opportunities to receive professional development throughout the school year.  Administration and 
district personnel offer trainings related to the Common Core Standards, Benchmark ELA/ELD,  Eureka Math, RALLI for ELs, 
NGSS, technology, and personalizing learning.  Teachers have three PD days on the calendar for the 2022-2023 school year, 
three professional development days during the 21-22 school year; one PD day during the 20-21 school year, three PD days 
during the 19-20 school year, and three PD days during the 18-19 school year.  Monthly staff meetings, Take-Away Tuesdays 
and 5th Wednesdays are also dedicated to Professional Development opportunities. 
 
New teachers and teachers seeking additional assistance are supported by BTSA mentor teachers and administration. They 
meet regularly with an experienced mentor to discuss their successes and challenges and new ideas for their classrooms. 
------- 

 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 3 3 
 

 

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

Valley Oaks Elementary School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 

---- --- 
2023 School Accountability Report Card 

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

SARC Overview 
 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Valley Oaks Elementary School         

Street 21 C Street         

City, State, Zip Galt, CA 95632         

Phone Number 209-745-1564         

Principal David Nelson         

Email Address dnelson@galt.k12.ca.us         

School Website https://valleyoaks.galt.k12.ca.us 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 34 67348 6033310         
 

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Galt Joint Union Elementary School District         

Phone Number 209-744-4545         

Superintendent  Lois Yount         

Email Address lyount@galt.k12.ca.us         

District Website https://www.galt.k12.ca.us 
 

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

Valley Oaks Vision Statement: 
 
At Valley Oaks, we envision: 
Students meeting and exceeding their individual growth goals based on Common Core State Standards 
Students receiving personalized and challenging instruction 
Students being encouraged by parents, staff, and community to do their best 
Students learning in a positive and safe environment 
Students and staff embracing and respecting diversity 
Students developing life skills, critical thinking, and problem solving skills 
Students using 21st century technology to enhance learning 
Students and staff developing and celebrating their identified strengths 
Students and staff are modeling the Four School Rules/Norms and Eight Great Character Traits 
Students, parents and staff working as a team 
Students giving to others and the greater community 
Students and staff taking pride in their work EVERYDAY 
 
Valley Oaks Mission Statement: 
 
Education is the shared responsibility of everyone: Students, Teachers, Parents and the Community. 
Valley Oaks Elementary is committed to: Growing And Learning Together 
 
Principal’s Message 
Welcome to 21st century learning at Valley Oaks - where every student is guided on a path to their own bright future!  We are 
integrating the California Common Core State Standards with constantly updated technology through the individual use of 
Chromebooks for every student in grades K-6, as well as software resources to bring the world into our classrooms.  This 
allows classrooms to transform into blended personalized learning environments that integrate technology throughout 
academic content areas.  Students participate daily in high quality early literacy instruction and deliberate practice of literacy 
skills, developing critical thinking skills, collaborating with peers while building their communication skills, often with creative 
and innovative service learning projects. We strive to provide an environment that addresses the social and emotional needs of 

https://valleyoaks.galt.k12.ca.us/
https://www.galt.k12.ca.us/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

students by creating positive relationships with staff and students, and instruction in social/emotional lessons.  The staff 
continues to work collaboratively to offer rigorous and creative opportunities for our students to prepare them for future college 
and career opportunities.  Valley Oaks students know they are valued, can achieve, and are on the path to becoming 
independent and confident teenagers and young adults.  Our students have a high sense of engagement while at school, as 
well as a high hope for themselves and their future. 
 
-------- 

 

 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Kindergarten 62        

Grade 1 68        

Grade 2 68        

Grade 3 67        

Grade 4 72        

Grade 5 80        

Grade 6 87        

Total Enrollment 504        
 

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 

Female 51.8%        

Male 48.2%        

American Indian or Alaska Native  0.8%        

Asian  1.4%        

Black or African American  0.4%        

Hispanic or Latino 84.9%        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.6%        

Two or More Races  1.4%        

White  10.5%        

English Learners 47.8%        

Homeless 5.8%        

Migrant 15.1%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 81.2%        

Students with Disabilities 17.7%        
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 

A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 
2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

23.20 88.59 157.00 91.08 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

0.00 0.00 3.00 1.74 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.58 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.90 3.77 2.40 1.44 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         2.00 7.61 8.80 5.15 18854.30 6.86 

Total Teaching Positions         26.20 100.00 172.40 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

22.50 88.24 155.00 93.12 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

1.00 3.92 2.70 1.63 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.65 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.00 0.00 0.10 0.11 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         2.00 7.84 7.40 4.49 15831.90 5.67 

Total Teaching Positions         25.50 100.00 166.50 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 
Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 

Misassignments           0.00 0.00 

Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.90 0.00 

Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 

Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.90 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

Class Assignments 

Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

0 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 
2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

The public hearing for the sufficiency of materials was held at the Sept 20, 2023 Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 
school board meeting and determined that each school within the district has sufficient and good quality textbooks, instructional 
materials, or science lab equipment pursuant to the settlement of Williams vs. the State of California. All students, including 
English learners, are given their own individual standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in core subjects 
for use in the classroom and to take home. Textbooks and supplementary materials are adopted according to a cycle 
developed by the California Department of Education, making the textbooks used in the school the most current available. 
Materials approved for use by the state are reviewed by all teachers and a recommendation is made to the School Board by a 
selection committee composed of teachers and administrators. All recommended materials are available for parent examination 
at the district office prior to adoption. The table displays information about the quality, currency, and availability of the 
standards-aligned textbooks and other instructional materials used at the school.  The 2017-2018 school year marked the first 
year of K-6 ELA/ELD Adoption, Benchmark Advance, used by all students in all grades.  Additionally, all students in grades TK-
6 have access to personalized blended learning opportunities through his/her own Chromebook and personalized programs 
and applications.        

 

Year and month in which the data were collected September 2023 

 

Subject 
Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 

Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 

Reading/Language Arts K-6 Benchmark Advance, adopted in 2017        Yes 0 

Mathematics Eureka Math, adopted in 2016-17        Yes 0 

Science K-5 Pearson Scott Foresman- California Science, adopted in 
2007 
 
6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Science Focus, adopted in 2007 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science K-5 MacMillian/McGraw Hill- California Vista, adopted in 2006 
 
6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Discovering our Past, adopted in 
2006 
        

Yes 0 

 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

Valley Oaks was built in 1966. Throughout the years additional classrooms have been added to address growth and class-size 
reduction. Presently, there are 38 classrooms, a multipurpose room (cafeteria, gym, stage), a library, an administration building, 
and three playgrounds. Recent modernization to the campus included an entire resurfacing of blacktop to all playgrounds. The 
district takes great effort to ensure that Valley Oaks is clean, safe, and functional. The table shows the results of the most 
recent school facilities inspection. While reviewing this report, please note that even minor discrepancies are reported in the 
inspection process. The items noted in the table have been corrected or are in the process of remediation.  Funds from a 
recently passed general obligation bond are being used to help modernize, update, and provide safety improvements for Valley 
Oaks.  In the summer of 2018 and during the 2018-2019 school year, significant modernization efforts were made to the 
Kindergarten/1st grade, 2nd grade, and 4th grade buildings - improvements which include new HVAC units, new roofs, new 
gutters/drains, new exterior structure repair and new paint.  Additionally, the entire Multi-Use room, from Kitchen to gymnasium 
to stage area have all undergone significant modernization efforts, both in the exterior and interior, including new HVAC, fire 
sprinkler install, new LED lighting, new flooring throughout, new walls, doors, ceiling, complete bathroom remodel, complete 
kitchen remodel, and all underground/above ground infrastructure efforts to make all of it happen.  Additionally, the roof, wood 
exteriors (soffits), gutters and drains, as well as exterior lighting have all been completely replaced.  Those buildings that were 
not renovated have been repainted (Library and office) and spot painting has been done to all areas of the school.  Ramps and 
doors were also repainted.  Indoor areas that were in need also have been repainted.   During the 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 
school years, four aging portable classrooms were removed and a new 6-classroom permanent building is being built at Valley 
Oaks on the northeast side of the school - due to open in January 2024.  This will modernize classrooms for at least two grade 
levels, and provide additional rooms for the after school ASES/GEL programs. 
 
Cleaning Process 
The principal works daily with the two full-time and two part-time custodial staff to ensure that the cleaning of the school is 
maintained to provide for a clean and safe school. The district governing board has adopted cleaning standards for all schools 
in the district. A summary of these standards is available at the district office for review. 
 
Maintenance and Repair 
District maintenance staff ensures that the repairs necessary to keep the school in good repair and work orders are completed 
in a timely manner. An online work order process is used to ensure efficient service, and highest priority are given to 
emergency repairs. 
        

 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 12/4/2023 
 

System Inspected 
Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor 

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    
THREE RECESSED LIGHTS ARE OUT. PAINT IS 
CHIPPING ON DOOR. 
FLOOR IS STAINED FROM PREVIOUS LEAK. 
 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

 X  DRY ROT ON SIDING AND FACIA. FORMICA TRIM 
IS CHIPPING AND MISSING ON COUNTERTOP. 
TRIP HAZARD ON WALKWAY. 
CEILING TILES ARE DAMAGED. RUBBER 
MOLDING IS MISSING. 
FORMICA TRIM IS PEELING/MISSING ON 
COUNTERTOP. 
FLOOR TILES ARE BROKEN. TWO TOILETS ARE 
LOOSE AT BASE. 
CEILING TILES ARE LOOSE. .WALL PANEL IS 
LOOSE. 
 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X   UNSECURED ITEMS ARE STORED TOO HIGH. 
ROOM IS CLUTTERED. 
FLOORS ARE UNKEPT.  PAINT IS PEELING ON 
DOOR FRAME. 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

Electrical X   ELECTRICAL COVER IS BROKEN. MULTIPLE 
LIGHT BULBS ARE OUT. 
CEILING TILE IS LOOSE IN RR. ONE RECESSED 
LIGHT IS OUT. 
 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

X   DRINKING FOUNTAIN HAS LOW FLOW AND A 
DRIP.  DOOR CLOSER COVER IS MISSING. 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN FLOWS INTO 
MOUTHGUARD.  PAINT IS PEELING ON 
FACIA.FAUCET IS LOOSE.FAUCET LEAKS AT 
HANDLE. ROOM NOT IDENTIFIED.FAUCET HAS A 
DRIP AND LEAKS AT HANDLE.DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN SPRAYS ON CARPET, HIGH FLOW. 
DRY ROT AT BASE OF SIDING. GUTTER 
DOWNSPOUT IS BROKEN. TRIP HAZARD ON 
WALKWAY AND AT ASPHALT/CEMENT SEAM. 
SKID PAINT IS PEELING ON RAMP.TWO TOILETS 
ARE LOOSE AT BASE. 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X   PAINT IS CHIPPING ON DOOR FRAME. PAINT IS 
CHIPPING ON WALL. 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN FLOWS INTO 
MOUTHGUARD. PAINT IS PEELING ON 
FACIA.PAINT IS PEELING ON FACIA. FAUCET 
LEAKS AT HANDLE. 
THREE RECESSED LIGHTS ARE OUT.FLOORS 
ARE UNKEPT. PAINT IS PEELING ON DOOR 
FRAME. 
 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X   DRY ROT ON SIDING AND FACIA. DRY ROT ON 
RAMP. TRIP HAZARD AT ASPHALT/CEMENT 
SEAM. DRINKING FOUNTAIN SPRAYS ON 
CARPET, HIGH FLOW. DRY ROT AT BASE OF 
SIDING. GUTTER DOWNSPOUT IS BROKEN. TRIP 
HAZARD ON WALKWAY AND AT 
ASPHALT/CEMENT SEAM. SKID PAINT IS PEELING 
ON RAMP. DRY ROT ON SIDING AND FACIA. DRY 
ROT ON RAMP CREATING A TRIP HAZARD. 

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X   TRIP HAZARD AT ASPHALT/CEMENT SEAM.  
DOOR CLOSER COVER IS MISSING.DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN SPRAYS ON CARPET, HIGH FLOW.  
DRY ROT AT BASE OF SIDING. GUTTER 
DOWNSPOUT IS BROKEN. . SKID PAINT IS 
PEELING ON RAMP. TRIP HAZARDS 
THROUGHOUT COURTS. 

 

 
Overall Facility Rate 

Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  
 

 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

31 34 47 47 47 46 

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

25 26 35 38 33 34 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         317 313 98.74 1.26 33.55 

Female         156 154 98.72 1.28 40.91 

Male         161 159 98.76 1.24 26.42 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         267 264 98.88 1.12 32.20 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         36 35 97.22 2.78 40.00 

English Learners         127 125 98.43 1.57 22.40 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         24 24 100.00 0.00 16.67 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         222 219 98.65 1.35 29.22 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         46 45 97.83 2.17 33.33 

Students with Disabilities          56 55 98.21 1.79 5.45 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         316 313 99.05 0.95 26.05 

Female         156 155 99.36 0.64 27.45 

Male         160 158 98.75 1.25 24.68 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         266 265 99.62 0.38 25.10 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         36 34 94.44 5.56 29.41 

English Learners         127 127 100.00 0.00 16.00 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         24 24 100.00 0.00 12.50 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         221 218 98.64 1.36 23.61 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         46 46 100.00 0.00 24.44 

Students with Disabilities          56 54 96.43 3.57 7.41 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

18.39 12.35 28.85 29.31 29.47 30.29 

 

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         81 81 100.00 0.00 12.35 

Female         38 38 100.00 0.00 13.16 

Male         43 43 100.00 0.00 11.63 

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0 0 0 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          0 0 0 0 0 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         75 75 100.00 0.00 13.33 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races         0 0 0 0 0 

White         -- -- -- -- -- 

English Learners         37 37 100.00 0.00 2.70 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         55 55 100.00 0.00 9.09 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         11 11 100.00 0.00 0.00 

Students with Disabilities          15 15 100.00 0.00 0.00 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level 
Component 1: 

Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

Valley Oaks Elementary School parents play an important role in their child’s education through participation in Back to School 
Night, Parent/Teacher/Student Conferences, Valley Oaks Parent Teacher Organization (PTO), Family Movie Nights, Open 
House, Family Science Night, Family Math Night, VO Annual Art Show, Children's Day (Dia del Nino), Environmental Living 
Programs (Sly Park), Outreach Parenting Programs (Nurturing Parenting), and Student Success Teams (SSTs). Decision-
making committees, such as the School Site Council, and English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) meet regularly 
throughout the year. 
 
The school also works with community programs such as Cosumnes River Preserve, the Galt Historical Society, Kiwanis Club, 
and the Galt Police Department. Local churches and service clubs donate service hours, backpacks and instructional supplies.  
For additional information on opportunities for parental or community involvement, please contact the principal, David Nelson, 
at 209-745-1564. 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group 
Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 

All Students         543 531 126 23.7 

Female         281 275 59 21.5 

Male         262 256 67 26.2 

Non-Binary 0 0 0 0.0 

American Indian or Alaska Native         5 5 0 0.0 

Asian         7 7 3 42.9 

Black or African American          2 2 0 0.0 

Filipino         3 3 1 33.3 

Hispanic or Latino         458 448 103 23.0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         3 3 1 33.3 

Two or More Races         7 7 1 14.3 

White         58 56 17 30.4 

English Learners         259 256 51 19.9 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0.0 

Homeless         42 41 10 24.4 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         443 436 109 25.0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         81 81 10 12.3 

Students with Disabilities          107 105 36 34.3 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 

• Pupil expulsion rates; and 

• Other local measures on the sense of safety 
 

 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate 
School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 1.48 1.66 0.00 1.67 3.52 0.20 3.17 3.60 

Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.14 0.09 0.00 0.07 0.08 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students         1.66 0 

Female         1.07 0 

Male         2.29 0 

Non-Binary           

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 

Asian         0 0 

Black or African American          0 0 

Filipino         0 0 

Hispanic or Latino         0.66 0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races         0 0 

White         8.62 0 

English Learners         0.39 0 

Foster Youth         0 0 

Homeless         7.14 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         2.03 0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         1.23 0 

Students with Disabilities          0.93 0 
 

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 

2023-24 School Safety Plan 

The district has developed a comprehensive emergency plan in conjunction with the Galt Police and Fire Departments, which 
describes specific procedures for all types of emergencies. The plan is updated annually, or as needed. An “Emergency 
Handbook”, kept in the office, outlines the plan of action for emergencies such as earthquakes, fires, floods and chemical spills. 
School sites have an evacuation plan and emergency drills are conducted regularly (fire drills = 1x/month and multiple 
lockdown drills throughout the year), in accordance with California Education Code. Periodic, random school safety inspections 
are conducted by the Schools Insurance Authority of Sacramento County. Visitors to the campus are required to check in and 
out at the office to receive/return a visitor badge before coming on campus. Parents are encouraged to volunteer on campus, 
and must pass a Megan's Law background check in order to be in the classroom or go on field trips.  Surveillance cameras are 
placed strategically around the entire campus to ensure student and staff safety.  Security fencing and gates are installed 
around the entire school, with entrance to the school being limited to the front doors of the main office. 
 
The School Safety Plan was last reviewed and approved at the local School Board of Education meeting on February 15, 2023.  
It was shared with VO staff shortly thereafter.  It will be updated/reviewed by the School Site Council and the School Board of 
Education in February 2024. 
-------- 

 

 

D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 
 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        25 3 3 2 

1        36 2 1 2 

2        36 1 3 2 

3        39 4  2 

4        45  3 2 

5        51   2 

6        26  3  

Other        43 3  2 
 

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average 

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        13 4 1  

1        16 4   

2        19 2 1  

3        22  3  

4        26  3  

5        27  3  

6        22  3  

Other        12 2   
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        20 2 1 0 

1        21 1 2 0 

2        21 0 3 0 

3        20 2 1 0 

4        23 1 2 0 

5        25 1 2 0 

6        27 0 3 0 

Other        14 2 0 0 
 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor 504 
 

 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist 0.5 

Social Worker  

Nurse        

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1.5 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  

Other       1.2 
 

 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 13,282 4,966 8,315 87,145 

District N/A N/A 7,596 $80,657 

Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A 9.0 8.5 

State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 

Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A 23.1 2.9 
 

 
2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

During the fiscal year 2023-2024, programs and services that are available at Valley Oaks that support and assist students 
include the DLI (Dual Language Immersion) Program, the TBP (Transitional Bilingual Program) for students who receive 
instruction in their primary language and the ASES/GEL After-School Program.  Regular programs/activities such as multiple 
BFLC/Library clubs (including Homework Club, Lego Club, Arts/Crafts Club, Games Club, Minute to Win It club, Pokemon Club, 
Crochet Club, Yoga Club, Sewing Club, Stop-Motion Club, BeyBlade Club, etc.), and Acceleration Block programs (after 
school)  are being held during the school year. 
 
Significant funding is set aside for Instructional Assistants (IA) and Bilingual Instructional Assistants (BIA), who work mainly 
with students in K-3 grades, with some work in grades 4-6 - with a focus on early literacy instruction, reading practice, and 
mathematics. Bilingual Instructional Assistants also work with our Newcomer (new to the U.S.) and English Learner students. 
 
A full time School Counselor supports students behavioral, social emotional and mental health. Our School Counselor is 
responsible for various programs aimed at reducing or eliminating the high risk factors that interfere with student learning as 
well as student welfare & attendance. 
 
In the 2023-2024 school year, after school "Acceleration Blocks" are being offered to students/teachers as a way for teachers 
to work academically with small groups of students (no more than 8) in specific academic areas in which some students need 
some "acceleration". 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category 
District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary $46,569 $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $74,558 $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $98,732 $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $130,095 $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $134,516 $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $0 $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $189,500 $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 36.64% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.75% 5.62% 
 

 
  

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 20 Valley Oaks Elementary School 

Professional Development 

Professional Development 

Staff development is an important part of the planned school program at Galt Joint Union Elementary School District. The 
school’s teachers and support staff are committed to keeping up to date on the latest educational developments. In the 2022-
2023 and 2023-2024 school years, three (3) Staff Development Days have been provided throughout the school year. In 
addition, professional development has been provided in the areas of crisis prevention training, suicide prevention, sexual 
harassment prevention, CPR/First Aid, and Mandated Reporting.  In 2021-2022, professional development was provided in the 
areas of Synergy (student information system/grades/report cards), reading instruction (science of reading, SIPPS), Eureka 
Math review, NWEA MAP scores/report training, MAP Accelerator introduction, and staff Social/Emotional health.  In 2022-
2023, professional development has been and will be provided in the areas of Math training: Eureka Math, Math Talks, and 
Math Frameworks.  There has been and will be ongoing training in early literacy instruction: SIPPS training/refreshers and 
whole-group SIPPS instruction, and a Writing workshop (Step Up to Writing).  The district also offers Take-Away Tuesdays, 
where district teachers/staff present workshops on a wide variety of topics, and teachers are able to select or choose which 
training they want to attend.  During the summer of 2023, the district offered week-long training to teachers in Building Thinking 
Classrooms and there has been ongoing book studies at the site level to discuss/review the main ideas/strategies of Building 
Thinking Classrooms. 
 
New teachers and teachers seeking additional assistance are supported by induction providers and mentors. They meet 
regularly with an experienced mentor to discuss their successes and challenges and new ideas for their classrooms.  Teachers 
who teach in bilingual settings are encouraged to attend a portion or all of a yearly conference for bilingual educators, called 
CABE, and meet regularly throughout the year to discuss the transitional bilingual program and the new Dual Language 
Immersion program. 
 
Furthermore, Valley Oaks has had direct access to teachers on special assignments (TOSA), who work specifically with 
students and teachers in the areas of reading, writing, and math interventions, Building Thinking Classrooms, and ELD 
instruction/strategies.  They have met with and learned from the TOSA in a variety of ways (in-class coaching, release days for 
instruction and planning purposes, informal interactions - such as email or grade-level meetings). 
 
After discussion and collaboration with staff and coaches, and through formal and informal data analysis, it was determined that 
to better increase our early literacy results, we needed Professional Development in the areas of SIPPS.  In 2022-2023 and 
2023-2024, refresher SIPPS courses were made available to all and new teachers attended SIPPS training courses, provided 
by the district coach. In 2022-2023 and 2023-2024, Professional Development was provided for new(er) teachers of early 
literacy in the area of SIPPS and Instructional Assistants who also teach students SIPPS in small groups received instruction, 
observation, and feedback regarding their SIPPS instruction. 
------- 

 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 3 3 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 
------- 

2023 School Accountability Report Card 

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

SARC Overview 
 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Vernon E. Greer Elementary School         

Street 248 W. A Street         

City, State, Zip Galt, CA 95632         

Phone Number (209) 745-2641         

Principal Stephanie Simonich         

Email Address ssimonich@galt.k12.ca.us         

School Website https://gr-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 34 67348 0119420         
 

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Galt Joint Union ESD         

Phone Number 209.744.4545         

Superintendent  Lois Yount         

Email Address lyount@galt.k12.ca.us         

District Website http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 
 

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

Vernon E. Greer Elementary School is committed to achieving academic excellence by implementing goal setting practices and 
capitalizing on learner talents and strengths to personalize learning. We strive to create a safe and welcoming environment 
which fosters the development of caring, responsible, and engaged learners that are prepared to meet the challenges of being 
citizens in a culturally diverse, technologically advanced, and scientifically progressive society. Our dedicated staff, supportive 
families, and generous community work collaboratively to build a bright future for all learners. 
 
At Vernon E. Greer Elementary, we strive to… 
 
Ensure that every child has equal opportunity  for success by understanding and providing support for unique challenges and 
barriers. 
 
Provide balanced, integrated, and rigorous academic experiences which capitalize on talents, strengths, and interests. 
 
Use goal setting practices to achieve personal growth towards meeting or exceeding grade level standards in preparation for 
college and career. 
 
Balance informational and literary texts, and deepen mathematical knowledge in order to develop powerful users of 
mathematics that positively impact the world, while fostering reading, writing, listening, and speaking skills in all subject areas. 
 
Develop crucial life skills through social and emotional learning opportunities. 
 
Participate in professional development as models of lifelong learning. 
 
Acknowledge talents, strengths, and interests when collaborating as a professional learning community. 
 
Communicate and collaborate with families so learners reach their greatest potential. 
 
We are very proud of the many hours parents and community members provide to us each month. Parents are encouraged 
and welcomed to participate in the education of their children by serving on school committees or as classroom volunteers. We 

https://gr-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/
http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

are thankful for a very active and supportive Greer "Partners" in Education, English Language Advisory Committee, and School 
Site Council. 
 
Individual strengths and talents are recognized. Teachers are committed to becoming strengths-based educators. Through 
strengths spotting activities, our primary learners identify talents that can be productively applied. Our intermediate learners 
complete the GALLUP Strength Survey to identify their top three talents. At Vernon E. Greer Elementary, educators are 
discovering their own talents and developing and applying strengths as they help learners do the same in learning and 
completing academic tasks to optimal levels of personal excellence. 
 
The teachers and support staff at Vernon E. Greer Elementary are dedicated to student achievement towards meeting 
Common Core State Standards. Teachers, specialists, and administration collaborate on a regular basis to provide a 
personalized, standards-based education for all learners. Careful and precise data analysis of local and state assessments 
drive instruction. 
-------- 

 

 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Kindergarten 66        

Grade 1 84        

Grade 2 77        

Grade 3 70        

Grade 4 86        

Grade 5 61        

Grade 6 57        

Total Enrollment 501        
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 

Female 47.5%        

Male 52.5%        

American Indian or Alaska Native  0.4%        

Asian  4%        

Black or African American  2%        

Filipino  2.2%        

Hispanic or Latino 57.1%        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.2%        

Two or More Races  3.2%        

White  30.5%        

English Learners 19.8%        

Foster Youth 0.4%        

Homeless 2.8%        

Migrant 3.6%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 60.9%        

Students with Disabilities 14.2%        
 

 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 

A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

23.60 92.19 157.00 91.08 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

1.00 3.91 3.00 1.74 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.58 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.00 0.00 2.40 1.44 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         1.00 3.91 8.80 5.15 18854.30 6.86 

Total Teaching Positions         25.60 100.00 172.40 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

21.80 91.60 155.00 93.12 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

1.00 4.20 2.70 1.63 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 1.00 0.65 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.00 0.00 0.10 0.11 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         1.00 4.20 7.40 4.49 15831.90 5.67 

Total Teaching Positions         23.80 100.00 166.50 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 

Misassignments           0.00 0.00 

Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.00 0.00 

Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 

Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 

Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

2.5 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

Galt Joint Union Elementary held a Public Hearing in September 20, 2023 and determined that each school within the district 
has sufficient and good quality textbooks, instructional materials, or science lab equipment pursuant to the settlement of 
Williams vs. the State of California. All learners, including English learners, are given their own individual standards-aligned 
textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in core subjects for use in the classroom and to take home. 
 
Textbooks and supplementary materials are adopted according to a cycle developed by the California Department of 
Education, making the textbooks used in the school the most current available. Materials approved for use by the state are 
reviewed by all teachers and a recommendation is made to the School Board by a selection committee composed of teachers 
and administrators. All recommended materials are available for parent examination at the district office prior to adoption. The 
table displays information about the quality, currency, and availability of the standards-aligned textbooks and other instructional 
materials used at the school. 
        

 

Year and month in which the data were collected September, 2023 

 

Subject 
Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 

Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 

Reading/Language Arts K-6 Benchmark Advance, adopted in 2017-2018        Yes 0 

Mathematics K-6 Eureka Math, adopted as bridge program in 2016        Yes 0 

Science 6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill- Science Focus, adopted in 2007 
 
K-5 Pearson Scott Foresman- California Science, adopted in 
2007 
        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science 6th Glencoe/McGraw Hill-Discovering our Past, adopted in 
2006 
 
K-5 MacMillian/McGraw Hill- California Vistas, adopted in 
2006 
        

Yes 0 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

Vernon E. Greer School facilities were originally constructed in 1992. Vernon E. Greer Middle school closed after the 2007-
2008 school year. After renovations, Vernon E. Greer Elementary opened in 2008. The school is composed of 5 permanent 
classrooms, 26 portable classrooms, a multi-purpose room, a library, three playgrounds, a staff room, and three extended day 
classrooms. 
 
Measure K provided funding to remodel five classrooms and the primary restrooms. This project was completed in 2019. 
Funding was provided to repair and paint the exterior of all school buildings, replace air conditioning units, and install a new 
alarm system . These projects were completed in 2021-2022. 
 
Cleaning Process 
Administration works daily with the three full-time custodial staff to ensure that the school is maintained in order to provide for a 
clean and safe learning environment. The district governing board has adopted cleaning standards for all schools in the district. 
A summary of these standards is available at the district office for review. 
 
Maintenance and Repair 
District maintenance staff ensures that the repairs necessary to keep the school in good repair are completed in a timely 
manner.  A work order process is used to ensure efficient service. Highest priority is given to emergency repairs.  While 
reviewing this report, please note that even minor discrepancies are reported in the inspection process. The items noted in the 
table have been corrected or are in the process of remediation. 
        

 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 12/4/2023 
 

System Inspected 
Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor 

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X   UNSECURED ITEMS STORED TOO HIGH. 
LOCK STRIKE PLATE IS MISSING. LIGHT 
DIFFUSER IS LOOSE. 
 

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

 X  FORMICA TRIM IS MISSING ON COUNTERTOP; 
CEILING TILES HAVE WATER STAINS. DRY ROT 
ON SIDING AND FACIA BOARDS. GUTTER DOWN 
SPOUT IS LOOSE; SECTION OF WALL TRIM IS 
MISSING. 
WALLPAPER IS TORN. 
CEILING TRIM IS TORN. CEILING TILE IS STAINED. 
CEILING TRIM IS MISSING.  WINDOW SCREEN IS 
TORN.  DOOR GETS STUCK ON RAMP.FLOOR 
TILES ARE BROKEN IN HALLWAY. . TWO LIGHT 
PANELS ARE OUT. FLOOR TILES ARE BROKEN. 
ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT. ELECTRICAL COVER 
IS MISSING.DAMAGED SINK CAP IS MISSING. 
 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X   ACCESS TO FIRE EXTINGUISHER IS BLOCKED. 
EXHAUST FAN IS NOT WORKING IN RR.   TOILETS 
ARE LEAKING AT FITTING CREATING A SLIP 
HAZARDS. 
 

Electrical  X  EXTENSION CORD IS BEING PERMANENTLY 
USED. 
CLOCK IS MISSING.  FORMICA IS BROKEN ON 
COUNTER TOP. TWO LIGHT PANELS ARE OUT. 
FLOOR OUTLET COVERS ARE MISSING. 
ELECTRICAL COVER IS BROKEN. SEVEN CAN 
LIGHTS ARE OUT. ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT. 
ETHERNET CABLE IS BUNDLED AND STUCK 
BEHIND PIPE. PAINT IS PEELING ON CEILING.  



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

MULTIPLE CAN LIGHTS ARE OUT. ONE LIGHT 
PANEL IS OUT. ELECTRICAL COVER IS MISSING. 
EXHAUST FAN IS NOT WORKING. 
 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

 X  TRIP HAZARDS ON WALKWAYS. 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN HAS A HIGH FLOW. ONE 
FAUCET HAS LOW FLOW. 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN HANDLE IS BROKEN. 
FLOORS ARE UNKEPT.. TOILETS ARE LEAKING 
AT FITTING CREATING A SLIP HAZARDS.  FAUCET 
LEAKS AT HANDLE. DOOR HANDLE IS LOOSE. 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X   EMERGENCY EXIT LIGHT IS NOT FUNCTIONING. 
FLOOR OUTLET COVERS ARE MISSING. 
ELECTRICAL COVER IS BROKEN. SEVEN CAN 
LIGHTS ARE OUT. LIGHT DIFFUSER IS LOOSE. 
ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT. ETHERNET CABLE IS 
BUNDLED AND STUCK BEHIND PIPE. PAINT IS 
PEELING ON CEILING. 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X   DRY ROT ON SIDING AND FACIA BOARDS. 
GUTTER DOWN SPOUT IS LOOSE. DRY ROT ON 
SIDING.  DOOR CLOSER IS MISSING (DOOR 
SLAMS SHUT). 

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X   DRINKING FOUNTAIN IS COVERED. 
DRY ROT ON SIDING.  DOOR CLOSER IS MISSING 
(DOOR SLAMS SHUT). 
DOOR DEADBOLT IS LOOSE AND WILL NOT 
SECURE. 
DOOR GETS STUCK ON RAMP. LOCK STRIKE 
PLATE IS MISSING. SINK CAP IS MISSING. 
FAUCET LEAKS AT HANDLE. DOOR HANDLE IS 
LOOSE. 
 

 

 
Overall Facility Rate 

Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

      X                  
 

 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

41 45 47 47 47 46 

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

36 40 35 38 33 34 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         270 268 99.26 0.74 45.32 

Female         131 130 99.24 0.76 53.85 

Male         139 138 99.28 0.72 37.23 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         145 144 99.31 0.69 40.97 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         87 86 98.85 1.15 48.84 

English Learners         45 45 100.00 0.00 22.22 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         118 117 99.15 0.85 38.46 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         12 12 100.00 0.00 58.33 

Students with Disabilities          35 33 94.29 5.71 24.24 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         270 268 99.26 0.74 39.55 

Female         131 130 99.24 0.76 39.23 

Male         139 138 99.28 0.72 39.86 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         145 144 99.31 0.69 34.03 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         87 86 98.85 1.15 47.67 

English Learners         45 45 100.00 0.00 15.56 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         118 117 99.15 0.85 30.77 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         12 12 100.00 0.00 33.33 

Students with Disabilities          35 33 94.29 5.71 24.24 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

31.58 20.34 28.85 29.31 29.47 30.29 

 

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         60 59 98.33 1.67 20.34 

Female         23 22 95.65 4.35 13.64 

Male         37 37 100.00 0.00 24.32 

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0 0 0 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         32 31 96.88 3.12 16.13 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         20 20 100.00 0.00 35.00 

English Learners         -- -- -- -- -- 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         27 26 96.30 3.70 23.08 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         -- -- -- -- -- 

Students with Disabilities          -- -- -- -- -- 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level 
Component 1: 

Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 92% 95% 97% 97% 97% 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

Vernon E. Greer Elementary School parents and guardians play an important role in their child’s education through 
participation in the following programs: 
 
The School Site Council helps develop the School Plan for Student Achievement. The members monitor and evaluate the plan 
as well as other projects/plans that benefit the school. The SSC also facilitates communication between the school and 
community. 
 
The English Learner Advisory Committee advises parents on the services available for learners who have limited English 
proficiency. 
 
Greer "Partners" in Education is a wonderful parent organization that helps provide family activities with a focus on the 
educational success and academic achievement for all learners. 
 
Parent volunteers support the classroom by assisting with classroom projects, planning activities, and helping with the overall 
success of the classroom. 
 
Community volunteers support the classroom. District policy requires volunteers over the age of 18 to submit birth dates and 
Social Security numbers for a security check through the police department. 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group 
Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 

All Students         539 526 175 33.3 

Female         262 253 89 35.2 

Male         277 273 86 31.5 

Non-Binary 0 0 0 0.0 

American Indian or Alaska Native         2 2 1 50.0 

Asian         20 20 8 40.0 

Black or African American          10 10 2 20.0 

Filipino         11 11 4 36.4 

Hispanic or Latino         306 299 106 35.5 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         1 1 0 0.0 

Two or More Races         19 17 5 29.4 

White         168 164 48 29.3 

English Learners         111 107 34 31.8 

Foster Youth         2 2 0 0.0 

Homeless         15 15 9 60.0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         345 333 112 33.6 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         19 19 1 5.3 

Students with Disabilities          101 99 35 35.4 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 

• Pupil expulsion rates; and 

• Other local measures on the sense of safety 
 

 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate 
School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 0.58 3.34 0.00 1.67 3.52 0.20 3.17 3.60 

Expulsions 0.00 0.19 0.00 0.00 0.14 0.09 0.00 0.07 0.08 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students         3.34 0 

Female         0.76 0 

Male         5.78 0 

Non-Binary           

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 

Asian         5 0 

Black or African American          0 0 

Filipino         0 0 

Hispanic or Latino         3.59 0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races         5.26 0 

White         2.38 0 

English Learners         2.7 0 

Foster Youth         0 0 

Homeless         13.33 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         4.35 0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 

Students with Disabilities          3.96 0 
 

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 

2023-24 School Safety Plan 

The Vernon E. Greer Elementary School Safety Plan was adopted by the school board, February 15, 2023 
 
Student safety is a priority at Vernon E. Greer Elementary School. All gates remain locked throughout most of the school day 
with admittance to the campus only though the main office. Any visitor is required to check in at the school office. Visitors sign 
in and wear a visitor’s badge during their visit. The district provides yard supervisors to our school to ensure that students are 
safe on campus before, during, and after school. Eight yard supervisors work before school and throughout the school day to 
monitor student safety in crosswalks, on campus, on the playground, and in the cafeteria. Staff meetings are held for yard 
supervisors which provide on-going training and address safety issues. All district employees wear a picture identification 
badge so that they can be clearly identified. School safety rules are well established and are enforced by all staff members. 
 
The district has developed a comprehensive emergency plan in conjunction with the Galt Police and Fire Departments, which 
describes specific procedures for all types of emergencies. The plan is updated every fall and spring. Our school-wide 
“Emergency Handbook" outlines the plan of action for emergencies such as earthquakes, fires, floods and chemical spills. 
School sites have an evacuation plan and a shelter-in-place plan. These emergency drills are conducted regularly. 
 
The district takes great effort to ensure that Vernon E. Greer Elementary School is clean, safe, and functional. To assist with 
this, the district provides three full time custodial staff to clean and maintain the school on a regular basis. In addition, school 
safety inspections are periodically conducted by the Schools Insurance Authority of Sacramento County. 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC) 

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 
 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
 

 
2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        12 6   

1        35 4  2 

2        38 3  2 

3        38 1 2 2 

4        50  1 3 

5        44 1 2 2 

6        39 1 2 1 

Other        10 3   
 

 
2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level 
Average 

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        15 4 2  

1        16 4   

2        17 4   

3        23  3  

4        30  2  

5        27  2  

6        30  2  

Other        11 1   
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level 
Average  

Class Size 
Number of Classes with  

1-20 Students 
Number of Classes with  

21-32 Students 
Number of Classes with  

33+ Students 

K        21 1 2 0 

1        21 1 3 0 

2        19 1 3 0 

3        17 4 0 0 

4        27 0 3 0 

5        31 0 2 0 

6        28 0 2 0 

Other        6 2 0 0 
 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor 0 
 

 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)  

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist 1.1 

Social Worker  

Nurse        

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching) 0.2 

Other       1.1 
 

 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 12,582 5,053 7,529 79,108 

District N/A N/A 7,596 $80,657 

Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -0.9 -1.2 

State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 

Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A 13.2 -6.7 
 

 
2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Supplemental programs and services at Vernon E. Greer Elementary School that support and assist our learners include: 
 
Vernon E. Greer is honored to be the recipient of State funds which provide for an after-school program. The Galt Expanded 
Learning program is held Monday through Friday from 2:30 pm - 6:00 pm and provides homework help, strategic academic 
acceleration, and enrichment. 
 
We have a cadre of eight instructional assistants that provide additional instruction in foundational reading skills. The 
instructional assistants focus supports and interventions in our TK-3rd grade classrooms. However, depending upon the need, 
our instructional assistants provide intervention in the upper grades, as well. Our paraprofessionals are provided training 
throughout the year based on the needs of our learners. This training is completed by our district curriculum coaches. 
 
 
Though school dropouts are rare in the elementary grades, enough knowledge exists to be able to identify the children who are 
at-risk of dropping out of school at a later age. Our social worker is responsible for various programs aimed at reducing or 
eliminating the high risk factors that interfere with learning. Our social worker provides support to our students and staff, 
support to our families, works with attendance intervention, and provides ongoing workshops. 
 
Full-time Mental Health services began in February 2022. We are very thankful to have a mental health clinician at our site. 
 
Full-time counseling services began December 2022. We appreciate the support this provides. 
 
Health services are under the supervision of a qualified school nurse. Vision screening, hearing tests, first aid and health 
counseling are among the services. Our district nurse, along with our school health clerk, are available to address health 
problems that interfere with the learning process. 
 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category 
District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary $46,569 $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $74,558 $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $98,732 $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $130,095 $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $134,516 $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $0 $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $189,500 $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 36.64% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.75% 5.62% 
 

 
  

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 21 of 21 Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

Professional Development 

Professional Development 

Professional learning is an important part of the planned school program at Vernon E. Greer Elementary School and the Galt 
Joint Union Elementary School District. Our teachers and support staff are committed to using research-based instructional 
strategies. The district provided three professional learning days for certificated staff during the 2023-2024 school year. 
Additionally, the district provided collaboration time following the professional learning days which allowed teachers were able 
to strategically make plans and reflect on their new learning. 
 
Professional development has supported the successful implementation of the California Common Core Standards with a focus 
on personalization. Teachers and support staff are encouraged to attend learning events that cater to their personal learning 
needs. Our site leadership team plays an important part in the implementation of the personalization model and for increasing 
professional capacity. Staff learning events, strategic release days, and collaborative Wednesdays have been used for 
professional development opportunities. 
 
New teachers and teachers seeking additional assistance are supported by Teacher Induction providers. They meet regularly 
with an experienced mentor to discuss their successes and challenges and new ideas for their classrooms. 
 
Fred Jones 
18/20 grade-level teacher have completed the training to date. 
 
SIPPS 
All new teachers that are responsible for implementing SIPPS will receive mentor observation and feedback sessions. 
 
Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports 
Greer is implementing a schoolwide systems approach aimed at establishing positive student culture and individualized 
behavior supports necessary to create a safe and effective learning environment for all learners. 
 
Attendance and Engagement 
Staff and administration are participating in SCOE attendance and engagement training. 
 
Mental Health and Wellness 
Staff and administration are participating in SCOE mental health and wellness training. 
 
CalHope Social Emotional Learning 
Staff and administration are participating in the SCOE SEL trainings. 
------- 

 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 3 3 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

McCaffrey Middle School 
2022-2023 School Accountability Report Card  
(Published During the 2023-2024 School Year) 

 
------- 

2023 School Accountability Report Card 

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

SARC Overview 
 

 

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to 
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains 
information about the condition and performance of each California public school. 
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies 
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), 
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, 
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data 
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC. 
 
- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year 

reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/. 

 
- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web 

page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 
 
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community 

members should contact the school principal or the district office. 
 

DataQuest 
 

 

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at 
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about this 
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, 
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test 
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, 
and data regarding English learners). 
 

California School Dashboard 
 

 

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and 
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and 
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The 
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and 
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying 
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement. 
 

Internet Access Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly 
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and 
public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use 
restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation 
may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available 
on a workstation, and the ability to print documents. 
 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name McCaffrey Middle School         

Street 997 Park Terrace Drive         

City, State, Zip Galt, CA 95632         

Phone Number (209) 745-5462         

Principal Carlos Castillo         

Email Address ccastillo@galt.k12.ca.us         

School Website https://mc-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 

County-District-School (CDS) Code 34 67348 0100040         
 

 
2023-24 District Contact Information 

2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Galt Joint Union ESD         

Phone Number 209.744.4545         

Superintendent  Lois Yount         

Email Address lyount@galt.k12.ca.us         

District Website http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/ 
 

 
2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 

Our Vision is: 
 
McCaffrey Middle School will provide a 21st century personalized learning experience preparing each student to be college and 
career ready. 
 
Our mission is: 
 
1.  to create a personalized learning environment where students are actively engaged, 
 
2.  to build upon a learner's individual strengths and knowledge preparing them for a changing 21st century, 
 
3.  to provide access to a rigorous curriculum delivered through a blended learning environment, and 
 
4.  to inspire active, responsible, lifelong learners. 
 
5.  to prepare students to produce authentic writing that demonstrates deepened content understanding. 
-------- 

 

 

https://mc-gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/
http://gjuesd-ca.schoolloop.com/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

About this School  
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 

Grade 7 396        

Grade 8 350        

Total Enrollment 746        
 

 
2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 

Female 48.9%        

Male 51.1%        

American Indian or Alaska Native  0.1%        

Asian  2.8%        

Black or African American  1.3%        

Filipino  0.7%        

Hispanic or Latino 63.3%        

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.5%        

Two or More Races  2.4%        

White  28.8%        

English Learners 16.4%        

Homeless 1.9%        

Migrant 6.3%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 58%        

Students with Disabilities 13.9%        
 

 

A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic) 

A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 

• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 

• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 

• School facilities are maintained in good repair 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

37.10 90.62 157.00 91.08 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

1.00 2.44 3.00 1.74 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

1.00 2.44 1.00 0.58 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.00 0.00 2.40 1.44 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         1.80 4.47 8.80 5.15 18854.30 6.86 

Total Teaching Positions         40.90 100.00 172.40 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment 
School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

36.80 93.75 155.00 93.12 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 

0.70 1.80 2.70 1.63 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

1.00 2.74 1.00 0.65 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        

0.10 0.46 0.10 0.11 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         0.40 1.19 7.40 4.49 15831.90 5.67 

Total Teaching Positions         39.30 100.00 166.50 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 

Misassignments           1.00 1.00 

Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 

Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 1.00 1.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.00 0.00 

Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.10 

Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.00 0.10 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
Class Assignments 

Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

1.4 1.5 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

2.5 0.8 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 
2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

Galt Joint Union Elementary held a Public Hearing in September 20, 2023, and determined that each school within the district 
has sufficient and good quality textbooks, instructional materials, or science lab equipment pursuant to the settlement of 
Williams vs. the State of California. All students, including English learners, are given their own individual standards-aligned 
textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in core subjects for use in the classroom and to take home. Textbooks and 
supplementary materials are adopted according to a cycle developed by the California Department of Education, making the 
textbooks used in the school the most current available. Materials approved for use by the state are reviewed by all teachers 
and a recommendation is made to the School Board by a selection committee composed of teachers and administrators. All 
recommended materials are available for parent examination at the district office prior to adoption. The table displays 
information about the quality, currency, and availability of the standards-aligned textbooks and other instructional materials 
used at the school.        

 

Year and month in which the data were collected September, 2023 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

 

Subject 
Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 

Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 

Reading/Language Arts Amplify, adopted in 2017        Yes 0 

Mathematics College Preparatory Math, adopted in 2015        Yes 0 

Science 7th-8th Glencoe/McGraw Hill, adopted in 2007        Yes 0 

History-Social Science 7th-8th Glencoe/McGraw Hill, adopted in 2006        Yes 0 
 

 
School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

McCaffrey Middle School was built in 2003. The school currently has 48 classrooms; a multipurpose room with a stage and 
kitchen; BFLC (Bright Future Learning Center) with a MakerSpace classroom; two technology labs; two music rooms; an ASB 
room; an athletic field that includes a new all weather track that was completed in November of 2020; and a gymnasium. Six 
portables were added to the campus in 2008-09. 
 
Cleaning Process 
Three and one half custodians are employed to ensure that the cleaning of the school is maintained to provide for a clean and 
safe school. Custodians have been given a cleaning schedule indicating what specific days and areas need to be cleaned. The 
schedule is also given to substitute custodians. The district governing board has adopted cleaning standards for all schools in 
the district. A summary of these standards is available at the district office for review. 
 
Maintenance and Repair 
District maintenance staff ensures that the repairs necessary to keep the school in good repair and work orders are completed 
in a timely manner. A work order process is used to ensure efficient service and highest priority are given to emergency repairs. 
While reviewing this report, please note that even minor discrepancies are reported in the inspection process. The items noted 
in the table have been corrected or are in the process of remediation. The table shows the results of the most recent school 
facilities inspection. 
 
        

 

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 12/5/2023 
 

System Inspected 
Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor 

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

  X CEILING TILE IS MISSING. CEILING TILE HAS A 
WATER STAIN. UNSECURED ITEMS ARE STORED 
TOO HIGH. LINOLEUM FLOORING HAS HOLES AT 
ENTRY. FORMICA TRIM IS MISSING ON 
COUNTERTOP. ONE LIGHT PANEL IS OUT.   
ACCESS TO FIRE EXTINGUISHER IS 
BLOCKED/HIDDEN. DOOR CLOSER COVER IS 
MISSING. CEILING TILE IS BROKEN. ONE LIGHT 
DIFFUSER HAS A WATER STAIN. ACCESS TO 
ELECTRICAL PANEL IS BLOCKED. FORMICA TRIM 
IS CHIPPING ON COUNTERTOP. DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN HAS LOW FLOW.  FAUCET HAS A DRIP 
AND LOW FLOW. HOLES IN FLOORING 
PROTECTION CAGE COVER FOR CLOCK IS 
LOOSE.ACCESS TO FIRE EXTINGUISHER IS 
BLOCKED/HIDDEN.. CARPET IS TORN. ONE LIGHT 
PANEL IS OUT.  MULTIPLE LIGHT BULBS ARE 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 

OUT.  HOLE IN WALL IN REST ROOM. WALL HAS 
DAMAGE. 

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X   PAPER CUTTER IS UNABLE TO BE SECURED. . 
CORDS ARE CREATING A TRIP HAZARD ONE 
FAUCET HANDLE IS BROKEN. 

Electrical  X  ONE HAND DRYER HAS NO POWER. ELECTRICAL 
APPLIANCE IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO WATER 
SOURCE.  FAUCET HAS A LOW FLOW AND A 
DRIP. 
ACCESS TO ELECTRICAL PANEL IS BLOCKED. 
GIRLS REST ROOM: BOTH HAND DRYERS HAVE 
NO POWER.   DOOR STOP IS LOOSE.  MULTIPLE 
LIGHT BULBS ARE OUT.  HOLE IN WALL IN REST 
ROOM. WALL HAS DAMAGE.  WALL PAINT IS 
CHIPPING.ONE TOILET LEAKS AT FITTING. TWO 
FAUCETS LEAK AT HANDLE. 
 

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

 X  ELECTRICAL APPLIANCE IN CLOSE PROXIMITY 
TO WATER SOURCE. 
FAUCET AND DRINKING FOUNTAIN HAVE A DRIP.  
DOOR CLOSER COVER IS MISSING. HAND DRYER 
HAS NO POWER. ONE TOILET IS LOOSE AT BASE. 
ONE FAUCET HAS A DRIP AND LEAKS AT 
HANDLE.  G.CEILING TILES ARE LOOSE. 
EVACUATION MAP IS NOT POSTED. WINDOW 
SCREEN IS MISSING.CARPET IS TORN. DRINKING 
FOUNTAIN HAS A HIGH FLOW. 
 

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X   ACCESS TO FIRE EXTINGUISHER IS 
BLOCKED/HIDDEN. 
 

Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X    

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X   CEILING IS STAINED. LINOLEUM HAS HOLES. 
DOOR CLOSER COVER IS MISSING.FORMICA 
TRIM IS CHIPPING ON COUNTERTOP.  . 
DRINKING FOUNTAIN HAS A LOW FLOW. STOP IS 
LOOSE. CEILING TILES   WINDOW SCREEN IS 
MISSING. UNISEX STAFF REST ROOM:  DOOR 
HANDLE RING/COVER IS MISSING. 
 

 

 
Overall Facility Rate 

Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

            X            
 

 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement) 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
 

 
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

51 52 47 47 47 46 

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

32 33 35 38 33 34 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         747 731 97.86 2.14 51.85 

Female         370 360 97.30 2.70 58.33 

Male         377 371 98.41 1.59 45.55 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         21 21 100.00 0.00 66.67 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         476 466 97.90 2.10 44.64 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         18 18 100.00 0.00 72.22 

White         211 205 97.16 2.84 62.93 

English Learners         100 94 94.00 6.00 5.32 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         13 13 100.00 0.00 46.15 

Military         -- -- -- -- -- 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         342 334 97.66 2.34 39.52 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         54 53 98.15 1.85 45.28 

Students with Disabilities          103 100 97.09 2.91 14.00 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         747 730 97.72 2.28 33.29 

Female         370 359 97.03 2.97 32.31 

Male         377 371 98.41 1.59 34.23 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         21 21 100.00 0.00 47.62 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         476 466 97.90 2.10 26.82 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         18 18 100.00 0.00 38.89 

White         211 205 97.16 2.84 44.88 

English Learners         100 99 99.00 1.00 7.07 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         13 13 100.00 0.00 38.46 

Military         -- -- -- -- -- 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         342 335 97.95 2.05 25.07 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         54 53 98.15 1.85 35.85 

Students with Disabilities          103 99 96.12 3.88 12.12 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject 
School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

28.73 31.52 28.85 29.31 29.47 30.29 

 

 
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group 
Total  

Enrollment 
Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 

All Students         353 351 99.43 0.57 31.91 

Female         165 164 99.39 0.61 32.93 

Male         188 187 99.47 0.53 31.02 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         12 12 100.00 0.00 33.33 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         231 230 99.57 0.43 27.39 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races         -- -- -- -- -- 

White         92 91 98.91 1.09 40.66 

English Learners         29 29 100.00 0.00 3.45 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         -- -- -- -- -- 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         168 168 100.00 0.00 17.26 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         25 25 100.00 0.00 20.00 

Students with Disabilities          48 47 97.92 2.08 10.64 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes) 
2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level 
Component 1: 

Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 7 94% 95% 95% 95% 96% 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement) 

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 

McCaffrey Middle School prioritizes parent engagement through a multifaceted approach. Parents are actively encouraged to 
participate in various events, including parent conferences and specialized training sessions addressing contemporary issues 
such as the harmful effects of social media and fentanyl. The inclusion of parents in the English Learner Advisory Council 
(ELAC) underscores the school's commitment to meeting the diverse needs of its student body. 
 
Regular communication is facilitated through a bi-weekly newsletter, ensuring parents stay informed about campus events. 
Additionally, the invitation for parents to attend School Site Council meetings at least three times a year allows for direct 
involvement in decision-making processes. The current participation of two parents in these meetings highlights the tangible 
impact of parental input. 
 
Parental engagement extends beyond meetings, with opportunities for parents to attend Parent Lunch days throughout the 
school year, fostering a positive connection between parents and students. The ongoing invitation for parents to provide input 
through School Site Council participation reinforces the collaborative culture. 
 
Recognizing the significance of smooth transitions, McCaffrey Middle School organizes Zoom webinars for incoming 7th grade 
parents, delivering crucial information in both English and Spanish. Furthermore, collaboration with high school counseling and 
administration ensures that 8th-grade parents receive valuable insights to prepare their students for the transition to high 
school. 
 
In essence, McCaffrey Middle School's commitment to fostering parent involvement and input reflects a holistic strategy aimed 
at creating a positive school culture that enhances student engagement and achievement at every stage of their educational 
journey. 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group 
Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 

All Students         777 770 237 30.8 

Female         381 379 111 29.3 

Male         396 391 126 32.2 

Non-Binary 0 0 0 0.0 

American Indian or Alaska Native         1 1 0 0.0 

Asian         22 21 2 9.5 

Black or African American          10 10 3 30.0 

Filipino         7 6 2 33.3 

Hispanic or Latino         492 488 159 32.6 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         4 4 0 0.0 

Two or More Races         19 19 4 21.1 

White         222 221 67 30.3 

English Learners         139 138 45 32.6 

Foster Youth         1 1 1 100.0 

Homeless         14 14 5 35.7 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         464 459 162 35.3 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         56 56 11 19.6 

Students with Disabilities          115 112 47 42.0 
 

 

C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate) 

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 

• Pupil expulsion rates; and 

• Other local measures on the sense of safety 
 

 
Suspensions and Expulsions 

Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate 
School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 4.06 10.55 0.00 1.67 3.52 0.20 3.17 3.60 

Expulsions 0.00 0.39 0.39 0.00 0.14 0.09 0.00 0.07 0.08 
 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students         10.55 0.39 

Female         10.5 0 

Male         10.61 0.76 

Non-Binary           

American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 

Asian         0 0 

Black or African American          0 0 

Filipino         0 0 

Hispanic or Latino         12.2 0.61 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races         0 0 

White         9.46 0 

English Learners         15.83 1.44 

Foster Youth         0 0 

Homeless         21.43 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         13.36 0.65 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         12.5 0 

Students with Disabilities          17.39 0 
 

 
2023-24 School Safety Plan 

2023-24 School Safety Plan 

The district has developed a comprehensive emergency plan in conjunction with the Galt Police and Fire Departments which 
describes specific procedures for all types of emergencies. The plan is updated every fall. An “Emergency Handbook”, kept in 
the office, outlines the plan of action for emergencies such as earthquakes, fires, floods and chemical spills. School sites have 
an evacuation plan and emergency drills are conducted regularly. Periodic, random school safety inspections are conducted by 
the Schools Insurance Authority of Sacramento County. All gates remain locked throughout the school day with admittance to 
the campus only through the main office. Visitors to the campus are required to check in and out at the office to receive a 
badge.  Safety drills are practiced with Galt PD on a trimester basis to ensure students and adults know the course of action to 
take in an emergency situation. 
 
The McCaffrey Middle School Safety Plan was last approved by the Board of Education in  February 2023 after being reviewed 
by stakeholder groups which included administrators, staff, and parents.  This plan contains information gleaned from the 
California Healthy Kids Survey along with details on behavior standards, school rules and policies, and campus security. 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this 
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level. 

Subject 
Average  

Class 
 Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-22 Students 

Number of Classes with  
23-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

English Language Arts         24 12 20 1 

Mathematics         25 9 16 4 

Science         24 13 19  

Social Science         23 14 18  
 

 
2021-22 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2021-22 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this 
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level. 

Subject 
Average  

Class 
 Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-22 Students 

Number of Classes with  
23-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

English Language Arts         23 11 22  

Mathematics         20 21 13  

Science         22 15 17  

Social Science         23 15 17  
 

 
2022-23 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

2022-23 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this 
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level. 

Subject 
Average  

Class 
 Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-22 Students 

Number of Classes with  
23-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

English Language Arts         23 9 21 3 

Mathematics         20 22 13 0 

Science         23 8 23 1 

Social Science         23 13 19 0 
 

 
2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor 746 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

 
2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 1 

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  

Psychologist 1 

Social Worker  

Nurse        

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1 

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  

Other       1 
 

 
 
2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 12,861 5,463 7,397 83,655 

District N/A N/A 7,596 $80,657 

Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -2.7 3.6 

State N/A N/A $7,607 $88,288 

Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A -2.8 -5.4 
 

 
2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

McCaffrey Middle School has developed a comprehensive range of programs to cater to the diverse needs of students, 
addressing both academic achievement and mental health support. These programs, offered throughout the school day and in 
extended hours, reflect a commitment to providing targeted services. Here's an overview of the initiatives: 
 
MAC (McCaffrey Advisory Committee): A collaborative platform for addressing the unique needs of students through strategic 
planning and coordination. 
 
School Counselors: Two full-time school counselors play a pivotal role in supporting academic, mental, and social-emotional 
health, offering individual and small group counseling for at-risk students. 
 
Mental Health Therapist: A full-time therapist, funded by the Sacramento County Office of Education, provides individualized 
support for students facing mental health issues. 
 
Expanded Learning Program: After-school services until 6:00 pm daily, offering a nutritious meal, enrichment activities, physical 
exercise, and homework support. 
 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 

Before and After School Tutoring: Comprehensive tutoring, including an Acceleration Program in various content areas, 
providing additional academic support. 
 
AVID (Advancement Via Individual Determination) Program: Focused on preparing students for college and career success, 
emphasizing academic and organizational skills. 
 
Instructional Assistants: Support for English learners and students with special needs provided by instructional assistants 
offering focused assistance. 
 
Clubs and Sports Programs: A variety of extracurricular activities contributing to students' overall development and 
engagement. 
 
MakerSpace Lab: A creative and hands-on learning environment housed within the school's Bright Future Learning Center. 
 
Partnership with the Salmon Project: Collaborative initiatives enhancing student learning and engagement, potentially involving 
environmental education. 
 
EAOP (Early Academic Outreach Program) through U.C. Davis: Early academic support and guidance fostering a college-
bound mindset. 
 
ATOD Peer Prevention Program: A peer-led initiative aimed at reducing student use of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Other Drugs, 
promoting a healthy school environment. 
 
Strategies for Change (Well Space Health): Counseling services for mental health, providing individual and group counseling 
for youth. 
 
Too Good for Violence: Delivered by teacher volunteers, this program builds positive peer relations and prevents youth 
violence. 
 
Alternative Center: Catering to specific student needs or preferences, offering an alternative learning environment. 
 
Wellness Center: Providing a space for students to take a 10-minute mental break, promoting mental well-being. 
 
Bilingual Outreach Person: Focused on students struggling with attendance, conducting home visits, and making parent phone 
calls. 
 
THRIVE Program: Identifying students struggling with academics, attendance, and behavior issues, offering small group 
instruction in specific areas of difficulty. 
 
Peer-Mediator Program: Training students to assist with minor conflict resolution, supported by the counseling department. 
 
Club Live: Engaging students in positive extracurricular activities, potentially promoting leadership and teamwork skills. 
 
McCaffrey Middle School's extensive range of programs reflects a holistic approach to student development, emphasizing both 
academic excellence and mental well-being. These initiatives showcase a dedication to creating a supportive and inclusive 
learning environment. 
 
-------- 

 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category 
District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 

Beginning Teacher Salary $46,569 $54,046 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary $74,558 $84,515 

Highest Teacher Salary $98,732 $110,867 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $130,095 $136,841 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) $134,516 $141,477 

Average Principal Salary (High) $0 $137,985 

Superintendent Salary $189,500 $217,473 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 36.64% 32.43% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 5.75% 5.62% 
 

 
  

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/


2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 19 McCaffrey Middle School 

Professional Development 

Professional Development 

The goal for Galt Joint Union Elementary School District is provide meaningful staff development that focuses on student 
academic achievement and supporting student mental health.  This school year the staff at McCaffrey Middle School will attend 
three staff developments that focus on creating action plans that target positive school climate and culture and student 
academic achievement.  These actions plan will be reviewed and updated through out the school year. The goal is to address 
the needs of each individual student. 
 
McCaffrey Middle School places emphasis on student literacy and writing.  To this end, staff have developed a Literacy 
Handbook with various strategies to support students with their reading and writing.  These strategies are reviewed regularly in 
staff meetings with emphasis on collaborative discussions among teachers and recommitment to these best practices. 
 
Another point of emphasis at McCaffrey Middle School relates to student writing analyses (SWAP).  Staff members have the 
opportunity to participate in the analysis of student work with other department and team colleagues.  The focus of the 
analyses is determine areas of strength and needs in students' writing and use this information to improve instructional 
strategies and implement changes to their practice. 
 
AVID (Advancement Via Individual Determination) strategies are also practiced at McCaffrey Middle School.  Teachers are 
provided professional development from colleagues on these strategies during staff meetings, grade level meetings, and in 
their classrooms. 
 
Along with a literacy focus in all content areas, science teachers continue to be heavily involved as early implementers with 
NGSS.  Language Arts teachers will continue to receive PD in the Amplify program as needed. 
 
Implementation of Reading Routine. 
MAP assessment revealed a decline in student performance specifically in the reading section, indicating a need for targeted 
intervention. 
Recognizing the cross-disciplinary impact of reading skills, a decision was made to implement a reading routine across all 
content areas. 
To ensure widespread adoption, staff received training on effectively integrating the reading routine into their respective 
classrooms. 
The initiative aims to address reading challenges comprehensively, fostering improvement in student performance across 
various subjects. 
------ 

 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 3 3 3 
 

 



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date:  January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.462 
Board Consideration of Approval of 19six 
Architects’ Proposal for Professional 
Architectural and Engineering Services for 
Vernon E. Greer Elementary New 
Relocatable Classroom Buildings   
 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: XX 
  Information Item: 
 
 

Two portable classrooms at Greer Elementary School are dilapidated and need to be replaced. These 
portables are currently used for the Expanded Learning Program.  
 
The District will contract with 19-6 Architects for professional architectural and engineering services 
to remove the old portables and replace them with two new portable classroom buildings.  
 
The District will need to contract with a portable manufacturing company to build and deliver the 
portables. The proposed timeline for delivery of the portables is late fall 2024 to winter 2025. The 
District will also need to contract with a general contractor for the site work required once the 
portables are delivered. This project should be completed by summer 2025.  
 
Funding for architectural services: $86,800, Expanded Learning Funds  
 
Attachment: 19-6 Architects’ Proposal for Services 
 
Board approval is recommended.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 



 

 

December 20, 2023 

 

Lois Yount, Superintendent 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

1018 C Street, Suite 210 

Galt, CA 95932 

 

Project: Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

Vernon E. Greer Elementary School 

New Relocatable Classroom Buildings 

19six #:  23544.00 

 

Dear Mrs. Yount: 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with professional architectural and engineering services for 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District.  We are pleased to submit this proposal for the New 

Relocatable Classroom Buildings at Vernon E. Greer Elementary School, located at 248 West A street, Galt, 

CA 95932. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project consists of the demolition and off hauling of two (2) existing portable classroom buildings and 

their associated ramps and wood foundations; the installation of two (2) new PC portable classroom 

buildings and ramps at the same location with the associated utilities and site work.  

 

Portable Classroom Buildings 30’ x 32’ (960 SF x 2 Buildings =approx. 1,920 SF):  

• Two (2) new PC relocatable buildings. 

• Buildings will be installed on new wood foundations over regrade and new AC paving. 

• Reconnect power, data, low voltage, and fire alarm to existing systems. 

• Connect plumbing fixtures to new water line and new sanitary sewer line. 

 

Site Work approx. 4,000 SF): 

• Demo and off haul two (2) existing portable classroom buildings and associated ramps and wood  

             foundations.     

• Installation and connection of sanitary sewer and water lines to the new building location. 

• Patch and repair damaged existing AC paving under and around buildings. 

• Maintain compliance of existing accessible path of travel. 

• Accessibility upgrades, restripe accessible stall, add new post and signage at accessible stall. 



Greer ES New Relocatable Classroom Buildings 

 December 20, 2023 

Page 2 of 4 

 

SCHEDULE 

We are ready to proceed with this work upon your approval.  The following schedule assumes an 

authorization to proceed of January 3, 2024: 

Authorization to Proceed ............................................................... 01/03/24 

Construction Documents ..............................................................  02/21/24 

DSA Approval ....................................................................................  03/08/24 

Bidding and NTP ............................................................................... 05/15/24 

Construction Start ............................................................................  06/10/24 

Construction Completion  ............................................................  08/09/24 

 

Note that all construction activity shall be coordinated with the school and district schedule. Submittal 

dates above are also dependent on when we receive 2022 PC approved portable drawings and specs as 

we cannot complete our drawings or submit to DSA without them. 

 

TEAM 

1. Architects: 

 Principal in Charge/AOR:    Mariana Alvarez-Parga 

 Sr. Principal:                        Alan Kroeker 

 Sr. Project Manager:           Kim Johnson 

2. Civil Engineer:                     Warren Consulting Engineering, Inc. (WCE) 

3. Electrical Engineer:     The Engineering Enterprise (TEE) 

4. Mechanical Engineer:     Weston & Associates 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEES 

Services shall include professional architectural and engineering services.  Our project team will consist of 

Warren Consulting Engineers (WCE), The Engineering Enterprise (TEE), and Weston & Associates. A 

breakdown of the services is as follows: 

A. Construction Documents 

1. Preparation of necessary plans and details 

2. Specifications 

3. (1) meetings to review plans and specifications 

Fee $ 55,200 
 

B. DSA Coordination and Approval 

1. Digital submittal to DSA (OTC) 

2. Revise drawings and specifications per DSA review comments 

3. Coordination with design consultants 

Fee $ 6,250 
 



Greer ES New Relocatable Classroom Buildings 

 December 20, 2023 

Page 3 of 4 

 

C. Bidding 

1. Attend bid job walk 

2. Respond to bid questions 

3. Prepare addenda as necessary 

4. Review contractor pricing 

Fee $ 4,100 
 

D. Construction Administration 

1. Owner-Architect-Contractor (OAC) meeting eight (8), in-person and virtual meetings based on 3-

month construction schedule) 

2. Review submittals  

3. Respond to contractor questions (RFI’s) 

4. (2) final punch list walks 

Fee $ 21,250 

Basic Services Fixed Fee  $ 86,800 

 

 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

There are no reimbursable expenses anticipated for this project.  All submittals will be in electronic format. 

 

Bid set printing for plans and specs shall be paid directly by the Owner to the print vendor.  Bid set 

printing includes plans and specifications for: Contractor(s), Owner (includes owner’s representative 

and/or Construction manager, as applicable), Testing Lab, Soils Engineer, Inspector (if applicable), Design 

Team, and Plan Rooms (if applicable). 

EXCLUSIONS 

The following are not included in our services described above:  

• As-built drawings for the existing buildings, including PC documents from the manufacturer and 

in-plant verified reports for inclusion in the DSA Application. 

• Plan review application fees  

• Blueprinting and photocopying costs for additional copies beyond those required for the 

meetings and as listed above 

• The following systems are not included in this proposal:  

Electrical system, Voice and Data systems, CATV system, Intercom and Clock Systems, Intrusion 

(security alarm) system, Access control system, CCTV system, and Audio-Visual system. 

• Redesign for changes in project scope or Owner requirements following the approval of scope 

and compensation outlined in this document. 

• Structural analysis or structural and seismic design of equipment anchorage and support systems. 

We don’t anticipate this being a need since the equipment is standard. 

• Topographic Survey and/or soils reports (to be provided by District, if necessary). 

• Connection of site utilities beyond power/data/fire alarm, sewer, and water. 

• Upgrade of existing power, data, or fire alarm infrastructure. 

• Structural design of foundations or building reinforcement. Foundations will be per the PC 

documents. 

• Cost estimates 

 



Greer ES New Relocatable Classroom Buildings 

 December 20, 2023 

Page 4 of 4 

 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

We will bill you monthly based on a percentage complete basis.  Payment is expected within 30 days of 

the billing date. 

 

Services will be managed by Kim Johnson, Senior Project Manager, and overseen by Mariana Alvarez-

Parga – license number C36107 

 

If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign below, and return a copy for our records or have 

your legal counsel prepare a formal contract.  We will start work upon your written authorization below 

while the formal contract is being prepared.   

 

Thank you for this opportunity to be of service.  We look forward to assisting you with these much-

needed improvements.  

 

Sincerely, Accepted by: 

  

 

 __________________________________________ 

Mariana Alvarez-Parga, Architect Signature 

Principal  

19six Architects __________________________________________ 
Name (printed) 

 

__________________________________________ 
Title 

 

 __________________________________________ 
 Date 

 

 

Attachments: Exhibit A 

  



Vernon E. Greer Elementary School
12/11/2023

N

100'-0"

Exhibit A

Demo and dispose of (E) Portables 19 & 20 and ramps

Install 2 (N) 30' x 32' portable buildings and (N) ramps,
overhangs add 9', shown here

Install sanitary sewer and water for sinks

20 19

(E) Asphalt, electrical, fire alarm and
low voltage to remain and be reused.

(E) Path of Travel to remain

Restriping of accessible stall, add new post
and signage, per code requirement



 
1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 

209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
 

Meeting Date:  January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.463 
Board Consideration of Approval of 2024-25  
E-rate Service Providers 
 

Presenter: Alejandra Garibay Action Item: XX 
  Information Item: 
 
 

 
On November 20, 2023, the Galt Joint Union Elementary School district issued a Request For 
Proposal (RFP) for an E-rate service provider for Category 1 to lease Lit or Dark Fiber Service and 
Category 2 to purchase network electronics only, with no installation. Both RFPs are contingent 
upon the approval of funding for the 2024-25 fiscal year from the Universal Service Program for 
Schools and Libraries, otherwise known as E-rate. The District received three responsive bid 
proposals for Category 1 and five responsive bid proposals for Category 2. The proposals were 
ranked. The Category 1 proposal from AT&T was selected to provide the leased Dark Fiber service. 
The Category 2 proposal from Gigakom was selected to provide network electronics.  
 
Board approval is recommended to approve the Category 1 proposal from AT&T to provide the 
leased Dark Fiber service and the Category 2 proposal from Gigakom to provide network 
electronics.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 







































































































1018 C Street, Suite 210, Galt, CA 95632 
209-744 4545 * 209-744-4553 fax

Board Meeting Agenda Item Information 
Meeting Date: January 17, 2024 Agenda Item: 232.464 

Board Consideration of Approval of the Board 
Policies (BP) and Administrative Regulations 
(AR) Listed Below 

Presenter: Lois Yount Action Item: 
 Cabinet First Reading:     XX 

1. BP 0460 Local Control Accountability Plan
2. AR 0460 Local Control Accountability Plan
3. BP 0500 – Accountability
4. BP 0520 – Intervention in Underperforming Schools
5. AR 1220 – Citizen Advisory Committees
6. BP 1431 - Waivers
7. BP 3400 – Management of District Assets/Accounts
8. AR 3400 – Management of District Assets/Accounts
9. BP 5116.2 Involuntary Student Transfers
10. BP 5131.2 – Bullying
11. AR 5131.2 – Bullying
12. AR 5141.21 – Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions
13. BP 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education
14. AR 5148.3 – Preschool/Early Childhood Education
15. BP 6170.1 – Transitional Kindergarten
16. BP 6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education
17. AR 6142.8 Comprehensive Health Education
18. BP 9321 Closed Session
19. E(1) 9321 Closed Session
20. E(2) 9321 Closed Session
21. BP 1325 Advertising And Promotion

Galt Joint Union Elementary School District 

Guide Sheet



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
December 2023 

 
 

1. Board Policy 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan 
Presenter: Lois Yount, Superintendent 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which (1) requires numerous changes to the local 
control and accountability plan (LCAP) for use in the 2024-25 school year, and (2) adds "long-term English 
learners," defined by NEW LAW (SB 141, 2023) as a student who has not attained English language 
proficiency within seven years of initial classification as an English learner, as a numerically significant 
subgroup. Policy also updated to add headers for clarity, align the structure of the policy with the LCAP 
process, and clarify references to the annual update and budget overview for parents/guardians. 

 
2. Administrative Regulation 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan 
Presenter: Lois Yount, Superintendent 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which (1) requires numerous changes to the local 
control and accountability plan (LCAP) for use in the 2024-25 school year, and (2) adds "long-term English 
learners," defined by NEW LAW (SB 141, 2023) as a student who has not attained English language 
proficiency within seven years of initial classification as an English learner, as a numerically significant 
subgroup. Regulation also updated to add "Timeline" section to provide greater specificity regarding 
required LCAP dates and recommended dates based on best practice, and reflect NEW LAW (SB 609, 
2023) which requires districts to post the LCAP on the performance overview portion of the California 
School Dashboard. 

 
3. Board Policy 0500 – Accountability 
Presenter: Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director 

Policy updated to reflect that the U.S. Department of Education declined the California Department of 
Education's (CDE) waiver request that would have allowed for the continued use of modified methods 
for calculating the Academic and Graduation Rate Indicators, resulting in the California School Dashboard 
no longer including any modified methods applied to state indicators and all Dashboard Alternative 
School Status schools being treated the same as all other schools on the Dashboard. Policy also updated 
to reflect NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which (1) adds "long-term English learners," defined by NEW LAW 
(SB 141, 2023) as a student who has not attained English language proficiency within seven years of initial 
classification as an English learner, as a numerically significant subgroup, (2) creates a new basis for 
technical assistance when the district fails to meet specified data submission requirements, and (3) 
specifies when the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) will consult with the district 
and any provider of technical assistance to determine if assistance from CCEE is necessary. 

 
4. Board Policy 0520 - Intervention in Underperforming Schools 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which (1) expands technical assistance based on a 
numerically significant student subgroup not making sufficient progress towards its local control and 
accountability plan (LCAP) to include identifying student subgroups that are low performing or 
experiencing significant disparities from other students or subgroups as identified on the California School 
Dashboard, (2) creates a new basis for technical assistance when the district fails to meet specified data 
submission requirements which includes identifying areas of strengths and weaknesses in the identified 
goals, actions, and services addressed in the LCAP, and reviewing the district's data management policies 
and collection and submission processes to ensure the submission of accurate data according to the 
processes and timelines established by the California Department of Education, and (3) specifies when 
the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) will consult with the district and any 
provider of technical assistance to determine if assistance from CCEE is necessary. 
 

5. Administrative Regulation 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 



Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1057, 2022) which exempts special education advisory 
committees from Brown Act requirements pertaining to open meetings, and instead requires these 
committees to comply with "mini" Brown Act requirements. Regulation also updated to more closely align 
with law and to clarify language. 

 
6. Board Policy 1431 – Waivers 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Policy updated to reference NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which prohibits a waiver request for transitional 
kindergarten and kindergarten requirements provided for in specified Education Code sections. Policy 
also updated to provide that advertisement of the notice for the public hearing which is required prior to 
the Governing Board submitting a waiver request to the State Board of Education includes publishing it 
on the district's website. 
 

7. Board Policy 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts 
Presenter: Alejandra Garibay. Chief Business Official  

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1439, 2022) related to conflict of interest from campaign 
contributions and existing conflict of interest provisions by providing that Governing Board members and 
district employees involved in the making of contracts on behalf of the district comply with the district's 
conflict of interest policy as specified in Board Bylaw 9270 - Conflict of Interest. Policy also updated to 
direct the Superintendent to submit reports of the district's financial status to the Board, in accordance 
with Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability, and 
develop additional internal controls to strengthen fraud prevention. 

 
8. Administrative Regulation 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts 
Presenter: Alejandra Garibay, Chief Business Official 

Regulation updated to reference Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement #87 
regarding lease accounting and GASB Statement #96 regarding subscription-based information 
technology agreements. Regulation also updated to clarify that the district should utilize the California 
Department of Education's standardized account code structure software to develop financial reports, 
and that the district's accounting system should comply with generally accepted accounting principles 
prescribed by GASB and meet other state and federal reporting guidelines. Additionally, regulation updated 
to expand the list of actions that constitute fraud, financial improprieties or irregularities; separate out 
district and county office of education investigations; clarify that the district cooperate with the County 
Superintendent of Schools, Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team, law enforcement, or other 
governmental entities that conduct a fraud investigation; and, consult legal when discussing or disclosing 
the result of any fraud investigation. 

 
9. Board Policy 5116.2 - Involuntary Student Transfers 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Policy updated to clarify that the policy only addresses involuntary transfers to other schools within the 
district, add that the determination of where to transfer a student who is the subject of involuntary 
transfer include a review of the programs to which the student may be involuntarily transferred, provide 
that the Superintendent or designee ensure that involuntary transfers are made in a nondiscriminatory 
manner, and reflect NEW CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE regarding legal 
requirements and recommended best practices governing voluntary and involuntary students transfers. 
Policy also updated to clarify requirements for an involuntary transfer of a student who has been 
convicted of a violent felony or a misdemeanor associated with possession of a firearm, an involuntary 
transfer to a continuation education program or class within the district, or an involuntary transfer to a 
community day school within the district. Additionally, policy updated to include information regarding 
notice and disclosure requirements. 

 
 
 
 



10. Board Policy 5131.2 – Bullying 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1078, 2023) which requires that the district's policy prohibiting 
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying include a statement that the policy applies to all 
acts of the Governing Board and Superintendent in enacting policies and procedures that govern the 
district. Policy also updated to reference NEW U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE addressing 
discrimination, and reflect CSBA's policy brief, "School Safety: Bullying and Cyberbullying," which 
encourages district families to model respectful behavior, contribute to a safe and supportive learning 
environment, and monitor potential causes of bullying. 

 
11. Administrative Regulation 5131.2 – Bullying 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Regulation updated to expand the definition of "cyberbullying" to reflect CSBA's policy brief, "School 
Safety: Bullying and Cyberbullying." Regulation also updated to add additional measures to prevent 
bullying as provided in NEW U.S. SURGEON GENERAL GUIDANCE by developing a strategic plan for 
school connectedness and social skills with benchmark tracking, implementing socially based 
educational  techniques, creating a supportive school environment that fosters belonging, and building 
social connection into health education courses. Additionally, regulation updated to include digital and 
media literacy skills in student instruction, as provided in NEW U.S. SURGEON GENERAL GUIDANCE, 
expand the responsibilities of staff as role models for students, and reflect NEW LAW (AB 2879, 2022) 
which requires a social media platform to establish a mechanism that allows any individual, regardless 
of whether that individual has a profile on the internet-based service, to report cyberbullying. Regulation 
additionally updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1165, 2023) which encourages the district to have a 
student who has been suspended, or for whom other means of correction have been implemented for 
an incident of racist bullying, harassment, or intimidation, and the victim, to engage in a restorative 
justice practice suitable to address the needs of both of the students, engage the perpetrator in a 
culturally sensitive program, and to regularly check on the victim to ensure that the victim is not in danger 
of suffering from any long-lasting mental health issues. 

 
12. Administrative Regulation 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Regulation updated to reference NEW LAW (AB 1722, 2023) which authorizes districts to hire a licensed 
vocational nurse following Governing Board approval that a diligent search was conducted for a suitable 
credentialed nurse, include definitions that pertain to new legislation, and reflect NEW LAW (AB 1651, 
2023) which (1) includes holders of an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate as those for whom districts 
are required to provide epinephrine auto-injectors if they have volunteered to administer them in an 
emergency and have received training, and (2) requires schools that provide epinephrine auto-injectors 
to store them in an accessible location and include that location in annual notices to staff. Regulation 
also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1283, 2023) which authorizes districts to provide emergency stock 
albuterol inhalers to school nurses or trained personnel who have volunteered, who may use the inhaler 
to provide emergency medical aid to person(s) suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from 
respiratory distress, NEW LAW (SB 114, 2023) which appropriates funding to county offices of education 
for the purpose of purchasing and maintaining a sufficient stock of opioid antagonists for districts, NEW 
LAW (AB 1166, 2023) which provides that employees and volunteers who render emergency treatment 
at the scene of an opioid overdose or suspected opioid overdose by administering an opioid antagonist 
will not be liable for civil damages resulting from an act or omission, unless such act constitutes gross 
negligence or willful or wanton misconduct, and NEW LAW (AB 1810, 2022) which authorizes a school 
nurse or a volunteer designated and trained to administer emergency anti-seizure medication to a 
student diagnosed with seizures, a seizure disorder, or epilepsy who has been prescribed such 
medication from a health care provider and is suffering from a seizure. 

 
 
 
 



13. Board Policy 5148.3 - Preschool/ Early Childhood Education 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Policy updated to include that that the district may enroll children who are in a transitional kindergarten 
(TK) or kindergarten program in a California State Preschool Program (CSPP) before and/or after the 
regular school day in order to provide families with the option of a full-day, high-quality instructional 
program, and reflect NEW LAW (SB 141, 2023) which requires a district that offers TK to early enrollment 
children to concurrently offer enrollment in a CSPP, if offered by the district, and space permitting. 

 
14. Administrative Regulation 5148.3 - Preschool/ Early Childhood Education 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 141, 2023) which requires a district that offers transitional 
kindergarten (TK) to early enrollment children to concurrently offer enrollment in a California State 
Preschool Program (CSPP), and to add the definition of "early enrollment child." Regulation also updated 
to reflect NEW LAW (SB 141, 2023) which revises the enrollment priorities for part-day CSPP programs, 
and NEW LAW (AB 116, 2023) which allows family fees accrued but not collected prior to October 1, 2023, 
to be forgiven, and not collected. Additionally, Regulation updated to reflect NEW CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE which provides definitions related to suspension. 
 

15. Board Policy 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten 
Presenter: Kuljeet Nijjar, Educational Services Director 

Policy updated to clarify that a child's eligibility for transitional kindergarten (TK) enrollment may not 
impact family eligibility for a preschool or childcare program and that the district may admit into the TK 
program a child whose fifth birthday is after the date specified for admittance for the applicable year 
provided that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent or designee, the Governing Board 
determines that enrollment in a TK program is in the child's best interest and the child's 
parents/guardians approve. Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 141, 2023) which (1) requires a 
district that offers TK to early enrollment children to concurrently offer enrollment in a California State 
Preschool Program, if offered by the district and space permitting, and (2) requires any classroom that 
includes an early enrollment child to maintain a classroom enrollment that does not exceed 20 students 
and an adult-to-student ratio of at least one adult to every 10 students. Additionally, policy updated to 
include that average TK class size enrollment does not include students who are continuously enrolled in 
and meet the minimum day requirements for independent study for more than 14 school days in a school 
year. 
 

16. Board Policy 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education 
Presenter: Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director 

Policy updated to reflect NEW U.S. SURGEON GENERAL GUIDANCE related to (1) the importance of social 
connection in individual and societal health and well-being, and (2) the impact of social media on children 
and adolescents. Policy also updated to include the requirement that if districts offer health education 
courses to middle or high school students the course must include mental health instruction. 

 
17. Administrative Regulation 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education 
Presenter: Claudia Del Toro-Anguiano, Curriculum Director 

Regulation updated to include the requirement that if districts offer health education courses to middle 
or high school students the course must include mental health instruction, and to clarify that the "opt-
out" right to excuse a student only applies to comprehensive sexual health education, HIV prevention 
education, and related assessments, and does not apply to instruction, materials, presentations, and 
programming that discuss specified topics including gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual 
orientation, discrimination, harassment, bullying, intimidation, relationships, or family and do not discuss 
human reproductive organs and their functions. 

 
 

 
 



 
18. Board Bylaw 9321 - Closed Session 
Presenter: Lois Yount, Superintendent 

Bylaw updated to reflect appellate court ruling in Fowler v. City of Lafayette, which clarified that when 
an item is agendized in closed session based on a threat of litigation made by a person outside of an open 
meeting and a district official or employee receiving knowledge of the threat made a record of the 
statement before the meeting, that statement is required to be made available to the public. Bylaw also 
updated to reference accompanying Exhibit (1) for specific agenda descriptions for closed session items 
and accompanying Exhibit (2) for descriptions to report out of specified closed session items. 
Additionally, Bylaw updated for clarity, precision, and consistency. 

 
19. Exhibit(1) 9321 - Closed Session 
Presenter: Lois Yount, Superintendent 

Exhibit updated for clarity and precision, and for consistency with changes to the accompanying Board 
Bylaw. 

 
20. Exhibit(2) 9321 - Closed Session 
Presenter: Lois Yount, Superintendent 

Exhibit updated for clarity and precision, and for consistency with changes to the accompanying Board 
Bylaw. 

 
21. Added: Board Policy 1325 Advertising And Promotion 
Presenter: Lois Yount, Superintendent 



Policy 0460: Local Control And Accountability PlanPolicy 0460: Local Control And Accountability Plan Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 04/19/2023

The Governing Board desires to ensure the most effective use of available funding to improve outcomes for all
students. A comprehensive, data-driven planning process shall be used to identify annual goals and specific actions
which are aligned with the district budget and facilitate continuous improvement of district practices.

The Board shall adopt a districtwide local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and an annual update to the LCAP,
based on the most up-to-date template adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE), that addresses the state
priorities in Education Code 52060 and any local priorities adopted by the Board. The LCAP and the annual update
shall be adopted or updated, as required, on or before July 1 of each year.  (Education Code 52060, 52064; 5 CCR
15494-15497)

The LCAP and the annual update shall focus on improving outcomes for all students, particularly those who are
"unduplicated students" or are part of any numerically significant student subgroup that is at risk of or is
underperforming.  (Education Code 52060, 52064)

An "unduplicated student" is a student who is eligible for free or reduced-price meals, who is an English learner, or
who is a foster youth, as defined in Education Code 42238.01.  (Education Code 42238.02)

Numerically significant student subgroups include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students,
English learners, long-term English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and students experiencing
homelessness, when there are at least 30 students in the subgroup or at least 15 foster youth, students experiencing
homelessness, or long-term English learners.  (Education Code 52052)

Beginning July 1, 2025, if the district is identified by the California Department of Education (CDE) as needing an
improvement plan pursuant to 34 CFR 300.600-300.647, the Board shall adopt, and update on an annual basis, an
Individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum, based on the template adopted by SBE. However, if the
district adopts an improvement plan after being identified, but before July 1, 2025, the IDEA Addendum shall be
developed upon expiration of the adopted improvement plan, but no later than July 1, 2028, whichever occurs first.
The IDEA addendum shall be developed, reviewed, and approved in conjunction with and in the same manner as the
LCAP and the annual update, and shall be submitted to CDE within 15 days of adoption by the Board.  (Education
Code 52064.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall review the school plan for student achievement (SPSA) submitted by each
district school pursuant to Education Code 64001 to ensure that the specific actions included in the LCAP are
consistent with strategies included in the SPSA.  (Education Code 52062)

The LCAP shall also be aligned with other district and school plans, to the extent possible, in order to minimize
duplication of effort and provide clear direction for program implementation.

As part of the adoption of the LCAP and the annual update, the Board shall separately adopt a local control funding
formula budget overview for parents/guardians, based on the template developed by SBE, which includes specified
information relating to the district's budget. The budget overview shall be adopted, reviewed, and approved in the
same manner as the LCAP and the annual update.  (Education Code 52064.1)

Advisory Committees

The Board shall establish a parent advisory committee, which shall be composed of a majority of parents/guardians
and shall include parents/guardians of unduplicated students and parents/guardians of students with disabilities.
 (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495)

Whenever district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English learners, with at least 50 students who are English

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

1.



learners, the Board shall establish an English learner parent advisory committee, which shall be composed of a
majority of parents/guardians of English learners.  (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495)

Beginning July 1, 2024, unless a student advisory committee is established to provide advice to the Board and
Superintendent, two students shall be included as full members of the parent advisory committee. The students shall
serve for a renewable term of one full school year.  (Education Code 52063)

Student members of the parent advisory committee or the student advisory committee shall represent the diversity
of the district's students, including geographical, socioeconomic, cultural, physical, and educational diversity, and
particular effort shall be made to reach out to at-risk or disadvantaged students to serve as members of such
committees.  (Education Code 52063)

The Superintendent or designee shall present the LCAP and the annual update to each of these committee(s) before
they are submitted to the Board for adoption, and shall respond in writing to comments received from the
committee(s).

LCAP Development and Consultation

The Superintendent or designee shall gather data and information needed for effective and meaningful development
of the LCAP and present it to the Board and community. Such data and information shall include, but not be limited
to, data regarding the number of students in student subgroups, disaggregated data on student achievement levels,
and information about current programs and expenditures.

The Board shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, employee bargaining units,
parents/guardians, and students in developing the LCAP and the annual update. Consultation with students shall
enable unduplicated students and other numerically significant student subgroups to review and comment on LCAP
development and may include surveys of students, student forums and committees, and/or meetings with student
government bodies or other groups representing students.  (Education Code 52060; 5 CCR 15495)

As part of the parent/guardian and community engagement process, the district shall solicit input on effective and
appropriate instructional methods, including, but not limited to, establishing language acquisition programs to enable
all students, including English learners and native English speakers, to have access to the core academic content
standards and to become proficient in English.  (Education Code 305-306)

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with the administrator(s) of the special education local plan area of
which the district is a member to ensure that specific actions for students with disabilities are included in the LCAP
and are consistent with strategies included in the annual assurances support plan for the education of students with
disabilities.  (Education Code 52062)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to submit written comments
regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the LCAP and the annual update. The
notification shall be provided using the most efficient method of notification possible, which may not necessarily
include producing printed notices or sending notices by mail. All written notifications related to the LCAP and the
annual update shall be provided in the primary language of parents/guardians when required by Education Code
48985.  (Education Code 52062)

The Board shall hold at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments of members of the
public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the LCAP and the annual update.
The public hearing shall be held at the same meeting as the budget hearing required pursuant to Education Code
42127 and Board Policy 3100 - Budget.  (Education Code 52062)

Adoption and Submission

The Board shall adopt the LCAP and the annual update prior to adopting the district budget, but at the same public
meeting. This meeting shall be held after the public hearing described above, but not on the same day as the hearing.
 (Education Code 52062)



Not later than five days after adoption of the LCAP, the annual update, the district budget, and the budget overview
for parents/guardians, the Board shall file the LCAP, the annual update, the budget, and the budget overview with
the County Superintendent of Schools.  (Education Code 42127, 52064.1, 52070)

If the County Superintendent sends, by August 15, a written request for clarification of the contents of the LCAP and
the annual update, the Board shall respond in writing within 15 days of the request. If the County Superintendent
then submits recommendations for amendments within 15 days of receiving the Board's response, the Board shall
consider those recommendations in a public meeting within 15 days of receiving the recommendations.  (Education
Code 52070)

If the County Superintendent does not approve the district's LCAP and the annual update, the Board shall accept
technical assistance from the County Superintendent focused on revising the LCAP and the annual update so that
they can be approved.  (Education Code 52071)

Revisions

The Board may adopt revisions to the LCAP and the annual update at any time during the period in which it is in
effect, provided the Board follows the process to adopt the LCAP and the annual update pursuant to Education Code
52062 and the revisions are adopted in a public meeting.

Monitoring Progress and Complaints

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually in accordance with the timeline and
indicators established by the Superintendent and the Board, regarding the district's progress toward attaining each
goal identified in the LCAP. Evaluation shall include, but not be limited to, an assessment of district and school
performance reported on the California School Dashboard. Evaluation data shall be used to recommend any
necessary revisions to the LCAP.

Any complaint that the district has not complied with legal requirements pertaining to the LCAP may be filed
pursuant to Administrative Regulation 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 52075)

Technical Assistance

If the district's LCAP and the annual update are not approved, the district shall accept technical assistance or other
intervention that may be required pursuant to Education Code 52071.



Policy 0460: Local Control And Accountability PlanPolicy 0460: Local Control And Accountability Plan Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 04/19/2023 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 04/19/2023

The Governing Board desires to ensure the most effective use of available funding to improve outcomes for all
students. A comprehensive, data-driven planning process shall be used to identify annual goals and specific actions
which are aligned with the district budget and facilitate continuous improvement of district practices.

The Board shall adopt a districtwide local control and accountability plan (LCAP), based on the template adopted by
the State Board of Education (SBE), that addresses the state priorities in Education Code 52060 and any local
priorities adopted by the Board. The LCAP shall be updated on or before July 1 of each year and, like the district
budget, shall cover the next fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.  (Education Code 52060, 52064; 5 CCR
15494-15497)

The LCAP shall focus on improving outcomes for all students, particularly those who are "unduplicated students" or
are part of any numerically significant student subgroup that is at risk of or is underperforming.

Unduplicated students include students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals, English learners, and foster
youth, as defined in Education Code 42238.01 for purposes of the local control funding formula (LCFF).  (Education
Code 42238.02)

Numerically significant student subgroups include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students,
English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students, when there are at least 30 students
in the subgroup or at least 15 foster youth or homeless students.  (Education Code 52052)

Beginning July 1, 2025, if the district is identified by the California Department of Education (CDE) as needing an
improvement plan pursuant to 34 CFR 300.600-300.647, the Board shall adopt, and update on an annual basis, an
Individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum, based on the template adopted by SBE. However, if the
district adopts an improvement plan after being identified, but before July 1, 2025, the IDEA Addendum shall be
developed upon expiration of the adopted improvement plan, but no later than July 1, 2028, whichever occurs first.
The IDEA addendum shall be developed, reviewed, and approved in conjunction with and in the same manner as the
LCAP and the annual update to the LCAP, and shall be submitted to CDE within 15 days of adoption by the Board.
 (Education Code 52064.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall review the school plan for student achievement (SPSA) submitted by each
district school pursuant to Education Code 64001 to ensure that the specific actions included in the LCAP are
consistent with strategies included in the SPSA.  (Education Code 52062)

The LCAP shall also be aligned with other district and school plans, to the extent possible, in order to minimize
duplication of effort and provide clear direction for program implementation.

As part of the LCAP adoption and annual update to the LCAP, the Board shall separately adopt an LCFF budget
overview for parents/guardians, based on the template developed by SBE, which includes specified information
relating to the district's budget. The budget overview shall be adopted, reviewed, and approved in the same manner
as the LCAP and the annual update.  (Education Code 52064.1)

Any complaint that the district has not complied with legal requirements pertaining to the LCAP may be filed
pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 52075)

Plan Development

The Superintendent or designee shall gather data and information needed for effective and meaningful plan
development and present it to the Board and community. Such data and information shall include, but not be limited
to, data regarding the number of students in student subgroups, disaggregated data on student achievement levels,
and information about current programs and expenditures.

The Board shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, employee bargaining units,
parents/guardians, and students in developing the LCAP.  Consultation with students shall enable unduplicated
students and other numerically significant student subgroups to review and comment on LCAP development and
may include surveys of students, student forums, student advisory committees, and/or meetings with student
government bodies or other groups representing students.  (Education Code 52060; 5 CCR 15495)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Public Review and Input

The Board shall establish a parent advisory committee to provide advice on the LCAP. The committee shall be
composed of a majority of parents/guardians and shall include parents/guardians of unduplicated students as defined
above and parents/guardians of students with disabilities.  (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495)

Beginning July 1, 2024, unless a student advisory committee is established to provide advice to the Board and
Superintendent, two students shall be included as full members of the parent advisory committee.  The students shall
serve for a renewable term of one full school year.  (Education Code 52063)

Student members of the parent advisory committee or the student advisory committee shall represent the diversity
of the district's students, including geographical, socioeconomic, cultural, physical, and educational diversity, and
particular effort shall be made to reach out to at-risk or disadvantaged students to serve as members of such
committees.  (Education Code 52063)

Whenever district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English learners, with at least 50 students who are English
learners, the Board shall establish an English learner parent advisory committee composed of a majority of
parents/guardians of English learners to review and comment on the LCAP.  (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495)

The Superintendent or designee shall present the LCAP to the committee(s) before it is submitted to the Board for
adoption, and shall respond in writing to comments received from the committee(s).

The Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to submit written comments
regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the LCAP. The notification shall be
provided using the most efficient method of notification possible, which may not necessarily include producing
printed notices or sending notices by mail. All written notifications related to the LCAP shall be provided in the
primary language of parents/guardians when required by Education Code 48985.  (Education Code 52062)

As part of the parent/guardian and community engagement process, the district shall solicit input on effective and
appropriate instructional methods, including, but not limited to, establishing language acquisition programs to enable
all students, including English learners and native English speakers, to have access to the core academic content
standards and to become proficient in English.  (Education Code 305-306)

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with the administrator(s) of the special education local plan area of
which the district is a member to ensure that specific actions for students with disabilities are included in the LCAP
and are consistent with strategies included in the annual assurances support plan for the education of students with
disabilities.  (Education Code 52062)

The Board shall hold at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments of members of the
public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the LCAP. The public hearing shall
be held at the same meeting as the budget hearing required pursuant to Education Code 42127 and AR 3100 -
Budget.  (Education Code 42127, 52062)

Adoption of the Plan

The Board shall adopt the LCAP prior to adopting the district budget, but at the same public meeting. This meeting
shall be held after the public hearing described above, but not on the same day as the hearing.  (Education Code
52062)

The Board may adopt revisions to the LCAP at any time during the period in which the plan is in effect, provided the
Board follows the process to adopt the LCAP pursuant to Education Code 52062 and the revisions are adopted in a
public meeting.  (Education Code 52062)

Submission of Plan to County Superintendent of Schools

Not later than five days after adoption of the LCAP, the district budget, and the budget overview for
parents/guardians, the Board shall file the LCAP, the budget, and the budget overview with the County
Superintendent of Schools.  (Education Code 42127, 52064.1, 52070)

If the County Superintendent sends, by August 15, a written request for clarification of the contents of the LCAP, the



Board shall respond in writing within 15 days of the request.  If the County Superintendent then submits
recommendations for amendments to the LCAP within 15 days of receiving the Board's response, the Board shall
consider those recommendations in a public meeting within 15 days of receiving the recommendations.  (Education
Code 52070)

If the County Superintendent does not approve the district's LCAP, the Board shall accept technical assistance from
the County Superintendent focused on revising the plan so that it can be approved.  (Education Code 52071)

Monitoring Progress

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually in accordance with the timeline and
indicators established by the Superintendent and the Board, regarding the district's progress toward attaining each
goal identified in the LCAP. Evaluation shall include, but not be limited to, an assessment of district and school
performance reported on the California School Dashboard. Evaluation data shall be used to recommend any
necessary revisions to the LCAP.

The Superintendent or designee shall seek and/or accept technical assistance or other intervention that may be
required pursuant to Education Code 52071 or 52072 when a school or a numerically significant student subgroup is
not making sufficient progress toward the goals in the LCAP.



Regulation 0460: Local Control And Accountability PlanRegulation 0460: Local Control And Accountability Plan Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 04/19/2023

Goals and Actions Addressing State and Local Priorities

The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) shall include, for the district and each district school:
 (Education Code 52060)

1. A description of the annual goals established for all students and for each numerically significant subgroup as
defined in Education Code 52052, including ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students,
English learners, long-term English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and students experiencing
homelessness. The LCAP shall identify goals for each of the following state priorities:

a. The degree to which district teachers are appropriately assigned in accordance with Education Code
44258.9 and fully credentialed in the subject areas and for the students they are teaching; every district
student has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional materials as determined pursuant to
Education Code 60119; and school facilities are maintained in good repair as specified in Education Code
17002

b. Implementation of the academic content and performance standards adopted by the State Board of
Education (SBE), including how the programs and services will enable English learners to access the
Common Core State Standards and the English language development standards for purposes of gaining
academic content knowledge and English language proficiency

c. Parent/guardian involvement and family engagement, including efforts the district makes to seek
parent/guardian input in district and school site decision making and how the district will promote
parent/guardian participation in programs for unduplicated students, as defined in Education Code
42238.02 and Board policy, and students with disabilities

d. Student achievement, as measured by all of the following as applicable:

i. Statewide assessments of student achievement

ii. The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University; have
successfully completed career technical education (CTE) sequences or programs of study that align
with SBE-approved career technical education standards and frameworks, including, but not
limited to, those described in Education Code 52302, 52372.5, or 54692; and have successfully
completed both college entrance courses and CTE sequences or programs

iii. The percentage of English learners who make progress toward English proficiency as measured by
the SBE-certified assessment of English proficiency

iv. The English learner reclassification rate

v. The percentage of students who have passed an Advanced Placement examination with a score of
3 or higher

vi. The percentage of students who demonstrate college preparedness in the Early Assessment
Program pursuant to Education Code 99300-99301

e. Student engagement, as measured by school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, middle school
dropout rates, high school dropout rates, and high school graduation rates, as applicable

f. School climate, as measured by student suspension and expulsion rates and other local measures,
including surveys of students, parents/guardians, and teachers on the sense of safety and school
connectedness, as applicable

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

2.



g. The extent to which students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course of study that includes all
of the subject areas described in Education Code 51210 and 51220, as applicable, including the
programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated students and students with disabilities,
and the programs and services that are provided to benefit these students as a result of supplemental
and concentration grant funding pursuant to Education Code 42238.02 and 42238.03

h. Student outcomes, if available, in the subject areas described in Education Code 51210 and 51220, as
applicable

2. Any goals identified for any local priorities established by the Governing Board.

3. A description of the specific actions the district will take during each year of the LCAP to achieve the identified
goals, including the enumeration of any specific actions necessary for that year to correct any deficiencies in
regard to the state and local priorities specified in Items #1-2 above. Such actions shall not supersede
provisions of existing collective bargaining agreements within the district.

For purposes of the descriptions required by Items #1-3 above, the Superintendent or designee may consider
qualitative information, including, but not limited to, findings that result from any school quality review conducted
pursuant to Education Code 52052 or any other reviews.  (Education Code 52060)

For any local priorities addressed in the LCAP, the Superintendent or designee shall identify and include in the LCAP
the method for measuring the district's progress toward achieving those goals.  (Education Code 52060)

To the extent practicable, data reported in the LCAP shall be reported in a manner consistent with how information
is reported on the California School Dashboard.  (Education Code 52060)

Increase or Improvement in Services for Unduplicated Students

The LCAP shall demonstrate how the district will increase or improve services for unduplicated students at least in
proportion to the increase in funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated
students.  (5 CCR 15494-15496)

When the district expends supplemental and/or concentration grant funds on a districtwide or schoolwide basis
during the year for which the LCAP is adopted, the district's LCAP shall:  (5 CCR 15496)

1. Identify those services that are being funded and provided on a districtwide or schoolwide basis

2. Describe how such services are principally directed towards, and are effective in, meeting the district's goals
for unduplicated students in the state priority areas and any local priority areas

3. If the enrollment of unduplicated students is less than 55 percent of district enrollment or less than 40 percent
of school enrollment, describe how these services are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's
goals for its unduplicated students in the state priority areas and any local priority areas. The description shall
provide the basis for this determination, including, but not limited to, any alternatives considered and any
supporting research, experiences, or educational theory.

Timeline

By February 28 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a report to the Board on the annual
update and the budget overview for parents/guardians. The report, which shall be presented to the Board at a
regular meeting, shall include all available midyear outcome data related to metrics identified in the current year's
LCAP and all available midyear expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the current year's
LCAP.  (Education Code 52062)

By May 15, but in no event later than May 31, the Superintendent or designee shall present the drafts of the LCAP
and the annual update to the committees listed in the accompanying board policy for review and comment and shall
provide each committee with a reasonable date by which each committee shall provide comments on the drafts. The
Superintendent or designee shall respond in writing to comments received from the committee(s) no later than the
public hearing on the LCAP and the annual update.



At the same time as the drafts of the LCAP and the annual update are presented to these committees, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to submit written comments
regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the LCAP. The notification shall be
provided using the most efficient method of notification possible, which may not necessarily include producing
printed notices or sending notices by mail. The notification shall also provide the deadline by which all written
comments must be received, which shall be no later than the deadline for comments from the committee(s). All such
written notifications shall be provided in the primary language of parents/guardians when required by Education
Code 48985.  (Education Code 52062)

Availability

The Superintendent or designee shall prominently post the LCAP, any updates or revisions to the LCAP, the annual
update, the IDEA Addendum as applicable, and the local control funding formula budget overview for
parents/guardians on the homepage of the district's website and the performance overview portion of the
Dashboard.  (Education Code 52064.1, 52064.3, 52065)



Regulation 0460: Local Control And Accountability PlanRegulation 0460: Local Control And Accountability Plan Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 04/19/2023 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 04/19/2023

Goals and Actions Addressing State and Local Priorities

The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and annual updates shall include, for the district and each
district school:  (Education Code 52060)

1. A description of the annual goals established for all students and for each numerically significant subgroup as
defined in Education Code 52052, including ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students,
English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. The LCAP shall identify goals
for each of the following state priorities:

a. The degree to which district teachers are appropriately assigned in accordance with Education Code
44258.9 and fully credentialed in the subject areas and for the students they are teaching; every district
student has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional materials as determined pursuant to
Education Code 60119; and school facilities are maintained in good repair as specified in Education Code
17002

b. Implementation of the academic content and performance standards adopted by the State Board of
Education (SBE), including how the programs and services will enable English learners to access the
Common Core State Standards and the English language development standards for purposes of gaining
academic content knowledge and English language proficiency

c. Parent/guardian involvement and family engagement, including efforts the district makes to seek
parent/guardian input in district and school site decision making and how the district will promote
parent/guardian participation in programs for unduplicated students, as defined in Education Code
42238.02 and Board policy, and students with disabilities

d. Student achievement, as measured by all of the following as applicable:

i. Statewide assessments of student achievement

ii. The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University; have
successfully completed career technical education (CTE) sequences or programs of study that align
with SBE-approved career technical education standards and frameworks, including, but not
limited to, those described in Education Code 52302, 52372.5, or 54692; and have successfully
completed both college entrance courses and CTE sequences or programs

iii. The percentage of English learners who make progress toward English proficiency as measured by
the SBE-certified assessment of English proficiency

iv. The English learner reclassification rate

v. The percentage of students who have passed an Advanced Placement examination with a score of
3 or higher

vi. The percentage of students who demonstrate college preparedness in the Early Assessment
Program pursuant to Education Code 99300-99301

e. Student engagement, as measured by school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, middle school
dropout rates, high school dropout rates, and high school graduation rates, as applicable

f. School climate, as measured by student suspension and expulsion rates and other local measures,
including surveys of students, parents/guardians, and teachers on the sense of safety and school
connectedness, as applicable

g. The extent to which students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course of study that includes all
of the subject areas described in Education Code 51210 and 51220, as applicable, including the

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated students and students with disabilities,
and the programs and services that are provided to benefit these students as a result of supplemental
and concentration grant funding pursuant to Education Code 42238.02 and 42238.03

h. Student outcomes, if available, in the subject areas described in Education Code 51210 and 51220, as
applicable

2. Any goals identified for any local priorities established by the Board.

3. A description of the specific actions the district will take during each year of the LCAP to achieve the identified
goals, including the enumeration of any specific actions necessary for that year to correct any deficiencies in
regard to the state and local priorities specified in Items #1-2 above. Such actions shall not supersede
provisions of existing collective bargaining agreements within the district.

For purposes of the descriptions required by Items #1-3 above, the Board may consider qualitative information,
including, but not limited to, findings that result from any school quality review conducted pursuant to Education
Code 52052 or any other reviews.  (Education Code 52060)

For any local priorities addressed in the LCAP, the Board and Superintendent or designee shall identify and include in
the LCAP the method for measuring the district's progress toward achieving those goals.  (Education Code 52060)

To the extent practicable, data reported in the LCAP shall be reported in a manner consistent with how information
is reported on the California School Dashboard.  (Education Code 52060)

Increase or Improvement in Services for Unduplicated Students

The LCAP shall demonstrate how the district will increase or improve services for unduplicated students at least in
proportion to the increase in funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated
students.  (5 CCR 15494-15496)

When the district expends supplemental and/or concentration grant funds on a districtwide or schoolwide basis
during the year for which the LCAP is adopted, the district's LCAP shall:  (5 CCR 15496)

1. Identify those services that are being funded and provided on a districtwide or schoolwide basis

2. Describe how such services are principally directed towards, and are effective in, meeting the district's goals
for unduplicated students in the state priority areas and any local priority areas

3. If the enrollment of unduplicated students is less than 55 percent of district enrollment or less than 40 percent
of school enrollment, describe how these services are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's
goals for its unduplicated students in the state priority areas and any local priority areas. The description shall
provide the basis for this determination, including, but not limited to, any alternatives considered and any
supporting research, experiences, or educational theory.

Availability of the Plan

The Superintendent or designee shall prominently post the LCAP, any updates or revisions to the LCAP, including the
IDEA Addendum as applicable, and the LCFF budget overview for parents/guardians on the homepage of the
district's web site.  (Education Code 52064.1, 52064.3, 52065)



Policy 0500: AccountabilityPolicy 0500: Accountability Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure accountability to the public for the performance of the
district and each district school. The Board shall regularly review the effectiveness of district programs, personnel,
and fiscal operations, with a focus on the capacity to improve student achievement. The Board shall establish
appropriate processes and measures to monitor results and to evaluate progress toward accomplishing the district's
vision and goals set forth in the local control and accountability plan (LCAP).

District and school performance shall be annually evaluated based on multiple measures specified in the California
Accountability and Continuous Improvement System as reported on the California School Dashboard.

The district and each district school shall demonstrate comparable improvement in academic achievement for all
numerically significant student student subgroups. Numerically significant student subgroups include ethnic
student subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, long-term English learners, students
with disabilities, foster youth, and students experiencing homelessness, when the student subgroup consists of at
least 30 students with a valid test score or 15 foster youth, long-term English learners, or students experiencing
homelessness.  (Education Code 52052)

The Superintendent shall provide regular reports to the Board and the public regarding district and school
performance. Opportunities for feedback from students, parents/guardians, staff, and community members shall be
made available as part of any review and evaluation of district programs and operations and as part of the
development or annual update of the LCAP.

Evaluation results may be used as a basis for revising district or school goals, updating the LCAP or other
comprehensive plans, identifying and developing strategies to address disparities in achievement among student
student subgroups, implementing programmatic changes, determining the need for additional support and assistance,
awarding incentives or rewards, and establishing other performance-based prioritiesconsequences.

The district shall accept technical assistance or other intervention that may be required pursuant to Education Code
52071 or 52072. If the County Superintendent of Schools is required to provide technical assistance to the district,
the district shall accept the technical assistance by providing timely documentation to, and maintaining regular
communication with, the County Superintendent.  (Education Code 52071)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

3.



Policy 0500: AccountabilityPolicy 0500: Accountability Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure accountability to the public for the performance of
district schools. The Board shall regularly review the effectiveness of the district's programs, personnel, and fiscal
operations, with a focus on the district's effectiveness in improving student achievement. The Board shall establish
systems and processes to monitor results and to evaluate the district's progress toward accomplishing the district's
vision and goals.

The Board and the Superintendent shall agree upon appropriate measures of district, school, and student
performance and shall establish a schedule for providing regular reports to the Board and the public regarding district
progress.

Opportunities for feedback from students, parents/guardians, staff, and community members shall be made available
as part of the review and evaluation of district programs and operations.

Indicators of district progress in improving student achievement shall include, but not be limited to, the Academic
Performance Index (API) established by the state's accountability system and measures of "adequate yearly progress"
(AYP) required under the federal accountability system.

Following the annual publication of the API and school rankings by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, the
Board shall, at a regularly scheduled meeting, discuss the results of each school's annual ranking. (Education Code
52056)

This discussion shall include an examination of scores from the Standardized Testing and Reporting (STAR) program,
by school, grade, and student subgroups including, White, Latino, Socioeconomically disadvantaged, English Learners,
and students with disabilities.

Evaluation results may be used as a basis for identifying and developing strategies to address disparities in
achievement among student subgroups, implementing programmatic changes, determining the need for additional
support or assistance, awarding incentives or rewards, and establishing other performance-based consequences.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 0520: Intervention In Underperforming SchoolsPolicy 0520: Intervention In Underperforming Schools Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

The Governing Board desires that all district schools provide a high-quality educational program that maximizes the
achievement of each district student. The district shall provide assistance to schools to support the continuous
improvement of student performance within the priorities identified in the district's local control and accountability
plan (LCAP) and to enhance the achievement of low-performing student subgroups.

At its discretion, the Board may submit a request to the County Superintendent of Schools for technical assistance
regarding the following:  (Education Code 52071)

1. Identifying the district's strengths and weaknesses in regard to state priorities addressed in the LCAP, including
collaboration between the district and County Superintendent to review performance data on the state and
local indicators included in the California School Dashboard, educator qualifications data, and other relevant
local data and to identify effective, evidence-based programs or practices that address any areas of weakness

2. Identifying student subgroups that are low performing or experiencing significant disparities from other
subgroups as identified on the California School Dashboard in order to identify and implement effective
programs and practices to improve the outcomes and opportunities for these students

3. Securing assistance from an academic, programmatic, or fiscal expert, or team of experts, to identify and
implement effective programs and practices that are designed to improve performance in any areas of
weakness identified by the district

4. Identifying areas of strengths and weaknesses in the identified goals, actions, and services addressed in the
LCAP, with a particular focus on those areas considered to be contributing toward meeting the increased or
improved services requirement and all required goals

5. Reviewing the district's data management policies and collection and submission processes, including
monitoring and oversight of the student information system, to ensure the submission of accurate data
according to the processes and timelines established by the California Department of Education (CDE)

In the event that the County Superintendent requires the district to receive technical assistance based on a
determination that one or more numerically significant student subgroups in a district school meet the performance
criteria established pursuant Education Code 52064.5, the district shall, for a minimum of two years, maintain regular
communication with, and provide timely documentation to, the County Superintendent regarding the district's
completion of the activities listed in Items #1-5 above, or substantially similar activities.  (Education Code 52071)

The district may, at its own expense, engage another service provider, including, but not limited to, another school
district, the county office of education, or a charter school, to act as a partner to the district in filling the district's
need for technical assistance.  (Education Code 52071)

The district shall consider any recommendations from the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence in order
to accomplish the goals set forth in the district's LCAP.  (Education Code 52071, 52072, 52074)

If the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) identifies the district as needing intervention, the district shall
cooperate with any action taken by the SPI or any academic advisor appointed by the SPI, which may include one or
more of the following:  (Education Code 52072.1)

1. Revision of the district's LCAP

2. Revision of the district's budget, in conjunction with changes in the LCAP, that would allow the district to
improve the outcomes for all student subgroups in regard to state and local priorities

3. A determination to stay or rescind any district action that would prevent the district from improving outcomes
for all student subgroups, provided that action is not required by a collective bargaining agreement

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

4.



In addition, any school identified by CDE for comprehensive support and improvement, targeted support and
improvement, or additional targeted support and improvement shall develop and implement a school plan in
accordance with 20 USC 6311. Such schools may be required to partner with an external entity, agency, or individual
with demonstrated expertise and capacity to identify and implement more rigorous interventions.



Regulation 1220: Citizen Advisory CommitteesRegulation 1220: Citizen Advisory Committees Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

Committee Charge

When committees are appointed, committee members shall receive written information which includes, but is not
limited to:

1. The committee members' names

2. The procedure to be used in the selection of the committee chairperson and other committee officers

3. The name(s) and contact information of staff member(s) assigned to support the work of the committee

4. The goals and specific charge(s) of the committee, including its topic(s) for study

5. The specific period of time that the committee is expected to serve

6. Legal requirements regarding meeting conduct and public notifications

7. Resources available to help the committee perform its tasks

8. Timelines for progress reports and/or final report

9. Relevant Board policies and administrative regulations

Committees Subject to Brown Act Requirements

Brown Act requirements pertaining to open meetings, notices, and public participation pursuant to Government
Code 54950-54963 shall be complied with by any committee created by formal action of the Governing Board,
including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Advisory committee established pursuant to Education Code 8070 related to career technical education

2. Committee established to assist in development of a student wellness policy pursuant to 42 USC 1758b

3. Committee established pursuant to Education Code 17387-17391 related to the use or disposition of excess
real property

4. Citizens' oversight committee established to examine the expenditure of general obligation bond or school
facilities improvement bond revenues passed with a 55 percent majority of the voters pursuant to Education
Code 15278 and 15359.3

Committees Not Subject to Brown Act Requirements

The following committees shall comply with procedural meeting requirements established in Education Code 35147:

1. Parent advisory committee and English learner parent advisory committee established pursuant to Education
Code 52063 to review and comment on the local control and accountability plan

2. School site councils established pursuant to Education Code 65000-65001 to develop and approve a school
plan for student achievement

3. District or school advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 52176 related to programs for
English learners

4. School advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 54425(b) related to compensatory

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

5.



education

5. Any district advisory committee established pursuant to Education Code 54444.2 related to migrant education
programs

6. School committees established pursuant to Education Code 11503 related to parent involvement

7. Advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 56190-56194 related to special education

Meetings of the above councils or committees shall be open to the public, and any member of the public shall have
the opportunity to address the council or committee during the meeting on any item within its subject matter
jurisdiction. Notice of the meeting shall be posted at the school site or other appropriate location accessible to the
public at least 72 hours before the meeting, specifying the date, time, and location of the meeting and containing an
agenda that describes each item of business to be discussed or acted upon.  (Education Code 35147)

The above councils or committees shall not take action on any item of business not listed on the agenda until after all
members present vote unanimously finding that there is a need to take immediate action and that this need came to
the council's or committee's attention after the agenda was posted. In addition to addressing items on the agenda,
members of the council, committee, or public may ask questions or make brief statements that do not have a
significant effect on district students or employees or that can be resolved solely by providing information.
 (Education Code 35147)

Any council or committee violating the above procedural requirements must, at the demand of any person,
reconsider the item at the next meeting, after allowing for public input on the item.  (Education Code 35147)

Any materials provided to a council or committee shall be made available to any member of the public upon request
pursuant to the California Public Records Act, Government Code 7920.00-7930.215.  (Education Code 35147)

Committees Created by Superintendent

Committees created by the Superintendent or designee that do not report to the Board and are not specified in
Education Code 35147, shall not be subject to the requirements of the Brown Act or Education Code 35147.



Regulation 1220: Citizen Advisory CommitteesRegulation 1220: Citizen Advisory Committees Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

Committee Charge

When committees are appointed, committee members shall receive written information including, but not limited to:

1. The committee members' names

2. The procedure to be used in the selection of the committee chairperson and other committee officers

3. The name(s) and contact information of staff member(s) assigned to support the work of the committee

4. The goals and specific charge(s) of the committee, including its topic(s) for study

5. The specific period of time that the committee is expected to serve

6. Legal requirements regarding meeting conduct and public notifications

7. Resources available to help the committee perform its tasks

8. Timelines for progress reports and/or final report

9. Relevant Board policies and administrative regulations

Members of advisory committees are not vicariously liable for injuries caused by the act or omission of the district or
a committee and are not liable for injuries caused by an act or omission of a committee member acting within the
scope of his/her role as a member of the committee. However, a member may be liable for injury caused by his/her
own wrongful conduct. (Government Code 815.2, 820.9)

Committees Subject to Brown Act Requirements

The following committees shall comply with Brown Act requirements pertaining to open meetings, notices, and
public participation, pursuant to Government Code 54950-54963:

1. Advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 56190-56194 related to special education

2. Advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 8070 related to career technical education

3. Committees established to assist in development of a student wellness policy pursuant to 42 USC 1751 Note

4. Committees established pursuant to Education Code 17387-17391 related to the use or disposition of excess
real property

5. Citizens' oversight committees established to examine the expenditure of general obligation bond or schools
facilities improvement bond revenues passed with a 55 percent majority of the voters pursuant to Education
Code 15278 and 15359.3

6. Other committees created by formal Governing Board action

Committees Not Subject to Brown Act Requirements

The following committees are exempt from the Brown Act but must conform with procedural meeting requirements
established in Education Code 35147:

1. School site councils established pursuant to Education Code 41507, 41572, or 52852 related to student
retention, school or library improvement, or school-based program coordination

2. District or school advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 52176 related to programs for
students of limited English proficiency

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



3. School advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 54425(b) related to compensatory
education

4. Any district advisory committee established pursuant to Education Code 54444.2 related to migrant education
programs

5. School site councils established pursuant to Education Code 62002.5 related to economic impact aid and
bilingual education

6. School committees established pursuant to Education Code 11503 related to parent involvement

Meetings of the above councils or committees shall be open to the public. Any member of the public shall have the
opportunity to address the council or committee during the meeting on any item within its jurisdiction. Notice of the
meeting shall be posted at the school site or other appropriate accessible location at least 72 hours before the
meeting, specifying the date, time, and location of the meeting and containing an agenda that describes each item of
business to be discussed or acted upon. (Education Code 35147)

The above councils or committees shall not take action on any item not listed on the agenda unless all members
present unanimously find that there is a need to take immediate action and that this need came to the council's or
committee's attention after the agenda was posted. In addition to addressing items on the agenda, members of the
council, committee, or public may ask questions or make brief statements that do not have a significant effect on
district students or employees or that can be resolved solely by providing information. (Education Code 35147)

Councils or committees violating the above procedural requirements must, at the demand of any person, reconsider
the item at the next meeting, first allowing for public input on the item. (Education Code 35147)

Any materials provided to a school site council shall be made available to any member of the public upon request
pursuant to the California Public Records Act. (Education Code 35147; Government Code 6250-6270)

Committees created by the Superintendent or designee to advise the administration and which do not report to the
Board are not subject to the requirements of the Brown Act or Education Code 35147.



Policy 1431: WaiversPolicy 1431: Waivers Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/26/2005

The Governing Board recognizes that circumstances may arise in the operation of the district that require a waiver
from state law or regulation. When it is in the interest of district students, the Board may request that the State
Board of Education (SBE) waive any provision of state law or regulation which SBE has authority to waive pursuant
to Education Code 33050.

Any waiver request to be submitted to SBE shall first be approved by the Board. The Superintendent or designee
shall ensure that each proposed waiver request includes all information necessary for the Board to analyze the need
for the waiver and make an informed decision.

If the proposed waiver request affects a program that requires the existence of a school site council, the
Superintendent or designee shall obtain the school site council's approval of the request before presenting it to the
Board. As appropriate, other councils or advisory committees, including bilingual advisory committees, shall be
provided adequate opportunity to review a proposed waiver request, and the request shall include a written
summary of any objections to the request by the councils or advisory committees.  (Education Code 33051)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall consult with the exclusive representative of district employees in
the development of the waiver request, and shall include in the request the exclusive representative's position
regarding the waiver.  (Education Code 33050, 33051)

A request for a waiver related to a regional occupational center or program operated by a joint powers agency shall
be submitted as a joint waiver request with other participating school districts upon approval of a unanimous vote of
the governing board of the joint powers agency.  (Education Code 33050)

To receive public testimony on each proposal for a waiver request, the Board shall hold a properly noticed public
hearing during a Board meeting.  (Education Code 33050)

The notice, which shall state the time, date, location, and subject of the public hearing and invite public testimony,
shall be printed in a newspaper of general circulation, posted at each school and three public places in the district, or
published on the district's website.

If the district determines that a waiver is needed for more than one year, the Board shall reapply to SBE. When the
Board has requested and received the same general waiver from SBE for two consecutive years, the Board does not
subsequently need to reapply annually provided that the information contained on the request remains current,
except that the district shall apply annually for the renewal of any waiver regarding teacher credentialing.  (Education
Code 33051)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

6.



Policy 1431: WaiversPolicy 1431: Waivers Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/26/2005 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 10/26/2005

The Governing Board may request that the State Board of Education waive certain provisions of the Education Code,
Title 5 regulations, or the federal law when such provisions prevent the district from offering its students the best
possible educational program. The Superintendent or designee, advisory committees, or site councils shall identify
the need for the Board to submit waiver requests and shall provide the Board with the necessary information to
analyze the need for the waiver.

The Board shall hold a properly noticed public hearing on all waiver requests. (Education Code 33050)

The Board shall include the exclusive employee representative in the development of the waiver.

If the waiver affects a program that requires the existence of a school site council, the school site council shall first
approve the request.

For general waivers, the request to the State Board of Education shall include a statement as to whether the
exclusive employee representative participated in the development of the waiver and the exclusive employee
representative's position on the waiver. General waiver requests shall include a written summary of any objections to
the request by the councils or advisory committees. (Education Code 33050)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 3400: Management Of District Assets/AccountsPolicy 3400: Management Of District Assets/Accounts Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board recognizes its fiduciary responsibility to effectively manage and safeguard the district's assets
and resources in order to help achieve the district's goals for student learning. The Superintendent or designee shall
establish and maintain an accurate, efficient financial management system that enhances the district's ability to meet
its fiscal obligations, produces reliable financial reports, and complies with laws, regulations, policies, and procedures.
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's accounting system provides ongoing internal controls
and meets generally accepted accounting standards as specified by the California Department of Education and, as
appropriate, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). When required by law or as directed by the
Board, and in accordance with Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3460 - Financial Reports and
Accountability, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the Board reports of the district's financial status.

Capital Assets

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a system to accurately identify and value district assets in order to
help ensure financial accountability and to minimize the risk of loss or misuse. District assets with a useful life of
more than one year and an initial acquisition cost of $5,000 or more shall be considered capital assets. The
Superintendent or designee shall determine the estimated useful life of each capital asset and shall calculate and
report the estimated loss of value or depreciation during each accounting period for all capital assets.

Internal Controls/Fraud Prevention

The Board expects Board members, employees, consultants, vendors, contractors, and other parties maintaining a
business relationship with the district to act with integrity and due diligence in dealings involving the district's assets
and fiscal resources.

Board members and district employees involved in the making of contracts on behalf of the district shall comply with
the district's conflict of interest policy as specified in Board Bylaw 9270 - Conflict of Interest.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop internal controls which aid in the prevention and detection of fraud,
financial impropriety, or irregularity within the district, assist with effective and efficient operation of the district,
produce reliable financial information, and ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. These internal
controls may include, but are not limited to, segregating and monitoring employee duties relating to authorization,
custody of assets, and recording or reporting of transactions; providing detailed, written job descriptions explaining
the segregation of functions; adopting an integrated financial system; developing timely reconciliations of budgets,
ledgers, and accounts; conducting background checks on business office employees; and requiring continuous in-
service training for business office staff and board members on the importance of fraud prevention, financial
management, budget, and governance.

All employees shall be alert for any indication of fraud, financial impropriety, or irregularity within their area of
responsibility. Any employee who suspects fraud, impropriety, or irregularity shall immediately report those
suspicions to the employee's immediate supervisor and/or the Superintendent or designee. In addition, the
Superintendent or designee shall establish a method for employees and outside persons to anonymously report any
suspected instances of fraud, impropriety, or irregularity.

The Superintendent or designee shall have primary responsibility for any necessary investigations of suspected fraud,
impropriety, or irregularity, in coordination with legal counsel, the district's auditors, the Fiscal Crisis and
Management Assistance Team (FCMAT), law enforcement agencies, or other governmental entities, as appropriate.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide regular reports to the Board on the status of the district's internal
control procedures and recommend any necessary revisions to related Board policies or administrative regulations.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

7.



Policy 3400: Management Of District Assets/AccountsPolicy 3400: Management Of District Assets/Accounts Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board recognizes its fiduciary responsibility to effectively manage and safeguard the district's assets
and resources in order to help achieve the district's goals for student learning. The Superintendent or designee shall
establish and maintain an accurate, efficient financial management system that enhances the district's ability to meet
its fiscal obligations, produces reliable financial reports, and complies with laws, regulations, policies, and procedures.
He/she shall ensure that the district's accounting system provides ongoing internal controls and meets generally
accepted accounting standards.

Capital Assets

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a system to accurately identify and value district assets in order to
help ensure financial accountability and to minimize the risk of loss or misuse. District assets with a useful life of
more than one year and an initial acquisition cost of $5,000 or more shall be considered capital assets. The
Superintendent or designee shall determine the estimated useful life of each capital asset and shall calculate and
report the estimated loss of value or depreciation during each accounting period for all capital assets.

Internal Controls/Fraud Prevention

The Board expects Board members, employees, consultants, vendors, contractors, and other parties maintaining a
business relationship with the district to act with integrity and due diligence in dealings involving the district's assets
and fiscal resources.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop internal controls which aid in the prevention and detection of fraud,
financial impropriety, or irregularity within the district. These internal controls may include, but are not limited to,
segregating employee duties relating to authorization, custody of assets, and recording or reporting of transactions;
providing detailed, written job descriptions explaining the segregation of functions; adopting an integrated financial
system; conducting background checks on business office employees; and requiring continuous in-service training for
business office staff on the importance of fraud prevention.

All employees shall be alert for any indication of fraud, financial impropriety, or irregularity within their area of
responsibility. Any employee who suspects fraud, impropriety, or irregularity shall immediately report those
suspicions to his/her immediate supervisor and/or the Superintendent or designee. In addition, the Superintendent or
designee shall establish a method for employees and outside persons to anonymously report any suspected instances
of fraud, impropriety, or irregularity.

The Superintendent or designee shall have primary responsibility for any necessary investigations of suspected fraud,
impropriety, or irregularity, in coordination with legal counsel, the district's auditors, law enforcement agencies, or
other governmental entities, as appropriate.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide regular reports to the Board on the status of the district's internal
control procedures and recommend any necessary revisions to related Board policies or administrative regulations.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Regulation 3400: Management Of District Assets/AccountsRegulation 3400: Management Of District Assets/Accounts Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

Accounts

The district's accounting system shall fully comply with the definitions, instructions and procedures set forth in the
California Department of Education (CDE) School Accounting Manual.  (Education Code 41010)

The district shall utilize CDE's standardized account code structure (SACS) software to develop financial reports. The
district's accounting system shall comply with generally accepted accounting principles prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and meet other state and federal reporting guidelines.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that funds are encumbered in the district accounting records
immediately after an expenditure is committed for subsequent payment.

Fraud and Misappropriation of Funds

Fraud, financial improprieties, or irregularities include but are not limited to:

1. Forgery or unauthorized alteration of any document or account belonging to the district

2. Forgery or unauthorized alteration of a check, bank draft, or any other financial document

3. Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies, or other assets

4. Impropriety in the handling of money or reporting of financial transactions

5. Profiteering as a result of insider knowledge of district information or activities

6. Disclosing confidential and/or proprietary information to outside parties

7. Disclosing investment activities engaged in or contemplated by the district

8. Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors, vendors, or persons providing services or
materials to the district

9. Destroying, removing, or inappropriately using of records, furniture, fixtures, or equipment

10. Failing to provide financial records to authorized state or local entities

11. Overstating income, expenses, or misreporting time

12. Failing to report a conflict of interest

13. Any other dishonest or fraudulent act

District Investigation

The Superintendent or designee shall investigate reports of fraudulent activity in a manner that protects the
confidentiality of the parties and the facts. All employees involved in the investigation shall be advised to keep
information about the investigation confidential.

If an investigation substantiates the occurrence of a fraudulent activity, the Superintendent or designee shall issue a
report to appropriate personnel and to the Governing Board. The final disposition of the matter, any decision to file a
criminal complaint or refer the matter to the appropriate law enforcement and/or regulatory agency for independent
investigation, and discussing or disclosing the result of any investigation shall be made in consultation with legal
counsel.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

8.



County Office of Education Investigation

The district shall cooperate with the County Superintendent of Schools, Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance
Team (FCMAT), law enforcement, or other governmental entities that conduct a fraud investigation, in accordance
with law.  (Education Code 1241.5)



Regulation 3400: Management Of District Assets/AccountsRegulation 3400: Management Of District Assets/Accounts Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

Accounts

The district's accounting system shall fully comply with the definitions, instructions and procedures set forth in the
California Department of Education School Accounting Manual. (Education Code 41010)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that funds are encumbered in the district accounting records
immediately after an expenditure is committed for subsequent payment.

Fraud Prevention and Investigation

Fraud, financial improprieties or irregularities include but are not limited to:

1. Forgery or unauthorized alteration of any document or account belonging to the district

2. Forgery or unauthorized alteration of a check, bank draft or any other financial document

3. Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies or other assets

4. Impropriety in the handling of money or reporting of financial transactions

5. Profiteering as a result of insider knowledge of district information or activities

6. Disclosing confidential and/or proprietary information to outside parties

7. Disclosing investment activities engaged in or contemplated by the district

8. Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors, vendors or persons providing services or
materials to the district

9. Destroying, removing or inappropriately using of records, furniture, fixtures or equipment

10. Failing to provide financial records to authorized state or local entities

11. Any other dishonest or fraudulent act

The Superintendent or designee shall investigate reports of fraudulent activity in a manner that protects the
confidentiality of the parties and the facts. All employees involved in the investigation shall be advised to keep
information about the investigation confidential.

If an investigation substantiates the occurrence of a fraudulent activity, the Superintendent or designee shall issue a
report to appropriate personnel and to the Governing Board. The final disposition of the matter and any decision to
file a criminal complaint or refer the matter to the appropriate law enforcement and/or regulatory agency for
independent investigation shall be made in consultation with legal counsel. The result of the investigation shall not
be disclosed to or discussed with anyone other than those individuals with a legitimate need to know.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Policy 5116.2: Involuntary Student TransfersPolicy 5116.2: Involuntary Student Transfers Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

While the Governing Board desires to enroll students in the district school of their choice, it recognizes that
circumstances sometimes necessitate the involuntary transfer of a student to another school or program in the
district.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the involuntary transfer of such students.

As applicable and as permitted by law, the Superintendent or designee shall review all educational options for which
the student is eligible, the student's academic progress and needs, the enrollment capacity at the schools or
programs to which the student could be involuntary transferred, and the availability of support services and other
resources.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that involuntary transfers are made in a non-discriminatory manner as
specified in Board Policy 0410 - Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities.

Involuntary Transfer of a Student Convicted of Violent Felony or Misdemeanor Related to Possession of Firearms

A student may be transferred to another district school if the student is convicted of a violent felony, as defined in
Penal Code 667.5(c), or a misdemeanor listed in Penal Code 29805 and is enrolled at the same school as the victim
of the crime for which the students was convicted. However, before recommending such a transfer, the
Superintendent, the principal, or other designee shall notify the student and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) of the
right to request a meeting with the principal or designee and shall attempt to resolve the conflict using restorative
justice, counseling, or other such services. Participation of the victim in any conflict resolution program shall be
voluntary, and the victim shall not be subjected to any disciplinary action for refusing to participate.  (Education Code
48929)

If the attempt to resolve the conflict using restorative justice, counseling, or other such services is not successful or
the victim elects not to participate, the principal or designee may submit to the Superintendent or designee a
recommendation that the student should be involuntarily transferred. If the Superintendent or designee agrees with
the recommendation, the Superintendent shall submit such recommendation to the Board for approval. The
Superintendent's recommendation to the Board shall include the date by which the Superintendent or designee will
review the involuntary transfer to determine whether to recommend to the Board that the student be permitted to
transfer back to the student's original school.

The Board shall, in accordance with Board Bylaw 9321 - Closed Session, deliberate and vote on the
recommendation, as well as any subsequent recommendation to permit the student to transfer back to the student's
original school, in closed session to maintain the confidentiality of student information, unless a parent/guardian or
adult student submits a written request that the matter be addressed in open session and doing so would not violate
the privacy rights of any other student. The Board's decisions in these instances shall be final.

Involuntary Transfers to a Continuation Education Program or Class within the District

The Superintendent or designee may involuntarily transfer a high school student to a continuation education
program or class in the district if the student commits an act enumerated in Education Code 48900 or is habitually
truant or irregular in school attendance and either of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 48432.5)

1. Other means to improve the student's behavior have failed

2. It is the first time the student committed an act enumerated in Section 48900 and the principal of the
student's school determines that the student's presence causes a danger to person(s) or property or threatens
to disrupt the instructional process.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

9.



Prior any final decision to involuntarily transfer a student, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student
and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) of the right to request a hearing with the Superintendent or designee. If such
a hearing is requested, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the specific facts and reasons for the proposed
transfer, including all documents relied upon. At the hearing, the Superintendent or designee shall also allow the
student or the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) to question any evidence or witnesses presented and present evidence,
including witnesses, on the student's behalf. The student shall be allowed to bring one or more representatives to
present at the hearing.  (Education Code 48432.5)

If the Superintendent or designee decides to involuntarily transfer the student, the Superintendent or designee shall
provide the decision to the student and the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) in writing. The decision shall include the
facts and reasons for the decision and whether the decision is subject to periodic review and the periodic review
procedure.  (Education Code 48432.5)

The decision shall also include the date by which the student may transfer back to the student's original school,
which shall be no longer than the end of the semester following the semester during which the acts leading directly
to the involuntary transfer occurred.  (Education Code 48432.5)

The final decision to involuntarily transfer the student may not involve a member of the staff of the school in which
the student is enrolled at the time that the decision is made.  (Education Code 48432.5)

Involuntary Transfers to a Community Day School within the District

If a student is expelled from school for any reason in accordance with Board Policy 5144.1 - Suspension And
Expulsion/Due Process, is probation-referred pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 300 or 602, or is referred by
a school attendance review board or another formal district process, the student may be transferred to a district
community day school as specified in Board Policy 6185 - Community Day School.  (Education Code 48662)

Notice, Information, and Reports

The Superintendent or designee shall include notice of this policy in the annual notification to parents/guardians in
accordance with Education Code 48980.  (Education Code 48929)

Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single primary language other than
English, as determined from the California Department of Education census data collected pursuant to Education
Code 52164, all notices and reports sent to the parent(s)/guardian(s) of any such student shall, in addition to being
written in English, be written in the primary language, and may be responded to either in English or the primary
language.  (Education Code 48981, 48985)

Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the district's printed
notifications or reports for any reason, the employee shall inform the principal or designee, who shall work with the
parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication.

When a foster youth or American Indian Student, as defined in Welfare and Institutions Code 224.1, is being
considered for an involuntary transfer, all notices, documents, and information that would be provided to
parents/guardians shall be provided to the foster youth's educational rights holder, attorney, and county social
worker and the American Indian Student's tribal social worker and, if applicable, county social worker.  (Education
Code 48853.5)



Policy 5131.2: BullyingPolicy 5131.2: Bullying Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/27/2012

This policy shall apply to all acts constituting bullying related to school activity or to school attendance occurring
within a district school, to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or school-sponsored activities
but which may have an impact or create a hostile environment at school, and to all acts of the Governing Board and
the Superintendent in enacting policies and procedures that govern the district.

The Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student well-being, student learning, and school attendance
and desires to provide a welcoming, safe, and supportive school environment that protects students from physical,
mental, and emotional harm. No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, visual, or other means,
harass, sexually harass, threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any
student or school personnel, or retaliate against them for filing a complaint or participating in the complaint
resolution process.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for addressing bullying in district schools with the
involvement of students, parents/guardians, and staff. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may also
collaborate with social services, mental health services, law enforcement, courts, and other agencies and community
organizations in the development and implementation of effective strategies to promote safety in schools and the
community.

Such strategies shall be incorporated into the comprehensive safety plan and, to the extent possible, into the local
control and accountability plan and other applicable district and school plans.

Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved in accordance with
law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in Administrative Regulation 1312.3. If, during the
investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying, the principal or designee shall
inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to resolve the complaint.

If the Superintendent or designee believes it is in the best interest of a student who has been the victim of an act of
bullying, as defined in Education Code 48900, the Superintendent or designee shall advise the student's
parents/guardians that the student may transfer to another school. If the parents/guardians of a student who has
been the victim of an act of bullying requests a transfer for the student pursuant to Education Code 46600, the
Superintendent or designee shall allow the transfer in accordance with law and district policy on intradistrict or
interdistrict transfer, as applicable.

District families are encouraged to model respectful behavior, contribute to a safe and supportive learning
environment, and monitor potential causes of bullying.

Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be subject to disciplinary
action, up to and including dismissal.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

10.



Policy 5131.2: BullyingPolicy 5131.2: Bullying Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 06/27/2012 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/27/2012

The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school attendance and
desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from physical and emotional harm. District
employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate bullying of any student.

No student or group of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass,
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school
personnel.

Cyberbullying includes the transmission of harassing communications, direct threats, or other harmful texts, sounds,
or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies using a telephone, computer, or any wireless
communication device. Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming
that person's identity in order to damage that person's reputation.

Strategies for bullying prevention and intervention shall be developed with involvement of key stakeholders in
accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation governing the development of comprehensive
safety plans and shall be incorporated into such plans.

Bullying Prevention

To the extent possible, district and school strategies shall focus on prevention of bullying by establishing clear rules
for student conduct and strategies to establish a positive, collaborative school climate. Students shall be informed,
through student handbooks and other appropriate means, of district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms
available for reporting incidents or threats, and the consequences for perpetrators of bullying.

The district may provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other educational settings, that promotes
effective communication and conflict resolution skills, social skills, character/values education, respect for cultural
and individual differences, self-esteem development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior.

School staff shall receive related professional development, including information about early warning signs of
harassing/intimidating behaviors and effective prevention and intervention strategies.

Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may increase supervision and
security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, cafeterias.

Intervention

Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another student is being
victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for students to report threats or
incidents confidentially and anonymously.

School staff who witness bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when it is safe to do so. (Education
Code 234.1)

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators.
Superintendent or designee may also involve school counselors, mental health counselors, and/or law enforcement.

Complaints and Investigation

Students/Parents may submit to a teacher or administrator a verbal or written complaint of conduct they consider to
be bullying. Complaints of bullying shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with site-level grievance
procedures specified in AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment.

When a student is reported to be engaging in bullying off campus, the Superintendent or designee shall investigate
and document the activity and shall identify specific facts or circumstances that explain the impact or potential
impact on school activity, school attendance, or the targeted student's educational performance.

When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity shall be encouraged to
save and print any electronic or digital messages sent to them that they feel constitute cyberbullying and to notify a
teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be investigated.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



If the student is using a social networking site or service that has terms of use that prohibit posting of harmful
material, the Superintendent or designee also may file a complaint with the Internet site or service to have the
material removed.

Discipline

Any student who engages in bullying on school premises, or off campus in a manner that causes or is likely to cause a
substantial disruption of a school activity or school attendance, shall be subject to discipline, which may include
suspension or expulsion, in accordance with district policies, regulations and/or law.



Regulation 5131.2: BullyingRegulation 5131.2: Bullying Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

Examples of Prohibited Conduct

Bullying is an aggressive behavior that involves a real or perceived imbalance of power between individuals with the
intent to cause emotional or physical harm. Bullying can be physical, verbal, or social/relational and may involve a
single severe act or repetition or potential repetition of a deliberate act. Bullying includes, but is not limited to, any
act described in Education Code 48900(r).

Cyberbullying includes the electronic creation or transmission of harassing communications, direct threats, or other
harmful texts, sounds, or images, which may be shared, sent, or posted publicly. Cyberbullying may include, but is not
limited to, personal or private information that causes humiliation, false or negative information to discredit or
disparage, or threats of physical harm. Cyberbullying may also include breaking into another person's electronic
account or assuming that person's online identity in order to damage that person's reputation.

Examples of the types of conduct that may constitute bullying and are prohibited by the district include, but are not
limited to:

1. Physical bullying: An act that inflicts harm upon a person's body or possessions, such as hitting, kicking,
pinching, spitting, tripping, pushing, taking or breaking someone's possessions, or making cruel or rude hand
gestures

2. Verbal bullying: An act that includes saying or writing hurtful things, such as teasing, name-calling,
inappropriate sexual comments, taunting, or threats to cause harm

3. Social/relational bullying: An act that harms a person's reputation or relationships, such as leaving a person out
of an activity on purpose, influencing others not to be friends with someone, spreading rumors, or
embarrassing someone in public

4. Cyberbullying: An act that occurs on electronic devices such as computers, tablets, or cell phones, such as
sending demeaning or hateful text messages, direct messages or public posts on social media apps, gaming
forums, or emails, spreading rumors by email or by posting on social networking sites, shaming or humiliating
by allowing others to view, participate in, or share disparaging or harmful content, or posting or sharing
embarrassing photos, videos, website, or fake profiles

Measures to Prevent Bullying

The Superintendent or designee shall implement measures to prevent bullying in district schools, including, but not
limited to, the following:

1. Developing a strategic plan for school connectedness and social skills with benchmark tracking, which may
include providing regular opportunities and spaces for students to develop social skills and strengthen
relationships and promoting adult support from family and school staff, peer-led programs, and partnerships
with key community groups, implementing socially based educational techniques such as cooperative learning
projects that can improve educational outcomes as well as peer relations, creating a supportive school
environment that fosters belonging through equitable classroom management, mentoring, and peer support
groups that allow students to lean on each other and learn from each other's experiences, and building social
connection into health education courses including information on the consequences of social connection on
physical and mental health, key risk and protective factors, and strategies for increasing social connection

2. Ensuring that each school establishes clear rules for student and staff conduct and implements strategies to
promote a positive, supportive, and collaborative school climate

3. Providing information to students, through student handbooks, district and school websites and social media,
and other age-appropriate means, about district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms available for
reporting incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

11.



4. Encouraging students to notify school staff when they are being bullied or when they suspect that another
student is being bullied, and providing means by which students may report threats or incidents confidentially
and anonymously

5. Conducting an assessment of bullying incidents at each school and, if necessary, increasing supervision and
security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, and cafeterias

6. Annually notifying district employees that, pursuant to Education Code 234.1, any school staff who witnesses
an act of bullying against a student has a responsibility to immediately intervene to stop the incident when it is
safe to do so

Staff Development

The Superintendent or designee shall annually make available to all certificated staff and to other employees who
have regular interaction with students the California Department of Education (CDE) online training module on the
dynamics of bullying and cyberbullying, including the identification of bullying and cyberbullying and the
implementation of strategies to address bullying.  (Education Code 32283.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to teachers and other school staff to raise their awareness
about the legal obligation of the district and its employees to prevent discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying of district students. Such training shall be designed to provide staff with the skills to:

1. Discuss the diversity of the student body and school community, including their varying immigration
experiences

2. Discuss bullying prevention strategies with students, and teach students to recognize the behavior and
characteristics of bullying perpetrators and victims

3. Identify the signs of bullying or harassing behavior

4. Take immediate corrective action when bullying is observed

5. Report incidents to the appropriate authorities, including law enforcement in instances of criminal behavior

Information and Resources

The Superintendent or designee shall post on the district's website, in a prominent location and in a manner that is
easily accessible to students and parents/guardians, information on bullying and harassment prevention which
includes the following:  (Education Code 234.6)

1. The district's policy on student suicide prevention, including a reference to the policy's age appropriateness for
students in grades K-6

2. The definition of sex discrimination and harassment as described in Education Code 230, including the rights
set forth in Education Code 221.8

3. Title IX information included on the district's website pursuant to Education Code 221.61, and a link to the
Title IX information included on CDE's website pursuant to Education Code 221.6

4. District policies on student sexual harassment, prevention and response to hate violence, discrimination,
harassment, intimidation, bullying, and cyberbullying

5. A section on social media bullying that includes all of the references described in Education Code 234.6 as
possible forums for social media

6. A link to statewide resources, including community-based organizations, compiled by CDE pursuant to
Education Code 234.5



7. Any additional information the Superintendent or designee deems important for preventing bullying and
harassment

Student Instruction

As appropriate, the district shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other educational settings,
that promotes social-emotional learning, effective communication and conflict resolution skills, character
development, respect for cultural and individual differences, self-esteem development, assertiveness skills, digital
and media literacy skills, and appropriate online behavior.

The district shall also educate students about the negative impact of bullying, discrimination, intimidation, and
harassment based on actual or perceived immigration status, religious beliefs and customs, or any other individual
bias or prejudice.

Students should be taught the difference between appropriate and inappropriate behaviors, how to advocate for
themselves, how to help another student who is being bullied, and when to seek assistance from a trusted adult. As
role models for students, staff are responsible for teaching and modeling respectful behavior and building safe and
supportive learning environments, and are expected to demonstrate effective problem-solving and anger
management skills.

To discourage cyberbullying, teachers may advise students to be cautious about sharing passwords, personal data, or
private photos online and to consider the consequences of making negative comments about others online.

Reporting and Filing of Complaints

Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected to bullying or who
has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a compliance officer, or any other available
school employee.

When a report of bullying is submitted, the principal or a district compliance officer shall inform the student or
parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in accordance with Administrative Regulation 1312.3 -
Uniform Complaint Procedures. The student who is the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to
describe the incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and provide other evidence of bullying.

Within one business day of receiving such a report, a staff member shall notify the principal of the report, regardless
of whether a uniform complaint is filed. In addition, any school employee who observes an incident of bullying
involving a student shall, within one business day, report such observation to the principal or a district compliance
officer, regardless of whether the alleged victim files a complaint.

Within two business days of receiving a report of bullying, the principal shall notify the district compliance officer
identified in Administrative Regulation 1312.3.

Any individuals with information about cyberbullying activity shall save and print any electronic or digital messages
that they feel constitute cyberbullying and shall notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter
may be investigated. When an investigation concludes that a student used a social networking site or service to bully
or harass another student, the Superintendent or designee may report the cyberbullying to the social media platform
and may request the material be removed.

Discipline/Corrective Actions

Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include counseling, behavioral
intervention, and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 48900, may
include suspension or expulsion in accordance with district policies and regulations.

When a student has been suspended, or other means of correction have been implemented against the student, for



an incident of racist bullying, harassment, or intimidation, the principal or designee shall engage both the victim and
perpetrator in a restorative justice practice suitable to the needs of the students. The principal or designee shall also
require the perpetrator to engage in a culturally sensitive program that promotes racial justice and equity and
combats racism and ignorance and shall regularly check on the victim to ensure that the victim is not in danger of
suffering from any long-lasting mental health issues.  (Education Code 48900.5)

When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law enforcement.

Support Services

The Superintendent, principal, or designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or other student affected by an
act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social worker, child welfare attendance personnel, school
nurse, or other school support service personnel for case management, counseling, and/or participation in a
restorative justice program as appropriate.  (Education Code 48900.9)

If any student involved in bullying exhibits warning signs of suicidal thought or intention or of intent to harm another
person, the Superintendent or designee shall, as appropriate, implement district intervention protocols which may
include, but are not limited to, referral to district or community mental health services, other health professionals,
and/or law enforcement, in accordance with Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5141.52 - Suicide
Prevention.



Regulation 5141.21: Administering Medication And Monitoring Health ConditionsRegulation 5141.21: Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/26/2005 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 11/28/2022

Definitions

Authorized health care provider means an individual who is licensed by the State of California to prescribe or order
medication, including, but not limited to, a physician or physician assistant.  (Education Code 49423; 5 CCR 601)

Other designated school personnel means any individual employed by the district, including a nonmedical school
employee, who has volunteered or consented to administer medication or otherwise assist the student and who may
legally administer the medication to the student or assist the student in the administration of the medication.  (5 CCR
601, 621)

Medication may include not only a substance dispensed in the United States by prescription, but also a substance that
does not require a prescription, such as over-the-counter remedies, nutritional supplements, and herbal remedies.  (5
CCR 601)

Epinephrine auto-injector means a disposable delivery device designed for the automatic injection of a premeasured
dose of epinephrine into the human body to prevent or treat a life-threatening allergic reaction.  (Education Code
49414)

Anaphylaxis means a potentially life-threatening hypersensitivity to a substance, which may result from an insect
sting, food allergy, drug reaction, exercise, or other cause. Symptoms may include shortness of breath, wheezing,
difficulty breathing, difficulty talking or swallowing, hives, itching, swelling, shock, or asthma.  (Education Code
49414)

Opioid antagonist means naloxone hydrochloride or another drug approved by the federal Food and Drug
Administration that, when administered, negates or neutralizes in whole or in part the pharmacological effects of an
opioid in the body and that has been approved for the treatment of an opioid overdose.  (Education Code 49414.3)

Albuterol means a bronchodilator used to open the airways by relaxing the muscles around the bronchial tubes.
 (Education Code 49414.7)

Inhaler means a device used for the delivery of prescribed asthma medication that is inhaled.  (Education Code
49414.7)

Notifications to Parents/Guardians

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of the options
available to students who need to take prescribed medication during the school day and the rights and
responsibilities of parents/guardians regarding those options.  (Education Code 49480)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the parents/guardians of any student on a continuing
medication regimen for a nonepisodic condition of the following:  (Education Code 49480)

1. The parent/guardian is required to inform the school nurse or other designated employee of the medication
being taken, the current dosage, and the name of the supervising physician.

2. With the parent/guardian's consent, the school nurse or other designated employee may communicate with
the student's physician regarding the medication and its effects and may counsel school personnel regarding
the possible effects of the medication on the student's physical, intellectual, and social behavior, as well as
possible behavioral signs and symptoms of adverse side effects, omission, or overdose.

When a student requires medication during the school day in order to participate in the educational program, the
Superintendent or designee shall, as appropriate, inform the student's parents/guardians that the student may qualify
for services or accommodations pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 USC 1400-1482) or
Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794).

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

12.



Parent/Guardian Responsibilities

The responsibilities of the parent/guardian of any student who may need medication during the school day shall
include, but are not limited to:

1. Submitting the parent/guardian written statement and the authorized health care provider's written statement
each school year as described in the sections "Parent/Guardian Statement" and "Health Care Provider
Statement" below. The parent/guardian shall provide a new authorized health care provider's statement if the
medication, dosage, frequency of administration, or reason for administration changes. (Education Code
49414.5, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 600, 626)

2. If the student is on a continuing medication regimen for a nonepisodic condition, informing the school nurse or
other designated certificated employee of the medication being taken, the current dosage, and the name of the
supervising physician, and updating the information when needed.  (Education Code 49480)

3. Providing medications in properly labeled, original containers along with the authorized health care provider's
instructions. For prescribed or ordered medication, the container also shall bear the name and telephone
number of the pharmacy, the student's identification, and the name and phone number of the authorized
health care provider.  (5 CCR 606)

Parent/Guardian Statement

When district employees are to administer medication to a student, the parent/guardian's written statement shall:

1. Identify the student

2. Grant permission for an authorized district representative to communicate directly with the student's
authorized health care provider and pharmacist, as may be necessary, regarding the health care provider's
written statement or any other questions that may arise with regard to the medication

3. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands how district employees will administer the
medication or otherwise assist the student in its administration

4. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands the responsibilities to provide a written
statement from the authorized health care provider, to ensure that the medication is delivered to the school in
a proper container by an individual legally authorized to be in possession of the medication, and to provide all
necessary supplies and equipment

5. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands the right to terminate the consent for the
administration of the medication or for otherwise assisting the student in the administration of medication at
any time

In addition to the requirements in Items #1-5 above, if a parent/guardian has requested that the student be allowed
to carry and self-administer prescription auto-injectable epinephrine or prescription inhaled asthma medication, the
parent/guardian's written statement shall:  (Education Code 49423, 49423.1)

1. Consent to the self-administration

2. Release the district and school personnel from civil liability if the student suffers an adverse reaction as a result
of self-administering the medication

In addition to the requirements in Items #1-5 above, if a parent/guardian wishes to designate an individual who is not
an employee of the district to administer medication to the student, the parent/guardian's written statement shall
clearly identify the individual and shall state:

1. The individual's willingness to accept the designation

2. That the individual is permitted to be on the school site

3. Any limitations on the individual's authority



Health Care Provider Statement

When any district employee is to administer prescribed medication to a student, or when a student is to be allowed
to carry and self-administer prescribed medication during school hours, the authorized health care provider's written
statement shall include:

1. Clear identification of the student  (Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

2. The name of the medication  (Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

3. The method, amount, and time schedules by which the medication is to be taken  (Education Code 49423,
49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

4. If a parent/guardian has requested that the student be allowed to self-administer medication, confirmation that
the student is able to self-administer the medication (Education Code 49414.5, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

5. For medication that is to be administered by unlicensed personnel, confirmation by the student's health care
provider that the medication may safely and appropriately be administered by unlicensed personnel
(Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

6. For medication that is to be administered on an as-needed basis, the specific symptoms that would necessitate
administration of the medication, allowable frequency for administration, and indications for referral for
medical evaluation

7. Possible side effects of the medication

8. Name, address, telephone number, and signature of the student's authorized health care provider

For self-administration of inhaled asthma medication, the district shall accept a written statement from a physician or
surgeon contracted with a health plan licensed pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1351.2. Such written statement
shall be in English and Spanish and shall include the name and contact information for the physician or surgeon.
 (Education Code 49423.1)

District Responsibilities

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any unlicensed school personnel authorized to administer
medication to a student receives appropriate training from the school nurse or other qualified medical personnel.

The school nurse or other designated school personnel shall:

1. Administer or assist in administering medication in accordance with the authorized health care provider's
written statement

2. Accept delivery of medications from parents/guardians and count and record them upon receipt

3. Maintain a list of students needing medication during the school day, including those authorized to self-
administer medication, and maintain on the list the type of medication and the times and dosage to be
administered

4. Maintain for each student a medication log which may:

a. Specify the student's name, medication, dose, method of administration, time of administration during
the regular school day, date(s) on which the student is required to take the medication, and the
authorized health care provider's name and contact information

b. Contain space for daily recording of the date, time, and amount of medication administered, and the
signature of the individual administering the medication

5. Maintain for each student a medication record which may include the authorized health care provider's written



statement, the parent/guardian's written statement, the medication log, and any other written documentation
related to the administration of medication to the student

6. Ensure that student confidentiality is appropriately maintained

7. Coordinate and, as appropriate, ensure the administration of medication during field trips and other school-
related activities

8. Report to a student's parent/guardian and the site administrator any refusal by the student to take the
medication

9. Keep all medication to be administered by the district in a locked drawer or cabinet

10. As needed, communicate with a student's authorized health care provider and/or pharmacist regarding the
medication and its effects

11. Counsel other designated school personnel regarding the possible effects of a medication on a student's
physical, intellectual, and social behavior, as well as possible behavioral signs and symptoms of adverse side
effects, omission, or overdose

12. Ensure that any unused, discontinued, or outdated medication is returned to the student's parent/guardian at
the end of the school year or, if the medication cannot be returned, dispose of it in accordance with state laws
and local ordinances

13. In the event of a medical emergency requiring administration of medication, provide immediate medical
assistance, directly observe the student following the administration of medication, contact the student's
parent/guardian, and determine whether the student should return to class, rest in the school office, or receive
further medical assistance

14. Report to the site administrator, the student's parent/guardian, and, if necessary, the student's authorized
health care provider any instance when a medication is not administered properly, including administration of
the wrong medication or failure to administer the medication in accordance with authorized health care
provider's written statement

Emergency Epinephrine Auto-Injectors and Emergency Albuterol Inhalers

The Superintendent or designee shall provide epinephrine auto-injectors to school nurses or other trained personnel
who have volunteered to administer them in an emergency and have received training. The school nurse, or when a
school nurse or physician is unavailable, a trained volunteer may administer an epinephrine auto-injector to provide
emergency medical aid to any person suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from potentially life-
threatening symptoms of anaphylaxis at school or a school activity. A trained volunteer may include the holder of an
Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate who has received specified training.  (Education Code 49414)

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee may make emergency stock albuterol inhalers available to school nurses
and trained personnel who have volunteered to be used to provide medical aid to person(s) suffering, or reasonably
believed to be suffering, from respiratory distress.   (Education Code 49414.7)

At least once per school year, the Superintendent or designee shall distribute to all employees a notice requesting
volunteers to be trained to administer epinephrine auto-injectors and/or stock albuterol inhalers for emergency aid
to individuals exhibiting signs of anaphylaxis reaction or respiratory distress. Such notice shall also describe the
training that the volunteers will receive.  (Education Code 49414, 49414.7)

The principal or designee at each school may designate one or more volunteers to receive initial and annual refresher
training, which shall be provided by a school nurse or other qualified person designated by a physician and surgeon
authorized pursuant to Education Code 49414 or 49414.7, and shall be based on the standards developed by the
Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI). Written materials covering the required topics for training shall be
retained by the school for reference.  (Education Code 49414, 49414.7



A school nurse or other qualified supervisor of health, or a district administrator if the district does not have a
qualified supervisor of health, shall obtain a prescription for epinephrine auto-injectors or stock albuterol inhalers for
each school from an authorized physician and surgeon. Such prescription may be filled by local or mail order
pharmacies or manufacturers.  (Education Code 49414, 49414.7)

Elementary schools shall, at a minimum, be provided one adult (regular) and one junior epinephrine auto-injector.
Secondary schools shall be provided at least one adult (regular) epinephrine auto-injector, unless there are any
students at the school who require a junior epinephrine auto-injector.  (Education Code 49414)

The district shall store emergency epinephrine auto-injectors and stock albuterol inhalers in an accessible location,
and shall specify such location in annual notices to staff.

If either medication is used, the school nurse or other qualified supervisor of health shall restock the medication as
soon as reasonably possible, but no later than two weeks after it is used. In addition, all medications shall be
restocked before their expiration date.  (Education Code 49414, 49414.7)

Any volunteer or trained personnel who administers either medication shall initiate emergency medical services or
other appropriate medical follow up in accordance with the training materials retained by the school.  (Education
Code 49414, 49414.7)

Information regarding defense and indemnification provided by the district for any and all civil liability for volunteers
administering epinephrine auto-injectors and/or stock albuterol inhalers shall be provided to each volunteer and
retained in the employee's personnel file.  (Education Code 49414, 49414.7)

A school may accept gifts, grants, and donations from any source for the support of the school in carrying out the
requirements of Education Code 49414 or 49414.7, including, but not limited to, the acceptance of epinephrine
auto-injectors and/or emergency albuterol inhalers from a manufacturer or wholesaler.  (Education Code 49414,
49414.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records regarding the acquisition and disposition of the described
medications for a period of three years from the date the records were created.  (Business and Professions Code
4119.2)

Emergency Medication for Opioid Overdose

The district may elect to make emergency naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist available at schools
for the purpose of providing emergency medical aid to persons suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from
an opioid overdose. In determining whether to make this medication available, the Superintendent or designee shall
evaluate the emergency medical response time to the school and determine whether initiating emergency medical
services is an acceptable alternative to providing an opioid antagonist and training personnel to administer the
medication.  (Education Code 49414.3)

Additionally, if the district accepts emergency naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist from the county
office of education (COE), the Superintendent or designee shall maintain at least two units of the medication at each
district middle, junior high, high, and adult school.  (Education Code 49414.8)

When available at the school site, the school nurse shall provide emergency naloxone hydrochloride or another
opioid antagonist for emergency medical aid to any person exhibiting potentially life-threatening symptoms of an
opioid overdose at school or a school activity. Other designated personnel who have volunteered and have received
training may administer such medication when a school nurse or physician is unavailable and shall only administer the
medication by nasal spray or auto-injector.  (Education Code 49414.3)

At least once per school year, the Superintendent or designee shall distribute to all staff a notice requesting
volunteers to be trained to administer naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist, describing the training



that the volunteer will receive, and explaining the right of the volunteer to rescind the offer to volunteer at any time,
including after receiving training. The notice shall also include a statement that no benefit will be granted to or
withheld from any employee based on the offer to volunteer and that there will be no retaliation against any
employee for rescinding the offer to volunteer.  (Education Code 49414.3)

The principal or designee shall designate two or more volunteer employees to receive initial and annual refresher
training, based on standards adopted by the SPI, regarding the storage and emergency use of naloxone hydrochloride
or another opioid antagonist. The training shall be provided at no cost to the employee, conducted during regular
working hours, and be provided by a school nurse or other qualified person designated by an authorizing physician
and surgeon. Written materials provided during the training shall be retained at the school for reference.  (Education
Code 49414.3, 49414.8)

Each volunteer shall meet the minimum standards of training for the administration of an emergency opioid
antagonist as specified in Education Code 49414.3 or shall have undergone opioid overdose prevention and
treatment training and reviewed material available on the California Department of Public Health's website.
 (Education Code 49414.8)

Any prescription for naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist shall be obtained by a school nurse, other
qualified supervisor of health, or, if the district does not have a qualified supervisor of health, a district administrator
from an authorized physician and surgeon. Such prescription may be filled by local or mail order pharmacies or
manufacturers.  (Education Code 49414.3)

If the medication is used, the school nurse, other qualified supervisor of health, or district administrator, as
applicable, shall restock the medication as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than two weeks after it is used.
In addition, the medication shall be restocked before its expiration date.  (Education Code 49414.3, 49414.8)

Employees and volunteers that render emergency treatment at the scene of an opioid overdose or suspected opioid
overdose by administering an opioid antagonist shall not be liable for civil damages resulting from an act or omission,
unless such act constitutes gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct. (Health and Safety Code 1799.113)

Information regarding defense and indemnification provided by the district for any and all civil liability for volunteers
administering naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for emergency aid shall be provided to each
volunteer in writing and retained in the employee's personnel file.  (Education Code 49414.3)

A school may accept gifts, grants, and donations from any source for the support of the school in carrying out the
requirements of Education Code 49414.3, including, but not limited to, the acceptance of the naloxone
hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist from a COE, manufacturer, or wholesaler.  (Education Code 49414.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records regarding the acquisition and disposition of naloxone
hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for a period of three years from the date the records were created.
 (Business and Professions Code 4119.8)

Anti-Seizure Medication

A school nurse or, if a school nurse is not onsite or available, a volunteer designated by the district may administer
emergency anti-seizure medication to a student diagnosed with seizures, a seizure disorder, or epilepsy who has
been prescribed such medication from the student's health care provider and is suffering from a seizure.  (Education
Code 49468.2)

Upon receipt of a request from the parent/guardian of a student diagnosed with seizures, a seizure disorder, or
epilepsy who has been prescribed emergency anti-seizure medication, the Superintendent or designee may designate
one or more volunteer(s) at the student's school to receive initial and annual refresher training regarding the
emergency use of anti-seizure medication. (Education Code 49468.2)

In order to solicit volunteers, the district shall distribute a notice at least once, but no more than two times per
school year, to all staff that includes the following information:  (Education Code 49468.2)

1. A description of the volunteer request stating that the request is for volunteers to be trained to recognize and
respond to seizures, including training to administer emergency anti-seizure medication to a student diagnosed



with seizures, a seizure disorder, or epilepsy if the student is suffering from a seizure

2. A description of the training that the volunteer will receive

3. The right of an employee to rescind the offer to volunteer

4. A statement that there will be no retaliation against any individual for rescinding the offer to volunteer,
including after receiving training

A volunteer may rescind the offer to administer emergency anti-seizure medication at any time, including after
receipt of training.  (Education Code 49468.2)

If a volunteer rescinds the offer to volunteer or is no longer able to act as a volunteer for any reason, or if the
placement of a student changes and the student no longer has access to a trained volunteer, the district may
distribute an additional two notices per school year to all staff.  (Education Code 49468.2)

Volunteer employees shall receive initial and annual refresher training, based on standards adopted by the SPI,
regarding the recognition and response to seizures and the administration of emergency anti-seizure medication. The
training shall be provided at no cost to the employee, conducted during regular working hours, and be provided by a
school nurse or other qualified person designated by an authorizing physician and surgeon. Written materials
provided during the training shall be retained at the school for reference.  (Education Code 49468.2)

Before administering emergency anti-seizure medication or therapy prescribed to treat seizures in a student
diagnosed with seizures, a seizure disorder, or epilepsy, the district shall obtain from the student's parent/guardian a
seizure action plan as specified in Education Code 49468.3. The school or district nurse shall collaborate with the
parent/guardian of each student diagnosed with seizures, a seizure disorder, or epilepsy in the development of a plan
if the student does not have an individualized education plan or Section 504 plan.  (Education Code 49468.3)

If the school obtains written consent from the student's parent/guardian, in accordance with 34 CFR 99.30, the
seizure action plan shall be distributed to any school staff or volunteers responsible for the supervision or care of the
student.  (Education Code 49468.3)

Upon receipt of a request from a parent/guardian of a student diagnosed with seizure, a seizure disorder, or epilepsy,
the district shall notify the parent/guardian that the student may qualify for services or accommodations pursuant to
Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or an individualized education program and shall assist the
parent/guardian with the exploration of that option.  (Education Code 49468.2)

Additionally, if there are no volunteers at the student's school, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the
student's parent/guardian of the student's right to be assessed for services and accommodations guaranteed under
Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, and
may ask the parent/guardian to sign such notices.  (Education Code 49468.2)

The principal or designee shall notify the school nurse assigned to the school, or if a school nurse is not assigned to
the school or district, the Superintendent or designee, if an employee administers an emergency anti-seizure
medication.  (Education Code 49468.3)

The notification described above and the seizure action plan shall be kept on file in the office of the school nurse or a
school administrator, in compliance with all applicable state and federal privacy laws.  (Education Code 49468.3)

The district shall provide volunteers defense and indemnification for any and all civil liability, with information stating
such being provided to the volunteer in writing and retained in the volunteer's personnel file.  (Education Code
49468.5)

Trained volunteers who administer emergency anti-seizure medication or medication prescribed for seizure disorder
symptoms to a student diagnosed with seizures, a seizure disorder, or epilepsy who appears to be experiencing a
seizure shall not be subject to professional review, be liable in a civil action, or be subject to criminal prosecution for
acts or omissions in administering the emergency anti-seizure medication.  (Education Code 49468.5)



Regulation 5141.21: Administering Medication And Monitoring Health ConditionsRegulation 5141.21: Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/26/2005 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 11/28/2022 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 11/28/2022

Definitions

Authorized health care provider means an individual who is licensed by the State of California to prescribe or order
medication, including, but not limited to, a physician or physician assistant.  (Education Code 49423; 5 CCR 601)

Other designated school personnel means any individual employed by the district, including a nonmedical school
employee, who has volunteered or consented to administer medication or otherwise assist the student and who may
legally administer the medication to the student or assist the student in the administration of the medication.  (5 CCR
601, 621)

Medication may include not only a substance dispensed in the United States by prescription, but also a substance that
does not require a prescription, such as over-the-counter remedies, nutritional supplements, and herbal remedies.  (5
CCR 601)

Epinephrine auto-injector means a disposable delivery device designed for the automatic injection of a premeasured
dose of epinephrine into the human body to prevent or treat a life-threatening allergic reaction.  (Education Code
49414)

Anaphylaxis means a potentially life-threatening hypersensitivity to a substance, which may result from an insect
sting, food allergy, drug reaction, exercise, or other cause.  Symptoms may include shortness of breath, wheezing,
difficulty breathing, difficulty talking or swallowing, hives, itching, swelling, shock, or asthma.  (Education Code
49414)

Opioid antagonist means naloxone hydrochloride or another drug approved by the federal Food and Drug
Administration that, when administered, negates or neutralizes in whole or in part the pharmacological effects of an
opioid in the body and that has been approved for the treatment of an opioid overdose.  (Education Code 49414.3)

Notifications to Parents/Guardians

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of the options
available to students who need to take prescribed medication during the school day and the rights and
responsibilities of parents/guardians regarding those options.  (Education Code 49480)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the parents/guardians of any student on a continuing
medication regimen for a nonepisodic condition of the following requirements:  (Education Code 49480)

1. The parent/guardian is required to inform the school nurse or other designated employee of the medication
being taken, the current dosage, and the name of the supervising physician.

2. With the parent/guardian's consent, the school nurse or other designated employee may communicate with
the student's physician regarding the medication and its effects and may counsel school personnel regarding
the possible effects of the medication on the student's physical, intellectual, and social behavior, as well as
possible behavioral signs and symptoms of adverse side effects, omission, or overdose.

When a student requires medication during the school day in order to participate in the educational program, the
Superintendent or designee shall, as appropriate, inform the student's parents/guardians that the student may qualify
for services or accommodations pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 USC 1400-1482) or
Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794).

Parent/Guardian Responsibilities

The responsibilities of the parent/guardian of any student who may need medication during the school day shall
include, but are not limited to:

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



1. Submitting the parent/guardian written statement and the authorized health care provider's written statement
each school year as described in the sections "Parent/Guardian Statement" and "Health Care Provider
Statement" below. The parent/guardian shall provide a new authorized health care provider's statement if the
medication, dosage, frequency of administration, or reason for administration changes. (Education Code
49414.5, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 600, 626)

2. If the student is on a continuing medication regimen for a nonepisodic condition, informing the school nurse or
other designated certificated employee of the medication being taken, the current dosage, and the name of the
supervising physician, and updating the information when needed.  (Education Code 49480)

3. Providing medications in properly labeled, original containers along with the authorized health care provider's
instructions.  For prescribed or ordered medication, the container also shall bear the name and telephone
number of the pharmacy, the student's identification, and the name and phone number of the authorized
health care provider.  (5 CCR 606)

Parent/Guardian Statement

When district employees are to administer medication to a student, the parent/guardian's written statement shall:

1. Identify the student

2. Grant permission for an authorized district representative to communicate directly with the student's
authorized health care provider and pharmacist, as may be necessary, regarding the health care provider's
written statement or any other questions that may arise with regard to the medication

3. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands how district employees will administer the
medication or otherwise assist the student in its administration

4. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands the responsibilities to provide a written
statement from the authorized health care provider, to ensure that the medication is delivered to the school in
a proper container by an individual legally authorized to be in possession of the medication, and to provide all
necessary supplies and equipment

5. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands the right to terminate the consent for the
administration of the medication or for otherwise assisting the student in the administration of medication at
any time

In addition to the requirements in items #1-5 above, if a parent/guardian has requested that the student be allowed
to carry and self-administer prescription auto-injectable epinephrine or prescription inhaled asthma medication, the
parent/guardian's written statement shall:  (Education Code 49423, 49423.1)

1. Consent to the self-administration

2. Release the district and school personnel from civil liability if the student suffers an adverse reaction as a result
of self-administering the medication

In addition to the requirements in items #1-5 above, if a parent/guardian wishes to designate an individual who is not
an employee of the district to administer medication to the student, the parent/guardian's written statement shall
clearly identify the individual and shall state:

1. The individual's willingness to accept the designation

2. That the individual is permitted to be on the school site

3. Any limitations on the individual's authority

Health Care Provider Statement

When any district employee is to administer prescribed medication to a student, or when a student is to be allowed
to carry and self-administer prescribed medication during school hours, the authorized health care provider's written
statement shall include:



1. Clear identification of the student  (Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

2. The name of the medication  (Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

3. The method, amount, and time schedules by which the medication is to be taken (Education Code 49423,
49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

4. If a parent/guardian has requested that the student be allowed to self-administer medication, confirmation that
the student is able to self-administer the medication (Education Code 49414.5, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

5. For medication that is to be administered by unlicensed personnel, confirmation by the student's health care
provider that the medication may safely and appropriately be administered by unlicensed personnel (Education
Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

6. For medication that is to be administered on an as-needed basis, the specific symptoms that would necessitate
administration of the medication, allowable frequency for administration, and indications for referral for
medical evaluation

7. Possible side effects of the medication

8. Name, address, telephone number, and signature of the student's authorized health care provider

For self-administration of inhaled asthma medication, the district shall accept a written statement from a physician or
surgeon contracted with a health plan licensed pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1351.2.  Such written statement
shall be in English and Spanish, and shall include the name and contact information for the physician or surgeon. 
(Education Code 49423.1)

District Responsibilities

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any unlicensed school personnel authorized to administer
medication to a student receives appropriate training from the school nurse or other qualified medical personnel.

The school nurse or other designated school personnel shall:

1. Administer or assist in administering medication in accordance with the authorized health care provider's
written statement

2. Accept delivery of medications from parents/guardians and count and record them upon receipt

3. Maintain a list of students needing medication during the school day, including those authorized to self-
administer medication, and note on the list the type of medication and the times and dosage to be
administered

4. Maintain for each student a medication log which may:

a. Specify the student's name, medication, dose, method of administration, time of administration during
the regular school day, date(s) on which the student is required to take the medication, and the
authorized health care provider's name and contact information

b. Contain space for daily recording of the date, time, and amount of medication administered, and the
signature of the individual administering the medication

5. Maintain for each student a medication record which may include the authorized health care provider's written
statement, the parent/guardian's written statement, the medication log, and any other written documentation
related to the administration of medication to the student

6. Ensure that student confidentiality is appropriately maintained

7. Coordinate and, as appropriate, ensure the administration of medication during field trips and other school-
related activities



8. Report to a student's parent/guardian and the site administrator any refusal by the student to take the
medication

9. Keep all medication to be administered by the district in a locked drawer or cabinet

10. As needed, communicate with a student's authorized health care provider and/or pharmacist regarding the
medication and its effects

11. Counsel other designated school personnel regarding the possible effects of a medication on a student's
physical, intellectual, and social behavior, as well as possible behavioral signs and symptoms of adverse side
effects, omission, or overdose

12. Ensure that any unused, discontinued, or outdated medication is returned to the student's parent/guardian at
the end of the school year or, if the medication cannot be returned, dispose of it in accordance with state laws
and local ordinances

13. In the event of a medical emergency requiring administration of medication, provide immediate medical
assistance, directly observe the student following the administration of medication, contact the student's
parent/guardian, and determine whether the student should return to class, rest in the school office, or receive
further medical assistance

14. Report to the site administrator, the student's parent/guardian, and, if necessary, the student's authorized
health care provider any instance when a medication is not administered properly, including administration of
the wrong medication or failure to administer the medication in accordance with authorized health care
provider's written statement

Emergency Epinephrine Auto-Injectors

The Superintendent or designee shall provide epinephrine auto-injectors to school nurses or other employees who
have volunteered to administer them in an emergency and have received training. The school nurse, or a volunteer
employee when a school nurse or physician is unavailable, may administer an epinephrine auto-injector to provide
emergency medical aid to any person suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from potentially life-
threatening symptoms of anaphylaxis at school or a school activity.  (Education Code 49414)

At least once per school year, the Superintendent or designee shall distribute to all staff a notice requesting
volunteers to be trained to administer an epinephrine auto-injector and describing the training that the volunteer will
receive.  (Education Code 49414)

The principal or designee at each school may designate one or more volunteers to receive initial and annual refresher
training, which shall be provided by a school nurse or other qualified person designated by a physician and surgeon
authorized pursuant to Education Code 49414 and shall be based on the standards developed by the Superintendent
of Public Instruction (SPI). Written materials covering the required topics for training shall be retained by the school
for reference. (Education Code 49414)

A school nurse or other qualified supervisor of health, or a district administrator if the district does not have a
qualified supervisor of health, shall obtain a prescription for epinephrine auto-injectors for each school from an
authorized physician and surgeon.  Such prescription may be filled by local or mail order pharmacies or epinephrine
auto-injector manufacturers. Elementary schools shall, at a minimum, be provided one adult (regular) and one junior
epinephrine auto-injector. Secondary schools shall be provided at least one adult (regular) epinephrine auto-injector,
unless there are any students at the school who require a junior epinephrine auto-injector.  (Education Code 49414)

If an epinephrine auto-injector is used, the school nurse or other qualified supervisor of health shall restock the
epinephrine auto-injector as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than two weeks after it is used. In addition,
epinephrine auto-injectors shall be restocked before their expiration date.  (Education Code 49414)

Information regarding defense and indemnification provided by the district for any and all civil liability for volunteers
administering epinephrine auto-injectors shall be provided to each volunteer and retained in the employee's
personnel file.  (Education Code 49414)



A school may accept gifts, grants, and donations from any source for the support of the school in carrying out the
requirements of Education Code 49414, including, but not limited to, the acceptance of epinephrine auto-injectors
from a manufacturer or wholesaler.  (Education Code 49414)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records regarding the acquisition and disposition of epinephrine auto-
injectors for a period of three years from the date the records were created.  (Business and Professions Code 4119.2)

Emergency Medication for Opioid Overdose

The district may elect to make emergency naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist available at schools
for the purpose of providing emergency medical aid to persons suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from
an opioid overdose. In determining whether to make this medication available, the Superintendent or designee shall
evaluate the emergency medical response time to the school and determine whether initiating emergency medical
services is an acceptable alternative to providing an opioid antagonist and training personnel to administer the
medication.  (Education Code 49414.3)

When available at the school site, the school nurse shall provide emergency naloxone hydrochloride or another
opioid antagonist for emergency medical aid to any person exhibiting potentially life-threatening symptoms of an
opioid overdose at school or a school activity. Other designated personnel who have volunteered and have received
training may administer such medication when a school nurse or physician is unavailable, and shall only administer
the medication by nasal spray or auto-injector.  (Education Code 49414.3)

At least once per school year, the Superintendent or designee shall distribute to all staff a notice requesting
volunteers to be trained to administer naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist, describing the training
that the volunteer will receive, and explaining the right of the volunteer to rescind the offer to volunteer at any time,
including after receiving training. The notice shall also include a statement that no benefit will be granted to or
withheld from any employee based on the offer to volunteer and that there will be no retaliation against any
employee for rescinding the offer to volunteer.  (Education Code 49414.3)

The principal or designee may designate one or more volunteer employees to receive initial and annual refresher
training, based on standards adopted by the SPI, regarding the storage and emergency use of naloxone hydrochloride
or another opioid antagonist. The training shall be provided at no cost to the employee, conducted during regular
working hours, and be provided by a school nurse or other qualified person designated by an authorizing physician
and surgeon. Written materials provided during the training shall be retained at the school for reference.  (Education
Code 49414.3)

A school nurse, other qualified supervisor of health, or, if the district does not have a qualified supervisor of health, a
district administrator shall obtain a prescription for naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for each
school from an authorized physician and surgeon. Such prescription may be filled by local or mail order pharmacies or
manufacturers. (Education Code 49414.3)

If the medication is used, the school nurse, other qualified supervisor of health, or district administrator, as
applicable, shall restock the medication as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than two weeks after it is used.
In addition, the medication shall be restocked before its expiration date.  (Education Code 49414.3)

Information regarding defense and indemnification provided by the district for any and all civil liability for volunteers
administering naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for emergency aid shall be provided to each
volunteer and retained in the employee's personnel file.  (Education Code 49414.3)

A school may accept gifts, grants, and donations from any source for the support of the school in carrying out the
requirements of Education Code 49414.3, including, but not limited to, the acceptance of the naloxone
hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist from a manufacturer or wholesaler.  (Education Code 49414.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records regarding the acquisition and disposition of naloxone
hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for a period of three years from the date the records were created. 
(Business and Professions Code 4119.8)



Policy 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood EducationPolicy 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood Education Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/15/2023

The Governing Board recognizes the value of high-quality preschool experiences to enhance children's social-
emotional development and acquisition of instructional knowledge, skills, and abilities. The Board desires to provide a
supervised and cognitively rich learning environment designed to facilitate the transition to kindergarten for three-
and four-year-old children.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the local child care and development planning council, the
county office of education, other public agencies, organizations, and/or private preschool providers to assess the
availability of preschool programs in the community and the extent to which the community's preschool needs are
being met. The Board encourages the development of a comprehensive districtwide and/or countywide plan to
increase children's access to high-quality preschool programs.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide information about preschool options in the community to
parents/guardians upon request.

To receive preschool services, a child and the child's parent(s)/guardian(s) shall be required to provide evidence of
residency in California. However, any person identified as experiencing homelessness shall only be required to
submit a declaration that the person resides in California.  (5 CCR 17745)

Preschool eligibility determinations shall be made without regard to a child's immigration status or that of the child's
parent(s)/guardian(s) unless the child or the child's parent(s)/guardian(s) are under a final order of deportation from
the U.S. Department of Homeland Security.  (5 CCR 17745)

District Preschool Programs

When the Board determines that it is feasible, the district may contract with the California Department of Education
(CDE) to provide preschool services in facilities at or near district schools, either directly or through a subcontract
with a public or private provider.

District preschool programs shall comply with all health and safety laws and regulations, including, when applicable,
licensure requirements pursuant to 22 CCR 101156.

The Board shall approve, for the district's preschool program, a written philosophical statement, goals, and objectives
that reflect the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the families to be served and address the program
components specified in 5 CCR 17701-17711 and the accompanying administrative regulation.  (5 CCR 17701)

The Board shall set priorities for establishing or expanding services as resources become available, giving
consideration to the benefits of providing early education programs for at-risk children and/or children residing in the
attendance areas of the lowest performing district schools.

Preschool classroom needs shall be addressed in the district's facilities master plan, including an assessment as to
whether adequate and appropriate space exists on school sites. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall
provide information to the Board regarding facilities financing options for preschool classrooms and/or facilities
available through partnering organizations or agencies.

Because parents/guardians are essential partners in supporting the development of their children, the
Superintendent or designee shall involve them in program planning.

The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate the district's preschool program, transitional kindergarten program
(TK), and elementary education program to provide a developmental continuum that builds upon children's growing

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

13.



skills and knowledge. In order to provide families with the option of a full-day, high-quality instructional program, the
district may enroll children who are in a TK or kindergarten program in a California State Preschool Program (CSPP)
before and/or after the regular school day.

If an early enrollment child is enrolled in the district's TK program, the district shall concurrently offer the child
enrollment in the district's CSPP program, subject to available space.  (Education Code 48000.15)

A child's eligibility for TK enrollment shall not impact family eligibility for a preschool or child care program.
 (Education Code 8205, 48000)

The district's program shall be aligned with preschool learning foundations and curriculum frameworks developed by
CDE which identify the knowledge, skills, and competencies that children typically attain as they complete their first
or second year of preschool. The program shall be designed to facilitate children's development in essential skills in
the areas of language and literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual and performing arts, science,
history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional development.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify dual language learners in district preschool programs, and shall collect
and report related data to CDE as required by Education Code 8241.5. The district's preschool program shall include
activities and services that meet the needs of dual language learners for support in the development of their home
language and English.  (Education Code 8203)

The district's preschool program shall serve children with exceptional needs as required by Education Code 8208.
Children with exceptional needs attending any CSPP program shall be educated in the least restrictive environment
in accordance with 20 USC 1412.

The district's preschool program shall provide appropriate services to support the needs of at-risk children.

To maximize the ability of children to succeed in the preschool program, the program shall support children's health
through proper nutrition and physical activity and shall provide or make referrals to available health and social
services as needed.

The district shall encourage volunteerism by families participating in the program and shall communicate frequently
with parents/guardians of enrolled children regarding their child's progress.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that administrators, teachers, and paraprofessionals in district preschool
programs possess the appropriate permit(s) issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing, meet any additional
qualifications established by the Board, and participate in professional development opportunities designed to
continually enhance their knowledge and skills.

Preschool admissions policies and procedures shall be in writing and available to the public. Such policies and
procedures shall include criteria designating those children whose needs can be met by the program and services, the
ages of children who will be accepted, program activities, any supplementary services provided, any field trip
provisions, any transportation arrangements, food service provisions, and a health examination requirement.  (5 CCR
17743; 22 CCR 101218.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that subsidized preschool is provided to eligible families to the extent
that state and/or federal funding is available and shall establish enrollment priorities in accordance with Education
Code 8208, 8210, and 8211 and 5 CCR 17746-17748.

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend strategies to link the district's preschool program with other
available child care and development programs in the district or community in order to assist families whose child



care needs extend beyond the length of time that the district's preschool program is offered.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the plan to provide access to full-day learning programs the year
before kindergarten addresses the needs of preschool children and their families as specified in Board Policy 6170.1
- Transitional Kindergarten.  (Education Code 8281.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement an annual plan of evaluation which conforms to state
requirements.  (5 CCR 17709-17711)

The district's uniform complaint procedures, with modifications as necessary, shall be used to investigate and resolve
complaints alleging violation of applicable health or safety requirements for license-exempt programs operating
under the CSPP. However, licensed programs shall refer complaints alleging health and safety violations to the
California Department of Social Services.  (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4610, 4611, 4690-4694, 17781)

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding enrollment in district preschool
programs and the effectiveness of the programs in preparing preschoolers for transition into the elementary
education program.



Policy 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood EducationPolicy 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood Education Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/15/2023 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/15/2023

The Governing Board recognizes the value of high-quality preschool experiences to enhance children's social-
emotional development and acquisition of instructional knowledge, skills, and abilities. The Board desires to provide a
supervised and cognitively rich learning environment designed to facilitate the transition to kindergarten for three-
and four-year-old children.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the local child care and development planning council, the
county office of education, other public agencies, organizations, and/or private preschool providers to assess the
availability of preschool programs in the community and the extent to which the community's preschool needs are
being met. The Board encourages the development of a comprehensive districtwide and/or countywide plan to
increase children's access to high-quality preschool programs.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide information about preschool options in the community to
parents/guardians upon request.

To receive preschool services, a child and the child's parent(s)/guardian(s) shall be required to provide evidence of
residency in California. However, any person identified as experiencing homelessness shall only be required to
submit a declaration that the person resides in California.  (5 CCR 17745)

Preschool eligibility determinations shall be made without regard to a child's immigration status or that of the child's
parent(s)/guardian(s) unless the child or the child's parent(s)/guardian(s) are under a final order of deportation from
the United States Department of Homeland Security.  (5 CCR 17745)

District Preschool Programs

When the Board determines that it is feasible, the district may contract with the California Department of Education
(CDE) to provide preschool services in facilities at or near district schools, either directly or through a subcontract
with a public or private provider.

District preschool programs shall comply with all health and safety laws and regulations, including, when applicable,
licensure requirements pursuant to 22 CCR 101156.

The Board shall approve, for the district's preschool program, a written philosophical statement, goals, and objectives
that reflect the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the families to be served and address the program
components specified in 5 CCR 17701-17711 and the accompanying administrative regulation.  (5 CCR 17701)

The Board shall set priorities for establishing or expanding services as resources become available, giving
consideration to the benefits of providing early education programs for at-risk children and/or children residing in the
attendance areas of the lowest performing district schools.

Preschool classroom needs shall be addressed in the district's facilities master plan, including an assessment as to
whether adequate and appropriate space exists on school sites. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall
provide information to the Board regarding facilities financing options for preschool classrooms and/or facilities
available through partnering organizations or agencies.

Because parents/guardians are essential partners in supporting the development of their children, the
Superintendent or designee shall involve them in program planning.

The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate the district's preschool program, transitional kindergarten program
(TK), and elementary education program to provide a developmental continuum that builds upon children's growing

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



skills and knowledge.

A child's eligibility for TK enrollment shall not impact family eligibility for a preschool or child care program.
 (Education Code 8205, 48000)

The district's program shall be aligned with preschool learning foundations and curriculum frameworks developed by
CDE which identify the knowledge, skills, and competencies that children typically attain as they complete their first
or second year of preschool. The program shall be designed to facilitate children's development in essential skills in
the areas of language and literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual and performing arts, science,
history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional development.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify dual language learners in district preschool programs, and shall collect
and report related data to CDE as required by Education Code 8241.5. The district's preschool program shall include
activities and services that meet the needs of dual language learners for support in the development of their home
language and English.  (Education Code 8203)

The district's preschool program shall serve children with exceptional needs as required by Education Code 8208.
Children with exceptional needs attending any CSPP program shall be educated in the least restrictive environment
in accordance with 20 USC 1412.

The district's preschool program shall provide appropriate services to support the needs of at-risk children.

To maximize the ability of children to succeed in the preschool program, the program shall support children's health
through proper nutrition and physical activity and shall provide or make referrals to available health and social
services as needed.

The district shall encourage volunteerism by families participating in the program and shall communicate frequently
with parents/guardians of enrolled children regarding their child's progress.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that administrators, teachers, and paraprofessionals in district preschool
programs possess the appropriate permit(s) issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing, meet any additional
qualifications established by the Board, and participate in professional development opportunities designed to
continually enhance their knowledge and skills.

Preschool admissions policies and procedures shall be in writing and available to the public. Such policies and
procedures shall include criteria designating those children whose needs can be met by the program and services, the
ages of children who will be accepted, program activities, any supplementary services provided, any field trip
provisions, any transportation arrangements, food service provisions, and a health examination requirement.  (5 CCR
17743; 22 CCR 101218.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that subsidized preschool is provided to eligible families to the extent
that state and/or federal funding is available and shall establish enrollment priorities in accordance with Education
Code 8208, 8210, and 8211 and 5 CCR 17746-17748.

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend strategies to link the district's preschool program with other
available child care and development programs in the district or community in order to assist families whose child
care needs extend beyond the length of time that the district's preschool program is offered.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the plan to provide access to full-day learning programs the year
before kindergarten addresses the needs of preschool children and their families as specified in BP 6170.1 -
Transitional Kindergarten.  (Education Code 8322)



The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement an annual plan of evaluation which conforms to state
requirements.  (5 CCR 17709-17711)

The district's uniform complaint procedures, with modifications as necessary, shall be used to investigate and resolve
complaints alleging violation of applicable health or safety requirements for license-exempt programs operating
under the California State Preschool Program. However, licensed programs shall refer complaints alleging health and
safety violations to the California Department of Social Services.  (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4610, 4611, 4690-
4694, 17781)

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding enrollment in district preschool
programs and the effectiveness of the programs in preparing preschoolers for transition into the elementary
education program.



Regulation 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood EducationRegulation 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood Education Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/25/2011 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/15/2023

Children with exceptional needs means either of the following:  (Education Code 8205)

1. Children under three years of age who have been determined to be eligible for early intervention services
pursuant to the California Early Intervention Services Act (Government Code 95000-95029.5) and its
implementing regulations, including an infant or toddler with a developmental delay or established risk
condition, or a child who is at high risk of having a substantial developmental disability, as defined in
Government Code 95014. Children with exceptional needs under the age of three shall have active
individualized family service plans (IFSP) and shall be receiving early intervention services.

2. Children 3 to 21 years of age, inclusive, who have been determined to be eligible for special education and
related services by an individualized education program (IEP) team according to the special education
requirements contained in Education Code 56000-56865, and who meet eligibility criteria described in
Education Code 56026 and 56333-56338 and 5 CCR 3030-3031. Children with exceptional needs between
ages 3 to 21 shall have an active IEP and shall be receiving early intervention services or appropriate special
education.

Dual language learner children means children whose first language is a language other than English or children who
are developing two or more languages, one of which may be English.  (Education Code 8205)

Early enrollment child means a child whose fourth birthday will be between June 3 and September 1 preceding the
school year during which they are enrolled in a transitional kindergarten (TK) classroom.  (Education Code 48000.15)

Three-year-old children means children who will have their third birthday on or before December 1 of the fiscal year
in which they are enrolled in a program approved by the California Department of Education (CDE) under the
California State Preschool Program (CSPP). Children who have their third birthday on or after December 2 of the
fiscal year, may be enrolled in a CSPP program on or after their third birthday.  (Education Code 8205)

Four-year-old children means children who will have their fourth birthday on or before December 1 of the fiscal year
in which they are enrolled in a CSPP program, or a child whose fifth birthday occurs after September 1 of the fiscal
year in which they are enrolled in a CSPP program and whose parent or guardian has opted to retain or enroll them
in a CSPP program.  (Education Code 8205)

When approved by CDE under the CSPP, the district may operate one or more part- or full-day preschool programs
in accordance with law and the terms of its contract with CDE.

The district's CSPP program shall include all of the following:  (Education Code 8207)

1. Age and developmentally appropriate activities for children

2. Supervision

3. Parenting education and parent engagement

4. Social services that include, but are not limited to, identification of child and family needs and referral to
appropriate agencies

5. Health services

6. Nutrition

7. Training and career ladder opportunities, documentation of which shall be provided to CDE

8. Physical activity to support children's health

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

14.



The district's preschool program shall satisfy all the requirements described in 5 CCR 17701-17711, including, but
not limited to, those related to the program philosophy, goals, and objectives, the educational program, the creation
of a developmental profile for each child, staff development, family engagement and strengthening, community
involvement, health and social services, nutrition, and program evaluation.

Minimum Hours/Days of Operation

The district's part-day preschool program shall operate a minimum of three hours, and up to three hours and 59
minutes, per day, excluding time for home-to-school transportation, and for at least 175 days per year unless
otherwise specified in the contract with CDE.  (Education Code 8207; 5 CCR 17727)

However, a part-day preschool program may also offer TK or kindergarten children whose families meet the
requirements of Education Code 8208 less than four hours of wraparound childcare services and a part-day
preschool program operating on a school site may be allowed flexibility in the operational hours.  (Education Code
48000)

The district may enroll an early enrollment child in TK whose fourth birthday is between June 3 and September 1,
inclusive, preceding the school year during which they are enrolled in TK. If an early enrollment child is enrolled in
the district's TK program, the district shall concurrently offer the child enrollment in the district's CSPP, subject to
available space.  (Education Code 48000.15)

The district's full-day program shall operate for a minimum of 246 days per year, unless the contract specifies a
lower number of days of operation, and for the number of operational hours reasonably necessary to meet the
preschool needs of the families in the community.  (Education Code 8207; 5 CCR 17728)

Staffing

The preschool program shall maintain an adult-child ratio of at least one adult for every eight children and a teacher-
child ratio of at least one teacher for every 24 children.  (Education Code 8241, 5 CCR 17713-17716)

Any person employed at a district preschool and any volunteer who provides care and supervision to children at a
preschool shall, unless exempted by law, be immunized against influenza, pertussis, and measles in accordance with
Health and Safety Code 1596.7995 and Administrative Regulation 5148 - Child Care and Development.
Documentation of required immunizations, or applicable exemptions, shall be maintained in the employee's
personnel file.  (Health and Safety Code 1596.7995)

In addition, preschool teachers shall present evidence of a current tuberculosis clearance and meet other
requirements as specified in Health and Safety Code 1597.055.

The district may require any volunteer who is to provide care and supervision to district preschool children to
provide evidence that the volunteer is free of infectious tuberculosis.

Family Literacy Services

When any district part-day preschool program receives funding for family literacy services pursuant to Education
Code 8221, the Superintendent or designee shall coordinate the provision of:  (Education Code 8220)

1. Opportunities for parents/guardians to work with their children on interactive literacy activities, including
activities in which parents/guardians actively participate in facilitating their children's acquisition of prereading
skills through guided activities such as shared reading, learning the alphabet, and basic vocabulary development

2. Parenting education for parents/guardians of children in participating classrooms to support their child's
development of literacy skills, including, but not limited to, parent education in:

a. Providing support for the educational growth and success of their children



b. Improving parent-school communications and parental understanding of school structures and
expectations

c. Becoming active partners with teachers in the education of their children

d. Improving parental knowledge of local resources for the identification of and services for developmental
disabilities, including, but not limited to, contact information for the district special education referral

3. Referrals to providers of adult education and instruction in English as a second language as necessary to
improve academic skills of parents/guardians

4. Staff development for teachers in participating classrooms that includes, but is not limited to:

a. Development of a pedagogical knowledge, including, but not limited to, improved instructional and
behavioral strategies

b. Knowledge and application of developmentally appropriate assessments of the prereading skills of
children in participating classrooms

c. Information on working with families, including the use of on-site coaching, for guided practice in
interactive literacy activities

d. Providing targeted interventions for all young children to improve kindergarten readiness upon program
completion

Eligibility Criteria for Part-Day CSPP Programs

A three- or four-year-old child is eligible for a part-day CSPP program if the child's family is one of the following:
 (Education Code 8208)

1. A current aid recipient

2. Income eligible

3. Experiencing homelessness

4. One whose children are recipients of child protective services, or whose children have been identified as being
abused, neglected, or exploited, or at risk of being abused, neglected or exploited

5. One who has children with exceptional needs, as defined in Education Code 8205

6. One with a household member who is certified to receive benefits from Medi-Cal, CalFresh, the California
Food Assistance Program, the California Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and
Children, the federal Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations, Head Start, Early Head Start, or any
other designated means-tested government program, as determined by CDE

After all eligible three- and four-year-old children have been enrolled as provided above, a part-day CSPP program
may provide services to children in families whose income is no more than 15 percent above the income eligibility
threshold, as described in Education Code 8213. No more than 10 percent of all the children enrolled in the CSPP
program shall be from families above the income eligibility threshold.  (Education Code 8208)

In addition, after all otherwise eligible children have been enrolled as provided in the paragraphs above, a part-day
CSPP program may provide services to three- and four-year-old children in families whose income is above the
income eligibility threshold if those children are children with exceptional needs. Such children with exceptional
needs shall not count towards the 10-percent limit on enrollment of families with income above the income eligibility
threshold described above.  (Education Code 8208)

A CSPP program operating within the attendance boundary of a school where at least 80 percent of students are
eligible for free and reduced-price lunch may enroll three- and four-year-old children after all otherwise eligible



children have been enrolled as provided in the paragraphs above.  (Education Code 8208, 8217)

The district shall certify eligibility and enroll families into the part-day preschool program within 120 calendar days
prior to the first day of the beginning of the new preschool year. Subsequent to a child's enrollment, the child shall be
deemed eligible for the part-day CSPP program for the remainder of the program year and for the following program
year, provided applicable age-eligibility requirements are met, as specified in Education Code 8205 and 48000.
 (Education Code 8208)

Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs

The district shall give priority for part-day CSPP programs as follows:  (Education Code 8210)

1. The first priority for services shall be given to three- or four-year-old children who are recipients of child
protective services or who are at risk of being neglected, abused, or exploited and for whom there is a written
referral from a legal, medical, or social service agency. If the district is unable to enroll a child in this first
priority category, the district shall refer the child's parent/guardian to local resources and referral services so
that services for the child can be located.

2. When the number of three- or four-year old children with exceptional needs required to be enrolled pursuant
to Education Code 8208 have been enrolled and there are additional children with exceptional needs who are
interested in enrolling, the second priority for services shall be given to all three- and four-year old children
with exceptional needs from families with incomes below the income eligibility threshold, as described in
Education Code 8213. Within this priority category, children with exceptional needs from families with the
lowest income according to the income ranking on the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table,
as published by the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) at the time of enrollment, shall be enrolled first.
If two or more families have the same income ranking, the child that has been on the waiting list for the
longest time shall be admitted first.

3. The third priority shall be given to eligible four-year-old children who are not enrolled in a state-funded TK
program. This priority shall not include children eligible for enrollment as children with exceptional needs
pursuant to Education Code 8208(a)(1)(E), who are from families with incomes above the income eligibility
threshold, as described in Education Code 8213. Within this priority category, eligible children with the lowest
income according to the income ranking on the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table, as
published by the SPI at the time of enrollment, shall be enrolled first.

If two or more families have the same income ranking according to the most recent schedule of income ceiling
eligibility table, a child who is identified as a dual language learner shall be enrolled first. If there are no children
identified as dual language learners, the child that has been on the waiting list for the longest time shall be
admitted first.

4. The fourth priority shall be given to eligible three-year-old children. This priority shall not include children
eligible for enrollment as children with exceptional needs pursuant to Education Code 8208(a)(1)(E), who are
from families with incomes above the income eligibility threshold, as described in Education Code 8213.
Enrollment determinations within this priority category shall be made in the same way as for third priority in
Item #3 above.

5. The fifth priority, after all otherwise eligible children have been enrolled, shall be given to children from
families whose income is no more than 15 percent above the eligibility income threshold, as described in
Education Code 8213. Within this priority category, priority shall be given to three- and four-year-old children
with exceptional needs interested in enrolling beyond those already enrolled in the 10 percent of funded
enrollment set aside pursuant to Education Code 8208, then to four-year old children before three-year-old
children without exceptional needs.

6. After all otherwise eligible children have been enrolled in the first through fifth priority categories, as described
in Items #1-5 above, the district may enroll other children in the following order:

a. A CSPP program site operating within the attendance boundary of a school where at least 80 percent of
students are eligible for free and reduced-price meals as described in Education Code 8217 may enroll
any three- or four-year-old children whose families reside within the attendance boundary of the



qualified elementary school. These children shall, to the extent possible, be enrolled by lowest to highest
income according to the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table.

b. Children enrolling in a CSPP program that provides expanded learning and care to TK or kindergarten
students, pursuant to Education Code 48000

Regardless of the priorities listed above, until the district attains the percent of funded enrollment set aside for
children with exceptional needs pursuant to Education Code 8208, children with exceptional needs shall be enrolled
without regard to the priorities listed above. Within this category, eligible children with the lowest income according
to the income ranking on the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table, as published by the SPI at the
time of enrollment, shall be enrolled first. If two or more families have the same income ranking, the child that has
been on the waiting list for the longest time shall be admitted first.  (Education Code 8210)

Eligibility and Enrollment Priorities for Full-Day CSPP Programs

A three- or four-year-old child is eligible for a full-day CSPP program if the family meets both of the following
requirements:  (Education Code 8208)

1. The child's family is one of the following:

a. A current aid recipient, income eligible, or experiencing homelessness

b. One whose children are recipients of child protective services, or whose children have been identified as
being abused, neglected, or exploited, or at risk of being abused, neglected, or exploited

c. One who has children with exceptional needs, as defined in Education Code 8205

d. One with a household member who is certified to receive benefits from Medi-Cal, CalFresh, the
California Food Assistance Program, the California Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
Infants, and Children, the federal Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations, Head Start, Early
Head Start, or any other designated means-tested government program, as determined by CDE

2. The child's family needs the childcare services because of either the following:

a. The child is identified by a legal, medical, or social services agency, the district liaison for homeless
students, a Head Start program, or an emergency or transitional shelter as being a recipient of protective
services; as being or at risk of being neglected, abused, or exploited; or as experiencing homelessness

b. The parents/guardians are participating in vocational training leading directly to a recognized trade,
paraprofession, or profession; are engaged in an educational program for English language learners or to
attain a high school diploma or general educational development certificate; are employed or seeking
employment; are seeking permanent housing for family stability; or are incapacitated

After all eligible three- and four-year-old children have been enrolled as provided above, a full-day CSPP program
may provide services to children in families whose income is no more than 15 percent above the income eligibility
threshold, as described in Education Code 8213. No more than 10 percent of all the children enrolled in the CSPP
program shall be from families above the income eligibility threshold.  (Education Code 8208)

After all families meeting the criteria specified in the paragraphs above have been enrolled, a full-day CSPP program
may provide services to three- and four-year-old children in families who do not meet at least one of the criteria in
Item #2 above.  (Education Code 8208)

After all otherwise eligible children have been enrolled as provided above, a CSPP program operating within the
attendance boundary of a school where at least 80 percent of students are eligible for free and reduced-price meals
as described in Education Code 8217 may enroll any four-year-old child.  (Education Code 8208)

For full-day CSPP programs, the district shall use the same priority ranking specified in Items #1-4 of "Enrollment
Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs" above, and the following:  (Education Code 8211)

1. After all otherwise eligible children based on Items #1-4 of "Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs"



have been enrolled, fifth priority shall be given to children from families whose income is no more than 15
percent above the eligibility income threshold, as described in Education Code 8213. Within this priority
category, priority shall be given to three- and four-year-old children with an IFSP or IEP, then to four-year old
children before three-year-old children without IFSP or IEP.

2. After all otherwise eligible children based on Items #1-4 of "Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs"
and Item #1 above have been enrolled, the district may enroll other children in the following order:

a. Three- and four-year old children from families who do not meet at least one of the need requirements
in Item #2 above. Within this priority, families shall be enrolled in income ranking order, lowest to
highest, and within income ranking order, four-year old children before three-year old children

b. When a CSPP program site operates within the attendance boundary of a school where at least 80
percent of students are eligible for free and reduced-price meals as described in Education Code 8217,
three- or four-year-old children whose families reside within the attendance boundary of the school may
be enrolled without establishing eligibility or a need for services. Such children shall, to the extent
possible, be enrolled by lowest to highest income ranking order.

Regardless of the priorities listed above, until the district attains the percent of funded enrollment set aside for
children with exceptional needs pursuant to Education Code 8208, children with exceptional needs shall be enrolled
without regard to the priorities listed above. Within this category, eligible children with the lowest income according
to the income ranking on the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table, as published by the SPI at the
time of enrollment, shall be enrolled first. If two or more families have the same income ranking, the child that has
been on the waiting list for the longest time shall be admitted first.  (Education Code 8211)

Upon establishing initial eligibility or ongoing eligibility for a full-day CSPP program, a family shall be considered to
meet all eligibility and need requirements for those services for not less than 24 months. Such families shall receive
those services for not less than 24 months before having eligibility or need recertified, and shall not be required to
report changes to income or other changes for at least 24 months. If the eligibility period ends before the end of a
program year, eligibility shall be extended until the end of the program year, provided age-eligibility requirements are
met, as specified in Education Code 8205. However, a family that establishes initial eligibility or ongoing eligibility on
the basis of income shall report increases in income that exceed the threshold for ongoing income eligibility, as
described in Education Code 8213, and the family's ongoing eligibility for services shall at that time be recertified. In
addition, a family may, at any time, voluntarily report income or other changes. This information shall be used, as
applicable, to reduce the family's fees, increase the family's services, or extend the period of the family's eligibility
before recertification.  (Education Code 8208)

Waiting List

The Superintendent or designee shall consult the county's centralized eligibility list, when available, or shall maintain
a district waiting list in accordance with applicable enrollment priorities. As vacancies occur, applicant families shall
be contacted in order of priority on the waiting list.  (5 CCR 17744)

Combined Preschool/Transitional Kindergarten Classroom

When a child is eligible for both the preschool program and the district's TK program, the district may place the child
in a classroom which is commingled with children from both programs as long as the commingled program meets all
of the requirements of each program as well as the following requirements:  (Education Code 8207, 48000)

1. An early childhood environment rating scale, as specified in 5 CCR 18281, shall be completed for the
classroom

2. All children enrolled for 10 or more hours per week shall be evaluated using the Desired Results
Developmental Profile, as specified in 5 CCR 18272

3. The classroom shall be taught by a teacher who holds a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing in accordance with Education Code 44065 and 44256

4. The classroom shall comply with the adult-child ratio specified in Education Code 8241



5. Contractors of the district shall report the services, revenues, and expenditures for children in the CSPP in
accordance with 5 CCR 18068

6. The classroom shall not include children enrolled in TK for a second year or children enrolled in a regular
kindergarten classroom

Fees and Charges

Fees for participation in the district's full-day CSPP program shall be assessed and collected in accordance with the
fee schedule established by the SPI in conjunction with the California Department of Social Services.  (Education
Code 8252)

Family fees accrued but uncollected prior to October 1, 2023, may be forgiven and not collected.  (Education Code
8252)

In addition, no fee shall be charged to an eligible family whose child is enrolled in a part-day preschool program or a
family that is receiving CalWORKs cash aid.  (Education Code 8253; 5 CCR 17735)

A family may be exempt from the fees for up to 12 months for any child enrolled in full-day preschool on the basis of
being the recipient of child protective services or as being, or at risk of being, abused, exploited, or neglected.
 (Education Code 8253; 5 CCR 17735)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process that involves parents/guardians in determining whether to
require parents/guardians to provide diapers and/or whether and how much to charge parents/guardians for field
trip expenses, within the limit specified in law. A child shall not be denied participation in a field trip due to the
parent/guardian's inability or refusal to pay the fee, and no adverse action shall be taken against a parent/guardian
for that inability or refusal.  (Education Code 8254)

Disenrollment Based on Reduced Funding

When necessary to disenroll families from subsidized preschool services, families shall be disenrolled in reverse order
of the priority for services specified in Education Code 8210 and 8211 and as described above in the sections
"Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs" and "Eligibility and Enrollment Priorities for Full-Day CSPP
Programs."  (Education Code 8214; 5 CCR 17744)

Expulsion/Unenrollment and Suspension Based on Behavior

Suspension means any removal of a child from all or part of the program day, or the prevention of a child from
attending the program for one or more days, in response to the child's behavior.

Removing the child from the program means moving a child to an isolated or separate room. Programs may remove
children from specific situations to allow the child to calm down or regain composure, such as taking the child for a
walk or accompanying the child to an outdoor environment. However, the child must return to the classroom as soon
as the child has calmed down and may not be removed for longer than 30 minutes.

Expulsion means the permanent dismissal of a child from a program in response to a child's behavior.

Persistent and serious behaviors means either repeated patterns of behavior that significantly interfere with the
learning of other children, or interactions with peers and adults that are not responsive to the use of developmentally
appropriate guidance, including, but not limited to, physical aggression, property destruction, and self-injury.

A district preschool program shall not expel or unenroll a child or persuade or encourage a child's parents/guardians
to voluntarily unenroll from the program based on the child's behavior, unless the district first takes the following
actions to address the child's behavior:  (Education Code 8489.1)

1. In writing, inform the parents/guardians of the child's persistent and serious behaviors and consult with the
parents/guardians and teacher in an effort to maintain the child's safe participation in the program



2. If the child has an IFSP or IEP, contact, with written parent/guardian consent, the agency or district employee
responsible for such plan or program to seek consultation in regard to serving the child

3. If appropriate, consider completing a comprehensive screening of the child, including, but not limited to,
screening the child's social and emotional development, referring the parents/guardians to community
resources, and implementing behavior supports within the program

If the district has taken the actions specified in Items #1-3 above and the child's continued enrollment would present
a serious safety threat to the child or other enrolled children, the district shall refer the parents/guardians to other
potentially appropriate placements, the local child care resource and referral agency, or any other referral service
available in the local community. The district shall, to the greatest extent possible, support direct transition to a more
appropriate placement. The district may then unenroll the child. The district shall have up to 180 days to complete
the actions described above.  (Education Code 8489.1)

A child shall not be suspended from a CSPP program, nor shall a child's parent/guardian be encouraged or persuaded
to prematurely pick up a child before the program day ends, except as a last resort in extraordinary circumstances,
when a safety threat exists that cannot be eliminated or reduced without the removal of the child.

Before determining that a suspension is necessary, the district shall collaborate with the child's parents/guardians
and, as needed, shall use appropriate community resources to determine that no other reasonable option is
appropriate.

When suspension is deemed necessary, the district shall help the child return to full participation in the program as
soon as possible while ensuring safety, by doing the following:

1. Continuing to engage with the child's parents/guardians and continuing to use appropriate community
resources

2. Developing a written plan to document the action and supports needed

3. Providing referrals to appropriate community resources

4. If the child has an IFSP or IEP, contacting, with written parent/guardian consent, the agency responsible for the
child's IFSP or IEP, to seek consultation on servicing the child

Upon enrollment, the parents/guardians of each child shall be notified, in writing, of the limitations on expulsion,
suspension, or any form of disenrollment and how the parents/guardians may file an appeal to CDE in the event of
expulsion or suspension. If the district suspends or expels a child from any CSPP program, the district shall, at least
24 hours before the effective date of the suspension or expulsion, issue the child's parents/guardians a written
"Notice of Action, Recipient of Services," as described in 5 CCR 17783, informing the parents/guardians of the right
to file an appeal of the action directly with CDE no later than 14 calendar days after receiving the notice.

Children with exceptional needs may only be suspended or expelled in conformance with the procedures and
limitations of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

Notice of Action

Upon receiving a parent/guardian's application for services, the Superintendent or designee shall review the
application and documentation and shall certify the eligibility of the family or child.

The district's decision to approve or deny a child's enrollment shall be communicated to the family through a written
Notice of Action mailed or delivered within 30 days from the date the application is signed by the parent/guardian.
 (5 CCR 17782)

Subsequently, the Superintendent or designee shall mail or deliver a Notice of Action to a parent/guardian at least 14
calendar days before any intended change in services, including, but not limited to, an increase or decrease in fees, an
increase or decrease in the amount of services, or termination of services, due to any of the following circumstances:



 (5 CCR 17783)

1. A determination during recertification or update of the application that the need or eligibility requirements are
no longer being met or the fee or amount of service needs to be modified

2. Failure of the parent/guardian to document the family's need or eligibility after the district requested such
documentation in writing

3. An indication by the parent/guardian that the parent/guardian no longer wants the service

4. The death of a parent/guardian or child

5. The conclusion of a limited-term agreement, provided that the parent/guardian has been informed in writing of
the date that the services would terminate

For each child enrolled in the district's preschool program, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a family
data file including, but not limited to, a completed and signed application for services, documentation of income
eligibility, and a copy of all Notices of Action. For each child not receiving subsidized services, the family data file
shall also include records of the specific reason(s) for enrolling each child, the child's family income, and evidence that
the district has made a diligent search for children eligible for subsidized services.  (5 CCR 17758)

Parent Hearing

If a parent/guardian disagrees with any district action to deny the child's eligibility for subsidized preschool services,
disenroll the child due to a funding shortage, increase or decrease fees, increase or decrease the amount of services,
terminate services, or otherwise change the level of services, the parent/guardian may file a request for a hearing
with the Superintendent or designee within 14 calendar days of the date the Notice of Action was received. Within
10 calendar days of receiving the request for a hearing, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the
parent/guardian of the time and place of the hearing, which, to the extent possible, shall be convenient for the
parent/guardian.  (5 CCR 17784)

The hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures specified in 5 CCR 17784 by a district
administrator who is at a staff level higher in authority than the staff person who made the contested decision.
Within 10 calendar days after the hearing, the district administrator shall mail or deliver a written decision to the
parent/guardian. If the parent/guardian disagrees with the written decision, the parent/guardian may, within 14
calendar days, appeal the decision to CDE.  (5 CCR 17785-17786)



Regulation 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood EducationRegulation 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood Education Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/25/2011 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 02/15/2023 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/15/2023

Children with exceptional needs means either of the following:

1. Children under three years of age who have been determined to be eligible for early intervention services
pursuant to the California Early Intervention Services Act (Government Code 95000-95029.5) and its
implementing regulations. These children include an infant or toddler with a developmental delay or
established risk condition, or who is at high risk of having a substantial developmental disability, as defined in
Government Code 95014. These children shall have active individualized family service plans (IFSP) and shall
be receiving early intervention services.

2. Children 3 to 21 years of age, inclusive, who have been determined to be eligible for special education and
related services by an individualized education program team according to the special education requirements
contained in Education Code 56000-56865, and who meet eligibility criteria described in Education Code
56026 and 56333-56338 and 5 CCR 3030-3031. These children shall have an active individualized education
program (IEP) and shall be receiving early intervention services or appropriate special education.

Dual language learner children means children whose first language is a language other than English or children who
are developing two or more languages, one of which may be English.

Three-year-old children means children who will have their third birthday on or before December 1 of the fiscal year
in which they are enrolled in a program approved by the California Department of Education (CDE) under the
California State Preschool Program (CSPP).  Children who have their third birthday on or after December 2 of the
fiscal year, may be enrolled in a CSPP program on or after their third birthday.  (Education Code 8205)

Four-year-old children means children who will have their fourth birthday on or before December 1 of the fiscal year
in which they are enrolled in a CSPP program, or a child whose fifth birthday occurs after September 1 of the fiscal
year in which they are enrolled in a CSPP program and whose parent or guardian has opted to retain or enroll them
in a CSPP program.  (Education Code 8205)

When approved by CDE under the CSPP, the district may operate one or more part- or full-day preschool programs
in accordance with law and the terms of its contract with CDE.

The district's CSPP program shall include all of the following:  (Education Code 8207)

1. Age and developmentally appropriate activities for children

2. Supervision

3. Parenting education and parent engagement

4. Social services that include, but are not limited to, identification of child and family needs and referral to
appropriate agencies

5. Health services

6. Nutrition

7. Training and career ladder opportunities, documentation of which shall be provided to CDE

8. Physical activity to support children's health

The district's preschool program shall satisfy all the requirements described in 5 CCR 17701-17711, including, but
not limited to, those related to the program philosophy, goals, and objectives, the educational program, the creation
of a developmental profile for each child, staff development, family engagement and strengthening, community
involvement, health and social services, nutrition, and program evaluation.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Minimum Hours/Days of Operation

The district's part-day preschool program shall operate a minimum of three hours, and up to three hours and 59
minutes, per day, excluding time for home-to-school transportation, and for at least 175 days per year unless
otherwise specified in the contract with CDE.  (Education Code 8207; 5 CCR 17727)

However, a part-day preschool program may also offer transitional kindergarten (TK) or kindergarten children whose
families meet the requirements of Education Code 8208 less than four hours of wraparound childcare services and a
part-day preschool program operating on a school site may be allowed flexibility in the operational hours.  (Education
Code 48000)

The district's full-day program shall operate for a minimum of 246 days per year, unless the contract specifies a
lower number of days of operation, and for the number of operational hours reasonably necessary to meet the
preschool needs of the families in the community.  (Education Code 8207; 5 CCR 17728)

Staffing

The preschool program shall maintain an adult-child ratio of at least one adult for every eight children and a teacher-
child ratio of at least one teacher for every 24 children.  (Education Code 8241, 5 CCR 17713-17716)

Any person employed at a district preschool and any volunteer who provides care and supervision to children at a
preschool shall, unless exempted by law, be immunized against influenza, pertussis, and measles in accordance with
Health and Safety Code 1596.7995 and AR 5148 - Child Care and Development. Documentation of required
immunizations, or applicable exemptions, shall be maintained in the employee's personnel file.  (Health and Safety
Code 1596.7995)

In addition, preschool teachers shall present evidence of a current tuberculosis clearance and meet other
requirements as specified in Health and Safety Code 1597.055.

The district may require any volunteer who is to provide care and supervision to district preschool children to
provide evidence that the volunteer is free of infectious tuberculosis.

Family Literacy Services

When any district part-day preschool program receives funding for family literacy services pursuant to Education
Code 8221, the Superintendent or designee shall coordinate the provision of:  (Education Code 8220)

1. Opportunities for parents/guardians to work with their children on interactive literacy activities, including
activities in which parents/guardians actively participate in facilitating their children's acquisition of prereading
skills through guided activities such as shared reading, learning the alphabet, and basic vocabulary development

2. Parenting education for parents/guardians of children in participating classrooms to support their child's
development of literacy skills, including, but not limited to, parent education in:

a. Providing support for the educational growth and success of their children

b. Improving parent-school communications and parental understanding of school structures and
expectations

c. Becoming active partners with teachers in the education of their children

d. Improving parental knowledge of local resources for the identification of and services for developmental
disabilities, including, but not limited to, contact information for the district special education referral

3. Referrals to providers of adult education and instruction in English as a second language as necessary to
improve academic skills of parents/guardians



4. Staff development for teachers in participating classrooms that includes, but is not limited to:

a. Development of a pedagogical knowledge, including, but not limited to, improved instructional and
behavioral strategies

b. Knowledge and application of developmentally appropriate assessments of the prereading skills of
children in participating classrooms

c. Information on working with families, including the use of on-site coaching, for guided practice in
interactive literacy activities

d. Providing targeted interventions for all young children to improve kindergarten readiness upon program
completion

Eligibility Criteria for Part-Day CSPP Programs

A three- or four-year-old child is eligible for a part-day CSPP program if the child's family is one of the following:
 (Education Code 8208)

1. A current aid recipient

2. Income eligible

3. Homeless

4. One whose children are recipients of child protective services, or whose children have been identified as being
abused, neglected, or exploited, or at risk of being abused, neglected or exploited

5. One who has children with exceptional needs, as defined in Education Code 8205

6. One with a household member who is certified to receive benefits from Medi-Cal, CalFresh, the California
Food Assistance Program, the California Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and
Children, the federal Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations, Head Start, Early Head Start, or any
other designated means-tested government program, as determined by CDE

After all eligible three- and four-year-old children have been enrolled as provided above, a part-day CSPP program
may provide services to children in families whose income is no more than 15 percent above the income eligibility
threshold, as described in Education Code 8213. No more than 10 percent of all the children enrolled in the CSPP
program shall be from families above the income eligibility threshold.  (Education Code 8208)

In addition, after all otherwise eligible children have been enrolled as provided in the paragraphs above, a part-day
CSPP program may provide services to three- and four-year-old children in families whose income is above the
income eligibility threshold if those children are children with exceptional needs. Such children with exceptional
needs shall not count towards the 10-percent limit on enrollment of families with income above the income eligibility
threshold described above.  (Education Code 8208)

A CSPP program operating within the attendance boundary of a school where at least 80 percent of students are
eligible for free and reduced-price lunch may enroll three- and four-year-old children after all otherwise eligible
children have been enrolled as provided in the paragraphs above.  (Education Code 8208 and 8217)

The district shall certify eligibility and enroll families into the part-day preschool program within 120 calendar days
prior to the first day of the beginning of the new preschool year. Subsequent to a child's enrollment, the child shall be
deemed eligible for the part-day CSPP program for the remainder of the program year and for the following program
year, provided applicable age-eligibility requirements are met, as specified in Education Code 8205 and 48000.
 (Education Code 8208)

Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs



The district shall give priority for part-day CSPP programs as follows:  (Education Code 8210)

1. The first priority for services shall be given to three- or four-year-old children who are recipients of child
protective services or who are at risk of being neglected, abused, or exploited and for whom there is a written
referral from a legal, medical, or social service agency. If the district is unable to enroll a child in this first
priority category, the district shall refer the child's parent/guardian to local resources and referral services so
that services for the child can be located.

2. When the number of three- or four-year old children with exceptional needs required to be enrolled pursuant
to Education Code 8208 have been enrolled and there are additional children with exceptional needs who are
interested in enrolling, the second priority for services shall be given to all three- and four-year old children
with exceptional needs from families with incomes below the income eligibility threshold, as described in
Education Code 8213. Within this priority category, children with exceptional needs from families with the
lowest income according to the income ranking on the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table,
as published by the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) at the time of enrollment, shall be enrolled first.

3. The third priority shall be given to eligible four-year-old children who are not enrolled in a state-funded
transitional kindergarten (TK) program. This priority shall not include children eligible for enrollment as children
with exceptional needs pursuant to Education Code 8208 (a)(1)(E), who are from families with incomes above
the income eligibility threshold, as described in Education Code 8213. Within this priority category, eligible
children with the lowest income according to the income ranking on the most recent schedule of income
ceiling eligibility table, as published by the SPI at the time of enrollment, shall be enrolled first.

If two or more families have the same income ranking according to the most recent schedule of income ceiling
eligibility table, a child from a family in which the primary home language is a language other than English shall
be enrolled first. If there are no children from such a family, the child that has been on the waiting list for the
longest time shall be admitted first.

4. The fourth priority shall be given to eligible three-year-old children. This priority shall not include children
eligible for enrollment as children with exceptional needs pursuant to Education Code 8208 (a)(1)(E), who are
from families with incomes above the income eligibility threshold, as described in Education Code 8213.
Enrollment determinations within this priority category shall be made in the same way as for third priority in
Item #3 above.

5. The fifth priority, after all otherwise eligible children have been enrolled, shall be given to children from
families whose income is no more than 15 percent above the eligibility income threshold, as described in
Education Code 8213. Within this priority category, priority shall be given to three- and four-year-old children
with exceptional needs interested in enrolling beyond those already enrolled in the 10 percent of funded
enrollment set aside pursuant to Education Code 8208, then to four-year old children before three-year-old
children without exceptional needs.

6. After all otherwise eligible children have been enrolled in the first through fifth priority categories, as described
in Items #1-5 above, the district may enroll other children in the following order:

a. A CSPP program site operating within the attendance boundary of a school where at least 80 percent of
students are eligible for free and reduced-price meals as described in Education Code 8217 may enroll
any three- or four-year-old children whose families reside within the attendance boundary of the
qualified elementary school. These children shall, to the extent possible, be enrolled by lowest to highest
income according to the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table.

b. Children enrolling in a CSPP program that provides expanded learning and care to TK or kindergarten
students, pursuant to Education Code 48000

Regardless of the priorities listed above, until the district attains the percent of funded enrollment set aside for
children with exceptional needs pursuant to Education Code 8208, children with exceptional needs shall be enrolled
without regard to the priorities listed above. Within this category, eligible children with the lowest income according
to the income ranking on the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table, as published by the SPI at the
time of enrollment, shall be enrolled first. If two or more families have the same income ranking, the child that has
been on the waiting list for the longest time shall be admitted first.  (Education Code 8210)



Eligibility and Enrollment Priorities for Full-Day CSPP Programs

A three- or four-year-old child is eligible for a full-day CSPP program if the family meets both of the following
requirements:  (Education Code 8208)

1. The child's family is one of the following:

a. A current aid recipient, income eligible, or homeless

b. One whose children are recipients of child protective services, or whose children have been identified as
being abused, neglected, or exploited, or at risk of being abused, neglected, or exploited

c. One who has children with exceptional needs, as defined in Education Code 8205

d. One with a household member who is certified to receive benefits from Medi-Cal, CalFresh, the
California Food Assistance Program, the California Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
Infants, and Children, the federal Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations, Head Start, Early
Head Start, or any other designated means-tested government program, as determined by CDE

2. The child's family needs the childcare services because of either the following:

a. The child is identified by a legal, medical, or social services agency, the district liaison for homeless
students, a Head Start program, or an emergency or transitional shelter as being a recipient of protective
services; as being or at risk of being neglected, abused, or exploited; or as being homeless

b. The parents/guardians are participating in vocational training leading directly to a recognized trade,
paraprofession, or profession; are engaged in an educational program for English language learners or to
attain a high school diploma or general educational development certificate; are employed or seeking
employment; are seeking permanent housing for family stability; or are incapacitated

After all eligible three- and four-year-old children have been enrolled as provided above, a full-day CSPP program
may provide services to children in families whose income is no more than 15 percent above the income eligibility
threshold, as described in Education Code 8213. No more than 10 percent of all the children enrolled in the CSPP
program shall be from families above the income eligibility threshold.  (Education Code 8208)

After all families meeting the criteria specified in the paragraphs above have been enrolled, a full-day CSPP program
may provide services to three- and four-year-old children in families who do not meet at least one of the criteria in
Item #2 above.  (Education Code 8208)

After all otherwise eligible children have been enrolled as provided above, a CSPP program operating within the
attendance boundary of a school where at least 80 percent of students are eligible for free and reduced-price meals
as described in Education Code 8217 may enroll any four-year-old child.  (Education Code 8208)

For full-day CSPP programs, the district shall use the same priority ranking specified in Items #1-#4 of "Enrollment
Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs" above, and the following:  (Education Code 8211)

1. After all otherwise eligible children based on Items 1-4 of "Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs"
have been enrolled, fifth priority shall be given to children from families whose income is no more than 15
percent above the eligibility income threshold, as described in Education Code 8213. Within this priority
category, priority shall be given to three- and four-year-old children with an IFSP or IEP, then to four-year old
children before three-year-old children without IFSP or IEP.

2. After all otherwise eligible children based on Items 1-4 of "Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs"
and Item #1 above have been enrolled, the district may enroll other children in the following order:

a. Three- and four-year old children from families who do not meet at least one of the need requirements
in Item #2 above. Within this priority, families shall be enrolled in income ranking order, lowest to
highest, and within income ranking order, four-year old children before three-year old children



b. When a CSPP program site operates within the attendance boundary of a school where at least 80
percent of students are eligible for free and reduced-price meals as described in Education Code 8217,
three- or four-year-old children whose families reside within the attendance boundary of the school may
be enrolled without establishing eligibility or a need for services. Such children shall, to the extent
possible, be enrolled by lowest to highest income ranking order.

Regardless of the priorities listed above, until the district attains the percent of funded enrollment set aside for
children with exceptional needs pursuant to Education Code 8208, children with exceptional needs shall be enrolled
without regard to the priorities listed above. Within this category, eligible children with the lowest income according
to the income ranking on the most recent schedule of income ceiling eligibility table, as published by the SPI at the
time of enrollment, shall be enrolled first. If two or more families have the same income ranking, the child that has
been on the waiting list for the longest time shall be admitted first.  (Education Code 8211)

Upon establishing initial eligibility or ongoing eligibility for a full-day CSPP program, a family shall be considered to
meet all eligibility and need requirements for those services for not less than 24 months.  Such families shall receive
those services for not less than 24 months before having eligibility or need recertified, and shall not be required to
report changes to income or other changes for at least 24 months. If the eligibility period ends before the end of a
program year, eligibility shall be extended until the end of the program year, provided age-eligibility requirements are
met, as specified in Education Code 8205. However, a family that establishes initial eligibility or ongoing eligibility on
the basis of income shall report increases in income that exceed the threshold for ongoing income eligibility, as
described in Education Code 8213, and the family's ongoing eligibility for services shall at that time be recertified. In
addition, a family may, at any time, voluntarily report income or other changes. This information shall be used, as
applicable, to reduce the family's fees, increase the family's services, or extend the period of the family's eligibility
before recertification.  (Education Code 8208)

Waiting List

The Superintendent or designee shall consult the county's centralized eligibility list, when available, or shall maintain
a district waiting list in accordance with applicable enrollment priorities. As vacancies occur, applicant families shall
be contacted in order of priority on the waiting list.  (5 CCR 17744)

Combined Preschool/Transitional Kindergarten Classroom

When a child is eligible for both the preschool program and the district's TK program, the district may place the child
in a classroom which is commingled with children from both programs as long as the commingled program meets all
of the requirements of each program as well as the following requirements:  (Education Code 8207, 48000)

1. An early childhood environment rating scale, as specified in 5 CCR 18281, shall be completed for the
classroom.

2. All children enrolled for 10 or more hours per week shall be evaluated using the Desired Results
Developmental Profile, as specified in 5 CCR 18272.

3. The classroom shall be taught by a teacher who holds a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing in accordance with Education Code 44065 and 44256.

4. The classroom shall comply with the adult-child ratio specified in Education Code 8264.8.

5. Contractors of the district shall report the services, revenues, and expenditures for children in the preschool
program in accordance with 5 CCR 18068.

6. The classroom shall not include children enrolled in TK for a second year or children enrolled in a regular
kindergarten classroom.

Fees and Charges

Fees for participation in the district's full-day CSPP program shall be assessed and collected in accordance with the



fee schedule established by the SPI in conjunction with the California Department of Social Services.  (Education
Code 8252)

However, for the 2022-2023 school year, family fees shall not be collected as specified in Education Code 8252.

In addition, no fee shall be charged to an eligible family whose child is enrolled in a part-day preschool program or a
family that is receiving CalWORKs cash aid.  (Education Code 8253; 5 CCR 17735)

A family may be exempt from the fees for up to 12 months for any child enrolled in full-day preschool on the basis of
being the recipient of child protective services or as being, or at risk of being, abused or neglected.  (Education Code
8253)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process that involves parents/guardians in determining whether to
require parents/guardians to provide diapers and/or whether and how much to charge parents/guardians for field
trip expenses, within the limit specified in law. A child shall not be denied participation in a field trip due to the
parent/guardian's inability or refusal to pay the fee, and no adverse action shall be taken against a parent/guardian
for that inability or refusal.  (Education Code 8254)

Disenrollment Based on Reduced Funding

When necessary to disenroll families from subsidized preschool services, families shall be disenrolled in reverse order
of the priority for services specified in Education Code 8210 and 8211 and as described above in the sections
"Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP Programs" and "Eligibility and Enrollment Priorities for Full-Day CSPP
Programs."  (Education Code 8214; 5 CCR 17744)

Expulsion/Unenrollment and Suspension Based on Behavior

A district preschool program shall not expel or unenroll a child or persuade or encourage a child's parents/guardians
to voluntarily unenroll from the program based on the child's behavior, unless the district first takes the following
actions to address the child's behavior:  (Education Code 8489.1)

1. In writing, inform the parents/guardians of the child's persistent and serious challenging behaviors and consult
with the parents/guardians and teacher in an effort to maintain the child's safe participation in the program

2. If the child has an IFSP or IEP, contact, with written parent/guardian consent, the agency or district employee
responsible for such plan or program to seek consultation in regard to serving the child

3. If appropriate, consider completing a comprehensive screening of the child, including, but not limited to,
screening the child's social and emotional development, referring the parents/guardians to community
resources, and implementing behavior supports within the program

If the district has taken the actions specified in Items #1-3 above and the child's continued enrollment would present
a serious safety threat to the child or other enrolled children, the district shall refer the parents/guardians to other
potentially appropriate placements, the local child care resource and referral agency, or any other referral service
available in the local community. The district shall, to the greatest extent possible, support direct transition to a more
appropriate placement. The district may then unenroll the child. The district shall have up to 180 days to complete
the actions described above.  (Education Code 8489.1)

A child shall not be suspended from a CSPP program, nor shall a child's parent/guardian be encouraged or persuaded
to prematurely pick up a child before the program day ends, except as a last resort in extraordinary circumstances,
when a safety threat exists that cannot be eliminated or reduced without the removal of the child.

Before determining that a suspension is necessary, the district shall collaborate with the child's parents/guardians
and, as needed, shall use appropriate community resources to determine that no other reasonable option is
appropriate.

When suspension is deemed necessary, the district shall help the child return to full participation in the program as



soon as possible while ensuring safety, by doing the following:

1. Continuing to engage with the child's parents/guardians and continuing to use appropriate community
resources

2. Developing a written plan to document the action and supports needed

3. Providing referrals to appropriate community resources

4. If the child has an IFSP or IEP, contacting, with written parent/guardian consent, the agency responsible for the
child's IFSP or IEP, to seek consultation on servicing the child

Upon enrollment, the parents/guardians of each child shall be notified, in writing, of the limitations on expulsion,
suspension, or any form of disenrollment and how the parents/guardians may file an appeal to CDE in the event of
expulsion or suspension. If the district suspends or expels a child from any CSPP program, the district shall, at least
24 hours before the effective date of the suspension or expulsion, issue the child's parents/guardians a written
"Notice of Action, Recipient of Services," as described in 5 CCR 17783, informing the parents/guardians of the right
to file an appeal of the action directly with CDE no later than 14 calendar days after receiving the notice.

Children with exceptional needs may only be suspended or expelled in conformance with the procedures and
limitations of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

Notice of Action

Upon receiving a parent/guardian's application for services, the Superintendent or designee shall review the
application and documentation and shall certify the eligibility of the family or child.

The district's decision to approve or deny a child's enrollment shall be communicated to the family through a written
Notice of Action mailed or delivered within 30 days from the date the application is signed by the parent/guardian.
 (5 CCR 17782)

Subsequently, the Superintendent or designee shall mail or deliver a Notice of Action to a parent/guardian at least 14
calendar days before any intended change in services, including, but not limited to, an increase or decrease in fees, an
increase or decrease in the amount of services, or termination of services, due to any of the following circumstances:
 (5 CCR 17783)

1. A determination during recertification or update of the application that the need or eligibility requirements are
no longer being met or the fee or amount of service needs to be modified

2. Failure of the parent/guardian to document the family's need or eligibility after the district requested such
documentation in writing

3. An indication by the parent/guardian that the parent/guardian no longer wants the service

4. The death of a parent/guardian or child

5. The conclusion of a limited-term agreement, provided that the parent/guardian has been informed in writing of
the date that the services would terminate

For each child enrolled in the district's preschool program, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a family
data file including, but not limited to, a completed and signed application for services, documentation of income
eligibility, and a copy of all Notices of Action. For each child not receiving subsidized services, the family data file
shall also include records of the specific reason(s) for enrolling each child, the child's family income, and evidence that
the district has made a diligent search for children eligible for subsidized services.  (5 CCR 17758)

Parent Hearing



If a parent/guardian disagrees with any district action to deny the child's eligibility for subsidized preschool services,
disenroll the child due to a funding shortage, increase or decrease fees, increase or decrease the amount of services,
terminate services, or otherwise change the level of services, the parent/guardian may file a request for a hearing
with the Superintendent or designee within 14 calendar days of the date the Notice of Action was received.  Within
10 calendar days of receiving the request for a hearing, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the
parent/guardian of the time and place of the hearing, which, to the extent possible, shall be convenient for the
parent/guardian.  (5 CCR 17784)

The hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures specified in 5 CCR 17784 by a district
administrator who is at a staff level higher in authority than the staff person who made the contested decision.
Within 10 calendar days after the hearing, the district administrator shall mail or deliver a written decision to the
parent/guardian.  If the parent/guardian disagrees with the written decision, the parent/guardian may, within 14
calendar days, appeal the decision to CDE.  (5 CCR 17785-17786)



Policy 6170.1: Transitional KindergartenPolicy 6170.1: Transitional Kindergarten Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/20/2013 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 04/27/2022

The Governing Board desires to offer a high-quality transitional kindergarten (TK) program for eligible children who
do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten. The TK program shall assist students in developing the
academic, social, and emotional skills needed to succeed in kindergarten and beyond.

The district's TK program shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program.  (Education Code 48000)

The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool providers, elementary
teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in the development, implementation, and evaluation of the district's
TK program.

Eligibility

The district's TK program shall admit children as follows:  (Education Code 48000):

1. For the 2023-24 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and April 2

2. For the 2024-25 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and June 2

3. For the 2025-26 school year, and in each school year thereafter, children who turn four by September 1

A child's eligibility for TK enrollment shall not impact family eligibility for a preschool or childcare program, including,
but not limited to, a Head Start program, a childcare center serving children through an alternative payment program,
a general childcare and development program, a California State Preschool Program (CSPP), a migrant childcare and
development program, childcare and development services for children with special needs, or a program serving
children through a CalWORKs Stage 1, Stage 2, or Stage 3 program.  (Education Code 48000)

Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of the TK program and of the age, residency,
immunization, and any other enrollment requirements. Enrollment in the TK program shall be voluntary.

On a case-by-case basis, a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 may be admitted into the district's
TK program upon request of a child's parents/guardians, if the Superintendent or designee, determines that it is in
the child's best interest.

At any time during the school year, the district may admit into the TK program a child whose fifth birthday is after
the date specified for admittance for the applicable year as described above, provided that upon the
recommendation of the Superintendent or designee, the Board determines that enrollment in a TK program is in the
child's best interest and the child's parents/guardians approve. Prior to such enrollment, the child's parents/guardians
shall be provided information regarding the advantages and disadvantages and any other explanatory information
about the effect of early admittance.  (Education Code 48000)

Additionally, the district may enroll an early enrollment child in TK whose fourth birthday is between June 3 and
September 1, inclusive, preceding the school year during which they are enrolled in TK. The Superintendent or
designee shall maintain any classroom that includes an early enrollment child with a classroom enrollment that does
not exceed 20 students and an adult-to-student ratio of at least one adult to every 10 students. Additionally, if an
early enrollment child is enrolled in TK, the district shall concurrently offer enrollment to the child in the district's
CSPP, subject to available space.  (Education Code 48000.15)

Curriculum and Instruction

The district's TK program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and developmentally
appropriate.  (Education Code 48000)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

15.



The program shall be aligned with the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum frameworks
developed by the California Department of Education (CDE). It shall be designed to facilitate students' development
in essential knowledge and skills related to language and literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual
and performing arts, science, history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional
development.

The Board shall establish the length of the school day in the district's TK program, which shall be at least three hours
but no more than four hours long, including recess but excluding noon intermission, except for TK students enrolled
in expanded learning opportunity programs provided by the district pursuant to Education Code 46120. If the district
has adopted an extended-day kindergarten, the length of the school day for the TK program may be different than
the length of the school day for the kindergarten program either at the same or different school sites. The
Superintendent or designee shall annually report to CDE as to whether the district's TK programs are offered full
day, part day, or both.  (Education Code 8973, 37202, 46111, 46115, 46117, 48003)

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with parents/guardians and relevant community groups, in
accordance with the plan developed for how all children in the attendance area of the district will have access to full-
day learning programs the year before kindergarten that meet the needs of parents/guardians, including through
partnerships with the district's expanded learning offerings, the After School Education and Safety Program, CSPP,
Head Start programs, and other community-based early learning and care programs.

TK students may be placed in the same classrooms as kindergarten students when necessary, provided that the
instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs.

TK students may be commingled in the same classroom with four-year-old students from a CSPP program as long as
the commingled program meets all of the requirements of each program as well as the following requirements:
 (Education Code 8207, 48000):

1. The classroom does not include students enrolled in TK for a second year or students enrolled in a regular
kindergarten

2. An early childhood environment rating scale, as specified in 5 CCR 18281, is completed for the classroom

3. All children enrolled for 10 or more hours per week are evaluated using the Desired Results Developmental
Profile, as specified in 5 CCR 18272

4. The classroom is taught by a teacher that holds a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing (CTC) in accordance with Education Code 44065 and 44256

5. The classroom is in compliance with the adult-child ratio specified in Education Code 8241

6. Contractors of the district report the services, revenues, and expenditures for children in the preschool
program in accordance with 5 CCR 18068 except for contractors of the TK program

The district shall maintain an average TK class enrollment of not more than 24 students for each school site, not
including students who are continuously enrolled in and meet the minimum day requirement for independent study
for more than 14 school days in a school year.  (Education Code 48000)

Staffing

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in TK classes possess a teaching
credential or permit from CTC that authorizes such instruction.

A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, shall, by August 1, 2025, have at least 24
units in early childhood education and/or child development, comparable professional experience in a preschool
setting, and/or a child development teacher permit or an early childhood specialist credential issued by CTC.
 (Education Code 48000)



The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that TK teachers are
knowledgeable about the standards and effective instructional methods for teaching young children, including, but
not limited to, developing competencies in serving inclusive classrooms and dual language learners.

The district shall maintain an average of at least one adult for every 12 students for TK classrooms and, contingent
upon an appropriation of funding, maintain an average of at least one adult for every 10 students commencing with
the 2025-26 school year.  (Education Code 48000)

Continuation to Kindergarten

Students who complete the TK program shall be eligible to continue in kindergarten the following school year.
Parents/guardians of such students shall not be required to submit a signed Kindergarten Continuance Form for
kindergarten attendance.

However, whenever children who would otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are enrolled in TK, the
Superintendent or designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance Form signed by the parent/guardian near the
end of the TK year consenting to the child's enrollment in kindergarten the following year.

A student shall not attend more than two years in kindergarten or a combination of TK and kindergarten.  (Education
Code 46300)

Assessment

The Superintendent or designee may develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal assessments of TK
students' development and progress. The Superintendent or designee shall monitor and regularly report to the Board
regarding program implementation, the progress of students in meeting related academic standards, and student
preparedness for future education.



Policy 6170.1: Transitional KindergartenPolicy 6170.1: Transitional Kindergarten Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/20/2013 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 04/27/2022 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 04/27/2022

The Governing Board desires to offer a high-quality transitional kindergarten (TK) program for eligible children who
do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten.  The TK program shall assist students in developing the
academic, social, and emotional skills needed to succeed in kindergarten and beyond.

The district's TK program shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program.  (Education Code 48000)

The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool providers, elementary
teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in the development, implementation, and evaluation of the district's
TK program.

Eligibility

The district's TK program shall admit children as follows:  (Education Code 48000):

1. For the 2021-22 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 through December 2

2. For the 2022-23 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and February 2

3. For the 2023-24 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and April 2

4. For the 2024-25 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and June 2

5. For the 2025-26 school year, and in each school year thereafter, children who turn four by September 1

A child's eligibility for TK enrollment shall not impact family eligibility for a preschool or childcare program.
 (Education Code 48000).

Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of the TK program and of the age, residency,
immunization, and any other enrollment requirements.  Enrollment in the TK program shall be voluntary.

On a case-by-case basis, a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 may be admitted into the district's
TK program upon request of a child's parents/guardians, if the Superintendent or designee determines that it is in the
child's best interest.

At any time during the school year, the district may admit into the TK program a child whose fifth birthday is after
the date specified for admittance for the applicable year as described above, provided that the Superintendent or
designee recommends that enrollment in a TK program is in the child's best interest and the child's parents/guardians
approve.  Prior to such enrollment, the child's parents/guardians shall be provided information regarding the
advantages and disadvantages and any other explanatory information about the effect of early admittance.
 (Education Code 48000)

Curriculum and Instruction

The district's TK program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and developmentally
appropriate.  (Education Code 48000)

The program shall be aligned with the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum frameworks
developed by the California Department of Education (CDE).  It shall be designed to facilitate students' development
in essential knowledge and skills related to language and literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual
and performing arts, science, history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



development.

The Board shall establish the length of the school day in the district's TK program, which shall be at least three hours
but no more than four hours long except for TK students enrolled in expanded learning opportunity programs
provided by the district pursuant to Education Code 46120.  If the district has adopted an extended-day
kindergarten, the length of the school day for the TK program may be different than the length of the school day for
the kindergarten program either at the same or different school sites.  The Superintendent or designee shall annually
report to CDE as to whether the district's TK programs are offered full day, part day, or both.  (Education Code 8973,
37202, 46111, 46115, 46117, 48003)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a plan for how all children in the attendance area of the district will
have access to full-day learning programs the year before kindergarten that meet the needs of parents/guardians,
including through partnerships with the district's expanded learning offerings, the After School Education and Safety
Program, the California State Preschool Program (CSPP), Head Start programs, and other community-based early
learning and care programs.  The Superintendent or designee shall present such plan for consideration by the Board
at a public meeting on or before June 30, 2022.  (Education Code 8281.5)

TK students may be placed in the same classrooms as kindergarten students when necessary, provided that the
instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs.

TK students may be commingled in the same classroom with four-year-old students from a CSPP program as long as
the commingled program meets all of the requirements of each program as well as the following requirements:
 (Education Code 8207, 48000):

1. The classroom does not include students enrolled in TK for a second year or students enrolled in a regular
kindergarten

2. An early childhood environment rating scale, as specified in 5 CCR 18281, is completed for the classroom

3. All children enrolled for 10 or more hours per week are evaluated using the Desired Results Developmental
Profile, as specified in 5 CCR 18272

4. The classroom is taught by a teacher that holds a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher
Credentialing in accordance with Education Code 44065 and 44256

5. The classroom is in compliance with the adult-child ratio specified in Education Code 8241

6. Contractors of the district report the services, revenues, and expenditures for children in the preschool
program in accordance with 5 CCR 18068 except for contractors of the TK program

The district shall maintain an average TK class enrollment of not more than 24 students for each school site.
 (Education Code 48000)

Staffing

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in TK classes possess a teaching
credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) that authorizes such instruction.

A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, shall, by August 1, 2023, have at least 24
units in early childhood education and/or child development, comparable professional experience in a preschool
setting, and/or a child development teacher permit issued by CTC.  (Education Code 48000)

The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that TK teachers are
knowledgeable about the standards and effective instructional methods for teaching young children, including, but
not limited to, developing competencies in serving inclusive classrooms and dual language learners.



The district shall, commencing with the 2022-23 school year, maintain an average of at least one adult for every 12
students for TK classrooms and, contingent upon an appropriation of funding, maintain an average of at least one
adult for every 10 students commencing with the 2023-24 school year.  (Education Code 48000)

Continuation to Kindergarten

Students who complete the TK program shall be eligible to continue in kindergarten the following school year.
 Parents/guardians of such students shall not be required to submit a signed Kindergarten Continuance Form for
kindergarten attendance.

However, whenever children who would otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are enrolled in TK, the
Superintendent or designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance Form signed by the parent/guardian near the
end of the TK year consenting to the child's enrollment in kindergarten the following year.

A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of TK and kindergarten.  (Education Code 46300)

Assessment

The Superintendent or designee may develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal assessments of TK
students' development and progress.  The Superintendent or designee shall monitor and regularly report to the
Board regarding program implementation, the progress of students in meeting related academic standards, and
student preparedness for future education.



Policy 6142.8: Comprehensive Health EducationPolicy 6142.8: Comprehensive Health Education Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board believes that health education should foster the knowledge, skills, and attitudes that students
need in order to lead healthy lives and avoid high-risk behaviors, and that creating a safe, supportive, inclusive, and
nonjudgmental environment is crucial in promoting healthy development for all students. The district's health
education program shall be part of a coordinated school health system which recognizes that mental health and
social connection are critical to student's overall health, well-being, and academic success, supports the physical,
mental, and social well-being of students, reflects the importance of digital and media literacy, and is linked to district
and community services and resources.

Goals for the district's health education program shall be designed to promote student wellness and shall include, but
not be limited to, goals for nutrition promotion and education, physical activity, and other school-based activities that
promote student well-being.

Any health education course offered to middle or high school students shall include instruction in mental health that
meets the requirements of Education Code 51925-51926, and as specified in Administrative Regulation 6143 -
Courses of Study.

The district shall provide a planned, sequential, research-based, and developmentally appropriate health education
curriculum for students in grades K-12 which is aligned with the state's content standards and curriculum framework
and integrated with other content areas of the district's curriculum. The Superintendent or designee shall determine
the grade levels and subject areas in which health-related topics will be addressed, in accordance with law, Board
policy, and administrative regulation.

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall involve school administrators, teachers, school nurses, health
professionals representing various fields of health care, parents/guardians, community-based organizations, and
other community members in the development, implementation, and evaluation of the district's health education
program. Health and safety professionals may be invited to provide related instruction in the classroom, school
assemblies, and other instructional settings.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as needed to ensure that health education
teachers are knowledgeable about academic content standards, the state curriculum framework, and effective
instructional methodologies.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic reports to the Board regarding the implementation and
effectiveness of the district's health education program, which may include, but not be limited to, a description of the
district's program and the extent to which it is aligned with the state's content standards and curriculum framework,
the amount of time allotted for health instruction at each grade level, student achievement of district standards for
health education, and the manner in which the district's health education program supports the physical, mental, and
social well-being of students.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

16.



Policy 6142.8: Comprehensive Health EducationPolicy 6142.8: Comprehensive Health Education Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

Goals for the district's health education program shall be designed to promote student wellness and shall be
developed in accordance with Governing Board policy. Such goals shall include, but not be limited to, goals for
nutrition education and physical activity.

The Governing Board intends for health education to be part of a coordinated school health system that links district,
school, and community programs and services to promote the health and well-being of students.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic reports to the Board regarding the implementation and
effectiveness of the district's health education program.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Regulation 6142.8: Comprehensive Health EducationRegulation 6142.8: Comprehensive Health Education Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

Content of Instruction

The district's health education program shall include instruction at the appropriate grade levels in the following
content areas:

1. Alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs

2. Human growth, development, and sexual health

3. Injury prevention and safety

Instruction related to injury prevention and safety may include, but is not limited to, first aid, protective
equipment such as helmets, violence prevention, topics related to bullying and harassment, emergency
procedures, and Internet safety, and as required by law.

4. Mental, emotional, and social health

Health education courses offered to middle and/or high school students shall include mental health instruction
that meets the requirements of Education Code 51925-51927, as specified in Administrative Regulation 6143
- Courses of Study.

5. Nutrition and physical activity

6. Personal and community health

Instruction in personal and community health may include, but is not limited to, oral health, personal hygiene,
sun safety, vision and hearing protection, transmission of germs and communicable diseases, symptoms of
common health problems and chronic diseases, and the effect of behavior on the environment, and as required
by law.

Within each of the above content areas, instruction shall be designed to assist students in developing:

1. An understanding of essential concepts related to enhancing health

2. The ability to analyze internal and external influences that affect health

3. The ability to access and analyze health information, products, and services

4. The ability to use interpersonal communication skills, decision-making skills, and goal-setting skills to enhance
health

5. The ability to practice behaviors that reduce risk and promote health

6. The ability to promote and support personal, family, and community health

High School Health Education

Whenever the Board requires a course in health education for graduation from high school, the district's high school
health education course(s) shall include instruction in:

1. Sexual harassment and violence, including, but not limited to, the affirmative consent standard as defined in
Education Code 67386. When delivering such instruction, teachers shall consult information related to sexual
harassment and violence in the Health Education Framework for California Public Schools.  (Education Code
51225.36)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

17.



2. Compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR), which is based on national evidence-based emergency
cardiovascular care guidelines for the performance of compression-only CPR and includes instruction relative
to the psychomotor skills necessary to perform compression-only CPR.  (Education Code 51225.6)

Students Excused from Health Instruction

Upon written request from a parent/guardian, a student shall be excused from any part of health instruction that
conflicts with the student's religious training and beliefs, including personal moral convictions.  (Education Code
51240)

The district shall excuse a student from instruction in comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention
education if the student's parent/guardian requests in writing that the student be excused. However, pursuant to
Education Code 51932, such parental request shall not excuse a student from instruction, materials, presentations,
or programming that discuss gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, discrimination,
harassment, bullying, intimidation, relationships, or family and do not discuss human reproductive organs and their
functions. (Education Code 51938)

In addition, the district shall excuse a student from instruction in sexual abuse and/or sexual assault awareness and
prevention if the student's parent/guardian requests in writing that the student be excused.  (Education Code
51900.6)

The district shall not administer any exam, survey, or questionnaire which contains questions about the student's or
the student's family's personal beliefs or practices in sex, family life, morality, or religion unless the student's
parent/guardian has given written permission.  (Education Code 51513)

However, the district may administer anonymous, voluntary, and confidential tests, questionnaires, and surveys
containing age-appropriate questions about students' attitudes concerning or practices relating to sex, as long as
parents/guardians are notified of the right to request in writing that the student be excused from participation. A
student shall be excused from participating in any such research or evaluation tools if the student's parent/guardian
requests in writing to excuse the student from participation.  (Education Code 51938)

Involvement of Health Professionals

Health care professionals, health care service plans, health care providers, and other entities participating in a
voluntary initiative with the district are prohibited from communicating about a product or service in a way that is
intended to encourage persons to purchase or use the product or service. However, the following activities may be
allowed:  (Education Code 51890)

1. Health care or health education information provided in a brochure or pamphlet that contains the logo or name
of a health care service plan or health care organization, if provided in coordination with the voluntary initiative

2. Outreach, application assistance, and enrollment activities relating to federal, state, or county-sponsored
health care insurance programs if the activities are conducted in compliance with the statutory, regulatory, and
programmatic guidelines applicable to those programs



Bylaw 9321: Closed SessionBylaw 9321: Closed Session Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/22/2021

The Governing Board is committed to complying with state open meeting laws and modeling transparency in its
conduct of district business. The Board shall hold a closed session during a regular, special, or emergency meeting
only for purposes authorized by law.

Each agenda shall contain a general description of each closed session item to be discussed at the meeting as
required by law and provided in the accompanying Exhibit (1).  (Education Code 35145, Government Code 54954.2,
54954.5, 54957)

In the open session preceding the closed session, the Board shall disclose the items to be discussed in closed session
as specified in this bylaw. The Board may either state the information on the agenda or refer the public to the item(s)
as listed by number or letter on the agenda. In the closed session, the Board may consider only those items covered
in its statement.  (Government Code 54957, 54957.7)

After the closed session, the Board shall reconvene in open session before adjourning the meeting and, when
applicable, shall publicly disclose any actions taken in the closed session, the votes or abstentions thereon, and other
disclosures as specified in this bylaw. Such reports may be made in writing or orally at the location announced in the
agenda for the closed session as required by law and provided in the accompanying Exhibit (2).  (Education Code
32281; Government Code 54957.1, 54957.7)

When an action taken during a closed session involves final approval or adoption of a document, such as a contract
or settlement agreement, that becomes public upon such approval or adoption, the Superintendent or designee shall
provide a copy of the document to any person present at the conclusion of the closed session who submitted a
written request. If the action taken results in one or more substantive amendments, the Superintendent or designee
shall make the document available the next business day or when the necessary changes to the document are
completed. Whenever copies of an approved agreement will not be immediately released due to an amendment, the
Board president shall orally summarize the substance of the amendment for those present at the end of the closed
session.  (Government Code 54957.1)

Confidentiality

A Board member shall not disclose confidential information received in closed session unless the Board authorizes
the disclosure of that information or the information has been publicly reported by the District.  (Government Code
54963)

The Board shall not disclose any information that is protected by state or federal law. In addition, no victim or alleged
victim of tortious sexual conduct or child abuse shall be identified in any Board agenda, notice, announcement, or
report required by the Brown Act, unless the identity of the person has previously been publicly disclosed.
 (Government Code 54957.7, 54961)

Personnel Matters: Appointment, Employment, Performance Evaluation, or Discipline/Dismissal/Release

The Board may hold a closed session under the "personnel exception" to consider the appointment, employment,
performance evaluation, discipline, dismissal, or change in employment status of an employee. Such a closed session
shall not include discussion or action on proposed compensation except for a reduction of compensation that results
from the imposition of discipline.  (Government Code 54957, 54957.1)

Personnel Matters: Specific Complaints or Charges

The Board may hold a closed session to hear complaints or charges brought against an employee, unless the
employee who is the subject of the complaint requests an open session. Before the Board holds a closed session on
specific complaints or charges brought against an employee, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the
employee receives written notice of the right to have the complaints or charges heard in open session. This notice

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

18.



shall be delivered personally or by mail at least 24 hours before the time of the closed session.  (Government Code
54957)

Personnel Matters: Application for Early Withdraw of Funds in Deferred Compensation Plan

The Board may hold a closed session to discuss an employee's application for early withdrawal of funds in a deferred
compensation plan when the application is based on financial hardship arising from an unforeseeable emergency due
to illness, accident, casualty, or other extraordinary event, as specified in the deferred compensation plan.
 (Government Code 54957.10)

Negotiations/Collective Bargaining

The Board may meet in closed session to review the Board's position and/or instruct its designated representative(s)
regarding salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and
unrepresented employees, and, for represented employees, any other matter within the statutorily provided scope of
representation. A closed session regarding salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe
benefits may include discussions of the district's available funds and funding priorities, but only insofar as they relate
to providing instructions to the Board's designated representative. Final action on the proposed compensation of one
or more unrepresented employees shall not be taken in closed session.  (Government Code 54957.6)

The Board also may meet in closed session with a state conciliator who has intervened in proceedings regarding any
of the purposes enumerated in Government Code 54957.6.

Pursuant to Government Code 54957.1, approval in closed session of an agreement regarding labor negotiations
with represented employees pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 shall be reported after the agreement is final
and has been accepted or ratified by the other party. However, the Board may, at its sole discretion, vote on such an
agreement is open session.  (Government Code 54957.1)

Pursuant to Government Code 3549.1, the Board may, without following the requirements of the Brown Act, meet
in closed session exclusively for the purpose of discussing its position regarding any matter within the scope of
representation or for the purpose of instructing its designated representatives. The Board shall not discuss any other
item at any such closed session.  (Government Code 3549.1)

Matters Related to Students

If a public hearing would lead to the disclosure of confidential student information such as grades or discipline
information, the Board shall meet in closed session to consider a suspension, disciplinary action, any other action
against a student except expulsion, or a challenge to a student record. At least 72 hours prior to the start of the
meeting of which the closed session is a part, the Superintendent or designee, on behalf of the Board, shall, in
writing, by registered or certified mail or by personal service, notify the student and the student's parent/guardian of
the intent of the Board to hear the item in closed session. If a written request for open session is received from the
student or the student's parents/guardians within 48 hours of receiving the notice, the meeting shall be public,
except that any discussion at that meeting which may be in conflict with the right to privacy of any other student
shall remain in closed session.  (Education Code 35146, 48912, 49070)

If the Board conducts an expulsion hearing pursuant to Board Policy 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due
Process, the Board shall do so in closed session unless the student submits a written request at least five days before
the date of the hearing that the hearing be held in open session. Regardless of whether the expulsion hearing is
conducted in open or closed session, the Board shall meet in closed session for the purpose of deliberating and
determining whether the student should be expelled.  (Education Code 48918)

In order to protect student privacy rights provided in 20 USC 1232g or other applicable laws, the identity of a
student shall not be listed in the agenda and, unless the item is heard in open session, shall not be included in any
report after closed session. Additionally, a student matter shall be listed in the open session portion of the agenda
with the same description and numbering system as it was on the closed session portion of the agenda.



Security Matters

The Board may meet in closed session with the Governor, Attorney General, District Attorney, district legal counsel,
sheriff or chief of police, or their respective deputies, or a security consultant or a security operations manager, on
matters posing a threat to the security of public buildings; to the security of essential public services, including water,
drinking water, wastewater treatment, natural gas service, and electric service; or to the public's right of access to
public services or public facilities. Such discussions may be held in closed session during an emergency meeting called
pursuant to Board Bylaw 9320 - Meetings and Notices and Board Bylaw/Exhibit (1) 9323.2 - Actions By The Board.

The Board may also meet in closed session to consult with law enforcement officials on the development of a plan
for tactical responses to criminal incidents and to approve the plan.  (Education Code 32281)

Real Property Negotiations

The Board may meet in closed session with its real property negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, or lease
of real property by or for the district in order to grant its negotiator authority regarding the price and terms of
payment for the property.  (Government Code 54956.8)

Anticipated Litigation/Initiation of Litigation

Based on the advice of its legal counsel, the Board may hold a closed session to confer with or receive advice from
its legal counsel regarding anticipated litigation or whether to initiate litigation when discussion of either matter in
open session would prejudice the district's position with respect to such litigation. For this purpose, "litigation"
means any adjudicatory proceeding, including eminent domain, before a court, administrative body exercising its
adjudicatory authority, hearing officer, or arbitrator.  (Government Code 54956.9)

Litigation is considered to be "anticipated" when, in the Board's opinion based on the advice of its legal counsel
regarding the existing facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation against the district or
against a district officer or employee based on prior or prospective activities or alleged activities during and
potentially during the course and scope of that office or employment.  (Government Code 54956.9)

Existing facts and circumstances are limited to the following:  (Government Code 54956.9)

1. Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation against the district but which the district believes are not
yet known to potential plaintiff(s)

2. Facts and circumstances including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional
occurrence which might result in litigation against the district, which are already known to potential plaintiff(s)

3. The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act or a written threat of litigation from a potential
plaintiff

4. A threat of litigation made by a person in an open meeting on a specific matter within the responsibility of the
Board

5. A threat of litigation made by a person outside of an open meeting on a specific matter within the
responsibility of the Board, provided that the district official or employee receiving knowledge of the threat
made a record of the statement before the meeting

Each agenda item related to anticipated litigation shall only contain one such matter. For an anticipated litigation
item that is anticipated based on Items #2, #3, or #5 above, the agenda item shall also include the facts or
circumstances that might result in litigation, the claim or written threat of litigation, or the record of the threat.
However, the agenda item shall not identify the alleged victim of unlawful or tortious sexual conduct or anyone
making the threat on the alleged victim's behalf, or identify a public employee who is the alleged perpetrator of any
unlawful or tortious conduct upon which a threat of litigation is based, unless the identity of the person has been
publicly disclosed.  (Government Code 54956.9)

Existing Litigation



Based on the advice of its legal counsel, the Board may hold a closed session to confer with or receive advice from
its legal counsel regarding existing litigation when discussion of the matter in open session would prejudice the
district's position with respect to such litigation. Litigation is considered to be "existing" when the district has been
named a party to the litigation or a district officer or employee has been named a party to the litigation based on
prior or prospective activities or alleged activities during the course and scope of that office or employment,
including litigation in which involves whether an activity is outside the course and scope of the office or
employment. For this purpose, "litigation" means any adjudicatory proceeding, including eminent domain, before a
court, administrative body exercising its adjudicatory authority, hearing officer, or arbitrator.  (Government Code
54956.9)

Tort, Public, or Workers' Compensation Liability

The Board may meet in closed session to discuss a claim for the payment of tort liability losses, public liability losses,
or workers' compensation liability incurred by a joint powers agency (JPA) formed for the purpose of insurance
pooling or self-insurance authority of which the district is a member.  (Government Code 54956.95)

Joint Powers Agency Issues

When the board of the JPA has so authorized and upon advice of district legal counsel, the Board may meet in closed
session in order to receive, discuss, and take action concerning information that has direct financial or liability
implications for the district and that was obtained in a closed session of a JPA of which the district is a member.
During the Board's closed session, a Board member serving on the JPA board may disclose confidential information
acquired during a closed session of the JPA to fellow Board members.  (Government Code 54956.96))

Review of Audit Report from California State Auditor's Office

Upon receipt of a confidential final draft audit report from the California State Auditor's Office and before the report
has been made public, the Board may meet in closed session to discuss its response to that report. After public
release of the report from the California State Auditor's Office, any Board meeting to discuss the report shall be
conducted in open session, unless exempted from that requirement by some other provision of law.  (Government
Code 54956.75)

Review of Assessment Instruments

The Board may meet in closed session to review the contents of any student assessment instrument approved or
adopted for the statewide testing system. Before any such meeting, the Board shall agree by resolution to accept
any terms or conditions established by the State Board of Education for this review. (Education Code 60617)



Bylaw 9321: Closed SessionBylaw 9321: Closed Session Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/22/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 09/22/2021

The Governing Board may hold closed sessions only for purposes identified in law. The Board may hold a closed
session at any time during a regular or special meeting and during emergency meetings in accordance with law.
(Government Code 54956.5, 54957.7, 54962)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

The agenda shall contain a brief general description of all closed session items to be discussed. (Government Code
54954.2)

The Board shall disclose in open meeting the items to be discussed in closed session. In the closed session, the Board
may consider only those matters covered in its statement. (Government Code 54957.7)

No agenda, notice, announcement, or report required by the Brown Act need identify any victim or alleged victim of
tortious sexual conduct or child abuse unless the identity of the person has been publicly disclosed. (Government
Code 54961)

In accordance with law, a Board member shall not disclose confidential information received in a closed session
unless the Board authorizes the disclosure of that information. (Government Code 54963)

(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

Personnel Matters

The Board may hold closed sessions to consider the appointment, employment, evaluation of performance,
discipline, or dismissal of an employee. These sessions shall not include discussion or action on proposed
compensation except for a reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of discipline. (Government
Code 54957)

(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent)

(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision)

(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4215 - Evaluation/Supervision)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision)

The Board may also hold closed sessions to hear complaints or charges brought against an employee by another
person, unless the employee requests an open session. Before the Board holds a closed session on specific
complaints or charges brought against an employee, the employee shall receive written notice of his/her right to
have the complaints or charges heard in open session if desired. This notice shall be delivered personally or by mail at
least 24 hours before the time of the session. (Government Code 54957)

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

The Board may hold closed sessions to discuss a district employee's application for early withdrawal of funds in a
deferred compensation plan when the application is based on financial hardship arising from an unforeseeable
emergency due to illness, accident, casualty, or other extraordinary event, as specified in the deferred compensation
plan. (Government Code 54957.10)

Agenda items related to public employee appointments and employment shall describe the position to be filled.
Agenda items related to performance evaluations shall specify the title of the employee being reviewed. Agenda
items related to employee discipline, dismissal or release require no additional information. (Government Code
54954.5)

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Negotiations/Collective Bargaining

Unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties involved, the following shall not be subject to the Brown Act:
(Government Code 3549.1)

1. Any meeting and negotiating discussion between the district and a recognized or certified employee organization

2. Any meeting of a mediator with either party or both parties to the meeting and negotiating process

3. Any hearing, meeting or investigation conducted by a factfinder or arbitrator

4. Any executive (closed) session of the district or between the district and its designated representative for the
purpose of discussing its position regarding any matter within the scope of representation and instructing its
designated representatives

(cf. 4143/4243 - Negotiations/Consultation)

(cf. 4143.1/4243.1 - Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations)

The Board may meet in closed session with the Board's designated representative regarding employee salaries, salary
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and unrepresented employees.
These closed sessions may include discussions of the district's available funds and funding priorities, but only insofar
as they relate to providing instructions to the district's designated representative. (Government Code 54957.6)

Closed sessions shall be for the purpose of reviewing the Board's position and instructing the Board's designated
representative. Closed sessions may take place prior to and during consultations and discussions with
representatives of employee organizations and unrepresented employees. (Government Code 54957.6)

For represented employees, the Board may also meet in closed session to hear any other matter within the
statutorily provided scope of representation. (Government Code 54957.6)

For unrepresented employees, closed sessions held pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 shall not include final
action on the proposed compensation of one or more unrepresented employees. (Government Code 54957.6)

The Board also may meet in closed session with a state conciliator or a mediator who has intervened in these
proceedings. (Government Code 54957.6)

Agenda items related to negotiations shall specify the name of the district's designated representative(s) attending
the closed session. If circumstances necessitate the absence of a specified designated representative, an agent or
designee may participate in place of the absent representative as long as the name of the agent or designee is
announced at an open session held prior to the closed session. The agenda shall also specify the name of the
organization representing the employee(s) or the position title of the unrepresented employee who is the subject of
the negotiations. (Government Code 54954.5)

Matters Related to Students

The Board shall meet in closed session to consider a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action, except
expulsion, against a student when a public hearing on the matter would violate student privacy rights. If a written
request for open session is received from the parent/guardian or adult student, it will be honored to the extent that
it does not violate the privacy rights of any other student. (Education Code 35146, 48912, 49073-49079)

(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

The Board shall meet in closed session to consider the expulsion of a student, unless the student submits a written
request at least five days before the date of the hearing that the hearing be held in open session. Regardless of
whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in open or closed session, the Board may meet in closed session for the
purpose of deliberating and determining whether the student should be expelled. (Education Code 48918)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)



(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Agenda items related to student matters shall briefly describe the reason for the closed session, such as "student
expulsion hearing," "grade change appeal," without violating the confidentiality rights of individual students. The
student shall not be named on the agenda, but a number may be assigned to the student in order to facilitate record
keeping. The agenda shall also state that the Education Code requires closed sessions in these cases in order to
prevent the disclosure of confidential student record information.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Security Matters

The Board may meet in closed session with the Attorney General, district attorney, sheriff or chief of police, or their
respective deputies, or a security consultant or a security operations manager, on matters posing a threat to the
security of public buildings, to the security of essential public services, including water, drinking water, wastewater
treatment, natural gas service, and electric service, or to the public's right of access to public services or public
facilities. (Government Code 54957)

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

The Board may meet in closed session during an emergency meeting held pursuant to Government Code 54956.5 to
meet with law enforcement officials for the emergency purposes specified in Government Code 54957 if agreed to
by a two-thirds vote of the Board members present. If less than two-thirds of the members are present, then the
Board must agree by a unanimous vote of the members present. (Government Code 54956.5)

Agenda items related to security matters shall specify the name of the law enforcement agency and the title of the
officer, or name of applicable agency representative and title, with whom the Board will consult. (Government Code
54954.5)

Conference with Real Property Negotiator

The Board may meet in closed session with the Board's real property negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange
or lease of real property by or for the district in order to grant its negotiator the authority regarding the price and
terms of the property. (Government Code 54956.8)

Before holding the closed session, the Board shall hold an open and public session to identify its negotiator(s) and the
property under negotiation and to specify the person(s) with whom the negotiator may negotiate. (Government Code
54956.8)

For purposes of real property transactions, negotiators may include members of the Board. (Government Code
54956.8)

Agenda items related to real property negotiations shall specify the district negotiator attending the closed session. If
circumstances necessitate the absence of a specified negotiator, an agent or designee may participate in place of the
absent negotiator as long as the name of the agent or designee is announced at an open session held prior to the
closed session. The agenda shall also specify the name of the negotiating parties and the street address of the real
property under negotiation. If there is no street address, the agenda item shall specify the parcel number or another
unique reference of the property. The agenda item shall also specify whether instruction to the negotiator will
concern price, terms of payment, or both. (Government Code 54954.5)

Pending Litigation

Based on the advice of its legal counsel, the Board may hold a closed session to confer with or receive advice from
its legal counsel regarding pending litigation when a discussion of the matter in open session would prejudice the
Board's position in the case. For this purpose, "litigation" includes any adjudicatory proceeding, including eminent
domain, before a court, administrative body exercising its adjudicatory authority, hearing officer, or arbitrator.
(Government Code 54956.9)

Litigation is considered "pending" when any of the following circumstances exist:



1. Litigation to which the Board is a party has been initiated formally. (Government Code 54956.9(a))

2. A point has been reached where, in the Board's opinion based on the advice of legal counsel and on the existing
facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation against the district, or the Board is meeting solely
to determine whether, based on existing facts or circumstances, a closed session is authorized. (Government Code
54956.9(b))

3. Based on existing facts and circumstances, the Board has decided to initiate or is deciding whether to initiate
litigation. (Government Code 54956.9(c)

"Existing facts and circumstances" authorizing a closed session pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(b) as
described in item #2 above are limited to the following: (Government Code 54956.9)

1. Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation against the district but which the district believes are not yet
known to potential plaintiffs and which do not need to be disclosed.

2. Facts and circumstances including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster, incident or transactional occurrence
which might result in litigation against the district, which are already known to potential plaintiffs, and which must be
publicly disclosed before the closed session or specified on the agenda.

3. The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Tort Claims Act or a written threat of litigation from a potential plaintiff. The
claim or written communication must be available for public inspection.

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

4. A threat of litigation made by a person in an open meeting on a specific matter within the responsibility of the
Board.

5. A threat of litigation made by a person outside of an open meeting on a specific matter within the responsibility of
the Board, provided that the district official or employee receiving knowledge of the threat made a record of the
statement before the meeting and the record is available for public inspection.

The above record does not need to identify an alleged victim of tortious sexual conduct or anyone making a threat
on his/her behalf or identify an employee who is the alleged perpetrator of any unlawful or tortious conduct, unless
the identity of this person has been publicly disclosed.

Before holding a closed session pursuant to this section, the Board shall state on the agenda or publicly announce
the subdivision of Government Code 54956.9 under which the closed session is being held. If authority is based on
Government Code 54956.9(a), the Board shall either state the title or specifically identify the litigation to be
discussed or state that doing so would jeopardize the district's ability to effectuate service of process upon unserved
parties or to conclude existing settlement negotiations to its advantage. (Government Code 54956.9)

Agenda items related to "pending litigation" shall be described as a conference with legal counsel regarding "existing
litigation" or "anticipated litigation." (Government Code 54954.5)

"Existing litigation" items shall identify the name of the case specified by either the claimant's name, names of parties
and case or claim number, unless the Board states that to identify the case would jeopardize service of process or
existing settlement negotiations. (Government Code 54954.5)

"Anticipated litigation" items shall state that there is significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code
54956.9(b) and shall specify the potential number of cases. When the district expects to initiate a suit, items related
to anticipated litigation shall state that the discussion relates to the initiation of litigation pursuant to Government
Code 54956.9(c) and shall specify the potential number of cases. The agenda or an oral statement before the closed
session may be required to provide additional information pursuant to items #2-5 above. (Government Code
54954.5, Government Code 54956.9(b)(3)(B-E))

Joint Powers Agency Issues

The Board may meet in closed session to discuss a claim against a joint powers authority formed for the purpose of
insurance pooling or self-insurance authority of which it is a member, for the payment of tort liability losses, public
liability losses or workers' compensation liability. (Government Code 54956.95)

Closed session agenda items related to liability claims shall specify the claimant's name and the name of the agency
against which the claim is made. (Government Code 54954.5)



(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)

When the board of the joint powers agency has so authorized and upon advice of district legal counsel, the Board
may meet in closed session in order to receive, discuss and take action concerning information obtained in a closed
session of the joint powers agency. During the district's closed session, a Board member serving on the JPA board
may disclose confidential information acquired during a closed session of the JPA to fellow Board members.
(Government Code 54956.96)

The Board member may also disclose the confidential JPA information to district legal counsel in order to obtain
advice on whether the matter has direct financial or liability implications for the district. (Government Code
54956.96)

Closed session agenda items related to "Conference Involving a Joint Powers Agency" shall specify the closed
session description used by the joint powers agency and the name of the district representative on the joint powers
agency board. Additional information listing the names of agencies or titles of representatives attending the closed
session as consultants or other representatives shall also be included. (Government Code 54954.5)

Review of Audit Report from Bureau of State Audits

Upon receipt of a confidential final draft audit report from the Bureau of State Audits, the Board may meet in closed
session to discuss its response to that report. After public release of the report from the Bureau of State Audits, any
Board meeting to discuss the report must be conducted in open session, unless exempted from that requirement by
some other provision of law. (Government Code 54956.75)

Closed session agenda items related to an audit by the Bureau of State Audits shall state "Audit by Bureau of State
Audits." (Government Code 54954.5)

Review of Assessment Instruments

The Board may meet in closed session to review the contents of any student assessment instrument approved or
adopted for the statewide testing system. Before any such meeting, the Board shall agree by resolution to accept
any terms or conditions established by the State Board of Education for this review. (Education Code 60617)

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

Agenda items related to the review of student assessment instruments shall state that the Board is reviewing the
contents of an assessment instrument approved or adopted for the statewide testing program and that Education
Code 60617 authorizes a closed session for this purpose in order to maintain the confidentiality of the assessment
under review.



Exhibit 9321-E(1): Closed SessionExhibit 9321-E(1): Closed Session Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

BOARD MEETING AGENDA DESCRIPTIONS FOR CLOSED SESSION ITEMS

The Governing Board meeting agenda shall include the following description of a closed session item, as applicable:

Personnel Matters

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
Government Code 54957

Title:  ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify position to be filled)

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
Government Code 54957

Title:   ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify position to be filled)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Government Code 54957

Title:  ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify title of employee being evaluated)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
Government Code 54957
(Due to employee privacy rights, no additional information may be provided.)

SPECIFIC COMPLAINT OR CHARGE AGAINST EMPLOYEE
Government Code 54957
(Due to employee privacy rights, no additional information may be provided.)

EMPLOYEE APPLICATION FOR EARLY WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS IN DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
Government Code 54957.10
(No additional information may be provided.)

Negotiations/Collective Bargaining

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
Government Code 54957.6

District-Designated Representatives: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify names of representatives attending the closed session. If circumstances necessitate the absence of a specified
designated representative, an agent or designee may participate in place of the absent representative as long as the name
of the agent or designee is announced at an open session held prior to the closed session.)

Employee Organization: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify name of employee organization with which negotiations are being held.)

or

Unrepresented Employee(s): ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify position of unrepresented employee(s) who are the subject of the negotiations.)

Matters Related to Students

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

19.



STUDENT SUSPENSION/OTHER DISCIPLINARY ACTION
Education Code 35146

Tracking/Identification Number:  ______________________________________________________________________
(Due to student privacy rights, no additional information may be provided. The district may use other means to identify the
student for record-keeping purposes.)

STUDENT EXPULSION
Education Code 48912

Tracking/Identification Number:  ______________________________________________________________________
(Due to student privacy rights, no additional information may be provided. The district may use other means to identify the
student for record-keeping purposes.)

STUDENT GRADE CHANGE APPEAL
Education Code 49070

Tracking/Identification Number:  ______________________________________________________________________
(Due to student privacy rights, no additional information may be provided. The district may use other means to identify the
student for record-keeping purposes.)

CONFIDENTIAL STUDENT MATTER

Action Under Consideration:  ______________________________________________________________________
(If the Board is considering a confidential student matter other than those listed above, specify type of action.)

Tracking/Identification Number:  ______________________________________________________________________
(Due to student privacy rights, no additional information may be provided. The district may use other means to identify the
student for record-keeping purposes.)

Security Matters

THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
Government Code 54957

Consultation With:   ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify name of law enforcement agency and title of officer, or name of applicable agency representative and title, with
whom the Board will consult.)

DEVELOPMENT/APPROVAL OF TACTICAL RESPONSE PLAN
Education Code 32281

Consultation With:  ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify name of law enforcement agency and title of officer, or name of applicable agency representative and title, with
whom the Board will consult.)

Real Property Negotiations

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
Government Code 54956.8

Property:   ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify street address or, if no street address, the parcel number or other unique reference of the real property under
negotiation.)

District Negotiator:  ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify names of negotiators attending the closed session. If circumstances necessitate the absence of a specified
negotiator, an agent or designee may participate in place of the absent negotiator as long as the name of the agent or
designee is announced at an open session held prior to the closed session.)

Party With Whom District Is Negotiating:  ______________________________________________________________________



(Specify name of party, not agent.)

Under Negotiation: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify whether instruction to negotiator will concern price, terms of payment, or both.)

Anticipated Litigation/Initiation of Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d)(2) or (3)

(If applicable) Existing Facts And Circumstances:
______________________________________________________________________

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - INITIATION OF LITIGATION
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(d)(4)

(If applicable) Existing Facts And Circumstances:
______________________________________________________________________

Existing Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION
Government Code 54956.9(d)(1)

Name Of Case: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify by reference to claimant's name, names of parties, or case or claim numbers.)

or

Case name unspecified, as identification of the case would jeopardize service of process or existing settlement
negotiations

Tort, Public, or Workers' Compensation Liability

LIABILITY CLAIMS
Government Code 54956.95

Name Of Claimant(s):______________________________________________________________________
(Specify name, except when the claimant is a victim or alleged victim of tortious sexual conduct or child abuse unless the
identity of the person has been publicly disclosed.)

Name Of Agency Against Which Claim Is
Made:______________________________________________________________________

Joint Powers Authority Issues

INFORMATION FROM A JOINT POWERS AGENCY WITH DIRECT FINANCIAL OR LIABILITY IMPLICATIONS FOR
DISTRICT
Government Code 54956.96

Name Of JPA: ______________________________________________________________________

Discussion Will Concern: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify closed session description used by the JPA.)

Name Of District Representative On JPA
board: ______________________________________________________________________

Review of Audit from State Auditor's Office



AUDIT BY CALIFORNIA STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE
Government Code 54956.75
(No additional information is required.)

Review of Assessment Instruments

REVIEW OF STUDENT ASSESSMENT INSTRUMENT
Education Code 60617
(Reference resolution in which board agreed to accept the terms or conditions established by rules and regulations of the
State Board of Education.)



Exhibit 9321-E(2): Closed SessionExhibit 9321-E(2): Closed Session Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: Pending

REPORTS OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS

Following a closed session during any Governing Board meeting, the Board shall reconvene in open session to
present, orally or in writing, a report of any of the following actions taken during the closed session, as applicable:

Personnel Matters

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT

Title: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify position to be filled)

Appointment Made:  (Yes; otherwise no action taken)

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT

Title: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify position to be filled)

Decision to Employ:  (Yes; otherwise no action taken)

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Title: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify title of employee being evaluated)

(If applicable) Board evaluated an employee in the above listed position.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE

Title: ______________________________________________________________________
(Specify position affected)

(If applicable) Decision to Dismiss/Release:  (Yes; otherwise no action taken)

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

20.



(Enter names of Board members)

SPECIFIC COMPLAINT OR CHARGE AGAINST EMPLOYEE

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed a specific complaint or charge against an employee.

EMPLOYEE APPLICATION FOR EARLY WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS IN DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

(If applicable) Board received/discussed an employee's application for early withdrawal of funds in deferred
compensation plan.

Negotiations/Collective Bargaining

(If applicable) Agreement Reached With: _____________________________________
(Specify Employee Organization)

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

Matters Related to Students

STUDENT SUSPENSION/OTHER DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Tracking/Identification Number: __________________________________________________

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter and will vote in open session as indicated in the agenda.

STUDENT EXPULSION

Tracking/Identification Number: __________________________________________________

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter and will vote in open session as indicated in the agenda.

STUDENT GRADE CHANGE APPEAL

Tracking/Identification Number: __________________________________________________

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter.

CONFIDENTIAL STUDENT MATTER

Action Under Consideration: ____________________________________________________

Tracking/Identification Number: __________________________________________________

(If applicable) Board heard/discussed this matter.

Security Matters

THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES

(If applicable) Board consulted with: _________________________________________
(Specify name of law enforcement agency and title of officer, or name of applicable agency representative and title, with
whom the Board will consult.)

DEVELOPMENT/APPROVAL OF TACTICAL RESPONSE PLAN



(If applicable) Board approved a Tactical Response Plan.

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

Real Property Negotiations

(If applicable) Board approved an agreement concluding real estate negotiations and the agreement is final.

Substance Of Agreement: __________________________________________________

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

Anticipated Litigation/Initiation of Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

(If applicable) Board has given approval to legal counsel to defend the district against anticipated litigation.

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

or

(If applicable) Board approved an agreement concluding this matter and the agreement is final.

Adverse Party(s): ___________________________________________________________

Substance Of Agreement: __________________________________________________

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - INITIATION OF LITIGATION

(If applicable) Board has given approval to legal counsel to initiate litigation.

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________



Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

or

(If applicable) Board approved an agreement concluding this matter and the agreement is final.

Adverse Party(s): ___________________________________________________________

Substance Of Agreement: __________________________________________________

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

Existing Litigation

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION

(If applicable) Board has given approval to legal counsel to defend the district, seek or refrain from seeking appellate
review or relief, or to enter as an amicus curiae in this litigation.

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

or

(If applicable) Board approved an agreement concluding this litigation and the agreement is final.

Substance Of Agreement: __________________________________________________

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)

Tort, Public, or Workers' Compensation Liability

LIABILITY CLAIMS

(If applicable) Board approved disposing of this claim and that disposition is final.

Substance Of Claim, Including Amount Of Payment To Claimant: ____________________

Ayes: ______________________________________________________________________
Nays: ______________________________________________________________________
Abstentions: _______________________________________________________________
Absent: ____________________________________________________________________
Recused: ___________________________________________________________________
(Enter names of Board members)



Policy 1325: Advertising And PromotionPolicy 1325: Advertising And Promotion Status:Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board establishes this policy to ensure effective and consistent standards for advertisements and
promotions by nonschool groups in school-sponsored publications, on district and school web sites and social media,
and on school facilities and grounds. Student speech shall be regulated in accordance with BP/AR 5145.2 - Freedom
of Speech/Expression.

OPTION 1:  Nonpublic Forum

The Board believes that in order to maintain focus on academic achievement in district schools, students' exposure
to the persuasive influence of marketing should be minimized. The Superintendent or designee shall not allow any
advertisement from any nonschool group to be included in any district- or school-sponsored publication, web site, or
social media, or to be posted on any school property such as school buildings, athletic fields, scoreboards, or
billboards. In addition, no nonschool group's announcement, flyer, or other promotional material shall be
disseminated by the district or distributed at any school facility or on school grounds.
OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2:  Limited Public Forum

The Board desires to promote positive relationships between district schools and the community in order to enhance
community partnerships, support, and involvement in the schools. The Superintendent or designee may, consistent
with the criteria established in this policy, approve:

1. Distribution of noncommercial materials that publicize services, special events, public meetings, or other
gatherings of interest to students or parents/guardians

2. Distribution of promotional materials of a commercial nature to students or parents/guardians

(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)

3. Paid advertisements on school property, including, but not limited to, advertisements on school buildings,
athletic fields, scoreboards, and billboards

4. Paid advertisements in school-sponsored publications, yearbooks, announcements, and other school
communications, including web sites and social media

5. Products and materials donated by commercial enterprises for educational use, including those that bear the
name and/or logo of the donor, as long as they do not unduly promote the donor or any commercial activity or
product

Prior to the distribution, posting, or publishing of any nonschool group's promotional materials or advertisement, the
Superintendent, principal, or designee shall review the materials or advertisement based on the criteria listed below.
He/she may not disapprove materials or advertisement in an arbitrary or capricious manner or in a way that
discriminates against a particular viewpoint on a subject that is otherwise allowed by Board policy.

All materials to be distributed shall bear the name and contact information of the sponsoring entity.

As necessary, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall require a disclaimer on any nonschool group's
promotional materials to be distributed, posted, or published, stating that the distribution, posting, or publishing of
the materials does not imply district endorsement of the group's activities, products, or services.  District- and
school-sponsored publications shall include a disclaimer stating that the district or school does not endorse any
advertised products or services.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District

21.



Criteria for Approval

The Superintendent, principal, or designee shall not accept for distribution, or allow on school property, any materials
or advertisements that:

1. Are lewd, obscene, libelous, or slanderous
 

2. Incite students to commit unlawful acts, violate school rules, or disrupt the orderly operation of the schools

3. Promote any particular political interest, candidate, party, or ballot measure, unless the candidates or
advocates from all sides are provided the opportunity to present their views to the students during school
hours or during events scheduled pursuant to the Civic Center Act

4. Contain prayer or proselytizing language
 

5. Position the district on any side of a controversial issue
 

6. Discriminate against, attack, or denigrate any group on account of any unlawful consideration
 

7. Promote the use or sale of materials or services that are illegal or inconsistent with school objectives, including,
but not limited to, materials or advertisements for tobacco, intoxicants, and movies or products unsuitable for
children

8. Promote during the school day any food or beverage that does not comply with state nutritional standards
pursuant to Education Code 49430-49434, including a corporate incentive program that offers free or
discounted foods or beverages that do not meet nutritional standards as rewards for students who reach
certain academic goals. This prohibition does not include advertising on clothing with brand images worn on
school grounds, advertising contained in product packaging, or advertising of infrequent school fundraising
events involving food or beverages that do not meet the nutritional standards.  (Education Code 49431.9)
 

9. Solicit funds or services for an organization, with the exception of solicitations authorized in Board policy
 

10. Distribute unsolicited merchandise for which an ensuing payment is requested

The Superintendent or designee may also consider the educational value of the materials or advertisements, the age
or maturity of the students in the intended audience, and whether the materials or advertisements support the basic
educational mission of the district, directly benefit the students, or are of intrinsic value to the students or their
parents/guardians.

Schools may establish additional criteria pertaining to the content of advertisements in school publications and
yearbooks, as deemed appropriate by the Superintendent or designee in accordance with law and Board policy.
OPTION 2 ENDS HERE



Policy 1325: Advertising And PromotionPolicy 1325: Advertising And Promotion Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 02/27/2008 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 02/27/2008

The Governing Board desires to promote positive relationships between schools and the community in order to
enhance community support and involvement in district schools. The Superintendent or designee may approve:

1. Distribution of noncommercial materials that publicize services, special events, public meetings or other items
of interest to students or parents/guardians
 

2. Distribution of promotional materials of a commercial nature to students or parents/guardians
 

3. Paid advertisements on school property, including but not limited to billboard advertisements
 

4. Paid advertisements in school-sponsored publications, yearbooks, announcements and other school
communications
 

5. Products and materials donated by commercial enterprises for use in the classroom, as long as they serve an
educational purpose and do not unduly promote any commercial activity or products. Such materials may bear
the name and/or logo of the donor.

Prior to distribution or publication, the Superintendent, principal or designee shall review and approve all advertising
copy and promotional materials to ensure compliance with Board policy.

The Superintendent, principal or designee may selectively approve or disapprove distribution of materials or
publishing of copy based on the criteria listed below, but may not disapprove materials or copy in an arbitrary or
capricious manner or in a way that discriminates against a particular viewpoint on a subject that would otherwise be
allowed.

All materials to be distributed shall bear the name and contact information of the sponsoring entity.

The use of promotional materials or advertisements does not imply district endorsement of any identified products
or services. Schools are encouraged to include a disclaimer in school publications and yearbooks stating that the
school does not endorse any advertised products or services.

Criteria for Approval

The Superintendent, principal or designee shall not accept for distribution any materials or advertisements that:

1. Are obscene, libelous or slanderous (Education Code 48907)
 

2. Incite students to commit unlawful acts, violate school rules or disrupt the orderly operation of the schools
(Education Code 48907)
 

3. Promote any particular political interest, candidate, party or ballot measure, unless such materials are being
distributed at a forum in which candidates or advocates from all sides are presenting their views to the
students during school hours or during events scheduled pursuant to the Civic Center Act
 

4. Discriminate against, attack or denigrate any group on account of any unlawful consideration
 

5. Promote the use or sale of materials or services that are illegal or inconsistent with school objectives, including
but not limited to materials or advertisements for tobacco, intoxicants, and movies or products unsuitable for
children
 

6. Solicit funds or services for an organization, with the exception of solicitations authorized in Board policy
 

7. Distribute unsolicited merchandise for which an ensuing payment is requested

The Superintendent or designee also may consider the educational value of the materials or advertisements, the age
or maturity of students in the intended audience, and whether the materials or advertisements support the basic
educational mission of the district, directly benefit the students or are of intrinsic value to the students or their
parents/guardians.

Board Policy Manual
Galt Joint Union Elementary School District



Schools may establish additional criteria pertaining to the content of advertisements in school publications and
yearbooks. Such criteria may limit advertisements to those that contain congratulatory or commemorative messages,
curriculum-related content, advertisements for products or services of interest to students, noncontroversial
content, and/or other content deemed appropriate by the school publication staff and adviser in accordance with
law and Board policy.


	Agenda
	Closed Session
	Presentations
	Board meeting protocol
	Reports
	LCAP Update
	LCAP Goal 1
	Math Adoption Update
	GATE Update
	LCAP Goal 2
	Food & Nutrition Services
	GALEP Brochure
	Marengo Ranch Track Image
	Marengo Ranch Track Donors
	Other Reports
	Williams UCP
	School Registration Information
	School Calendars
	232.457 Consent Calendar
	Minutes: Dec. 20, 2023
	Human Resources
	Donations
	232.458 CC Items Removed
	232.459 Student Expulsion
	232.460 District Audit 2022-23
	232.461 SARCs
	SARC: Fairsite
	SARC: Lake Canyon
	SARC: Marengo Ranch
	SARC: River Oaks
	SARC: Valley Oaks
	SARC: Vernon E. Greer
	SARC: McCaffrey
	232.462 19six Architects Proposal
	232.463 E-rate Service Providers 2024-25
	232.464 Board Policies
	2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Greer_Elementary_School_20240110 (2).pdf
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	GATE Presentation.pdf
	GATE �Program Update
	GATE Program Update
	Already in place
	Testing updates
	In Progress…
	GOALS 2023-2024
	GOALS 2024-2025
	GATE leaders will continue to work together to create challenging and exciting opportunities for GATE students to grow academically, socially and emotionally.

	2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Fairsite_Elementary_School_20240111.pdf
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Pupil Engagement)
	Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)
	2022-23 Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate)
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	2022-23 Advanced Placement (AP) Courses
	Professional Development



	2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Lake_Canyon_Elementary_School_20240111.pdf
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Marengo_Ranch_Elementary_School_20240111.pdf
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_River_Oaks_Elementary_School_20240111.pdf
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Valley_Oaks_Elementary_School_20240111.pdf
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Greer_Elementary_School_20240111.pdf
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan

	D. Other SARC Information (Information Required in the SARC)
	2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development



	2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_McCaffrey_Middle_School_20240111.pdf
	-------
	2023 School Accountability Report Card
	General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
	2023-24 School Contact Information
	2023-24 District Contact Information
	2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement

	About this School
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level
	2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

	A. Conditions of Learning (State Priority: Basic)
	2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement
	Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)
	Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)
	Class Assignments
	2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials
	School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements
	Overall Facility Rate

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Pupil Achievement)
	Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group
	CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
	2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

	B. Pupil Outcomes (State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes)
	2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results

	C. Engagement (State Priority: Parental Involvement)
	2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement
	2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

	C. Engagement (State Priority: School Climate)
	Suspensions and Expulsions
	2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group
	2023-24 School Safety Plan
	2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2021-22 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution
	2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor
	2022-23 Student Support Services Staff
	2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries
	2022-23 Types of Services Funded
	2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries
	Professional Development




	Name: Lois Yount
	Job Title: Superintendent
	Phone Number: 209-744-4545
	E-mail Address: superintendent@galt.k12.ca.us
	School District: [Galt Joint Union S.D.]
	Quarter: [Quarter 2 (Oct.–Dec.)]
	Year: 2023-2024
	Total Number of Textbook Complaints: 0
	Number of Textbook Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Textbook Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Total Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints: 0
	Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Emergency Facilities Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Total Number of VacancyMisassignment Complaints: 0
	Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Resolved: 0
	Number of Vacancy/Misassignment Complaints Unresolved: 0
	Resolution of Complaints: N/A
	Includes All UCP Complaints: On


